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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K
(Mark
one)
[ ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934
For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2011
OR
(M TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from to
Commission File Number 1-15839
]LZZARD m
ACTIVISION BLIZZARD, INC.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its @rart
Delaware 95-4803544
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation oganization) (I.LR.S. Employer Identification No
3100 Ocean Park Boulevard, Santa Monica, CA 90405
(Address of principal executive office (Zip Code)

Registrant's telephone number, including area o@i&€) 255-2000
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(bhefAct:

Name of Each Exchange on Which

Title of each Class Registered
Common Stock, par value The NASDAQ Global Select
$.000001 per shai Market

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(ghefAct:
None



Indicate by check mark if the registrantiwell-known seasoned issuer, as defined in &eof the Securities Act. Yel® No O
Indicate by check mark if the registranhot required to file reports pursuant to Secti8ror Section 15 (d) of the Act. Yd&S No X

Indicate by check mark whether the regigtf1) has filed all reports required to be filgdSection 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exche
Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (ordioch shorter period that the registrant was requaodile such reports), and (2) has been
subject to such filing requirements for the pasti@s. Yes No O

Indicate by check mark whether the regigthas submitted electronically and posted oadtporate Web site, if any, every Interactive
Data File required to be submitted and posted untsto Rule 405 of Regulation5¢§ 232.405 of this chapter) during the precedignonth
(or for such shorter period that the registrant veagiired to submit and post such files). Y&s No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure ofiniguent filers pursuant to Item 405 of RegulatiiK is not contained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of the registrant's knowdedgdefinitive proxy or information statementsanporated by reference in Part Il of this
Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10{H.

Indicate by check mark whether the registis a large accelerated filer, an accelerated & non-accelerated filer, or a smaller repgrtin
company. See the definitions of "large acceleréited" "accelerated filer," and "smaller reportiogmpany" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange
Act.

Large Accelerated Fild®l Accelerated FileEd Non-accelerated Fildz Smaller Reporting Comparfisl

(Do not check if a smaller reporting compa
Indicate by check mark whether the regigtis a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b+thefAct). YesOO No

The aggregate market value of the regiss@ommon Stock held by non-affiliates on June2Bd1 (based on the closing sale price of
$11.68 per share as reported on the NASDAQ) wa484916,612.

The number of shares of the registrantisi@on Stock outstanding at February 16, 2012 wE221866,712.
Documents Incorporated by Reference

Portions of the registrant's definitiver Statement, to be filed with the Securities Bxdhange Commission with respect to the 2012
Annual Meeting of Shareholders which is expectedetdeld on June 7, 2012, are incorporated byaeéerinto Part Il of this Annual Report.
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PART I
CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains, or inagies by reference, certain forward-looking stag@ts within the meaning of the
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1996cI statements consist of any statement otherdtranitation of historical fact and includ
but are not limited to: (1) projections of revenuegpenses, income or loss, earnings or loss pamesicash flow or other financial items;
(2) statements of our plans and objectives, inclgdhose relating to product releases; (3) statet:ienfuture economic performance; and

(4) statements of assumptions underlying suchratatés. We generally use words such as "outlootretfst,” "will," "could,” "should,"
"would," "to be," "plans,” "believes," "may," "ex@ts,"” "intends," "anticipates," "estimate," "futytépositioned,” "potential," "project,”
“remain," "scheduled," "set to," "subject to," "ugring" and other similar expressions to help idgrfiorward-looking statements. Forward-

looking statements are subject to business andossimrisk, reflect management's current expectati@stimates and projections about our
business, and are inherently uncertain and diffitoilpredict. Our actual results could differ matdly. The forward-looking statements
contained herein speak only at the date on whighEbrm 10-K was first filed. Some of the risk éastthat could cause our actual results to
differ from those stated in forward-looking statertsecan be found in "Risk Factors” included in Paitem 1A of this Report. The forward-
looking statements contained herein are based iqfonmation available to us as of the date of thimwual Report on Form 10-K and we
assume no obligation to update any such forwardkilop statements. Forwarlboking statements believed to be true when madeuttianately
prove to be incorrect. These statements are notaguees of our future performance and are subjecidks, uncertainties and other facto
some of which are beyond our control and may catgal results to differ materially from currentpectations.

Activision Blizzard, Inc.'s ("Activision Blizzardfiames, abbreviations thereof, logos, and produdtservice designators are all either
the registered or unregistered trademarks or tradenes of Activision Blizzard. All other productsarvice names are the property of their
respective owners.

ltem 1. BUSINESS
Overview

Activision Blizzard is a worldwide publishef online, personal computer ("PC"), console,dtald, and mobile interactive entertainment
products. Through Activision Publishing, Inc. ("Adsion™), we are a leading international publisbéinteractive software products and
content, with a focus on developing and publishiitteo games on various consoles, handheld platfamdshe PC platform through internally
developed franchises and license agreements. Sictivcurrently offers games that operate on they &mmputer Entertainment Inc. ("Sony")
PlayStation 3 ("PS3"), Nintendo Co. Ltd. ("Nintefigd@Vii ("Wii"), and Microsoft Corporation ("Microsfh*) Xbox 360 (“"Xbox 360") console
systems; the Nintendo Dual Screen ("DS") handhaldeysystems; the PC; Apple iOS devices and othetttedd and mobile devices. Through
Blizzard Entertainment, Inc. ("Blizzard"), we atestleading publisher of online subscription-basaehgs in the massively multiplayer online
role-playing game ("MMORPG") category. Blizzardalaternally develops and publishes PC-based coengatmes and maintains its
proprietary online-game related service, Battle.net

Our Activision business involves the deypeh@nt, marketing, and sale of products throughlretannels or digital downloads, by license
or from our affiliate label program with certairirth-party publishers. Activision is focusing itdats in the areas we believe have the most
opportunity for growth and higher profitability, dmve have reduced investments in areas we bel@we less profit potential and limited
growth opportunities. To that end, investmentshaiag focused on proven intellectual propertiedewvelop deep, high-quality content that
offers engaging online multiplayer gaming experend-or example, during 2011, Activision relea€atl of Duty®: Modern Warfare® 3
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which set new interactive entertainment launchilretdes records with over $775 million of retales within five days of launch, exceeding
the prior year's record-setting launchG#ll of Duty: Black Ops®according to Charttrack and retail customer saifegiination. Activision is
currently developing sequels and additional contefuild on the continued success of the Call ofyiranchise. Activision has also
recognized that new digital distribution channedsdemerged that offer efficiency and conveniencadidiences, as well as additional profit
opportunities and recurring revenue models for@ointreators. As such, in November 2011, ActivideamchedCall of Duty Elite,a digital
service that provides both free and paid subsonptiased content and features for the Call of Bratychise. It combines social networking
features and online programming, offering the na@sessible way to connect and play Call of Duty gmmith other people. Activision also
expects to continue to release several other thigseconomically utilize key licensed intelledtpeoperties, such as Marvel

Entertainment, Inc.'s ("Marvel'§pider-ManandX-Menfranchises, MGM Interactive and EON Productions.'stfMGM & EON") James
Bondfranchise, Hasbro Properties Group's ("Hasbfoansformers™ranchise and the long-standi@gbela's®hunting franchise, among
others.

While focusing on our proven intellectuabperties is one of our priorities, we also congito make strategic investments in developing
new intellectual properties. On October 16, 2014 Jaunchedkylanders Spyro's Adventure™ new intellectual property that combines the
use of toys with video games, delivering a new galag experience to our audiences. Additionally,hage established a long-term alliance
with Bungie, the developer of game franchises idiclg Halo, MythandMarathon,to bring Bungie's next big action game universm&rket ir
future years.

Blizzard is the development studio and aiidr best known as the creatoMébrid of Warcraft®, as well as the multiple award winning
Diablo® andStarCraft®franchises. Blizzard distributes its products aadegates revenues worldwide through various meacisding:
subscriptions (which consist of fees from indivitbuplayingWorld of Warcraftincluding sales of prepaid-cards and other valweddervice
revenues such as realm transfers, faction chaagdsther character customizations witorld of Warcraftgameplay); retail sales of
physical "boxed" products; online download saleBGfproducts; and licensing of software to thirdypar related party companies that
distributeWorld of WarcraftandStarCraft 1I® products. Blizzard has released three expansiokspga®Vorld of Warcraft— World of
Warcraft: The Burning Crusade®WNorld of Warcraft: Wrath of the Lich KingRandWorld of Warcraft: Cataclysm®In July 2010, the
company launched the sequeBtarCraft, StarCraft II: Wings of Liberty In conjunction with the release 8farCraft Il: Wings of Liberty
Blizzard launched a new version of its 24/7 onlijaening service, Battle.net®, facilitating the creatof user generated content, digital
distribution and online social connectivity amontygtWorld of WarcraftandStarCraftplayers. Recently, Blizzard has announced its tigan
to shipDiablo IlI® in the second quarter of 2012, released a trdilewsasing the multiplayer aspect of 8&rCraft |l expansionHeart of the
Swarm®, and announced plans for the fouttorld of Warcraftexpansion—World of Warcraft: Mist of Pandaria®In addition to developing
these games, Blizzard is also currently developingw massive multiplayer online game.

The Activision Blizzard Distribution ("Digbution”) business consists of operations in Eertigat provide warehousing, logistical, and
sales distribution services to third-party publishef interactive entertainment software, our owblshing operations, and manufacturers of
interactive entertainment hardware.

The Company

Activision, Inc. was originally incorporatén California in 1979 and was reincorporated gldvare in December 1992. On July 9, 2008,
a business combination (the "Business Combinatiby'and among Activision, Inc., Sego Merger Corfiorg a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Activision, Inc., Vivendi S.A. ("Vivendi"), VGAC LIC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Vivendi , and Vigkiisames, Inc. ("Vivendi Games"), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of VGAC LLC, was consumnuhatAs a result of the
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consummation of the Business Combination, Activisioc. was renamed Activision Blizzard, Inc. Acsien Blizzard is a public company
traded on the NASDAQ under the ticker symbol "ATVI.

Our Strategy

Our objective is to continue to be a woildisvieader in the development, publishing, andrilistion of quality interactive entertainment
software, online content and services that delvkighly satisfying entertainment experience.

Continue to Improve Profitability. We continually strive to manage risk and insgeaur operating efficiency with the goal of inced
profitability. We believe the key factors affectingr future profitability will be the success ofraore properties, proven franchises and gel
cost discipline, and our ability to benefit fronetbontinued growth of online and digital revenupanunities.

Create Shareholder Value.We continue to focus on enhancing shareholeterm through growing operating margin, maintaingng
strong balance sheet and generating strong cash.fls a result, we expect to continue to achiemgiterm growth and have been able to
provide value to our shareholders through stocknease programs and cash dividends.

Grow Through Continued Strategic Acquisii@nd Alliances. We intend to continue to evaluate the expansfasur resources and
intellectual properties library through acquisiiostrategic relationships, and key license traiwa We will also continue to evaluate
opportunities to increase our proven developmepégise through the acquisition of, or investmentelected experienced software
development firms.

Focus on Delivery of Digital Content andli@da Services. We continue to shift towards digital deliverfyoontent and to establish and
develop direct and long-term relationships with gamers. We will also continue to support, maintaid enhance the World of Warcraft and
Call of Duty online communities. We believe thatdising our efforts on online product innovationg;tsas additional online content, services
and social connectivity, provides lasting valueadement to our global communities of players.

Competition

We compete for the leisure time and disonatry spending of consumers with other video gaomapanies, as well as with other provic
of different forms of entertainment, such as mofstures, television, social networking, onlineseal entertainment and music.

The interactive entertainment industrynignsely competitive and new interactive entert@nnsoftware products and platforms are
regularly introduced. Our competitors vary in dimem small companies with limited resources to ¢éacgrporations who may have greater
financial, marketing, and product development resesithan we have. Due to their different focusekadlocation of resources, certain of our
competitors may spend more money and time on dpwgjand testing products, undertake more extemsudeting campaigns, adopt more
aggressive pricing policies, pay higher fees terlaors for desirable motion picture, televisiorrigpand character properties, and pay more to
third-party software developers. In addition, cotitpes with large product lines and popular tittgpically have greater leverage with retailers,
distributors, and other customers who may be vgltim promote titles with less consumer appeal turrefor access to such competitor's most
popular titles. We believe that the main competifigctors in the interactive entertainment industoyude: product features, game quality and
playability; brand name recognition; compatibilifyproducts with popular platforms; access to thstion channels; online capability and
functionality; ease of use; price; marketing suppamd quality of customer service.
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We compete primarily with other publishef$°C, online and video game console interactitergminment software. In addition to third-
party software competitors, integrated video gaoresole hardware and software companies, such ag Nartendo and Microsoft, compete
directly with us in the development of softwaréestfor their respective platforms. Further, a nemiif software publishers have developed
commercialized, or are currently developing, onlijaenes for use by consumers over the Internetpenelxpect new competitors to continus
emerge in the subscription-based MMORPG categagtly, we compete with mobilgame publishers for alternative handheld deviceh si
Apple iOS devices and other emerging handheld amlgilendevices.

Employee:

We had approximately 7,300 total full-tisued part-time employees at December 31, 2011. AeBber 31, 2011, approximately 117 of
our full-time employees were subject to term empiepnt agreements with us. These agreements geneoafiyit the employees to
employment terms of between one and five years ffemcommencement of their respective agreemerdst bf the employees subject to
these agreements are executive officers or key raesmdf the product development, sales, or marketivigions. These individuals perform
services for us as executives, directors, prodyassociate producers, computer programmers, gasigrers, sales directors, or marketing
product managers. In our experience, enteringeéntployment agreements with these employees reduedasrnover during the development,
production, and distribution phases of our ententeint software products and allows us to plan reffextively for future development and
marketing activities. Other employees outside eflthnited States are also party to employment aggatnthat do not specify a fixed term.

The majority of our employees in FranceaiBpltaly and in our distribution companies in @any are subject to collective bargaining
agreements. To date, we have not experienced hoy-talated work stoppages.

Intellectual Property

Like other entertainment companies, ouiir®ss is significantly dependent on the creatiequasition, exploitation and protection of
intellectual property. Some of this intellectuabperty is in the form of software code, patentetht®logy, and other technology and trade
secrets that we use to develop our games and te thakn run properly. Other intellectual propertinishe form of audio-visual elements that
consumers can see, hear and interact with whenatteeglaying our games.

We develop some of our products from wholyned intellectual properties that we create withiir own studios. We also acquire the
rights to include proprietary intellectual propentyour products through acquisitions. In additiae, obtain intellectual property through
licenses and service agreements. These agreempicly limit our use of the licensed rights iropiucts for specific time periods. In addition,
our products that play on game consoles and hatgitetforms include technology that is owned bydbasole or wireless device
manufacturer, and licensed non-exclusively to usife. We also license technology from providehgthan console manufacturers. While
we may have renewal rights for some licenses, aainess and the justification for the developmdmhany of our products is dependent on
our ability to continue to obtain the intellectymbperty rights from the owners of these rightseasonable terms and at reasonable rates.

We actively engage in enforcement and adleévities to protect our intellectual propertyeWypically own the copyright to the software
code in our products. Moreover, we own or licetngelirand or title name trademark under which oadpcts are marketed. We register
copyrights, trademarks and patents in the UniteteStand other countries as appropriate.

We often distribute our PC products usiagycprotection technology or other technologicaltection measures to prevent piracy and the
use of unauthorized copies of our products. Intaatdi
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console manufacturers typically incorporate tecbgigal protections and other security measurekeir tonsoles in an effort to prevent the
of unlicensed products. We are actively engageghforcement and other activities to protect againsiuthorized copying and piracy,
including monitoring online channels for distritartiof pirated copies, and participating in varieagorcement initiatives, education programs
and legislative activity around the world.

Significant Customers

We did not have any single customer thabanted for 10% or more of our consolidated neénexes for the year ended December 31,
2011. We had one customer, GameStop, which acabfimteapproximately 12% and 10% of our consolidatetirevenues for the years ended
December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Operating Segments

We have three operating segments: (i) Agibm Publishing, Inc. and its subsidiaries—pubhghinteractive entertainment software
products and downloadable content, (ii) Blizzardetainment, Inc. and its subsidiaries—publishieglitime strategy, role-playing PC games
and online subscription-based games in the MMOR®&&gory, and (iii) Activision Blizzard Distributierdistributing interactive
entertainment software and hardware products (fibigion"). See Note 13 of the Notes to Consoliddtegancial Statements included in
Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for cémtadditional information regarding operating segitse

Activision—Business Overview
Strategy

Create, Acquire and Maintain Strong Frarsgs. Activision focuses on development and publighactivities, principally for products
and content that are, or have the potential to fmecdranchises with sustainable mass consumer bapéaecognition. It is our experience that
these products and content can then serve as $iefbasequels, prequels and related new produicontent that can be released over an
extended period of time. We believe that the pubiig and distribution of products and content baseg@roven franchises enhances
predictability of revenues and the probability ajlhunit volume sales and operating profits. We @eweral successful intellectual properties
including Call of Duty and the newly released Skylers franchise, and we intend to continue devedopraf owned franchises in the future.
We have entered into a series of strategic relshims with the owners of intellectual propertiag;lsas Marvel, MGM & EON, Hasbro,

Mattel, Inc. and Cabela, pursuant to which we heaguired the rights to publish products based anciises such aSpider-Man, X-Men,
James Bond, Transformersand theCabela's®hunting franchise. We also have an exclusive 10-g#ance with Bungie, a developer of
successful game franchises, to bring Bungie's igxaction game universe to market.

Execute Disciplined Product Selection arev&opment Processes.The success of our publishing business depémgggnificant part,
on our ability to develop high quality games thdt generate high unit volume sales. Our publishimits have implemented a formal control
process for the selection, development, produciwhquality assurance of our products. We app/ghocess, which we refer to as the
"Greenlight Process," to all of our products, wieetbxternally or internally developed. The Gredmligrocess includes in-depth reviews of
each project at several important stages of dewatop by a team that includes many of our highesitirey operating managers and
coordination among our sales, marketing and devedop staff at each step in the process.

We develop our products using a combinatibour internal development resources and exteteatlopment resources acting under
contract with us. We typically select our exterdavelopers based on their track records and egpértiproducing products in the same
category. One developer will
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often produce the same game for multiple platfoamd will produce sequels to the original game. \®léele that selecting and using
development resources in this manner allows usuverage the particular expertise of our interndl external development resources, whicl
believe enhances the quality of our products acélatates the timing of releases.

Focused Product Offerings, Diversity in tRéams and Geographies. We believe Activision has aligned its produffedngs and cost
structure to position the business for long-termwgh. Through our online-enabled products and adntee believe we are best positioned to
take advantage of retail and digital distributidvacnels that allow us to deliver content to a diitgrof gamers ranging from children to adults
and from core gamers to mass-market consumersatoe¥/buyers seeking budget-priced software, iaréety of geographies. Presently, the
majority of products that we develop, publish amstribute operate on the PS3, Xbox 360, and Wisotg systems, and the PC. In addition,
emerging and rapidly growing online-enabled platfsyin which we will support in-game integratiordering together online experience and
gameplay, will continue to be a focus. We typicaiffer our products for use on multiple platforngé¢duce the risks associated with any
single platform, spread our costs over a largealilesl hardware base, and increase unit salesn#iad to continue to offer both online and
packaged software and games with localized coimetifferent geographies.

Products

In recent years, Activision has been bast¥n for its success in the first-person actiorgaty from the Call of Duty original intellectual
property, including the latest relea€gll of Duty: Modern Warfare 3yhich set records with over $775 million of retsdlles during the first
five days from its launch in November 2011, acaogdio Charttrack and retail customer sales infoimnafThe Call of Duty franchise has
achieved approximately $6 billion life-to-date raue and has an active global community of milliohplayers.Call of Duty: Modern Warfar
3, released in the fourth quarter of 2011, is aédtirgy online usage records that illustrate the ghias become one of the leading global
entertainment experiences of all time. At the séime we release@all of Duty: Modern Warfare 8n November 8, 2011, we launch@édll of
Duty Elitewhich had more than 7 million registered userduiiog more than 1.5 million paying premium membatslanuary 31, 2012.

In 2012, we expect to continue to develog expand our Call of Duty franchise. Activisiorstennounce€all of Duty: Modern Warfare
3 Content Season for Call of Duty Elitehich will provideCall of Duty Elitepremium members with regular updates of new confgrieast
20 content releases are planned from January thr8agtember of 2012, of which three have beensetkduring the first two months of 2012
and two are planned for March 2012. These contdeases are currently first made available on Xbez, followed by availability on
additional platforms at a later time. For playetsowvould like to buy released content a la carehave announced ti@all of Duty Modern
Warfare 3 Content Collectionthe first installment of which is expected torbeased in March 2012.

On October 16, 2011, we launct8ig/landers Spyro's Adventui®, a new intellectual property that combines the afstoys with video
games, delivering a new game play experience t@aodiences. In North America and Europe, includingessory packs and figures,
Skylanders Spyro's Adventw@s the #8 best-selling game in dollars for thetfoquarter of 2011 and the #1 selling kids' titlelollars in
2011 according to The NPD Group, Charttrack and @éditionally, in North America, including accesg@acks and figure§kylanders
Spyro's Adventureas the #10 best-selling title in dollars accordindhe NPD Group.

Activision also develops products spanrdtiger genres, including first-person action, adédwenture, role-playing, simulation and
strategy. For example, in April 2012, we plan tleasePrototype 2, the sequel to our popular open-world action gémewas originally
released in 2009.
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Product Development and Supp

Activision develops and produces titlesngsh model in which a core group of creative, potidm, and technical professionals, in
coordination with our marketing, finance and ottlepartments, have responsibility for the entireettggment and production process,
including the supervision and coordination of intdrand external resources. This team assemblewtessary creative elements to complete 8
title using, where appropriate, outside programgremtists, animators, scriptwriters, musicians sodgwriters, sound effects and special efi
experts, and sound and video studios. Activisidiebes that this model allows us to supplementrirebexpertise with top quality external
resources on an as-needed basis.

In addition, Activision often engages indegent third-party developers to create product8daivision's behalf. We either own these
products or have rights to commercially exploitsig@roducts. In other circumstances, a third-pdetseloper may retain ownership of the
intellectual property and/or technology includedtie product and reserve certain exploitation gghctivision typically selects these
independent third-party developers based on tixpiertise in developing products in a specific catgdor specific platforms. Each of our
third-party developers is under contract with uthez for a single or multiple titles. From timettme, Activision also acquires the license
rights to publish and/or distribute software pradiutbat are or will be independently created bydtipiarty developers. In such cases, the
agreements with these developers typically prouslevith exclusive publishing and/or distributioghts for a specific period of time, often for
specified platforms and territories. In either ¢asetivision often has the ability to publish andébstribute sequels, conversions, enhancenr
and add-ons to the product initially being produbgdhe independent developer and Activision frexlyehas the right to engage the services
of the original developer with regard to furtheoguct development.

In consideration for the services that petelent third-party developers provide, the deval®peceive a royalty, which is generally based
on net sales or operating income of the developedytts. Typically, developers also receive an adeawhich Activision recoups from the
royalties otherwise payable to the developers.athance generally is paid in "milestone” stageg. fflalyment at each stage is tied to the
completion and delivery of a detailed performandkestone. Working with independent developers aflas to reduce our fixed development
costs, share development risks with the third-pdetyelopers, take advantage of the third-party ldpees' expertise in connection with certain
categories of products or certain platforms, arid gacess to proprietary development technologies.

In April 2010, Activision entered into arctusive 10-year relationship with Bungie, the deper of game franchises includiitalo,
Myth andMarathon,to bring Bungie's next big action game universméoket. Under the terms of the agreement, Activisidl have
exclusive, worldwide rights to publish and disttiall future Bungie games based on the new imtelée property on multiple platforms and
devices.

Activision provides various forms of prodgcpport to both our internally and externally eleyed titles. Activision quality assurance
personnel are involved throughout the developmedtpoduction of each title published. Activisiambgects all such products to extensive
testing before release to ensure compatibility wlttappropriate hardware systems and configurataord to minimize the number of bugs and
other defects found in the products. To supportpsaducts after release, Activision generally pded its customers online access on a 24-houl
basis, as well as live telephone operators who antive help lines during regular business hours.

Marketing, Sales, and Distributic

Activision's marketing efforts include afitiies on the Internet (including on Facebook, Terit YouTube and other online social networks
and websites), public relations, print and broaticas
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advertising, coordinated in-store and industry pstians (including merchandising and point of pusshdisplays), participation in cooperative
advertising programs, direct response vehicles paoduct sampling through demonstration softwastritiuted through the Internet or the
digital online services provided by Microsoft, Scenyd Nintendo. From time to time, we also receiagkating support from hardware
manufacturers, mass appeal consumer productsdétategame, and retailers in connection with tbein promotional efforts. In addition,
certain of our products contain software that eesiolstomers to "electronically register" theirghases with us online.

We believe that our strong proven franchised genres generate a loyal and devoted custmserthat continues to purchase our sequels
as a result of their dedication to the franchise satisfaction from previous product purchases théeefore market these sequels, expansion
packs and downloadable content toward the estallishstomer base as well as to broader audiemcaddition, we believe that we derive
benefits for our licensed properties from the manigeand promotional activities undertaken by théerlying intellectual property owners, in
addition to our own marketing efforts.

North American Sales and Distribution.Our products are available for sale or remtahbusands of retail outlets in North America. Our
North American retail customers include, among ghBest Buy, GameStop, Target, Toys "R" Us and-Mart.

In the United States ("U.S.") and Canada,pvoducts are primarily sold on a direct basisyass-market retailers, consumer electronics
stores, discount warehouses and game specialgssitfe believe that a direct relationship withitetacounts results in more effective
inventory management, merchandising, and commuaitathan would be possible through indirect releghips. We have implemented
electronic data interchange linkages with manywfretailers to facilitate the placing and shippafgrders. We also sell our products to a
limited number of distributors.

International Sales and Distribution. Our products are sold internationally on aate-retail basis, through third-party distributiand
licensing arrangements, and through our wholly-aiBaropean distribution subsidiaries. We conductimiernational publishing activities
through offices in the United Kingdom ("U.K."), Geany, France, Italy, Spain, Norway, the Netherlasigeden, Australia and Ireland. We
often seek to maximize our worldwide revenues awfits by releasing high-quality foreign languagéeases concurrently with English
language releases and by continuing to expanduimdar of direct selling relationships we maintaithvkey retailers in major territories.

Digital Distribution. Online and digital distribution channels aratimuing to grow. Some of our products and conéeatsold in a
digital format, which allows consumers to purchasd download the content at their convenience tijrém their PC, console system or
wireless device. We partner with digital distribugtdo utilize this growing method of distributioie also make available to our customers
value-added downloadable content to enhance thaiirgy experience through the digital online sewigmvided by Microsoft, Sony and
Nintendo.

Affiliate Labels. In addition to our own products, we distribatselect number of interactive entertainment pristiat are developed
and marketed by other third-party publishers thtoagr “affiliate label" programs in North Ameridayrope, and the Asia Pacific region. The
distribution of other publishers' products allovesta increase the efficiencies of our sales forme@ovides us with the ability to better ensure
adequate shelf presence at retail stores for dleoproducts that we distribute. Services we glevinder our affiliate label programs include
order solicitation, in-store marketing, logistiagdeorder fulfillment, and sales channel managerantyell as other accounting and general
administrative functions. Our current affiliate &ipartners include LucasArts, as well as sevdfitibée label partners in our "value" business,
which offers budget-priced software to the pulltiach affiliate label relationship is unique and rpaytain only to distribution in certain
geographic territories and may be further limitedlydo a specific title or titles for specific pfatms.
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Manufacturing

Activision prepares a set of master progcapies, documentation and packaging materialsdoproducts for each hardware platform on
which the product will be released. With respegbttoducts for use on the Sony, Nintendo and Midtasgstems, our disk duplication,
packaging, printing, manufacturing, warehousingeasbly and shipping are performed by third-partycemtractors and Company-owned
distribution facilities.

To maintain protection over their hardwaehnologies, Sony, Nintendo and Microsoft gengrsplecify or control the manufacturing and
assembly of finished products and license theidivare technologies to us. We deliver the masteerizds to the licensor or its approved
replicator, which then manufactures finished goawid delivers them to us for distribution under kainel. At the time our product unit orders
are filled by the manufacturer, we become respdméily the costs of manufacturing and the appliegdar unit royalty on such units, even if
the units do not ultimately sell.

Blizzard—Business Overview
Strategy

Maintain and Build upon Our Leadership Positiortle Subscription-Based MMORPG Category and PC @rliategoriesBlizzard
plans to maintain and build upon our leadershiptiposin the subscription-based MMORPG categorydyyularly providing new content,
game features and online services to further gplttie loyalty of our subscriber base, as wellaexpand our global game footprint to new
geographies.

We believe that the PC online platform wélinain a growing category throughout the worlde Tdrge and growing PC installed base ii
regions and the continuing development of broadlzamehectivity facilitates online games and commpuakperiences while creating access to
new potential customers. Furth&/prld of Warcrafis a server-based game, only playable online, @llawing Blizzard to be one of the few
companies that can target markets that have beaimdted by piracy and monetize former illegitimplayers, as well as expand in markets
that have not been penetrated by consoles, butatéege PC installed base.

Products

Blizzard is the leading company in the suipsion-based MMORPG categoMyorld of Warcraftwas initially launched in November 2C
and today is available in North America, Europeliding Russia), Southeast Asia, China, South Kokeatralia, New Zealand, Malaysia,
Singapore, Chile, Brazil, Argentina, and the regioh Taiwan, Hong Kong and Macau. As of December2811, approximately 10.2 million
gamers worldwide were subscribed* to play Blizzawlbrld of Warcraft World of Warcraftis available in various languages based on the
regions in which it is played and has earned awandspraise from publications around the worldc8ithe first release &Vorld of Warcraft,
Blizzard has launched three expansion packs ireglbns in which the game is supported. The thxpamsion packs a\orld of Warcraft:
The Burning Crusadeyhich was first available in January 2080Vorld of Warcraft: Wrath of the Lich Kingyhich was first available in
November 2008, anWorld of Warcraft: Cataclysrhich was first available in December 2010. Reverassociated with th&orld of
Warcraftfranchises accounted for 90%, 89%, and 98% of Biits consolidated net revenues for the years ebdedmber 31, 2011, 2010,
and 2009, respectively. Additionally, in July

* We defineWorld of Warcrafisubscribers as: (1) individuals who have paid aetijption fee or have an active prepaid card ty
World of Warcraft, (2) individuals who have purchased the game amdvihin their free month of access, and (3) IméiGame Room
players who have accessed the game over the ldagtdhys. Our definition of subscribers does mafiide any players under free
promotional subscriptions, expired or cancelledsstiptions, or expired prepaid cards.
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2010, Blizzard launched the sequel to StarC&tirCraft Il: Wings of Libertgimultaneously around the world, including North énca,
Europe (including Russia), Southeast Asia, SoutteKpAustralia, New Zealand, Chile, Brazil, Argeatiand the regions of Taiwan, Hong
Kong and Macau. In conjunction with the releas&tafrCraft II: Wings of Liberty Blizzard launched a new version of its 24/7 omlgaming
service, Battle.net, providing user generated cuntgital distribution and online social conneiti amongst th&Vorld of Warcraftand
StarCraftplayers.

Product Development and Supp

As a development studio and the creatorpardisher of the World of Warcraft, Diablo and i&eaft franchises, Blizzard focuses on
creating well-designed, high quality games. Prodigstelopment is handled internally by a strong gvoeip of talented designers, producers,
programmers, artists, and sound engineers. To aiaiits current subscribers and attract new subsisj Blizzard continues to develop new
patches to upgrad&orld of Warcraft. In addition to its headquarters in Irvine, Califia, Blizzard maintains offices in or around Ansti
Texas; Paris, France; Cork, Ireland; Seoul, SoutreK; Singapore; Shanghai, China; and Taipei, Tatwgrovide?*/ 7game support tworld
of Warcraftplayers in their native language, enhance onlimeroanity management, and tailor marketing initiagive specific regions.

Marketing, Sales, and Distributic

Blizzard distributes its products and getes revenues worldwide through various meanscsipions (which consist of fees from
individuals playingWorld of Warcraft, prepaid cards, and other value-added servicdsasithe ability to change "factions”, the abitity
transfer "realms" and other character customizajiaetail sales of physical "boxed" products, maldownload sales of PC products, and
licensing of software to third-party or related tyazompanies that distribuW&orld of WarcraftandStarCraft Il. Many of our services and
products are digitally enabled, which allows usatce advantage of this rapidly growing channel tanckinforce Blizzard's long-term
relationships with its gamers. In addition, Blizzaperates the online game service, Battle.neghwditracts millions of active players, making
it one of the largest online-game related servicdbe world. Battle.net powetarCraft Il: Wings of LibertandWorld of Warcraft, and is
expected to power future releases. The servicesoffiayers advanced communications features, soetalorking, player matching and digital
content delivery and is designed to allow peoplecienect regardless of what Blizzard game theykagng.

Distribution—Business Overview

We distribute interactive entertainmentdveare and software products in Europe through auwojiean distribution subsidiaries:
Centresoft in the U.K. and NBG in Germany. Thedesgliaries act as wholesalers in the distributibproducts and also provide packaging,
logistical and sales services. They provide sesvioeur publishing operations and to various tpiadty publishers, including Sony, Nintendo,
and Microsoft. Centresoft is Sony's preferred distor of PlayStation products to the independetdif sector of the U.K.

We entered into the distribution busin@sshitain distribution capacity in Europe for ourroproducts, while supporting the distribution
infrastructure with third-party sales, and to dsmr our operations in the European market. Cenftemd our other distribution subsidiaries
operate in accordance with strict confidentialitpgedures to provide independent services to vatioiod-party publishers.
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Additional Financial Information

See Item 7 "Management's Discussion andyAisaof Financial Condition and Results of Operasi* and Note 13 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements included in I8ofi this Annual Report on Form X0{or certain additional information regarding oating
segments and geographic areas. See the Criticaluditiog Policies section under Item 7 "Managemédissussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations" for a disaussif our practices with regard to several worlgagital items, such as rights of returns, and
inventory practices. See the Management's OvergieBusiness Trends under Item 7 "Management's Bgon and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations" for a disaussif the impact of seasonality on our business.

Available Information

Our website located bttp://www.activisionblizzard.comllows access free of charge to our Annual Repofarm 10-K, quarterly
reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form & amendments to those reports filed or furnigheduant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (tkeH&nge Act"). The information found on our websteot a part of, and is not
incorporated by reference into, this or any otlegort that we file with or furnish to the Secust@nd Exchange Commission ("SEC").

The public may also read and copy any nesewe file with the SEC at the SEC's Public Refiee Room at 100 F Street, N.E.,
Washington, D.C. 20549 (information on the operatibthe Public Reference Room is available byimgithe SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330). The
SEC also maintains a web site that contains repomsy and information statements, and other mgtion regarding issuers that file
electronically with the SEC &ittp://www.sec.gov

Item 1A. RISK FACTORS

We wish to caution the reader that the following jrortant risk factors, and those risk factors dedwed elsewhere in this report or in
our other filings with the Securities and Exchang@ommission, could cause our actual results to diffeaterially from those stated in
forward-looking statements contained in this document agldewhere. These risks are not presented in ordémportance or probability of
occurrence.

If general economic conditions decline, demand four products could decline

Our products involve discretionary spendimgthe part of consumers. Consumers are genenaltg willing to make discretionary
purchases, including purchases of products like,aluring periods in which favorable economic ctinds prevail. As a result, our products
are sensitive to general economic conditions and@uic cycles. In recent years, adverse worldwimemic conditions, including declining
consumer confidence, global economic recessiangrisnemployment and volatile gasoline prices, Hadeconsumers to delay or reduce
discretionary spending, including purchases of stypes of our products. Reduced consumer spendaygatso result in an increase in our
selling and promotional expenses, in an effortfised that reduction. A reduction or shift in dortie®r international consumer spending could
negatively impact our business, results of openatend financial condition.

The uncertainty of current worldwide economic comidins makes budgeting and forecasting very diffitul

We are unable to predict the likely duratad the current adverse worldwide economic coadgj and all of the effects those conditions
may have on our business. In particular, the uaigst of current worldwide economic conditions sdig our forecasts to heightened risks and
uncertainties.
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Our business is "hit" driven. If we do not delivetit" titles, or if consumers prefer competing pragtts, our sales could suffer.

While many new products are regularly idtroed in our industry, increasingly only a relaiyvemall number of high-quality "hit" titles
account for a significant portion of net revenus] an even greater portion of net profit. It ifidiflt to produce high-quality products and to
predict prior to production and distribution whabvgucts will be well received, even if they are Mreviewed, high-quality titles. Competitors
may develop titles that imitate or compete with thit" titles, and take sales away from them omour ability to command premium prices
for those titles. "Hit" products published by owngpetitors may take a larger share of consumerdspgithan anticipated, which could cause
our product sales to fall below expectations. Camexng may lose interest in a genre of games we peodfiwe do not continue to develop
consistently high-quality and well received producir if our competitors develop more successfatipcts or offer competitive products at
lower prices, our revenues, margins, and profiitgldlould decline. In addition, our own "hit" procks could compete with our other titles,
reducing sales for those other titles. Furthesilafe by us to develop a high-quality productpar development of a product that is otherwise
not well received, could harm our reputation aratéase the likelihood that our future products tdlsimilarly poorly received.

We depend on a relatively small number of franchsder a significant portion of our revenues and dits.

A significant portion of our revenues hastdrically been derived from products based oelatively small number of popular franchises
and these products are responsible for a dispriopately high percentage of our profits. For examhe three key franchises of Call of Duty,
World of Warcraft, and Skylanders accounted forrapimately 73% of our net revenues, and a signifiigahigher percentage of our operating
income, in 2011. We expect that a limited numbeguagular franchises will continue to produce a digprtionately high percentage of our
revenues and profits. Due to this dependence onited number of franchises, the failure to achiamécipated results by one or more prod
based on these franchises may significantly hambuosiness and financial results.

A substantial portion of our revenue and profitaltiy depends on the success of our Call of Duty fcaise in the firs-person action game
category. If we do not maintain our leadership ptisn in this category, our financial results coulduffer.

Activision Blizzard is a leading global ddeper, publisher and distributor in terms of raxenin the first-person action game category,
due to the popularity of ActivisionBall of Dutyfranchise. Revenues from this game comprise afgignt portion of our consolidated
revenues. To remain a leader in the first-perstiomgame category, it is important that we corgito develop new games in tBall of Duty
franchise that are favorably received by both oustang customer base and new customers. A numssftware publishers have developed
and commercialized, or are currently developingtfperson action games which pose a threat tpdpalarity ofCall of Duty, and we expect
new competitors to continue to emerge in the fietson action category. If consumer demandfat of Dutygames declines and we have not
introduced new first-person action games or othedycts that replacgall of Duty'spotentially decreasing revenue, or added othercesuf
revenue, our financial condition could suffer. Atitehally, if consumer preferences trend away franstfperson action games, our revenue and
profitability may decline.

A substantial portion of our revenue and profitaltiy depends on the subscripti-based massively multiplayer online role-playingrga
category. If we do not maintain our leadership ptisn in this category, our financial results coulduffer.

Blizzard is the leading global developerblsher and distributor in terms of subscriberebasd revenues in the subscription-based
MMORPG category, due primarily to the popularityBlizzard's
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World of Warcraftand related expansion packs. Subscription reveinorsthis game comprise a significant portion of oansolidated
revenues. To remain the leader in the subscrigiased MMORPG category, it is important that we icwe to refrestWorld of Warcraftor
develop new MMORPG products that are favorably ikezkby both our existing customer base and newoouesrs. A number of software
publishers have developed and commercialized,eocamrently developing, online games for use byscamers over the Internet which pose a
threat to the popularity aiVorld of Warcraft, and we expect new competitors to continue to ger the MMORPG category. If consumer
demand foWorld of Warcraftgjames declines and we have not introduced new MM®8&Fother products that repladéorld of Warcrafts
potentially decreasing revenue, or added otherceswsf revenue, our financial condition could suffedditionally, if new technologies are
developed that replace MMORPGs, consumer prefesanerd away from MMORPGSs or new business modekrgenthat offer online
subscriptions for free or at a substantial discaardurrent MMORPG subscription fees, our revemu @rofitability may decline.

If we do not continue to attract and retain skillggersonnel, we will be unable to effectively contloar business

Our success depends to a significant exterur ability to identify, hire, retain and utii the abilities of qualified personnel, particlyar
personnel with the specialized skills needed tateréhe high-quality "hit" titles upon which ourdioess is substantially dependent. The
software industry is characterized by a high lefetmployee mobility and aggressive recruiting agnoompetitors for employees with
technical, marketing, sales, product developmerd,raanagement skills. We may have difficultiestinagting and retaining skilled personnel
or may incur significant costs in order to do $avé are unable to attract additional qualified éogpes or retain and utilize the services of key
personnel, our business and financial results cbeldegatively impacted.

If our games and services do not function as conamiexpect, our business may suff

If our games and services do not functi®e@sumers expect, whether because they fail th aadvertised or otherwise, our sales may
suffer. The risk that this may occur is particulgstonounced with respect to our games with orfi@aures, likeNorld of Warcraft, and our
digital serviceCall of Duty Elite, because they involve ongoing obligations to tiescmers and, in the caseGall of Duty Elite, require us t
develop new technology, which we may not be ablgotguccessfully. If our games and services ddumattion as expected, our revenue may
decline.

The future success of our business depends on diilitg to release popular products in a timely maan

The life of any given console or handhedthg product is relatively short and generally inesla relatively high level of sales during the
first few months after the product's introductiésilowed by a rapid decline in sales. Because ragsrassociated with an initial product launch
generally constitute a high percentage of the tetatnues associated with the life of a produdgydein product releases or disruptions
following the commercial release of one or more meaducts could have an adverse effect on our tipgreesults and cause our operating
results to be materially different from expectasioh is therefore important for us to be abledatue to develop many high quality new
products that are popularly received and to rel#asge products in a timely manner. If we are uaablcontinue to do so, our business and
financial results may be negatively affected.

If we are unable to sustain premium pricing on cwent-generation titles, our operating results will sigf.

If we are unable to sustain premium pricdmgcurrent-generation titles for the Microsoft X860, Sony's PS3 and the Nintendo Wii for
so long as those platforms remain current generatbether due to competitive pressure, becauagart elect to price these products at a
lower price or otherwise, we may experience a riegaffect on our margins and operating resultstteu, we make
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provisions for price migration and channel protaetbased upon certain assumed lowest prices adnpetitive pressures force us to lower
our prices below those levels, we may experienoegative effect on our margins and operating result

If we fail to successfully manage our new produa\alopment, or if we fail to anticipate the issugssociated with such development, ¢
business may suffer.

Our business model is evolving and we belidat our growth will depend upon our abilitystaccessfully develop and sell new types of
products and to otherwise expand the methods bghake reach our consumers, including via digitatrihution. Developing new products
and distribution channels will require substantipdfront expenditures. If such products or disttidau channels do not achieve expected market
acceptance or generate sufficient revenues uposdimttion, whether because of competition or otlisgywe may not be able to recover the
substantial development and marketing costs agsdoiéth those products and distribution chanrieleddition, expanding our business m¢
will add complexity to our business and requiraaisffectively adapt our business and managemecegses to address the unique challenges
and different requirements of any new areas in Wwiie operate, which we may not be able to do,&ck bf institutional expertise or
otherwise. If any of these occur, our revenuesgimarand profitability could decline.

Our market is subject to rapid technological changend if we do not adapt to, and appropriately albde our new resources among,
emerging technologies, our revenues would be negayi affected.

Technology changes rapidly in the intergcgntertainment industry. We must continually @ptite and adapt our products to emerging
technologies in order to keep such products cotinetiWhen we choose to incorporate a new techryoiatyp a product or to develop a prod
for a new platform, operating system or media fdrme often are required to make a substantialstmaent prior to the introduction of the
product. If we invest in the development of videorgs incorporating a new technology or for a neatf@im that does not achieve significant
commercial success, our revenues from those predikety will be lower than we anticipated and nret cover our development costs.
Further, our competitors may adapt to an emergingrtology more quickly or effectively than we deeating products that are technologically
superior to ours, more appealing to consumersothr. if, on the other hand, we elect not to puithigedevelopment of products incorporating a
new technology or for new platforms that achiegmsicant commercial success, our revenues wodd bé adversely affected, and it may
take significant time and resources to shift pradievelopment resources to that technology or @iatf For example, digital content deliver
increasingly important in our industry, requiring 1o develop or acquire the expertise needed taireaompetitive. Any failure to successfully
adapt to, and appropriately allocate resources giamerging technologies would harm our competiigsition, reduce our share and
significantly increase the time we take to bringplar products to market.

The increasing importance of digital sales to oundiness exposes us to the risks of that businesdehancluding greater competition.

The proportion of our revenue derived frdigital content delivery as compared to traditioredil sales is increasing. The increased
importance of digital content delivery in the inttysoverall increases our potential competitionfteesminimum capital needed to produce and
publish a game delivered digitally may be signffitta less than that needed to produce and pubhghtioat is purchased through retail
distribution and is played on a game console. Wiisalso require us to dedicate capital to develgmnd implementing alternative marketing
strategies, which we may not do successfully. Iy mlao reduce overall demand for our distributiervies. If either occurs, our revenues,
margins, and profitability could decline.
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If we are unable to successfully develop or markeined intellectual property, we may publish feweicsessful titles and our revenues m
decline.

Some of our products are based on intel&groperty that we have developed internallyagugred from third parties. Consumers have
historically preferred titles which are part ofasitshed franchises to titles based on new inteli@roperty, and if new intellectual property
does not gain market acceptance, whether becauaeawmable to successfully create consumer appedbrand recognition or otherwise, our
revenues, margins, and profitability could decliRetther, if the popularity of our owned intelleatyroperty declines, our revenues, margins,
and profitability could decline, and we may havewtdte off the unrecovered portion of the undertyintellectual property assets, any of which
could harm our business and financial results.

If we are unable to maintain or acquire licenses itatellectual property, we may publish fewer "hitlitles and revenues may declin

Some of our products are based on intel&groperty and other character or story riglsrised from third parties. These license and
distribution agreements are limited in scope amétiand we may not be able to renew key licenseniey expire or to include new prodt
in existing licenses. Our loss of a significant t@mof intellectual property licenses or relatiapshwith licensors, or inability to obtain
additional licenses of significant commercial valoeuld have an adverse effect on our ability teettsp new products and therefore on our
business and financial results. Additionally, thiéure of intellectual property we license to beremain, popularly received could impact the
market acceptance of those products in which ttedléctual property is included. Such lack of markeceptance could result in the wri#-of
the unrecovered portion of acquired intellectualparty assets, which could harm our business aaadial results. Furthermore, the
competition for these licenses and distributioreagrents is often intense. Competition for thesmbes may also increase the advances,
guarantees, and royalties that must be paid tbaiesor.

Competition within, and to, the interactive ententement industry is intense, and competitors may seed in reducing our sales.

We compete with other publishers of PC widdo game console interactive entertainment saéwBhose competitors vary in size from
small companies with limited resources to verydacgrporations with significantly greater financialarketing, and product development
resources than we have. For example, integratesb\gdme console hardware and software companigsasugony, Nintendo and Microsoft
compete directly with us in the development of wafe titles for their respective platforms. Our gmtitors may spend more money and time
on developing and testing products, undertake rextensive marketing campaigns, adopt more aggeesgsieing policies, pay higher fees to
licensors for desirable motion picture, televisisports, music and character properties, pay nootterd-party software developers, or
otherwise develop more commercially successful petsifor the PC or video game platforms than wdraddition, competitors with large
product lines and popular titles typically haveajez leverage with retailers, distributors, anceotustomers who may be willing to promote
titles with less consumer appeal in return for asde those competitors' more popular titles.

We also compete with other forms of intéikecentertainment, such as casual games like i®hpplications and other mobile phone
games, and games developed for use by consuméhe dPad or social networking sites, most of whach currently free to play. Increased
consumer acceptance and availability of such gamether online games, consumer acceptance ankhbnigy of technology which allows
users to play games on televisions without consoletechnological advances in online game softwarn@e Internet could result in a declin
platform-based software and negatively impact safl@sir console and handheld products.
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Additionally, we compete with other formisamtertainment and leisure activities. For examile overall growth in the use of the Internet
and online services such as social networking siyasonsumers may pose a competitive threat ifocasts and potential customers spend less
of their available time using interactive entertagnt software and more using the Internet, inclyditose online services.

The development of quality products requires sulgial up-front expenditures, and we may not be alterecover those costs for our future
products.

Consumer preferences for games are usoplical and difficult to predict, and even the mesccessful titles remain popular for only
limited periods of time, unless refreshed with reamtent or otherwise enhanced. In order to remampetitive, we must continuously develop
new products or enhancements to existing prodilitis.amount of lead time and cost involved in theettgoment of quality products is
increasing, and the longer the lead time involvedaveloping a product and the greater the allooadf financial resources to such product,
more critical it is that we accurately predict comer demand for such product. If our future prodult not achieve expected market
acceptance or generate sufficient revenues upowdimition, we may not be able to recover the sultisfadevelopment and marketing costs
associated with those products, and our finanewults could suffer.

Sales of Skylanders Spyro's Adventure may be a#fddty the availability of toys, increasing our exqoe to imbalances between project
and actual demand.

Skylanders Spyro's Adventungolves "smart toys" consisting of action figuarsd an electronic "portal" which, when used togethe
allow a player to store and access information ah@ucharacter's performance in the game. Welselloys both bundled with the software
the title and on a stand-alone basis. Consumersnmiayant to buy the related software if they caraiso buy the "smart toys". If we
underestimate demand or otherwise are unable ttupeosufficient quantities of toys of an acceptajlality or allocate too few toys to
geographic markets where demand exceeds supphyjliferego revenue. This may also create greapgrootunities for competitors to deve
competitive product offerings. In addition, if weeyestimate demand and make too many toys, oraaédoo many toys to geographic markets
where there is insufficient demand, we will incurecoverable manufacturing costs for unsold ursiteell as for unsold game software. In
either case, toy manufacturing and allocation decssmay negatively affect our financial performanc

We may overestimate demand for a product, incurringrecoverable manufacturing costs

We pay a licensing fee to the hardware rfeanturer for each copy of a product manufacturedtfat manufacturer's game platform,
regardless of whether that product is sold. If werestimate demand and make too many physical i@mapies of any title, we will incur
unrecoverable manufacturing costs for unsold unitich may negatively affect our profitability.

A substantial portion of Activision Blizzard's renees is derived from subscriptions paid by WorldWwfrcraft subscribers. If we are unab
to sustain this business model or these customarscel their subscriptions, our results of operatismay suffer.

A substantial portion of our revenues isggated by subscription fees paid by consumerspldyoWorld of Warcraft Typically, World ol
Warcraftsubscribers purchase one to six month memberdmgpsite cancelable, without penalty, at the enti@fmembership period. World
of Warcraftsubscribers become dissatisfied, they may chostomenhew their memberships in order to engagéhierdorms of entertainment
(including competing MMORPG offerings) and we ma he able to replace lost subscribers. Additignafligeneral economic conditions
decline, consumers may decrease their discretiamagding on entertainment items such as MMORP@sis@rs may choose not to renew
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their World of Warcraftsubscriptions. A decrease in the overall subsaonpiase ofVorld of Warcraftcould substantially harm our operating
results.

We are exposed to seasonality in the sale of ouwrdurcts.

The interactive entertainment industryighly seasonal, with the highest levels of consudenand occurring during the yeamd holida
buying season in the fourth quarter of the yearaAssult, net revenues, gross profits, and opgraticome have historically been highest
during the second half of the year. Receivablescaedit risk are likewise higher during the secbatf of the year, as customers stock up on
our products for the holiday season. Further, delaydevelopment, licensor approvals, or manufamgucan also affect the timing of the rele
of products, causing us to miss key selling persgsh as the year-end holiday buying season.

We depend on servers to operate our games withnenleatures, such as our MMORPG, and our digitakgiee with online features. If we
were to lose server capacity, for any reason, ousibess could suffer.

Our business relies on the continuous diperaf our data servers. Any broddsed catastrophic server malfunction, a significarusior
by hackers that circumvents our security measwores failure of our disaster recovery service wdikdly interrupt the operation of our
MMORPG, World of Warcraft, and other games of ours with online features,@amdligital serviceCall of Duty Elite, and could result in the
loss of sales for such games (including subscripiased sales faWorld of Warcraff) or subscriptions fo€all of Duty Elite. An extended
interruption of service could also harm our regotatind operating results.

We must project our future server needsraakle advance purchases of servers to accommodsgeted business demands. If we
underestimate the amount of server capacity ounbss requires or if our business were to grow nyoiekly than expected, our customers
may experience service problems, such as slowtemrupted gaming access. Insufficient server caypatay result in decreased sales, a loss of
our customer base, and adverse consequences tepoiation. Conversely, if we overestimate the amod server capacity required by our
business, we may incur additional operating cdsiswould adversely affect our operating margins.

We may not accurately predict the amount of Intetndwidth necessary to sustain our online gamingsinesses.

Our online gaming businesses are deperaetite availability of sufficient Internet bandwhidtAn increase in the price of bandwidth
could have an adverse effect on operating marginse we may not be able to increase our pricasiloscriber levels to compensate for such
costs. Because of the importance of our onlinen@ssi to our revenues and results of operationsahulity to access adequate bandwidth to
support our business is critical. To secure banthwadcess, we have entered into arrangements autra bandwidth providers and entered
into long-term contracts with some of them to seduture bandwidth capacity. If the price of bandkiviwere to decrease, our contractual
commitments to pay higher prices could affect dailitg to compete with other video game producers.

Conversely, because we purchase addittlmradwidth based on anticipated growth, our bandwidpacity is sometimes larger than
necessary to sustain our existing needs. If oyepted online business growth is delayed or do¢®cacur, we will incur larger bandwidth
expenses than necessary. If we underestimate therdraf bandwidth that our online business requiaes our purchased bandwidth capacity
is insufficient to meet demand, our business apdtegion may suffer.
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Vivendi owns a majority of our outstanding share@mmon stock and the interests of Vivendi andstgbsidiaries may conflict with the
interests of our other shareholders.

Vivendi and its subsidiaries owned appradety 60% of our issued and outstanding sharesmihwon stock at December 31, 2011.

As a result of the Business Combinationevidi has the ability to nominate a majority of doard of directors and determine the outc
of certain matters submitted to our stockholdasshsas the approval of significant transactionstheddeclaration of dividends on our comn
stock. As a result, actions that may be supporyea tmajority of stockholders other than Vivendi niseyblocked by Vivendi. In addition,
Vivendi's ownership may affect the liquidity in thearket for our common stock.

Furthermore, the ownership position andegoance rights of Vivendi may discourage a thirdyptom proposing a change of control or
other strategic transaction concerning Activisidiz&ard. As a result, our common stock may traderiaes that do not reflect a "control
premium"” to the same extent as do the stocks dfasignsituated companies that do not have a stolddr with an ownership interest as large
as Vivendi's ownership interest.

We are a "controlled company" within the meaning MASDAQ rules and, as a result, are exempt fromteén corporate governance
requirements.

For so long as Vivendi or any other entitygroup owns more than 50% of the total voting poaf our common shares, we will be a
"controlled company" within the meaning of NASDAQes and, as a result, qualify for exemptions fia@rtain corporate governance
requirements. As a controlled company, we are exémom several NASDAQ standards, including the isguents:

. that a majority of our Board consists of independirectors;
. that our prospective directors be nominated sdiglindependent directors; and
. that the compensation of our executive officersiéermined solely by independent directors.

We currently rely on these exemptions asd gesult, a majority of our Board is not indepentdas defined by the NASDAQ rules). In
addition, while we have a nominating and corpogateernance committee and a compensation committege committees do not consist
entirely of independent directors. Accordingly, stwckholders do not have the same protectionsdibto stockholders of companies that are
subject to all of the NASDAQ corporate governareguirements.

Subiject to certain limitations, Vivendi may sellmmnon stock at any time, which could cause our st@elce to decreast

Vivendi may sell the shares of our stockt ihowns, including pursuant to a registered uwdéen public offering under the Securities
Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act")Jnaaccordance with Rule 144 under the Securitiels We have entered into an investor
agreement with Vivendi, which includes registratiaghts and which gives Vivendi the right to requirs to register all or a portion of its shi
at any time, subject to certain limitations. Thees# a substantial number of shares of commorkdbgcVivendi within a short period of time
could cause our stock price to decrease, and nhakere difficult for us to raise funds through frewofferings of common stock. On
November 11, 2011, Vivendi and its affiliates sB&Imillion shares of our stock for $12.05 per sh

We are involved in legal proceedings that may reésaladverse outcomes.

From time to time, we are involved in clairsuits, government investigations and proceedinging from the ordinary course of our
business, including actions with respect to intellal property
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claims, competition and antitrust matters, privematters, tax matters, labor and employment clainadsc@mmercial claims. Such claims, suits,
government investigations and proceedings are émitlgruncertain and their results cannot be predietith certainty. Regardless of the
outcome, such legal proceedings can have an advepset on us because of legal costs, diversianarfagement resources and other factors.
In addition, it is possible that a resolution okar more such proceedings could result in subiatdimes and penalties, criminal sanctions,
consent decrees or orders preventing us from offezertain features, functionalities, productsewes, requiring us to change our
development process or other business practicashwbuld adversely affect our business, finangaaition, results of operations or liquidity.

We may be subject to intellectual property claims.

As the number of interactive entertainmeaftware products increases and the features antdrttoof these products continue to overlap,
software developers increasingly may become sulgdafringement claims. Further, many of our produare highly realistic and feature
materials that are based on real world example&ghahay also be the subject of intellectual properfringement claims of others. In additi
our products often utilize complex, cuttiegige technology that may become subject to emengialjectual property rights of others. Althot
we take steps to avoid knowingly violating the iigetual property rights of others, it is possitiat third parties still may claim infringement,
particularly since there are an increasing numbeompanies which focus their efforts exclusivetyenforcing their patent rights.

From time to time, we receive communicadifnom third parties regarding such claims. Exgptim future infringement claims against us,
whether valid or not, may be time consuming, ditirg to management and expensive to defend. Ruittiellectual property litigation or
claims could force us to do one or more of theofelhg:

. cease selling, incorporating, supporting or usirgdpcts or services that incorporate the challengtiectual property

. obtain a license from the holder of the infringetkllectual property, which if available at all, ywaot be available o
commercially favorable terms;

. redesign the affected interactive entertainmerttnso€ products, which could result in additionastso delay introduction and
possibly reduce commercial appeal of the affectedyrts; or

. pay damages to the holder of the infringed intéliacproperty for past infringements.
Any of these actions may harm our busimeskfinancial results.
Our products may be subject to legal claims.

In prior years, at least two lawsuits haeen filed against numerous video game compamielsiding against Activision, by the families
of victims who were shot and killed by teenage ganrim attacks perpetrated at schools. These lasvallétged that the video game companies
manufactured and/or supplied these teenagers vakant video games, teaching them how to use aaggncausing them to act out in a violent
manner. These lawsuits have been dismissed. SiadHiitional lawsuits may be filed in the futuretiAugh our general liability insurance
carrier has agreed to defend lawsuits of this eattith respect to the prior lawsuits, it is uncertahether insurance carriers would do so in the
future, or if such insurance carriers would covepraany amounts for which we might be liable ifcé future lawsuits are not decided in our
favor. If such future lawsuits are filed and ultielst decided against us and the relevant insuraacger does not cover the amounts for which
we may be liable, it could have an adverse effacdar business and financial results. Payment of
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significant claims by insurance carriers may malsaiiance coverage materially more expensive orailedle in the future, thereby exposing
us to additional risk.

Our products are subject to the threat of piracydnonauthorized copying, and inadequate intellectyabperty laws and other protections
could prevent us from enforcing or defending ourgprietary technologies. We may also face legal siskising out of user-generated
content.

We regard our software as proprietary atglon a variety of methods, including a combinatid copyright, patent, trademark and trade
secret laws and employee and third-party nondisodoagreements, to protect our proprietary rights.own or license various copyrights,
patents and trademarks. We are aware that soméhanaed copying occurs, and if a significantly aer amount of unauthorized copying of
our software products were to occur, it could céhes®n to our business and financial results.

Policing unauthorized sale, distributiomarse of our products is difficult, and softwareapy (including online piracy) is a persistent
problem. Further, the laws of some countries wiogireproducts are or may be distributed either dgpnatect their products and intellectual
property rights to the same extent as the lawh®1l.S., or are poorly enforced. Legal protectibow rights may be ineffective in such
countries. In addition, though we take steps toertak unauthorized sale, distribution and use opoeducts more difficult and to otherwise
enforce and police our rights, as do the manufacsusf consoles on which a majority of those gamepublish are played, our efforts and the
efforts of the console manufacturers may not beesgful in controlling the piracy of our produatsall instances. The proliferation of
technology designed to circumvent the protectiomasuees used in our products, the availability obldband access to the Internet, the ability
to download pirated copies of games from variotisrivet sites and peer-to-peer networks, and thespigtad proliferation of Internet cafes
using pirated copies of our products all have dbuated to an expansion in piracy. This could havnegative effect on our growth and
profitability in the future.

Moreover, as user-generated content inesgaair ability to protect our intellectual progetights and to avoid infringing intellectual
property rights of others may diminish. We canmethkrtain that existing intellectual property lawi#i provide adequate protection for our
products in connection with emerging technologies.

The importance to our business of the "smart toystlated to Skylanders Spyro's Adventure exposesousardware manufacturing and
shipping risks, including availability of sufficiehthird-party manufacturing capacity and increases in mdiagturing and shipping costs.

Skylanders Spyro's Adventuinolves "smart toys" consisting of action figueesd an electronic "portal” which, when used togethe
allow a player to store and access information ab@ucharacter's performance in the game. Marti@manufacturers of those "smart toys"
are located in China. Anything that impacts thditghdf those manufacturers to produce or otherwisgply the toys for us or increases their
costs of production, including the utilization efyasuch manufacturer's capacity by another compargnges in safety, environmental or other
regulations applicable to the toys and the manufagy thereof, natural or manmade disasters tlsatigi manufacturing, transportation or
communications, labor shortages, civil unrest sués generally negatively impacting internatiomahpanies operating in China, increases in
the price of petroleum or other raw materials, @ases in fuel prices and other shipping costsjramrdases in local labor costs in China, may
adversely impact our ability to supply those tayshte market and the prices we must pay for thogs and therefore our financial
performance. Moreover, the failure of those manuf&es to consistently deliver action figures aodtgls meeting the quality and safety
standards we require could adversely impact oanfiral performance.
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We rely on independent third parties to develop oof our software products.

We rely on independent thipdwty software developers to develop some of ofiwsoe products. Because we depend on these ders|
we are subject to the following risks:

. continuing strong demand for i-tier developers' resources, combined with the neitiog they receive in connection with th
work, may cause developers who worked for us irptst either to work for a competitor in the futoreo renegotiate
agreements with us on terms less favorable to us;

. limited financial resources and business expesatigkinability to retain skilled personnel may fodmvelopers out of busine
prior to completing products or require us to fadftlitional costs; and

. a competitor may acquire the businesses of keylo®es or sign them to exclusive development amargnts and, in either
case, we would not be able to continue to engage developers' services for our products, excapariy period of time for
which those developers are contractually obligédecbmplete development for us.

Increased competition for skilled third{yasoftware developers also has compelled us teeaigr make significant advance payments on
royalties to game developers. If the products satliethese arrangements do not generate suffimeenues to recover these royalty advances
we would have to write-off unrecovered portionghase payments, which could harm our businessiaaddial results. Typically, we pay
developers a royalty based on a percentage oemehues from product sales, less agreed upon dedsicbut from time to time, we have
agreed to pay developers fixed per unit produchit@s after royalty advances are fully recoupealtiie extent that sales prices of products on
which we have agreed to pay a fixed per unit rgyate marked down, our profitability could be acady affected.

Our platform licensors set the royalty rates andet fees that must be paid to publish games forithatforms, and therefore have
significant influence on our costs

We pay a licensing fee to the hardware rfeanturer for each copy of a product manufacturedtfat manufacturer's game platform. In
order to publish products for new hardware plat®rme must take a license from the platform licemgaich gives the platform licensor the
opportunity to set the fee and/or price that wetrpay in order to publish games for that platfo8imilarly, the platform licensors have
retained the flexibility to change their fee stures and/or pricing for online gameplay and featdioe their consoles and the manufacturing of
products. The control that platform licensors haver the fee structures and/or pricing for theatfurms and online access makes it difficult
for us to predict our costs and profitability iretmedium-to-long term. It is also possible thatfplan licensors will not renew our existing
licenses. Any increase in fee structures and/@irmgj or nonrenewal of licenses, could have a Biart negative impact on our business
models and profitability, particularly for Activisi, as the publishing of products for console systes the largest portion of Activision's
business.

Our business is highly dependent on the successely release and availability of new video gametfdans and on the continued
availability of, and support for, existing video gee platforms, as well as our ability to develop auercially successful products for these
platforms.

We derive a substantial portion of our rexefrom the sale of products for play on video ganiatforms manufactured by third parties,
such as Sony's PS3 and PlayStation Portable, MiftteXbox 360 and Nintendo's Wii and DS. For exampales of products for consoles
accounted for 51% of our consolidated net reven#9il1. The success of our business is driverrgrelpart by the availability of an adequate
supply of these video game platforms and the caatirsupport for these
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platforms by their manufacturers, our ability t@aately predict which platforms will be successfuthe marketplace, and our ability to
develop commercially successful products for thadforms. We must make product development detsséamd commit significant resources
well in advance of the anticipated introductioraafew platform. A new platform for which we are d®ping products may be delayed, may
not succeed or may have a shorter life cycle timticipated. Alternatively, a platform for which viiave not devoted significant resources ¢

be more successful than initially anticipated, @aysis to miss a meaningful revenue opportunitydifidnally, if the platforms for which we

are developing products are not released whenipaitd, are not available in adequate quantitiese¢et consumer demand, do not attain wide
market acceptance ore are not adequately suppwytdair manufacturers, our revenues may suffermag be unable to fully recover our
investment in developing those products, and awaritial performance may be harmed.

Transitions in console platforms could adverselfedt the market for interactive entertainment sofive.

In 2005, Microsoft released the Xbox 36@,an 2006, Sony and Nintendo introduced the P2BVi, respectively. Nintendo has
announced that it intends to launch its next-gdimraonsole, the Wii U, in all major regions byetA012 year-end holiday buying season.
When new console platforms are announced or int@dliinto the market, consumers typically reduce fhachases of game console
entertainment software products for current conptaforms in anticipation of new platforms becomawailable. During these periods, sales
of game console entertainment software productpuadish may slow or even decline until new platferare introduced and achieve wide
consumer acceptance. This decline may not be dffsgtcreased sales of products for the new condatéorms. As console hardware moves
through its life cycle, hardware manufacturers ¢gfly enact price reductions and decreasing pritag put downward pressure on software
prices. During platform transitions, we may simaéausly incur costs both in continuing to develod enarket new titles for prior-generation
video game platforms, which may not sell at prempnnes, and also in developing products for curgameration platforms, which will not
generate immediate or net@rm revenue. As a result, our operating resultgdwplatform transitions may be more volatile andre difficult tc
predict than during other times, and such volgtilitay cause greater fluctuations in our stock price

We must make significant expenditures to developdurcts for new platforms that may not be successful

We must make substantial product developraed other investments in a particular platfornlweadvance of introduction of the
platform and may be required to realign our progugstfolio and development efforts in response tykat changes. Furthermore, developn
costs for new console platforms are greater thah sasts for current console platforms. If increbsests are not offset by higher revenues and
other cost efficiencies, operating results willfsufand our financial position will be harmed.h&tplatforms for which we develop new
software products or modify existing products db attain significant market penetration, we may Im@@able to recover our development cc
which could be significant, and our business andrfcial results could be significantly harmed.

Platform licensors are our competitors and frequéntontrol the manufacturing of, and have broad apgval rights over, our console an
handheld video game products.

Generally, when we develop interactive gatement software products for hardware platfoofisred by Sony, Nintendo or Microsoft,
the products are manufactured exclusively by taadWware manufacturer or their approved replicator.

The agreements with these manufacturetsdecertain provisions, such as approval rightr @i software products and related
promotional materials and the ability to changefdeethey charge for the manufacturing of produstsich allow them substantial influence
over the cost and the release schedule of sudfaatiee entertainment software products. In addjtleecause each of the
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manufacturers is also a publisher of games fanits hardware platforms and manufactures productalfof its other licensees, a
manufacturer may give priority to its own produstghose of our competitors in the event of ingidint manufacturing capacity. Accordingly,
Sony, Nintendo or Microsoft could cause unanti@padelays in the release of our products as wetl@sases to projected development,
manufacturing, marketing, or distribution costsy ahwhich could harm our business and financiautes.

In addition, platform licensors control @ability to provide online game capabilities fomsole platform products and, in large part,
establish the financial terms and/or pricing onahhthese products and services are offered to cogrsu Currently, Microsoft provides online
capabilities for the Xbox 360, Sony provides onliapabilities for PS3 products, and Nintendo presidnline capabilities for the Wii. In each
case, compatibility code and/or the consent ofitemsor are required for us to include online ¢altées in its console products. As these
capabilities become more significant, the failureedusal of licensors to approve our products fmayn our business and financial results.

Our sales may decline substantially without warniagd in a brief period of time because a substahpartion of our sales are made to a
relatively small number of key customers and becawge do not have long-term contracts for the saleor products.

In the U.S. and Canada, Activision has grify sold its boxed products on a direct basistss-market retailers, consumer electronics
stores, discount warehouses, and game speciatgsstctivision boxed products are sold internaiynon a direct-to-retail basis, through
third-party distribution and licensing arrangemeantsl through our wholly-owned European distribusobsidiaries. Activision's sales are
made primarily on a purchase order basis withaug{term agreements or other forms of commitmentsilé&\ve did not have any single
customer who accounted for 10% or more of our cliafested net revenues for 2011, we had one custoBemeStop, which accounted for
approximately 12% of our consolidated net revenn&910. We had one customer, Wal-Mart, which aoted for 21% of consolidated gross
receivables at December 31, 2011, and two custor@arseStop and Wal-Mart, which accounted for 12% E8%6 of consolidated gross
receivables at December 31, 2010, respectively |d$eof, or significant reduction in sales to, afiyActivision's principal retail customers or
distributors could significantly harm our businessl financial results. The concentration of sates $mall number of large customers also
could make us more vulnerable to collection risérié or more of these large customers becomesaitmphy for our products or seeks
protection under the bankruptcy laws. In additioaying such a large portion of our total net rexeoancentrated in a few customers reduces
our negotiating leverage with these customers.

Our business may be harmed if our distributors, agérs or other parties with which we do businesmoot honor their existing credit
arrangements, default on their obligations to usg, seek protection under the bankruptcy laws.

We rely on various business partners foessd important aspects of our business, includiistribution of our products, product
development and intellectual property licensingn8mf these business partners are highly-leveragsthall businesses that may be
particularly vulnerable to difficult economic cotidns. As a result of current economic conditioms,are subject to heightened counterparty
risks, including the risks that our business pagmeay default on their obligations to us or seekqrtion under the bankruptcy laws.

For example, retailers and distributorghia interactive entertainment industry have frometito time experienced significant fluctuations
in their businesses and a number of them havedfailee typically make sales to most retailers andesdistributors on unsecured credit, with
terms that vary depending upon the customer'stdnéstory, solvency, credit limits, and sales higt@s well as whether the customer can
obtain sufficient credit insurance. Challengingremmic conditions may
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impair the ability of our customers to pay for puots they have purchased, and as a result, ouvessir doubtful accounts and write-off of
accounts receivable could increase and, evennéased, may turn out to be insufficient. Moreoeeen in cases where we have insolvency
risk insurance to protect against a customer'srogiy, insolvency, or liquidation, this insurargpically contains a significant deductible ¢
co-payment obligation, and does not cover all msta of non-payment. As a result, a payment deffgulor the insolvency or business failure
of, a significant customer could significantly haoor business and financial results.

The insolvency or business failure of ottyges of business partners could result in disoaptto the manufacturing or distribution of our
products or the cancellation of contractual arramgets that we consider to be favorable.

We may not be able to maintain our distribution etionships with key vendors and customers.

Our NBG and Centresoft subsidiaries distetinteractive entertainment software and hardwesducts and provide related services in
Germany and the U.K., respectively, and via expodther European countries for a variety of eaierhent software publishers, many of
which are our competitors, and hardware manufaguFgom time to time, these subsidiaries also taairexclusive relationships to serve
certain retail customers. These services are ginpeaformed subject to limited-term arrangemetshough we expect to use reasonable
efforts to retain these vendors and retail custamlationships, we may not be successful in thgsuré. The cancellation or non-renewal of one
or more of these arrangements could adverselytadfecbusiness and financial results.

Our business is subject to the risks and uncert@stof international trade.

We conduct business throughout the word, \eie derive a substantial amount of revenue fraternational trade, particularly from
Europe, Asia and Australia. We expect that inteomat revenues will continue to account for a diigant portion of our total revenues in the
future and, moreover, that our growth will dependrmcreased sales in emerging markets in Asia &sivbere.

As such, we are, and may be increasinglyjest to risks inherent in foreign trade generally well as risks inherent in doing business in
emerging markets, including increased tariffs antied, fluctuations in currency exchange rateqhg delays, increases in transportation
costs, international political, regulatory and emmic developments and differing local businesstpras, all of which may impact operating
margins or make it more difficult, if not impossbffor us to conduct business in foreign markets.

A deterioration in relations between eitberor the U.S. and any country in which we hagaificant operations or sales, or the
implementation of government regulations in sudoantry, including China in particular, could resnlthe adoption or expansion of trade
restrictions that harm our business and operatieglts. For instance, to operate in Chivayrld of Warcraft, StarCraft land any other game
must have regulatory approval. A decision by the€se government to revoke its approval\World of Warcraftor StarCraft |l or to decline
to approve any other products we desire to sdlliima in the future would adversely impact our afieg results. Additionally, in the past,
legislation has been implemented in China thatregsired modifications to th&/orld of Warcraftsoftware. The future implementation of
similar laws in China or any other country in whigh have operations or sales may require engirgenodifications to our products that are
not costeffective, if even feasible at all, or could degrdlde customer experience to the point where cuest®pease to purchase such prod

We are also subject to risks that our apera outside the U.S. could be conducted by ouleyees, contractors, representatives or ag
in ways that violate the Foreign Corrupt Practidesor other similar anti-bribery laws. While wevgapolicies and procedures intended to
ensure compliance with these laws, our employemgractors, representatives and agents may takmact
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that violate our policies. Moreover, it may be mdi#icult to oversee the conduct of any such pesseho are not our employees, potentially
exposing us to greater risk from their actions. Amgtations of those laws by any of those persangddhave a negative impact on our busir

Further, if government regulations or riesitvns prevent us from repatriating internatiopalerived revenue into the U.S., or a country's
tax structure makes repatriation prohibitively exgige, we may not transfer such revenue into tt&,Which could affect our ability to
reinvest or utilize such amounts in our business.

In addition, cultural differences may atfeonsumer preferences and limit the popularititefs that are "hits" in the U.S or require us to
modify the content of the games or the method biglwvive charge our customers for the games in dodbe successful. If we do not correctly
assess consumer preferences in the countries imanket, our sales and revenue may be lower thpacted.

Changes in tax rates or exposure to additional téabilities could adversely affect our operatingselts and financial condition.

We are subject to income taxes in the ®rd.in various other jurisdictions. Significant gudent is required in determining our worldw
provision for income taxes and, in the ordinaryrsewf business, there are many transactions dodaions where the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain. We are required tonesté future taxes. Although we currently believe tax estimates are reasonable, the estimate
process is inherently uncertain, and such estirategot binding on tax authorities. The effectae rate could be adversely affected by a
variety of factors, including changes in the busmeéncluding the mix of earnings in countries wdtffering statutory tax rates, changes in tax
elections, and changes in applicable tax laws heurtax determinations are regularly subject @ity tax authorities and developments in
those audits could adversely affect our incomeptaxision. Should the ultimate tax liability exceestimates, our income tax provision and
income could be adversely affected.

We are also required to pay taxes othar theome taxes, such as payroll, sales, use, \added, net worth, property, and goods and
services taxes, in both the U.S. and various gthredictions. Tax authorities regularly examinegh non-income taxes. There can be no
assurance that the outcomes from these examinatibasges in the business or changes in applitableiles will not have an adverse effect
on our operating results and financial condition.

Fluctuations in currency exchange rates may haveagative impact on our results of operations.

We transact business in various curreraiesr than the U.S. dollar and have significargrimational sales and expenses denominated in
currencies other than the U.S. dollar, subjectismgoucurrency exchange rate risks. A substantigigoof our international sales and expenses
are denominated in local currencies, includingaiennajor currencies, such as the euro and U.Kngoand emerging market currencies, such
as the South Korean won and Chinese renminbi, wdacid fluctuate against the U.S. dollar. We héwéehe past, utilized currency derivative
contracts to hedge certain foreign exchange expeswith hedge tenors of generally less than 12thspas well as managing these exposures
with natural offsets. We may also hedge non-U.8adearnings from time to time. Our principal céemparty in respect of currency derivative
contracts is Vivendi, though we periodically evatiand may use similar arrangements with othertesparties. There can be no assurance
that we will continue these programs, or that wi lvd successful in managing exposure to currexchange rate risks.
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Our reported financial results could be adverselffexted by changes in financial accounting standardr by the application of existing or
future accounting standards to our business asvobres.

Our reported financial results are impadigdhe accounting policies promulgated by the SIBQ national accounting standards bodies
and the methods, estimates, and judgments thasevewapplying our accounting policies. Policieeeting software revenue recognition have
and could further significantly affect the way veport revenue related to our products and senilestecognize all of the revenue from
bundled salesi(e., packaged goods video games that include an osdingéce component) on a deferred basis over amastd online service
period for such games. In addition, we defer theof sales of those titles. We expect that areasing number of our games will be online-
enabled in the future and we could be require@tognize the related revenue over an extendeddoefibme rather than at the time of sale.
Further, as we increase our downloadable contehtidd new features to our online service, our egémof the online service period may
change and we could be required to recognize reyeand defer related costs, over a longer peridiong. As we enhance, expand and
diversify our business and product offerings, thpligation of existing or future financial accourgistandards, particularly those relating to
way we account for revenue and taxes, could haaaearse effect on our reported net revenue, cetrie and earnings per share under
accounting principles generally accepted in thetédhStates of America in any given period.

We may permit our customers to return products aedeceive pricing concessions which could redua revenues and results of
operations.

We are exposed to the risk of product refand price protection with respect to our distigios and retailers. Return policies allow
distributors and retailers to return defective listvorn, damaged and certain other products in edanace with terms granted. Price protection,
when granted and applicable, allows these diswitsuand retailers a credit against amounts oweldl niegpect to merchandise unsold by them.
We may permit product returns from, or grant ppeetection to, our customers under certain conatid hese conditions may include
compliance with applicable payment terms, delivaryweekly inventory and sales, and consistent giggtion in the launches of premium title
releases. We may also consider other factors,dimduthe facilitation of slow-moving inventory anther market factors. When we offer price
protection, it may be offered with respect to dipatar product to all of our retail customers wheet the applicable conditions. Activision &
offers a 90-day limited warranty to its consumed esers that Activision products will be free fromanufacturing defects. Although we
maintain a reserve for returns and price protectionl although we may place limits on product retland price protection, we could be for
to accept substantial product returns and providstsintial price protection to maintain our relagbips with retailers and our access to
distribution channels. Product returns and pricgqmtion that exceed our reserves could signiflgdrarm our business and financial results.
We face similar issues, including exposure to oskhargebacks, with respect to consumer end tisavhom we sell products directly,
whether through Battle.net or otherwise.

We may face difficulty obtaining access to retdiledf space necessary to market and sell our progdueffectively.

Retailers typically have a limited amouhsbelf space and promotional resources, and fkénéense competition among consumer
interactive entertainment software products fohhigality retail shelf space and promotional supfrom retailers. To the extent that the
number of products and platforms increases, cotiefior shelf space may intensify and may requsdo increase our marketing
expenditures. Those issues are exacerbated tativ @ne of our products involves something initholdl to software and, as such, requires
additional shelf space, likekylanders Spyro's Adventyrehich includes both action figures and an elettrdportal”. Retailers with limited
shelf
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space typically devote the most and highest qusligif space to those products expected to besbbsts. We cannot be certain that our new
products will consistently achieve such "best séBéatus. Due to increased competition for limighelf space, retailers and distributors are in
an increasingly better position to negotiate fabt@daerms of sale, including price discounts, ppeetection, marketing and display fees, and
product return policies. Our products constitutelatively small percentage of most retailers' sal@ume. We cannot be certain that retailers
will continue to purchase our products or to previdose products with adequate levels of shelfespad promotional support on acceptable
terms. A prolonged failure in this regard may sfigaintly harm our business and financial results.

If our marketing and advertising efforts fail to monate with our customers, our business and opergtiesults could be adversely affectt

Our products are marketed worldwide throaghverse spectrum of advertising and promotignagrams. Our ability to sell our products
and services is dependent in part upon the suctessse programs. If the marketing for our prodwmtd services fail to resonate with our
customers, particularly during the critical holidsgason or during other key selling periods, adifertising rates or other media placement
costs increase, these factors could have a masehva@rse impact on our business and operatingtsesul

Increased sales of used video game products cooMeel our sales

Certain of our larger customers sell useéeéw games, which are generally priced lower tham nideo games and do not result in any
revenue to the publisher of the games. The madtghEse games may be growing. Sales of used gdem®s could negatively affect our sales
of new video games and have an adverse impact oopauating results.

Our products are subject to ratings by the Entertaient Software Rating Board and similar agenciesuiQailure to obtain our target
ratings for our products could negatively impact osales.

The Entertainment Software Rating Boare (fBSRB") is a self-regulatory body in the U.S tthevides consumers of interactive
entertainment software with ratings informatiorgliding information relating to violence, nudity gxual content contained in software titles.
Certain countries other than the U.S. have alsabished similar rating systems as prerequisiteprfoduct sales in those countries. In some
countries, a company may be required to modifpiitalucts to comply with the requirements of thégasystems, which could delay or disr
the release of any given product, or may prevergate altogether in certain territories. The ES&ig categories are "Early Childhood" (age
three and older), "Everyone" (age six and olddgy€eryone 10+" (age 10 and older), "Teen" (age IBawer), "Mature" (age 17 and over) and
"Adults Only"). Certain of our titles have receivadMature" rating; none of our titles has receia@d'Adults Only" rating. If we are unable to
obtain the ratings we have targeted for our praglasta result of changes in the ESRB's ratingslatela or for other reasons, including the
adoption of legislation in this area, our businasd prospects could be negatively affected.

Our business, products, and distribution are sulijée increasing regulation of content in key terdties. If we do not successfully respond
these regulations, our business may suffer.

Legislation is continually being introducisét may affect both the content and the distrdoubf our products. Those laws and regulations
vary by territory and may be inconsistent with @m@ther or with our current practices. For exampiacy laws in the U.S. and Europe
impose various restrictions on the collection, atgrand use of personal information. We may beimedjto modify certain of our product
development processes or alter our marketing giegte¢o comply with such regulations, which coutddostly or delay the release of our
products. In addition, many foreign
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countries, such as China and Germany, have lawgénmit governmental entities to restrict the emtand/or advertising of interactive
entertainment software or prohibit certain typesaritent. Further, legislation which attempts ttniet distribution of such products becaus
the content therein has been introduced at onedima@other at the federal and state levels inls The adoption and enforcement of
legislation which restricts the content of our prot in the U.S. and other countries in which wédodsiness may harm the sales of our
products, as the products we are able to offeutaccostomers and the size of the potential madkesddir products may be limited. Failure to
comply with any applicable legislation may alsouleg governmental imposed fines.

If our products contain defects, our business areputation could be harmed significantl

Software products as complex as the ongsulbish may contain undetected errors and defétis.risk is often higher when such
products are first introduced or when new versimesfirst released. Failure to avoid, or to timééfect and correct, such errors or defects ¢
result in loss of, or delay in, market acceptaaca, could significantly harm our business, finah@aults, and reputation.

A substantial portion of World of Warcraft's subsitrers pays their subscription fees using credit dar Credit card fraud could have
negative impact on our business and operating resul

A substantial portion of the subscriptiewenue generated bYorld of Warcraftis paid by subscribers using credit cards. At tintlesre
may be attempts to use fraudulently obtained cedd numbers to pay faWorld of Warcraftupgrades or subscriptions. Additionally, the
credit card numbers &Forld of Warcrafts subscribers are maintained in a proprietarybdesta that may be subject to malicious intrusion by
hackers or otherwise compromised internally or mwethy. As fraudulent schemes become more sophistit; it may become more difficult a
more costly for us to detect credit card fraud aedmay be required to incur costs to implementtaattil security measures to protect
subscriber information. An increase in credit ciredid could have an adverse effect on our busimepstation, and operating results. In
addition, we may be subject to legal claims or Iggaceedings, including regulatory investigatiams actions, if there is loss, disclosure or
misappropriation of or access to our customerslicoard information.

Data breaches involving the source code for our guats or customer or employee data stored by udatadversely affect our reputatio
and revenues.

We store the source code and game asseaiarfinteractive entertainment software produstsreated. In addition, we store confidential
information with respect to our customers and eygs. A malicious intrusion by hackers or otheabheof the systems on which such source
code and assets, account information (includinggually identifiable information) and other sengtiata is stored could lead to piracy of our
software, fraudulent activity or less, disclosurerisappropriation of or access to our customerd'employees' personally identifiable
information or our own sensitive business dataafadntrusion into a server for a game with onfeetures, such a&/orld of Warcraft, or a
digital service with online features, likgall of Duty Elite, could also disrupt the operation of such gamglatform. If we are subject to data
security breaches, we may have a loss in salasbsceptions or be forced to pay damages or intherccosts, including from the
implementation of additional security measures, @nyhich could adversely affect profitability. Amlamage to our reputation resulting frot
data breach could have an adverse impact on oanveg and future growth prospects. In additionmag be subject to legal claims or
proceedings in connection with data security breachcluding regulatory investigations and actjamsich may adversely impact our
business, operating results and financial condition
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Our results of operations or reputation may be hagohas a result of offensive consumer-posted content

We are subject to risks associated withctiimborative online features in our games whibdmaconsumers to post narrative comment, in
real time, which is visible to other players. Désmiur efforts to restrict inappropriate consunmrtent, from time to time objectionable and
offensive consumer content may be posted to a gaoriother site with online chat features or gaorerhs which allow consumers to post
comments. We may be subject to lawsuits, governaheegulation or restrictions, and consumer batk{ascluding decreased sales and
harmed reputation), as a result of consumers gpsfiensive content, any of which could harm ouergping results. We may also be subje:
consumer backlash from comments made in responsestings we make on social media sites such a=béa&, YouTube and Twitter, which
could similarly harm our reputation or operatinguks.

If one or more of our titles were found to contambjectionable undisclosed content, our businessldosuffer.

Throughout the history of the interactiveegtainment industry, many video games have besigded to include certain hidden content
and gameplay features that are accessible thrdwgghse of in-game cheat codes or other technollogieans that are intended to enhance the
gameplay experience. In some cases, such undidatosgent or features has been considered to leetainjable. In a few cases, the ESRB has
reacted to discoveries of such undisclosed comrtetifeatures by changing the rating or associaiateot descriptors originally assigned to the
product, requiring the publisher to change the gangame packaging or resulting in fines to theligtler. Retailers have on occasion reacted
to the discovery of such undisclosed content byoréng these games from their shelves, refusinglidlsem, and demanding that their
publishers accept them as product returns. Likevgisme interactive entertainment software consuimave reacted to the revelation of
undisclosed content by refusing to purchase suotegademanding refunds for games they have alngadyhased, refraining from buying
other games published by the company whose gantained the objectionable material, and, on at leastoccasion, filing a lawsuit against
the publisher of the product containing such canten

We have implemented preventive measuregrmes to reduce the possibility of objectionablelignlosed content from appearing in the
video games we publish. Nonetheless, these preemigasures are subject to human error, circumugrverriding, and reasonable resource
constraints. If a video game we publish is founddaotain undisclosed content, we could be subgeahy of these consequences and our
reputation could be harmed, which could have atineganpact on our operating results and financa@idition, and our business and financial
performance could be significantly harmed.

We may not be able to adequately adjust our cogtcstire in a timely fashion in response to a sudddacrease in demand.

In the event of a significant decline imdend for one or more of our products, we may nadtide to reduce personnel or make other
changes to our cost structure without disruptingaperations or incurring costs. Further, we matyb®able to implement such actions in a
timely manner, if at all, to offset an immediat®gfall in revenue and profit. Moreover, cost-retioic actions may decrease our employee
morale and result in the failure to execute uponbusiness plan due to the loss of employees ocadtngur ability to retain or recruit key
employees, any of which could harm our operatisglis. In addition, any such action may involve fils& that our senior management's
attention will be excessively diverted from ouretloperations, thereby further harming our opegatésults.
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We engage in strategic transactions and may enceumtifficulties in integrating acquired businesses otherwise realizing the anticipated
benefits of the transactions.

As part of our business strategy, we aequirake investments in, or enter into strategiaratkes and joint ventures with complementary
businesses from time to time. These transactionsimvalve significant risks and uncertainties, imting: (A) in the case of an acquisition,
(i) the difficulty in integrating the acquired busiss and operations in an efficient and effectieamer, (ii) any liabilities assumed as part of the
acquisition, and (iii) the potential loss of key @oyees of the acquired businesses, and, (B) icdke of an investment, alliance or joint
venture, our ability to cooperate with our partriitany such transaction involves an entity outsifiéhe United States, it may also subject us to
the risks and uncertainties of international tradeluding the risk that our operations outsidelth8. could be conducted by our employees,
contractors, representatives or agents in ways/tbktte the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act or otsierilar anti-bribery laws. Further, any such
transaction may involve the risk that our senionagement's attention will be excessively divertedifour other operations, the risk that our
industry does not evolve as anticipated and thairaellectual property or personnel skills acqdigd not prove to be those needed for our
future success, and the risk that our strategieativjes, cost savings or other anticipated benaféstherwise not achieved. Any of the
foregoing could adversely affect our business @sdlts of operations.

Our involvement in joint ventures decreases our liito manage risk.

We conduct some of our operations throwgtt yentures in which we share control with ounfaowenture partners. Although we enter i
joint venture arrangements in order to share mgks our joint venture partners, these arrangemerag also decrease our ability to man
risk. As with any joint venture arrangement, diffleces in views among the joint venture participamy result in delayed decisions or in
failures to agree on major issues. There is thethigt our joint venture partners may at any tirmeeheconomic, business or legal interests or
goals that are inconsistent with ours. There ig gik that our joint venture partners may be uaablmeet their economic or other obligations
and we may be required to fulfill those obligati@isne. Failure by us, or an entity in which we dayjoint venture interest, to adequately
manage the risks associated with any joint ventooedd have an adverse effect on the financial itimmdor results of operations of our joint
ventures and, in turn, our business and operations.

We anticipate entering into additional jomentures with other entities. We cannot assuaewe will undertake such joint ventures or, if
undertaken, that such joint ventures will be susfté®r produce the anticipated benefits.

Historically, our stock price has been highly voikgt

The trading price of our common stock hasrh and could continue to be, subject to widedlaiions in response to many factors,
including for example, but without limitation:

. quarter to quarter variations in results of operadj

. the announcement of new produr

. the announcement of lower prices on competing prtsd

. product development or release schedules;

. general conditions in the computer, software, éaitement, media or electronics industries, andhéwworldwide economy;
. timing of the introduction of new platforms and @ in the actual release of new platfor
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. hardware manufacturers' announcements of pricegesafior hardware platforms;

. consumer acceptance of hardware platfol

. consumer spending trends;

. the outcome of lawsuits or regulatory investigagiaomwhich we may become involved;

. changes in earnings estimates or buy/sell recomatimd by analyst:

. sales or acquisitions of common stock by our dinexcor executive management, or by Vivendi andffiiates; anc

. investor perceptions and expectations regardingomducts, plans and strategic position, and tlkdseir competitors and
customers.

In addition, the public stock markets haeen experiencing extreme price and trading voluahatility. This volatility has significantly
affected the market prices of securities of maehtelogy companies for reasons often unrelatede®perating performance of the specific
companies. These broad market fluctuations mayradiyeaffect the market price of our common stock.

Catastrophic events may disrupt our business.

Our corporate headquarters are locateldeihbs Angeles, California area, which is near gomearthquake fault. A major earthquake or
other catastrophic event that results in the destnu or disruption of any of our critical businessinformation technology systems, or
otherwise prevents us from conducting our normalrmss operations, could harm our operating results

Item 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.
Item 2. PROPERTIES

Our principal corporate and administratifices are located at 3100 Ocean Park BoulevadteSMonica, California. Other significant
leased facilities include: our Blizzard offices dbed in Irvine, California and our North Americatidibution warehouse located in Fresno,
California.

The following is a summary of the princifedsed offices we maintained as of December 311:20

Purpose North America Europe Asia Total
Square footage of leased properties

Corporate Office: 140,03: 9,20z — 149,23.
Activision Product Development & Publishi

Facilities (Activision Segmen 886,50¢ 70,307 31,66 624,21t
Blizzard Product Development & Publishi

Facilities (Blizzard Segmen 444,78:  187,40! 7,617 639,80:
Distribution Facilities (Distribution Segmer — 503,31 — 867,57:
Sales office! 18,95¢ 14,99 30C 34,25(
Total 1,490,27¢ 785,21° 39,58: 2,315,07!

In total, we lease approximately 50 fai@tin 19 countries, including the Argentina, Aast, Canada, China, Denmark, France,
Germany, Ireland, Italy, Mexico, the NetherlandsyMay, Singapore, South Korea, Spain, Sweden, TgiWaited States and the United
Kingdom. We anticipate no difficulty in extendinugtleases of our facilities or obtaining compardaddities in suitable locations, as needed,
and we consider our facilities to be adequate fowronrrent needs.
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Item 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are currently involved in certain legabceedings and where liabilities are probableestinable, we have accrued appropriate
amounts.

After concluding an internal human resoarcgjuiry into breaches of contract and insubortitmaby two senior employees at Infinity
Ward, the Company terminated its employment of 3&¥est and Vince Zampella on March 1, 2010. On M&,c2010, West and Zampella
filed a complaint against the Company in Los Angeéeperior Court for breach of contract and wrohggftmination, among other claims. In
their complaint, West and Zampella alleged damagekjding punitive damages, in excess of $36 oillian amount they have since
significantly increased during discovery, as wslidgclaratory relief. On April 9, 2010, the Compdifed a cross complaint against West and
Zampella, asserting claims for breach of contradtfeduciary duty, among other claims. The Comp&nseeking damages and declaratory
relief.

In addition, 38 current and former emplayeéInfinity Ward filed a complaint against the@pany in Los Angeles Superior Court on
April 27, 2010 (Alderman et al. v. Activision Publishing, Inc. &t aAn amended complaint was filed on July 8, 201Biclv added seven
additional plaintiffs. On October 5, 2010, five iplafs, all current employees of Infinity Ward)dd dismissals without prejudice. There are
currently 40 plaintiffs in the case. The plaintiffave asserted claims for breach of contract, timiaof the Labor Code of the State of
California, conversion and other claims. In th@mplaint, the plaintiffs claimed that the Compaaijefd to pay bonuses and other
compensation allegedly owed to them in an amoulezast between $75 million to $125 million, plusjive damages, an amount they have
since increased in discovery responses to appreeiyn®300 million, plus punitive damages. On Octob2, 2010, the court consolidated this
matter with the West and Zampella matter.

On January 18, 2011, the court grantedCthrmpany's motion to amend its cross complaint ag&lfest and Zampella to add allegations
with respect to them and to add Electronic Arts, s a party. On January 31, 2011, the case emasférred to the complex division.

Some of the parties have filed, and arelyiko file, additional pre-trial motions, includjrdispositive motions, and discovery continues in
the ordinary course of the litigation. The coursIsat a trial date of May 7, 2012.

The Company has accrued and will contilmugctrue appropriate amounts related to bonusestaed monies allegedly owed in
connection with this matter. Due to the inherertartainties of litigation, other potential outconags reasonably possible, including outcomes
which are above the amount of the accrual. The Gaypoes not expect this lawsuit to have a matemniphct on the Company's business,
financial condition, results of operation or ligilyd However, an unfavorable resolution of this fat above the amount of the accrual could
have a material adverse effect on the Companyisdasand results of operations in an interim pkinowhich the lawsuit is ultimately
resolved.

In addition, we are party to other routoh@ms and suits brought by us and against usearottinary course of business, including disp
arising over intellectual property rights, contradtclaims, employment laws, regulations and refeihips, and collection matters. In the
opinion of management, after consultation with legansel, the outcome of such routine claims amgslits will not have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition, resoftoperations, or liquidity.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable
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PART Il

tem 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, R ELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS, AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our common stock is quoted on the NASDAQidweal Market under the symbol "ATVI."

The following table sets forth, for the ipels indicated, the high and low reported salegsrior our common stock. At February 16, 2012,
there were 1,813 holders of record of our commonkst

High Low

2010

First Quarter Ended March 31, 20 $ 12.1¢ $ 9.9:
Second Quarter Ended June 30, 2 12.5¢ 9.9¢
Third Quarter Ended September 30, 2 12.0¢ 10.32
Fourth Quarter Ended December 31, 2 12.6¢ 10.7¢
2011

First Quarter Ended March 31, 20 $ 12.6¢ $ 10.4(
Second Quarter Ended June 30, 2 12.0¢ 10.8¢
Third Quarter Ended September 30, 2! 12.3( 10.4(
Fourth Quarter Ended December 31, 2 14.4( 11.6(
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Stock Performance Graph

This performance graph shall not be deetfiled!" for purposes of Section 18 of the Exchadge or otherwise subject to the liabilities
under that Section, and shall not be deemed tadmporated by reference into any filing of Activis Blizzard Inc. under the Exchange Act

the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

The graph below matches the cumulative &@tmtotal return of holders of our common stockhwihe cumulative total returns of the
NASDAQ Composite index and the RDG Technology Cositedndex. The graph assumes that the value dhtlestment in our commc
stock and in each of the indexes (including reitmesit of dividends) was $100 on March 31, 2006 taacks each such investment through

December 31, 2011.

For periods prior to July 9, 2008, befdre Business Combination, the share price informédto the Company is for Activision, Inc. In
connection with the Business Combination, Actiwisibnc. changed its name to Activision Blizzard;.land changed its fiscal year end from

March 31 to December 31.

COMPARISON OF 69 MONTH CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among Activision Blizzard, Inc., the NASDAQ Comptesindex,
and the RDG Technology Composite Index

$250 -
5200 4
£l
5150
1)
=]
5100
§50
Eﬁ I L 1 1 I ]
3/31/06 3/31/07 3/31/08 12/31/08 12/31/09 12/3110 1213111
—B— Activision Blizzard, Inc. —te— NASDAQ Composite —&— RDG Technology Composlte
* 100 invested on 3/31/06 in stock or index, inclgdiainvestment of dividends.

Fiscal year ending December 31.

3/06 3/07 3/08 12/08 12/09 12/10 12/11

Activision Blizzard, Inc. 100.0C 137.3t 198.0¢ 125.37 161.1! 182.97 183.9(

NASDAQ Composite 100.0C 106.1: 100.2¢ 69.5¢ 100.8¢ 118.8( 117.4:
RDG Technology

Composite 100.0C 103.6: 100.6¢ 67.6¢ 108.8¢ 122.8¢ 122.6(
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The stock price performance included in this grégphot necessarily indicative of future stock prpegformance.
Cash Dividends

On February 9, 2012, our Board of Directieslared a cash dividend of $0.18 per common steyable on May 16, 2012 to shareholt
of record at the close of business on March 212201

On February 9, 2011, our Board of Directigslared a cash dividend of $0.165 per commoregbayable on May 11, 2011 to
shareholders of record at the close of busineddamh 16, 2011, and on May 11, 2011, we made areggte cash dividend payment of
$192 million to such shareholders. On August 13,126he Company made dividend equivalent paymdr& anillion related to that cash
dividend to the holders of restricted stock units.

On February 10, 2010, our Board of Diresteclared a cash dividend of $0.15 per commoregberable on April 2, 2010 to
shareholders of record at the close of businessbnuary 22, 2010 and on April 2, 2010, we madaggregate cash dividend payment of
$189 million to such shareholders. Additionally, ©@atober 22, 2010, the Company made dividend etprivpayments of $2 million related to
that cash dividend to the holders of restrictedlstmits.

We did not pay cash dividends in 2009. Fatlividends will depend upon our earnings, finahcondition, cash requirements, future
prospects, and other factors deemed relevant bBoaird of Directors. There can be no assurancesliidends will be declared in the future.

Return of capital to Vivendi related to settlemehpre-Business Combination taxes

Prior to the Business Combination, Vive@@dimes' income taxes are presented in the finastei@ments as if Vivendi Games were a
stand-alone taxpayer even though Vivendi Gamesatipg results are included in the consolidateefal] certain foreign, and state and local
income tax returns of Vivendi or Vivendi's subsitia. Based on the subsequent filing of thesedaxms by Vivendi or Vivendi's subsidiaries,
we determined that the amount paid by Vivendi Games greater than the actual amount due (and dektbssed upon filing of these returns.
This difference between the amount paid and theadeimount due (and settled) represents a retucapifal to Vivendi which, in accordance
with the terms of the Business Combination agre¢nuecurred immediately prior to the close of thesBess Combination.

37




Table of Contents
Issuer Purchase of Equity Securities (amounts Ihans, except number of shares and per share ¢

The following table provides the numbesbéres purchased and average price paid per siiéng éach quarter of 2011, the total nurn
of shares purchased as part of our publicly annedisbare repurchase programs, and the approxirobae dalue of shares that could still be
purchased under our $1.5 billion stock repurchasgram as of the end of each relevant period.

Approximate dollar
value of shares that may

Total number of yet be purchased
Total number Average shares purchased as part under the plans or
of shares price paid of publicly announced programs

Period purchased(1)(2)(3) per share plans or programs(1)(2) (in millions)
January 1, 20—

March 31, 201: 29,42593 $ 10.9t 29,42593 $ 1,178,799,87
April 1, 2011+—

June 30, 201 14,089,44 11.21 14,089,44 1,020,884,42
July 1, 2011—

September 30,

2011 1,991,45 11.61 1,991,45 997,758,05
October 1, 2011-

October 31,

2011 1,094,36. 11.91 1,094,36. 984,727,82
November 1

2011—

November 30,

2011 2,625,00! 11.8¢ 2,625,00! 953,520,52
December 1

2011—

December 31,

2011 10,266,23 12.0% 10,266,23 829,862,70
Subtotal for the

fourth quarter o

2011 13,985,59 12.0C 13,985,59
Total 59,492,43 $ 11.2¢ 59,492,43

@ These purchases were made pursuant to the stagichgse program (the "2011 Stock Repurchase Prdgeathorized
by our Board of Directors on February 3, 2011 amdoainced on February 9, 2011 pursuant to which as r@purchase
up to $1.5 billion of our common stock from timettme on the open market or in private transactionduding
structured or accelerated transactions, on terrdanditions to be determined by the Company, tingilearlier of
March 31, 2012 and a determination by the Boaricgctors to discontinue the repurchase programadutition to the
repurchases in the table, in January 2012, wesddtike purchase of 1 million shares of our comntooksthat we had
committed to repurchase in December 2011 pursoahet2011 Stock Repurchase Program for $12 million

2 In addition to purchases under the 2011 Stock Reyase Program, included in this column are trafmasunder the
Company's equity compensation plans involving thiévdry to the Company of an aggregate of 94,5%0eshof our
common stock, with an average value of $10.92 paresas of the date of delivery, to satisfy tashhitlding obligations
in connection with the vesting of restricted stagkards to our employees.

(3)  This table excludes a $22 million purchase of lilian shares of our common stock that we had agdjtegepurchase in
December 2010 pursuant to a stock repurchase pnogmaer which we were authorized to repurchase i thillion of
the Company's common stock until December 31, 2

On February 2, 2012, our Board of Directmuthorized a stock repurchase program pursuamhich we may repurchase up to $1 billion
of the Company's common stock from time to timeht@open market or in private transactions, inelgditructured or accelerated transacti
on terms and conditions to be determined by the fi2my, during the period between April 1, 2012 dreldarlier of March 31, 2013 and a
determination by the Board of Directors to discoué the repurchase program.
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Iltem 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

For accounting purposes, the Business Quattibin is treated as a "reverse acquisition," Witlendi Games deemed to be the acquirer.
The historical financial statements of ActivisiotizZBard, Inc. prior to July 9, 2008 are those o¥&fidi Games, Inc. (see Note 1 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements included in I8eafi this Annual Report on Form 10-K). Thereforé12, 2010, 2009 and 2008 financial
data is not comparable with prior periods.

The following table summarizes certain sedd consolidated financial data, which shoulddsarin conjunction with our Consolidated
Financial Statements and Notes thereto and withadgament's Discussion and Analysis of Financial @Gmmdand Results of Operations
included elsewhere in this Form 10-K. The selectmtsolidated financial data presented below atfandach of the years in the five-year
period ended December 31, 2011 is derived fronGaunsolidated Financial Statements. All amountga¢h in the following tables are in
millions, except per share data.

For the Years Ended December 3]

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Statement of Operations Da

Net Revenue $ 4,758 $ 4447 $ 427¢ $ 3,02¢ $ 1,34¢
Net income (loss 1,08t 41&(1) 113(2) (207) 227
Basic net income (loss) per share 0.9: 0.3¢ 0.0¢ (0.11) 0.3¢
Diluted net income (loss) per share 0.92 0.3¢ 0.0¢ (0.11) 0.3¢
Cash dividends declared per share 0.16t 0.1t — — —
Balance Sheet Dat

Total asset $ 13,270 $ 13,447 $ 13,74. $ 14,46F $ 87¢

(1) In the fourth quarter of 2010, we recorded $328iomlof impairment charges within our Activisiongsaent. Thes
charges consisted of impairments of $67 millionp$iBion and $250 million to license agreementsngaengines and
internally developed franchises intangible asgetpectively.

(2) In the fourth quarter of 2009, we recorded $409iomlof impairment charges within our Activisiongseent. These
charges consisted of impairments of $24 millior? #illion and $373 million to license agreemeneng engines and
internally developed franchise intangible assetspectively.

3) Stock Split—In July 2008, the Board of Directors declared a-far-one split of our outstanding shares of comrstmtk
effected in the form of a stock dividend. The stdokdend was issued on September 5, 2008 to sblalers of record at
the close of business on August 25, 2008.

4) Cash Dividends—On February 9, 2012, our Board of Directors dextlaa cash dividend of $0.18 per share to be paid on
May 16, 2012 to shareholders of record at the abdbdmisiness on March 21, 2012. On February 9, 26di1Board of
Directors declared a cash dividend of $0.165 paresto be paid on May 11, 2011 to shareholdereadrd at the close of
business on March 16, 2011. On February 10, 20010Board of Directors declared a cash dividend®l%$ per commo
share payable on April 2, 2010 to shareholdergodmd at the close of business on February 22, Z00re dividends
will depend upon our earnings, financial conditioash requirements, future prospects and othesriadeemed relevant
by our Board of Directors. There can be no ass@stitat dividends will be declared in the futunéoiPto the cash
dividend declared in February 2010, the Companyrteagr paid a cash divider
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ltem 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Business Overview

Activision Blizzard, Inc. is a worldwide kime, personal computer ("PC"), console, handhetd, mobile game publisher. The terms
"Activision Blizzard," the "Company," "we," "us,'hd "our" are used to refer collectively to ActiwgiBlizzard, Inc. and its subsidiaries. Based
upon our organizational structure, we conduct augifess through three operating segments as fallows

Activision Publishing, Inc

Activision Publishing, Inc. ("Activision'ls a leading international developer and publisiienteractive software products and content.
Activision develops games based on both internddlyeloped and licensed intellectual property. Asidbn markets and sells games it develops
and, through our affiliate label program, gameseligyed by certain third-party publishers. We sathgs both through retail channels and by
digital download. Activision currently offers gamiist operate on the Sony Computer Entertainmeat,(TSony") PlayStation 3 ("PS3"),
Nintendo Co. Ltd. ("Nintendo") Wii ("Wii"), and Miosoft Corporation ("Microsoft") Xbox 360 ("Xbox 88) console systems; the Ninten
Dual Screen handheld game systems; the PC; Apf@el&ices and other handheld and mobile devices.

Blizzard Entertainment, In

Blizzard Entertainment, Inc. ("Blizzard¥)the leader in the subscription-based massivelji-player online role-playing game
("MMORPG") category in terms of both subscriberdasd revenues generated through its World of Vieirteanchise, which it develops,
supports, and hosts. Blizzard also develops, maed sells role-playing action and strategylf@8ed computer games, including games i
multiple-award winning Diabl® and StarCraf® franchises. Blizzard also maintains a proprietarljne-game related service, Battle.@et
Blizzard distributes its products and generatesemaes worldwide through various means, includingssriptions (which consist of fees from
individuals playingWorld of Warcraft® , prepaid cards and other value-added service ue@gesuch as realm transfers, faction changes, and
other character customizations within iverld of Warcrafigameplay); retail sales of physical "boxed" produonline download sales of PC
products; and licensing of software to third-pantyelated party companies that distribWerld of Warcraftand StarCraft.

Activision Blizzard Distributior

Activision Blizzard Distribution ("Distriltion") consists of operations in Europe that prewedarehousing, logistical, and sales distribt
services to third-party publishers of interactivéegtainment software, our own publishing operatj@nd manufacturers of interactive
entertainment hardware.

Business Results and Highlights

In 2011, Activision Blizzard's consolidateet revenues were $4.8 billion and consolidatedmoeme was $1.1 billion, resulting in dilut
earnings per common share of $0.92. The Company get revenues, operating income, and earningst@ae as compared to 2010. We also
generated $952 million in cash from operating ati¢is in 2011. Net revenues from digital online whels (as defined later in this filing)
increased 14% year-over-year to $1.6 billion, aotiog for 34% of the Company's total consolidatetinevenues.
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Also, according to The NPD Group with ragpe North America, Charttrack and Gfk with respecEurope, and Microsoft, Sony and
Activision Blizzard internal estimates, during 2011

. Activision Publishing was the #1 console and haiipablisher in the U.S. and Europe for the fouptiarter of 2011 and the 3
console and handheld publisher in the U.S. focdlendar year.

. For the calendar year, in aggregate across afbptas in North America and Europe, Activision Pshing'sCall of Duty® :
Modern Warfare ® was the #1 best-selling title in dollars, aDdll of Duty: Black Op® was the #5 bedelling title in dollars

. In North America and Europe, including accessomkpand figuresSkylanders Spyro's Adventui® was the #8 best-selling
game in dollars for the fourth quarter of 2011 #mel#1 selling kids' title in dollars for the catlem year. Additionally, in North
America, including accessory packs and figuB#g/landers Spyro's Adventuw@s the #10 best-selling title in dollars for the
calendar year.

. For the calendar year, Blizzard Entertainment hamltbop-10 PC games in North America and Europe @itirCraft 1l: Wings o
Liberty® andWorld of Warcraft: Cataclysm®

Additional Highlights

On February 2, 2012, our Board of Direcuthorized a new stock repurchase program undiehwie may repurchase up to $1 billion
of our common stock, on terms and conditions tddtermined by the Company, during the period betwigaril 1, 2012 and the earlier of
March 31, 2013 or a determination by the Board iné®ors to discontinue the repurchase program.

On February 9, 2012, the Board of Directigslared a cash dividend of $0.18 per common gbare paid on May 16, 2012 to
shareholders of record at the close of busineddarch 21, 2012.

On February 3, 2011, our Board of Directughorized a new stock repurchase program (th&l'3dock Repurchase Program™) under
which we may repurchase up to $1.5 billion of camenon stock until the earlier of March 31, 2012 atetermination by the Board of
Directors to discontinue the repurchase progranofA3ecember 31, 2011, we have repurchased 5%midhares of common stock under this
program at an aggregate purchase price of approefyn®670 million. Additionally, in January 2012gewgettled the purchase of 1 million
shares of our common stock that we had committedgarchase in December 2011 pursuant to the 2tiickk Kepurchase Program for
$12 million. In January 2011, we settled a $22imillpurchase of 1.8 million shares of our commarlsthat we had agreed to repurchase in
December 2010 pursuant to a stock repurchase pnogmder which, until December 31, 2010, we werdée@iged to repurchase up to
$1 billion of our common stock.

On February 9, 2011, the Board of Directigslared a cash dividend of $0.165 per commorediodoe paid on May 11, 2011 to
shareholders of record at the close of busineddarch 16, 2011. On May 11, 2011, we made an agtgemsh dividend payment of
$192 million to such shareholders. On August 12,12@ve made dividend equivalent payments of $2ianiltelated to this cash dividend to the
holders of restricted stock units.

Product Release Highligh

The following games, among other titlesreveleased during the year ended December 31; 2011

Activision:
e Cabela'® Adventure Cam e Nasca® The Game 20117
¢ Cabela's® Big Game Hunter™ 2012 ¢ Rapala® for Kinect™
¢ Cabela's® Big Game Hunter™ Hunting Party e Skylanders Spyro's Adventure
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e Cabela'® Survival: Shadows of Katmai’ e Spiderman: Edge of Tin

e Call of Duty: Black Opgontent packs Transformers™: Dark of the Moon™
e Call of Duty Elite X-Men: Destiny

e Call of Duty: Modern Warfare Wipeout: In the Zon

¢ GoldenEye 007™: Reloaded Wipeout: Season 2

¢ |Lego Star Wars ll{a Lucas Arts title)

In 2011, we launchekylanders Spyro's Adventueegame that combines the use of toys with videoegaatelivering a new game play
experience to our audiences. We also debGedtof Duty Elite,a digital service that provides both free and ailscriptionbased content at
features for the Call of Duty franchise.

In March 2012, Activision expects to reledise firstCall of Duty Modern Warfare 3 Content Collectipa compilation of content
previously released tBall of Duty Elitepremium members, on the Xbox 360. In April 2012,also plan to releaderototype® 2, the sequel
to our popular open-world action game that wasioaily released in 2009.

Recently, Blizzard has announced its intento shipDiablo Il in the second quarter of 2012, released a trdilewsasing the multiplay
aspect of itsStarCraft Il expansionHeart of the Swarmand announced plans for the fowttorld of Warcraftexpansion pack—World of
Warcraft: Mists of Pandaria In addition to developing these games, Blizzardurrently developing a new massive multiplaydinengame.

International Operation:

International sales are a fundamental gfaotir business. Net revenues from internationiglssaccounted for approximately 50%, 46%,
and 48% of our total consolidated net revenuethieyears ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 28§8:atively. We maintain significant
operations in the United States ("U.S."), Candda United Kingdom ("U.K."), France, Germany, Iredaftaly, Sweden, Spain, the
Netherlands, Australia, South Korea and China.mpdrtant element of our strategy is to develop eanlocally that is specifically directe
toward local cultures and customs to succeed iatenmally. Our international business is subjeatidks typical of an international business,
including, but not limited to, foreign currency éeange rate volatility. Accordingly, our future réisicould be materially and adversely affec
by changes in foreign currency exchange rates.

Management's Overview of Business Trends
Online Content and Digital Downloads

We provide our products through both thaifehannel and through digital online deliverythmas. Many of our video games that are
available through retailers as physical "boxedtwafe products, such as DVDs, are also availabtaitih direct digital download over the
Internet (both from websites that we own and sitgsed by third parties). We also offer downloadajgatent as add-ons to our productsd.
, hew multi-player content packs). Such digitalimeddelivered content is generally offered to consts for a one-time fee.

We also offer subscription-based service$\forld of Warcraft, which are digitally delivered and hosted by Béim¥'s proprietary online-
game related service, Battle.net. In November 20EllaunchedCall of Duty Elite, a digital service that provides both free andlpai
subscription-based content and features for thed€&8luty franchise. Digital revenues have becoménareasingly important part of our
business and we continue to focus on and develmgupts that can be delivered via digital onlinersteds. We currently define digital online
channel-related sales as revenues from subscripgiod memberships, licensing royalties, valdded services, downloadable content, digi
distributed
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products and wireless devices. This definition rdéfer from that used by our competitors or othempanies.

We experienced year-owsar growth of net revenues from the digital chdmasea percentage of our total net revenues. feoyelr ende
December 31, 2011, our sales through the digihobl grew by $200 million, as compared to 2010tHeumore our net revenues from digital
online channels represent 34% of our total conatéid net revenues in 2011 as compared to 32% id. BHised on our internal estimates,
industry sales through digital channel in 2011 wegraelouble digits as compared to 2010. These ettiadicate that the increase in revenues
from the digital channel more than offset the wesgsin the retail channel, resulting in an increéasevenues in the total video games market
of 7% year-over-year. We include downloadable gaamescontent, massively multiplayer online subgiiys and value-added services,
membership revenues and mobile and social ganmag iestimates of revenues from this digital channel

Please refer to the reconciliation betw&&RAP and non-GAAP financial measures later in tosument for further discussions of retail
and digital channels.

Conditions in the Retail Distribution Channels

Conditions in the retail channel of theaddyame industry remained challenging through 20ithe U.S. and Europe, retail sales within
the industry experienced a decrease of 5% for ¢lae gnded December 31, 2011, as compared to 26ddrding to The NPD Group,
Charttrack and Gfk. The majority of the overall lilee is attributable to the reduced demand for &fiio Wii and handheld platform products,
which declined by 20% year-over-year, while sateshigh-definition platforms {ie., Xbox 360 and PS3) increased by 9% in that sariedge
according to The NPD Group, Charttrack and Gfk. f@sults have been less impacted by the overdihgeio retail software sales than the
industry as a whole. This is primarily due to tlmacentration of our more focused slate of titlegporducts for highdefinition platforms and &
increasing portion of our revenues coming fromtdigihannels.

Current Generation of Game Consoles

The current generation of game consolesmegth Microsoft's launch of the Xbox 360 in 20@5d continued in 2006 when Sony and
Nintendo launched the PS3 and the Wii, respectiv@lxerall console sales remained strong in 201th an installed base of current genera
hardware (i.e. Xbox 360, PS3 and Wii) in the U181 &urope of approximately 166 million units adDafcember 31, 2011, as compared to
138 million units at December 31, 2010, represendin increase of 20% in units year-over-year, atingrto The NPD Group, with respect to
North America, and Charttrack and Gfk, with resgedturope. The installed base of PS3 and Xboxizg8ware units increased 27% -
over-year, while the installed base of Wii hardwangs increased 13% year-over-year. Nintendo anoed in June 2011 that they expect to
release a new high-definition version "next gernierdtconsole, the Wii U, during the 2012 holidaysen. We continually monitor game
console sales when managing our product deliveryamh platform in a manner we believe to be mdsttfe to maximize our revenue
opportunities and achieve the desired return oriruastments in product development.

Concentration of Top Titles

The concentration of retail revenues amkagcore titles has continued as a trend in theadhvi@teractive software industry. According
The NPD Group, the top 10 titles accounted for 26%he sales in the U.S. video game industry in1284 compared to 23% in 2010.
Similarly, a significant portion of our revenuesshastorically been derived from video games based few popular franchises and these
video games are responsible for a disproportiopdligh percentage of our
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profits. For example, the three key franchises aif 6f Duty, World of Warcraft, and Skylanders agnted for approximately 73% of our net
revenues, and a significantly higher percentagauobperating income, in 2011. We expect that &dichnumber of popular franchises will
continue to produce a disproportionately high petage of the industry and our revenues and profits.

Seasonality

The interactive entertainment industryighly seasonal. We have historically experiencedhighest sales volume in the yesard holida
buying season, which occurs in the fourth quakés.defer the recognition of a significant amounhef revenue related to our software titles
containing online functionality that constitutemare-than-inconsequential separate service delileer an extended period of time
(i.e., typically six months to less than a year3.aresult, the quarter in which we generate tgbdst sales volume may be different than the
guarter in which we recognize the highest amoumedfrevenue. Our results can also vary basedutmdi limited to, a number of factors st
as, title release date, consumer demand, markditamrs and shipment schedule.

Consolidated Statements of Operations Data

The following table sets forth consolidagtdtements of operations data for the period€#ted in dollars and as a percentage of total net
revenues (amounts in millions):

For the Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009
Net revenues
Product sale $ 3,257 68%$ 3,08 69%$ 3,08( 72%
Subscription, licensing, and other
revenue: 1,49¢ 32 1,36( 31 1,19¢ 28
Total net revenue 4,75¢ 10C 4,443 10C 4,27¢ 10C
Costs and expense
Cost of sale—product cost: 1,13¢ 24 1,35( 31 1,432 33
Cost of sale—online subscription 23¢ 5 241 5 21z 5
Cost of sales—software royalties
and amortizatiol 21¢ 5 33¢ 8 34¢ 8
Cost of sale—intellectual property
licenses 16t 3 197 4 31t 7
Product developmel 64€ 14 63t 14 627 15
Sales and marketir 54t 11 51€ 12 544 13
General and administratiy 45¢€ 10 37t 8 39t 9
Impairment of intangible asse — — 32€ 7 40¢ 10
Restructuring 25 — — — 23 1
Total costs and expens 3,42 72 3,97¢ 89 4,30t 101
Operating income (lost 1,32¢ 28 46¢ 11 (26) (€8]
Investment and other income, | 3 — 23 1 18 1
Income (loss) before income tax
expense 1,331 28 492 12 (8 —
Income tax expense (benel 24¢€ 5 74 2 (123) (©)]
Net income $ 1,08t 23%%$ 41€ 10%$ 112 3%

Operating Segment Results

Our operating segments are consistenteuthinternal organizational structure, the mannexhich our operations are reviewed and
managed by our Chief Executive Officer, who is Ghief
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Operating Decision Maker ("CODM"), the manner inigthoperating performance is assessed and rescareedlocated, and the availability
of separate financial information. We do not aggtegperating segments.

The CODM reviews segment performance exatusf the impact of the change in deferred neenesxes and related cost of sales with
respect to certain of our online-enabled gameskdbtased compensation expense, restructuring egpansrtization of intangible assets and
impairment of intangible assets, and goodwill. T@DM does not review any information regarding taisets on an operating segment b
and accordingly, no disclosure is made with resffemeto. Information on the operating segmentsrandnciliations of total segment net
revenues and total segment income (loss) from tipesato consolidated net revenues and income)(lzefere income tax expense from
external customers for the years ended Decemb&031L,, 2010, and 2009 are presented in the talbevi{amounts in millions).

For the Years Ended December 31,

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
2011 2010 2009 2011v 2010 2010 v 2009
Segment net revenue
Activision $ 2,826 $ 2,76¢ $ 3,15¢ $ 59 $ (387)
Blizzard 1,24: 1,65¢€ 1,19¢ (419) 46(
Distribution 41€ 37¢ 427 40 (45)
Operating segment net revenue t 4,48¢ 4,80:% 4,77¢ (319 28
Reconciliation to consolidated net
revenues
Net effect from deferral of net
revenue: 26€ (356€) (497) 622 141
Other — — 1 — (1)
Consolidated net revenu $ 4,758 $ 4,447 $ 4,27¢ $ 30¢ $ 16€
Segment income from operatiol
Activision $ 851 $ 511 $ 66 $ 34C $ (152)
Blizzard 49¢ 85C 55E (359 29t
Distribution 11 10 16 1 (6)
Operating segment income frc
operations tote 1,35¢ 1,371 1,23¢ (13 137
Reconciliation to consolidated operatii
income (loss) and consolidated incc
(loss) before income tax expen
Net effect from deferral of net
revenues and related cost of si 18¢ (319 (383) 50z 64
Stoclk-based compensation expel (103) (131) (159 28 23
Restructuring (26) 3 (23 (23 20
Amortization of intangible asse (72 (123 (259) 51 13€
Impairment of goodwill/intangible
assets (12 (326 (409) 314 83
Integration and transaction co — — (29 — 24
Other — — (8) — 8
Consolidated operating income (lo 1,32¢ 46¢ (26) 85¢ 49t
Investment and other income, | 3 23 18 (20 5
Consolidated income (loss) before
income tax expens $ 1331 $§ 492 $ 3 $ 83¢ $ 50C
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For better understanding of the differeriogsresentation between our segment results andahsolidated results, the following explains
the nature of each reconciling item.

Net Effect from Deferral of Net Revenues and Rel@@st of Sale

We have determined that some of our gaomgise functionality represents an essential conepoof gameplay and as a result a more-
than-inconsequential separate deliverable. As suetgre required to recognize the revenues of thase titles over the estimated service
periods, which may range from a minimum of five ni@nto a maximum of less than a year. The reladstiaf sales is deferred and recognized
as the related revenues are recognized. In the taibthe previous page, we present the amounttoémenues and related cost of sales
separately for each period as a result of the adoautreatment.

Stock-Based Compensation Expense

We expense our stock-based awards usingrémg date fair value over the vesting periodthefstock awards. In the case of liability
awards, the liability is subject to revaluation &®n the stock price at the end of the relevanibgelncluded within stoclbased compensati
are the net effects of capitalization, deferralj amortization.

Restructuring

On February 3, 2011, the Company's Boaiiafctors authorized a restructuring plan (thel'P®estructuring") involving a focus on the
development and publication of a reduced slatéleston a going-forward basis, including the distbouation of the development of music-
based games, the closure of the related businésanahthe cancellation of other titles then indarotion, along with a related reduction in
studio headcount and corporate overhead. The czlated to the 2011 Restructuring activities inelddeverance costs, facility exit costs, and
exit costs from the cancellation of projects. TB&2 Restructuring charges for the year ended Deeefith 2011 were $25 million, which is
reflected in a separate caption "Restructuring rgpg" on our consolidated statement of operatibms.2011 Restructuring was completed as
of December 31, 2011 and we do not expect to isigmificant additional restructuring expenses ietathereto.

In 2008, we implemented an organizatioeatmcturing plan as a result of the Business Coatigin. This organizational restructuring
was to integrate different operations and to stiemthe combined Activision Blizzard organizatidrhe costs related to the restructuring
activities included severance costs, facility exists, write offs of assets and liabilities and egsts from the cancellation of projects. For the
year ended December 31, 2011, expense related rdglanizational restructuring was $1 million arg been reflected in the "General
administrative expense" in the consolidated statgéroeoperations. The organizational restructudotvities as a result of the Business
Combination were completed as of December 31, 20itlwe do not expect to incur additional restruotexpenses relating thereto.

Amortization of Intangible Asse

All of our intangible assets are the resfithe Business Combination and other acquisitigvis amortize the intangible assets over their
estimated useful lives based on the pattern oficopsion of the underlying economic benefits. Theoant presented in the table represent:
effect of the amortization of intangible assetsvali as other purchase price accounting adjustmaerisre applicable, in our consolidated
statements of operations.

Impairment of Goodwill/Intangible Asse

We recorded a non-cash charge of $12 mill@ated to the impairment of goodwill of our Pigttion reporting unit for the year ended
December 31, 2011, reflecting a continuing shifthie
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distribution of interactive entertainment softwé&m@n retail distribution channels to digital distution channels. Furthermore, we recorded a
non-cash impairment charge on finite-lived intafgissets of $326 million and $409 million for §remrs ended December 31, 2010 and 2009,
respectively, reflecting a continuing weaker enwir@nt for the casual game and music genres.

Integration and Transaction Cos

These costs were incurred to effect theriBss Combination and included activities such agging systems and streamlining the busi
processes of the combined company of ActivisiozZid. We do not expect any further costs relatintis item going forward as we have
completed our integration and transaction actisitie

Segment Net Revenues
Activision
Activision's net revenues increased forl284 compared to 2010, primarily due to:

. Strong performance froiCall of Duty: Modern Warfare 2which was released in the fourth quarter of 2(

. Strong digital performance from the increased salewnloadable content packs associated Call of Duty: Black Opthat
were released in 2011 as compared to the downltadahtent packs associated w@hll of Duty: Modern Warfare ® that
were released in 2010;

. The release cSkylanders Spyro's Adventtin the fourth quarter of 201

. The release dfego Star Wars Il] which we published on behalf of Lucas Arts in &ue and certain countries in Asia Pacific;
and

. Benefits from foreign exchange as compared to tloe pear.

The increases were partially offset by lovevenues as a result of:

. The more focused release schedule in 2011 tha@lif.2n 2011, Activision released nine key titlsscampared to the release
twelve key titles in 2010; and

. Lower catalogue sales of games in the music angatgames genr
For 2010, net revenues from the Activissegment decreased as compared to 2009 primarilyodue

. The release of fewer key titles in 2010 than in@2808d weaker sales of games in the music and cgenegs. In 2010,
Activision released twelve key titles comparedhe telease of sixteen key titles in 2009; and

. Blur andSingularity, two new intellectual properties that were reléasethe second quarter of 2010, had only limiteathet

success. While establishing successful new intelg@roperties has always been difficult, the eroit environment made it
particularly challenging in 2010.

The decreases were partially offset by the:

. Strong performance froi@all of Duty: Black Opswhich was released in the fourth quarter of 2010;
. Continued strong performance @&ll of Duty: Modern Warfare ayvhich was released in November 2009; and
. The launch oCall of Duty: Modern Warfare downloadable content packs in 20
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Blizzard
Blizzard's net revenues decreased for 281dompared to 2010, primarily due to:

. No new titles released in 2011 as compared to 2dhWorld of Warcraft: Cataclysrwas released in the fourth quarter of
2010 andStarCraft II: Wings of Libertyas released in the third quarter of 2010; and

. A decline inWorld of Warcraft'subscriber base during 2011. With the launcWofld of Warcraft: Cataclysmin the fourth
quarter of 2010, the subscriber base reached geakvat more than 12 million subscribers at Decer@be2010. Since that
time, the subscriber base has trended downwardwasdpproximately 10.2 million subscribers at Deloer 31, 2011.

These decreases were partially offset Imgfits from foreign exchange as compared to préary
Blizzard's net revenues increased for 285 6ompared to 2009 primarily as a result of:

. The release olVorld of Warcraft: Cataclysrim the fourth quarter of 2010;
. The release dbtarCraft 1l: Wings of Libertyn the third quarter of 2010;

. Growth in sales of vali-added services relatedWorld of Warcraft;

. The China region business being back "on line'ttierfull year of 2010; an

. The successful launch @forld of Warcraft: Wrath of the Lich King China in August 2010.
Distribution

Distribution's net revenues increased ih128s compared to 2010, primarily due to additi@ustomer sales opportunities in the U.K. and
benefits from foreign exchange as compared to year.

Distribution's net revenues decreased 02 compared to 2009, primarily due to the wes&kinethe interactive software industry in the
U.K., resulting in lower sales from U.K. indepentestailers and warehousing services.

Segment Income from Operations
Activision

Activision's operating income increase@@11 as compared to 2010, primarily due to:

. A more focused release of products that deliverglder operating margins;
. Increased digital sales of Call of Duty's digitahtent, resulting in high operating margins; and
. Reduction of operating expenses resulting fronréiseructuring activities implemented in 20.

These positive impacts on operating inceraee partially offset by:

. An increase in sales and marketing expenses tosuihe launch oSkylanders Spyro's Adventure, Call of Duty: Modern
Warfare 3andCall of Duty Elite; and

. Additional litigation activities and settlementlafvsuits.

Activision's operating income decreaseddt0 as compared to 2009, primarily due to:

. The release of fewer key titles in 2010 than in@2808d weaker sales of games in the music and cgsnegds;
. Limited market success of two new intellectual mies,Blur andSingularity; and
. Higher inventory obsolescence of peripherals aritewiffs as a result of cancellations of certailesi (e.g., a Guitar Hero title

that had been planned for release in 2011Tand Crime: Hong Kong.
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These negative impacts on operating incaere partially offset by:

Stronger performance from o@all of Dutyfranchise in both retail and digital channels;

. A positive shift in the sales mix to higl-margin digital products

Lower sales and marketing expenses as a resudiafreleases; ar

Savings realized from headcount reductions witliriain administrative functions in the first quamé 2010.
Blizzard
Blizzard's operating income decreased @drl2as compared to 2010 primarily due to lower mees as described above.
These negative impacts on operating incoere partially offset by:

. A decrease in sales and marketing expenses, asrhigles and marketing expenses were incurredlid 0support the relea
of World of Warcraft: Cataclysrmn the fourth quarter an8tarCraft Il: Wings of Libertyn the third quarter; and

. Lower customer support costs incurred.

Blizzard's operating income increased fait®as compared to 2009 primarily due to:

. The release cWorld of Warcraft: Cataclysrin the fourth quarter of 2010 aiStarCraft 1l: Wings of Libertin the third quarte
of 2010;

. An increase in sales of value-added services cbtaté/orld of Warcraft, and

. The China region business being back "on line'fditiryear of 2010 and the successful launciWorld of Warcraft: Wrath of tt

Lich Kingin China in August 2010.
Non-GAAP Financial Measures

The analysis of revenues by distributioaratel is presented both on a GAAP (including thpaot from change in deferred revenues) and
non-GAAP (excluding the impact from change in defdirevenues) basis. We use this non-GAAP meastemally when evaluating our
operating performance, when planning, forecastimyanalyzing future periods, and when assessingatfermance of our management team.
We believe this is appropriate because this non-BAweasure enables an analysis of performance base timing of actual transactions
with our customers, which is consistent with theywse Company is measured by investment analysténalustry data sources, and facilitates
comparison of operating performance between periadsddition, excluding the impact from changel@ierred net revenue provides a much
more timely indication of trends in our sales atitko operating results. While we believe that tia-GAAP measure is useful in evaluating
our business, this information should be consideedupplemental in nature and is not meant tmhsidered in isolation from, as a substitute
for, or as more important than, the related finahiciformation prepared in accordance with GAAPadidition, this non-GAAP financial
measure may not be the same as any nhon-GAAP mgamsented by another company. This non-GAAP firrdmeeasure has limitations in
that it does not reflect all of the items assodatéth our GAAP revenues. We compensate for théditions resulting from the exclusion of 1
change in deferred revenues by considering thedhgfahat item separately and by considering oAAB, as well as non-GAAP, revenues.
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Results of Operations—Years Ended December 31, 2022010, and 2009
Non-GAAP Financial Measures

We currently define digital online channedtated sales as revenues from subscriptions @milbrarships, licensing royalties, value-added
services, downloadable content, digitally distrézliproducts, and wireless devices.

The following table provides reconciliatibatween GAAP and non-GAAP net revenues by diginbuwchannel for the years ended
December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009 (amounts inamg)i

For the Years Ended December 3]
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease) % Change % Change
2011 2010 2009 2011 v 2010 2010 v 2009 2011 v 2010 2010 v 2009

GAAP net
revenues by
distribution
channel
Retail
channels $ 2,697 $ 2,62¢ $ 2,622 $ 68 $ 7 3% —%
Digital
online
channels 1,64(C 1,44(C 1,23¢ 20C 20¢€ 14 17

Total
Activision
and
Blizzard 4,337 4,06¢ 3,85¢ 26€ 212 7 6

Distribution 41¢ 37¢ 428 40 (45) 11 (12)

Total
consolida
GAAP
net
revenue: 4,75¢ 4,447 4,27¢ 30€ 16¢€ 7 4

Change ir

deferred ne

revenues

Retail
channels (18%) 251 457 (43€) (20€) (174 (45)

Digital
online
channels (82) 10E 39 (18¢€) 66 () 16¢

Total
changes
in
deferred
net
revenue: (26€) 35¢€ 49¢€ (622) (140 (17%) (28)

Non-GAAP

net revenue

by

distribution

channel

Retail
channels 2,512 2,88( 3,07¢ (368 (199 (13) (6)

Digital
online
channels 1,55¢ 1,54t 1,27: 14 272 1 21

Total
Activision
and
Blizzard 4,071 4,42¢ 4,357 (354) 73 (8) 2

Distribution 41¢ 37¢ 428 40 (45) 11 (12)

Total non-
GAAP



net revenue
(1) $ 4,48¢ $ 480: $ 4,77¢ ¢ (3149 ¢ 28 (7% 1%

1) Total nor-GAAP net revenues presented also represents @lofgrating segment net revent

The increase in GAAP net revenues fromtdiginline channels for 2011 as compared to 2019 pranarily due to the continuing success
of the Call of Duty franchise, including the stremgerformance and greater number of downloadaisiteat packs associated wittall of
Duty: Black Opsreleased in 2011 vers@all of Duty: Modern Warfare th the prior year, and a higher number of full gasegvnloads from
the Call of Duty catalogue titles. In addition, eewes generated from the World of Warcraft frarghigrticularly from the digital release of
World of Warcraft: Cataclysrim December 2010, as well as the digital releasgtafCraft II: Wings of Libertyn July 2010, resulted in more
deferred revenues recognized in 2011 as compar2@ld. The increase in GAAP net revenues fromlret@nnels for 2011 as compared to
2010 was the result of the continued strong perémea of the Call of Duty franchise as describedrabrecognition of deferred revenues from
the 2010 launches &tarCraft II: Wings of LibertandWorld of Warcraft: Cataclysmand revenues generated from the launcBkgfanders
Spyro's Adventurepartially offset by the release of fewer keyettl
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The decrease in non-GAAP net revenues fetail channels for 2011 as compared to 2010 wasetbult of our more focused slate, with
the release of fewer key titles, and lower revergeerated from the casual "value" titles. The ele®e was partially offset by the continued
strong performance of the Call of Duty franchisd aevenues generated frddhylanders Spyro's Adventuréhe increase in non-GAAP net
revenues from digital online channels for 2011@spared to 2010 was attributable to the strongdopeance and greater number of
downloadable content packs associated @#h of Duty: Black Opseleased in 2011 vers@all of Duty: Modern Warfare th the prior year,
and a higher number of full game downloads fromGhaé of Duty catalogue titles. This increase wagiplly offset by the unfavorable impact
of the decrease World of Warcrafts subscriber base, the decrease of full game dadslofWorld of Warcraft: Cataclysnwhich was
released in December 2010, étdrCraft Il: Wings of Libertywhich was released in July 2010.

The increase in both GAAP and non-GAAPregenues from digital online channels for 2010@sgared to 2009 was mainly due to the
increase in revenues from tiéorld of Warcrafts value-added services, revenues from the salésvafloadable content packs associated with
Call of Duty: Modern Warfare th 2010, the full game downloads $farCraft 1I: Wings of Libertyn July 2010, and the releaseWbrld of
Warcraft: Cataclysmin December 2010. The decrease in non-GAAP netieegefrom retail channels for 2010 as compare®@® 2vas
primarily due to the fewer key titles releases tredweaker sales of games in the music and casnaég

Consolidated Results

Net Revenues by Geographic Reg

The following table details our consolidhteet revenues by geographic region for the yeaded December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009
(amounts in millions):

For the Years ended December 31,

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease) % Change % Change
2011 2010 2009 2011v2010 2010v2009  2011v2010 2010 v 2009
Geographic
region net
revenues
North
America $ 2,40t $ 2,40¢ $ 2,217 $ 4 $ 192 —% 9%
Europe 1,99( 1,74: 1,79¢ 247 (55) 14 3
Asia Pacific 36C 29t 268 65 32 22 12
Total
geographic
area net
revenue: 4,75k 4,447 4,27¢ 30¢€ 16¢ 7 4
Other — — 1 — (0] — (200)
Consolidatec
net
revenue: $ 4755 $ 4,447 $ 4,27¢ $ 30€ $ 16¢€ % 4%

The (increase)/decrease in deferred rewebygeographic region for the years ended Decethe2011, 2010, and 2009 was as follows
(amounts in millions):

For the Years Ended December 31,

(Increase)/ (Increase)/
Decrease Decrease
2011 2010 2009 2011v 2010 2010 v 2009
Deferred revenues by geographic regi
North America $ 154 $ (16€) $ (241) $ 32C $ 75
Europe 104 (159 (229) 263 65
Asia Pacific 8 (32) (32 39 1
Total change in deferred revenues by
geographic regio 26€ (35€) (497) 622 141
Other — — 1 — D

Total impact on consolidated net reven $ 26€ $ (35€) $ (49€) $ 62z $ 14C
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Consolidated net revenues from Europe agid Racific increased in 2011 as compared to 20arily due to the continued success of
Call of Duty catalogue titles, stronger performanteownloadable content packs associated @ah of Duty: Black Opsnd the release of
World of Warcraft: CataclysrandStarCraft 1l: Wings of Libertyn 2010, all of which resulted in increased reventeeognized in 2011 as
compared to 2010. Further, the launciSkflanders Spyro's Adventwed the increase in Distribution segment revenuéirope contributed
to the increase in consolidated net revenues. Tiheseases were partially offset by the additiatefierral of revenues as a result of greater
sales from the launch @all of Duty: Modern Warfare 81 November 2011.

Consolidated net revenues from North Angedecreased slightly in 2011 as compared to 204@agly due to the decrease in net
revenues from music and casual titles and the greates from the launch @&ll of Duty: Modern Warfare $hich resulted in additional
deferral of revenues. These decreases were almiigte offset by the continued success of CalDoty catalogue titles, stronger performance
of downloadable content packs associated @#h of Duty: Black Ops the releases &f/orld of Warcraft: CataclysrandStarCraft Il: Wings
of Libertyin 2010, and the launch &kylanders Spyro's Adventyrall of which resulted in increased revenues raczegl in 2011 as compared
to 2010.

The releases @fall of Duty: Black Ops, World of Warcraft: CatastpandStarCraft 1l: Wings of Libertyn 2010 were the primary reason
why more deferred revenues were recognized dunagéear ended December 31, 2011 as compared sathe period on 2010 across all
regions. This increase in the recognition of defémevenues was partially offset by greater reveiederred in 2011 as a result of the better
performance o€all of Duty: Modern Warfare 3a3s compared t@all of Duty: Black Ops

Consolidated net revenues increased infN@mterica and Asia Pacific in 2010 as comparedhéosame period in 2009, primarily due to
the success of theall of Dutyfranchise, particularly the release@dll of Duty: Black Opén the fourth quarter of 2010 and the continued
strong performance @all of Duty: Modern Warfare 8uring the year, the releaseWbrld of Warcraft: CataclysrandStarCraft 1l: Wings of
Libertyin the fourth and third quarters of 2010, respetyivand higher revenues from saled\drld of Warcraft'sralue-added services. The
increase in consolidated net revenues in Asia Ragds also attributable to the China region bussrigeing back "on line" for the full year of
2010 and its continued growth with the successfuhth ofWorld of Warcraft: Wrath of the Lich King China in August 2010. The increas
consolidated net revenues for North America watiglgr offset by the impact of fewer titles reledsa 2010 and the weaker sales of games in
the music and casual genres. Consolidated netwegen Europe decreased in 2010 as compared tq gAotarily as a result of unfavorable
foreign exchange effects and the decrease in shgmmes in the music and casual genres. Theseatsxs were partially offset by the strong
performance of th€all of Dutyfranchise in Europe, the releaseVébrld of Warcraft: CataclysrandStarCraft Il and continued growth in
World of Warcraft'sralue-added services.

The greater successCHll of Duty: Black Opsales at its initial launch comparedQall of Duty: Modern Warfare Rales at its initial
launch is the primary reason that less revenuedesred during 2010 as compared to 2009. Thisedserin deferred revenue was partially
offset by the additional deferral of revenue assult of the release d¥orld of Warcraft: Cataclysrand value-added services in the fourth
quarter of 2010.

Foreign Exchange Impa

Changes in foreign exchange rates had iiy@enpact of approximately $100 million and agaéive impact of $54 million on Activision
Blizzard's net revenues in 2011 and 2010, respagtiThe change is primarily due to the year-ovearymovements of the British pound, euro
and Australian dollar average rates relative toltfe. dollar.
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Net Revenues by Platfol

The following table details our net revesiby platform and as a percentage of total conastaiinet revenues for the years ended
December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009 (amounts inamd):

Year % of Year % of Year % of Increase/ Increase/
Ended total Ended total Ended total (decrease (decrease
December 31 consolidatec December 31 consolidatec December 31 consolidatec
2011v  2010v

2011 net revs. 2010 net revs. 2009 net revs. 2010 2009
Platform nel
revenues
Online
subscription'$ 1,357 29%$  1,23( 28%%  1,24¢ 29%$ 127% (19)
PC and othe 374 8 32t 7 164 4 49 161
Console
Sony
PlayStatio 93t 20 854 19 584 14 81 27C
Sony
PlayStatio 13 — 35 1 174 4 (22) (139
Microsoft
Xbox 360 1,14( 24 1,03: 23 857 19 107 17¢€
Nintendo
Wi 351 7 40¢ 9 584 14 (57 (176
Total console 2,43¢ 51 2,33( 52 2,19¢ 51 10¢ 131
Handhelc 167 3 184 4 244 6 a7 (60)
Total platform
net revenue 4,33 91 4,06¢ 91 3,85¢ 90 26¢& 214
Distribution 41€ 9 37¢ 9 427 10 40 (45)
Other — — — — 1 — — (2)
Total
consolidated
netrevenue $  4,75¢ 10C%$ 4,447 10C%$  4,27¢ 10(%$ 30¢€$ 16¢
* Revenue from online subscriptions consists of reednom allWorld of Warcrafiproducts, including subscriptior

boxed products, expansion packs, licensing royaléad valu-added service:
Deferred revenues by platform for the yearded December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009 waslag/fofamounts in millions):

Years Ended December 31,

(Increase) (Increase)
Decrease Decrease
2011 2010 2009 2011v 2010 2010 v 2009
Deferred revenues by platfor
Online subscription $ 202 $ (19) $ 93 $ 39 % (284)
PC and othe 75 (82) (49 15€ (32
Console
Sony PlayStation (36) (77) (259) 41 182
Microsoft Xbox 36C (43 (15 (2849) (28) 26¢
Nintendo Wii 66 16 2 50 14
Total console (13 (76) (547 63 465
Nintendo Dual Scree 2 8 — 10 8
Other — — 1 — D

Total impact on consolidated net reven $ 26€ $ (35€) $ (49€) $ 62z $ 14C

Net revenues from online subscriptionséased in 2011 as compared to 2010, primarily drinethe recognition of deferred revenues
from the release oiVorld of Warcraft: Cataclysnim December 2010 and from the saleS\adrld of Warcraft'sralue-added services, partially
offset by the unfavorable impact 8forld of Warcraft's declining subscriber base. Net revenues fromritbther increased in 2011 as
compared to 2010, primarily due to the launciskylanders Spyro's Adventure
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particularly on the sale of toys that are used wWithvideo game, and continued success of Calluby Banchise titles. The increase was
partially offset by lower revenues from music amdgal tittes and no major release for PC and gilagform in 2011 as compared to 2010,
whenStarCraft II: Wings of Libertyvas released. Net revenues from Sony PlayStatammd3Vicrosoft Xbox 360 increased in 2011 as
compared to 2010, primarily due to the launcisk§landers Spyro's Adventutiee continued success of the Call of Duty franchasel
downloadable content packs associated ®@#h of Duty: Black Ops&s compared to the downloadable content packsiagstevithCall of

Duty: Modern Warfare .. The increase was partially offset by the stromgstimer demand at launch in November 201 it of Duty:

Modern Warfare , which resulted in additional deferral of revenuést revenues from the Nintendo Wii and handhgidesns decreased due
to the release of fewer key titles than in 201@ laver catalogue sales of games in the music asdat games genres in 2011 as compared to
2010.

Net revenues from online subscriptions dased slightly in 2010 as compared to 2009, prignas a result of lower deferred and boxed
revenue recognized in 2010 due to the timing obesjon pack releases by Blizzard. While Werld of Warcraft: Wrath of the Lich King
expansion pack launched in the fourth quarter @82@sulted in significant deferred revenues theriewecognized in 2009, thgorld of
Warcraft: Cataclysmexpansion pack launched in the fourth quarter dD2@sulted in a lower percentage of deferred negeacognized in
2010, with the majority of deferred revenues tadmognized in 2011. This decrease in revenue widisiipaoffset by higher revenues from
sales oWorld of Warcrafts value-added services. Net revenues from PC tradt platform increased in 2010 as compared to 200&arily
as a result of the release®tarCraft Il: Wings of LibertyNet revenues from Sony PlayStation 3 and MicroXbfix 360 increased in 2010 as
compared to 2009, primarily as a result of the sas®f the Call of Duty franchise, in particulae girength o€all of Duty: Modern Warfare 2
and its associated map packs in downloadable codigital formats, and the strong consumer deman@éll of Duty: Black OpsSony
PlayStation 2 platform revenues continued to dedfine to fewer titles published on this platforwmegi the aging lifecycle of the Sony
PlayStation 2 platform as consumers are now alfodigttransitioned to the current-generation platfis. Net revenues from Nintendo Wii
decreased in 2010 as compared to 2009, primaréytalthe weakness in the sales in casual and rgasies. Net revenues from handheld
systems decreased for the same period primargyrasult of alternative handheld devices such gdefpiPhone, Apple's iPad and other
mobile devices, as well as general weakness indheal titles.

Costs and Expenses
Cost of Sales

The following table details the componesftsost of sales in dollars and as a percentagetaif consolidated net revenues for the years
ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009 (amountglions):

Year Year Year Increase Increase
Ended % of Ended % of Ended % of (Decrease (Decrease
December 31 consolidatec December 31 consolidatec December 31 consolidatec
2011 v 2010 v

2011 net revs. 2010 net revs. 2009 net revs. 2010 2009
Product
costs $ 1,13¢ 24%$ 1,35(C 31%$ 1,43: 33%%$ (216 (82
Online
subscripti 23€ 5 241 5 212 5 3 29
Software
royalties
and
amortizati 21¢ 5 33¢ 8 34¢ 8 (120 (20
Intellectual
property
licenses 165 3 197 4 31t 7 (32 (119
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Total cost of sales decreased in 2011 agaced to 2010, primarily due to:

. The continued change in mix for products with felwardware peripherals, and accordingly lower prodosts;

. An increasing number of products distributed thfodggital online channels

. A decrease in inventory obsolescence chargesegxidr year included higher inventory obsolesceasfw@rges relating t
peripherals;

. A decrease in amortization of capitalized softwdegelopment and intellectual property license castaie had fewer title

released during 2011; and

. A decrease in amortization of intangible assets.
These decreases in cost of sales weralhadifset by:

. More deferred costs recognized, consistent withendeferred revenues recognized, during 2011 as a@udpo 2010; an

. Higher product costs from our higher Distributi@gsent revenue

Total cost of sales decreased in 2010 agaced to 2009, primarily due to:

. The change in business mix for products with felsedware peripherals, and accordingly lower prodosts;
. A greater share of revenues generated by the Bizsgment, which has a lower overall cost of saled
. Lower intellectual property license expenses dusdaker sales of games in the music and casualsygerges, selling more

our owned titles rather than affiliated titles ahd decrease in amortization of intangible assets.

These decreases in cost of sales weralhadifset by:

. The stronger performance of the Call of Duty freseland the release StarCraft Il: Wings of LibertandWorld of Warcraft:
Cataclysmand the resulting increase in product costs;

. More deferred costs recognized consistent with rdeferred revenues recognized, during 2010 as cadpa 2009;

. Higher inventory obsolescence charges relatingtgphperals; an

. Costs related to our continued focus on customeicgefor ourWorld of Warcrafisubscribers

Product Development (amounts in millio

Year Year Year Increase Increase
Ended % of Ended % of Ended % of (Decrease (Decrease
December 31 consolidatec December 31 consolidatec December 31 consolidatec
2011 v 2010 v
2011 net revs. 2010 net revs. 2009 net revs. 2010 2009

Product
developm $ 64€ 14%% 63t 14%% 627 15%% 11% 8

For 2011, product development costs in@@atightly as compared to 2010, principally duéteer capitalization of our overall product
development costs related to future titles and drigitcrued studio-related bonuses. This increagituct development expense was partially
offset by the benefits realized from our 2011 Regtrring, which involved a focus on reducing thenter of titles in development and
publication, including the discontinuation of theveélopment of music-based games. Additionally, pobdievelopment costs in 2011 included
amounts written off due to the cancellation of tufa game under development; however, such writera$ slightly less than 2010.
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For 2010, product development costs ine@as compared to 2009, mainly due to the write@béfapitalized software development costs
of cancelled titles, primarily a Guitar Hero titleat had been planned for 2011 ande Crime: Hong Kong This increase in product
development expense was partially offset by lowecksbased compensation expense and the beneiize from headcount reductions at
certain Activision studios, primarily in the firguarter of 2010, to align the Company's resourddsitg product slate.

Sales and Marketing (amounts in millions)

Year Year Year Increase  Increase
Ended % of Ended % of Ended % of (Decrease (Decrease
December 31 consolidatec December 31 consolidatec December 31 consolidatec
2011 v 2010 v
2011 net revs. 2010 net revs. 2009 net revs. 2010 2009

Sales ant
marketi $ 54t 11%$ 51€ 12%$ 544 13%$ 29% (29

Sales and marketing expenses increase@lih  compared to 2010, primarily due to increapemding on sales and marketing activi
to support the launch &kylanders Spyro's Adventyr€all of Duty: Modern Warfare andCall of Duty Elitein the fourth quarter of 2011.

Sales and marketing expenses decreaséd thd compared to 2009, primarily as a resultrefaction in the number of major titles
released in 2010 versus 2009. This decrease ia aatbmarketing expenses was partially offset giadri expenditures in connection with
continued marketing support for the Call of Dutylaiorld of Warcraft franchises, and the launctstdrCraft Il: Wings of Liberty

General and Administrative (amounts in millions)

Year Year Year Increase Increase
Ended % of Ended % of Ended % of (Decrease (Decrease
December 31 consolidatec December 31 consolidatec December 31 consolidatec
2011 v 2010 v
2011 net revs. 2010 net revs. 2009 net revs. 2010 2009

General ant
administrat $ 45€ 10%$ 37t 8%$ 39t 9%$ 81% (20

General and administrative expenses ineckas2011 as compared to 2010, primarily due gbvéii legal expenses incurred from
additional litigation activities and settlementlafvsuits, the impairment of our Distribution segit®goodwill and higher depreciation expense
and facilities costs.

General and administrative expenses in 2i@tBeased as compared to 2009, primarily duevtrdidle foreign exchange effects and lo
stock-based compensation expense. These factoespasially offset by higher accrued bonuses agdllexpenses.

Impairment of Intangible Assets (amounts in mibic

Year Year Year Increase  Increase
Ended % of Ended % of Ended % of (Decrease (Decrease
December 31 consolidatec December 31 consolidatec December 31 consolidatec
2011 v 2010 v

2011 net revs. 2010 net revs. 2009 net revs. 2010 2009
Impairmen
of
intangibl
asset: $ — —%$ 32€ 7%$ 40¢ 10%$ (326)$ (83

In the fourth quarter of 2010, as a restithe franchise and industry results of the hglidaason, we significantly revised our outlook for
retail sales of software. With the impact of thatbimued economic downturn on our industry in 20&@ the change in the buying habits of
casual consumers, we reassessed our overall etipastaVe considered these economic changes daung011 planning process that was
conducted during the months of November and Decemiech resulted in a strategy change to, amohgrahings, focus on fewer title
releases in the casual and
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music genres. As a result, we updated our futusgepted revenue streams for our franchises indélseal and music genres. We performed
recoverability and, where applicable, impairmestsen the related intangible assets in accordaitbeASC Subtopic 360-10. Based on the
analysis performed, we recorded impairment chaog&§7 million, $9 million and $250 million to licse agreements, game engines and
internally developed franchises intangible asgetgectively, for 2010 within our Activision segnieBee Note 11 of the Notes to Consolid:
Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this AalnReport on Form 10-K for additional informaticegarding the determination of the
impairment charges recorded for the year endedeee31, 2010.

In the fourth quarter of 2009, we recordegairment charges of $24 million, $12 million a873 million to license agreements, game
engines and internally developed franchises intdagssets, respectively, for 2009 within our Aisitin segment.

Restructuring (amounts in million

Year Year Year Increase Increase
Ended % of Ended % of Ended % of (Decrease (Decrease
December 31 consolidatec December 31 consolidatec December 31 consolidatec
2011v 2010 v
2011 net revs. 2010 net revs. 2009 net revs. 2010 2009

Restructurin $ 25 —%$ — —%$ 23 1%$ 258 (29

On February 3, 2011, the Company's Boaidiafctors authorized the 2011 Restructuring, whitolved a focus on the development .
publication of a reduced slate of titles on a gefimgvard basis, including the discontinuation of thevelopment of music-based games, the
closure of the related business unit and the chaticel of other titles then in production, alonghwva related reduction in studio headcount and
corporate overhead. The costs related to the 2@$1rituring activities included severance cosislify exit costs, and exit costs from the
cancellation of projects. The 2011 Restructuring wampleted as of December 31, 2011 and we doxpeteto incur significant additional
restructuring expenses relating thereto. See Nofelre Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemindsided in Item 8 of this Annual Report
on Form 10K for more detail and a roll forward of the resturing liability that includes the beginning anddeng liability, costs incurred, ca
payments and non-cash write downs.

In 2008, we implemented an organizatioratnucturing plan as a result of the Business Cpattzin. This organizational restructuring
was to integrate different operations and to stienthe combined Activision Blizzard organizatidrhe restructuring activities included
severance costs, facility exit costs, write offaséets and liabilities and exit costs from theceation of projects. At December 31, 2010, we
had completed our organizational restructuringvéitds as a result of the Business Combinationtigesiring expenses during year ended
December 31, 2011 and 2010 associated to thisye#aa immaterial and were recorded within the gdreard administrative expense in our
consolidated statements of operations.

Investment and Other Income, Net (amounts in mal

Year Year Year Increase  Increase
Ended % of Ended % of Ended % of (Decrease (Decrease
December 31 consolidatec December 31 consolidatec December 31 consolidatec
2011 v 2010 v

2011 net revs. 2010 net revs. 2009 net revs. 2010 2009
Investmer
and
other
income,
net $ 3 —%$ 23 1%$ 18 1%$  (200$ 5

Investment and other income, net decreas2d11 as compared to 2010. During 2011, we rembtdgher yields generated from our cash
and investment balances which was partially offiye higher realized loss from foreign exchangereats as compared to 2010. Further, the
majority of the investment and other income, ne2040 related to the reduction in fair value ofreficial liability
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relating to a contingent earn-out liability fronpeevious acquisition and there was no such itenimdu011.

Investment and other income, net increas@®10 as compared to 2009, primarily as a refudtreduction in fair value of a financial
liability relating to a contingent earn-out liabylifrom a previous acquisition. This increase wasiplly offset by lower investment income due
to lower interest rates.

Income Tax Expense (Benefit) (amounts in milli

Year Year Year Increase Increase
Ended % of Ended % of Ended % of (Decrease) (Decrease)
December 31  Pretax December 31, Pretax December 31 Pretax 2011 v 2010 v

2011 income 2010 income 2009 income 2010 2009

Income

tax

expen

(benef $ 24€  18.5%$% 74 15.(%$ (12)) NM%$ 172 $ 195

For 2011, the company's income before iretem expense was $1.331 billion. Our income tapeage of $246 million resulted in an
effective tax rate of 18.5%. The difference betweeneffective tax rate and the U.S. statutoryrtae of 35% is due to earnings taxed at lower
rates in foreign jurisdictions, recognition of fealeand California research and development creifliesfederal domestic production deduction
and a favourable impact from discrete items recgghin connection with the filing of our 2010 taturns.

In 2010, the company's income before inctameexpense was $492 million. Our income tax egpaf $74 million resulted in an effect
tax rate of 15.0%. Our effective tax rate was lotxan the U.S. federal statutory tax rate primadile to earnings taxed at lower rates in
foreign jurisdictions, recognition of federal andlifrnia research and development credits andatieral domestic production deduction.

In 2011 and 2010, our U.S. income befooeine tax expense was $623 million and $228 millieapectively, and comprised 47% and
46%, respectively, of our consolidated income kefocome tax expense. In 2011 and 2010, the foliaigpme before income tax expense was
$708 million and $264 million, respectively, andwgarised 53% and 54%, respectively, of our constdidi@ancome before income tax expense.
In 2011 and 2010, the impact of earnings taxedwét rates in foreign jurisdictions versus our Uesleral statutory tax rate was 15% and -
respectively.

In 2009, the company recognized a lossredf@ome tax benefit of $8 million. Included irettesults was an impairment of intangible
assets totaling $409 million, which was one ofthienary reasons for the overall loss before incoaxebenefit for the year. Furthermore, the
impact of income tax benefits of $121 million renaed for the year resulted in net income of $11lan, and consequently an effective tax
rate was not meaningful. Overall, our 2009 incom$ benefited from earnings taxed at lower ratdsreign jurisdictions, recognition of
federal and California research and developmentitsiehe federal domestic production deduction amenefit from reductions in our
valuation allowances.

The IRS is currently examining the comparfigteral tax returns for the 2009 tax year. Thapany also has several state and non-U.S.
audits pending. Although the final resolution of tompany's global tax disputes is uncertain, baserlirrent information, in the opinion of
the company's management, the ultimate resolufitimese matters will not have a material advergscebn the company's consolidated
financial position, liquidity or results of operatis. However, an unfavorable resolution of the camyfs global tax disputes could have a
material adverse effect on the company's busina$sesults of operations in the period in whichithegters are ultimately resolved.

A more detailed analysis of the differenbesveen the U.S. federal statutory rate and theal@ated effective tax rate, as well as other
information about our income taxes, is providetlote 15 of the Notes to Consolidated Financialedtents included in Item 8 of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K.
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Foreign Exchange Impas

Changes in foreign exchange rates had iiy@snpact of $49 million and a negative impa€t$da0 million on Activision Blizzard's
consolidated operating income in 2011 and 201@ews/ely. The change is primarily due to the ggtbening of the British pound, euro and
Australian dollar average rates relative to the.ddlar.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Sources of Liquidity (amounts in millions)

For the Years Ended December 3]
Increase

(Decrease)
2011 2010 2011 v 2010
Cash and cash equivalel $ 3168 $ 281 $ 35z
Shor-term investment 36C 69¢€ (336)
$ 3528 $ 350¢ $ 17
Percentage of total assi 27% 26%
For the Years Ended December 31
Increase Increase
(Decrease) (Decrease)
2011 2010 2009 2011v 2010 2010 v 2009
Cash flows provided by operating
activities $ 952 $ 137¢ $ 1,18 $ 429 $ 192
Cash flows provided by (used i
investing activities 26€ (312) (44%) 57¢ 131
Cash flows used in financing activiti (80€) (1,059 (949) 24t (2049)
Effect of foreign exchange rate chani (57) 33 19 (90 14
Net increase (decrease) in cash and
equivalents $ 353 % 44 $ (190) $ 30¢ $ 234

Cash Flows Provided by Operating Activities

For 2011, the primary drivers of cash flgwevided by operating activities included the ectlon of customer receivables generated by
the sale of our products and digital and subsaoniptevenues, partially offset by payments to vesdor the manufacture, distribution and
marketing of our products, payments to thialty developers and intellectual property holdixs liabilities, and payments to our workforce
significant operating use of our cash relates tocontinued focus on customer service for our stbers, and investment in software
development and intellectual property licenses.

Cash flows provided by operating activitiesre lower for 2011 as compared to 2010. Our soafcash inflow varies with our release
schedule. For example, Blizzard's two major releagStarCraft IlandWorld of World: Cataclysmuring 2010 contributed to the higher cash
inflow for 2010 as compared to 2011 as there wasiagr current year releases from Blizzard. Thedioeash from operating activities was
also attributable to the increased use of cashiiroperations, such as for inventory, the paymétaaes, restructuring expenses, and operating
expenses for which we had previously accrued.

Cash Flows Provided by (Used in) Investing Actigti

The primary drivers of cash flows from istiag activities have typically included capitapexditures, acquisitions and the net effect of
purchases and sales/maturities of short-term imests. Cash flows provided by investing activitiese higher for 2011 as compared to 2010,
primarily due to increased proceeds from the mtwfiinvestments, decreased purchases of
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short-term investments and lower capital expend@&uProceeds from the maturity of investments \B&d® million, the majority of which
consisted of U.S. treasury and other governmema@gsecurities, while the purchase of short-termestments totaled $417 million and capital
expenditures, primarily related to property andipopent, were $72 million.

Cash Flows Used in Financing Activities

The primary drivers of cash flows usediimahcing activities have historically related tartsactions involving our common stock,
including the issuance of shares of common stoekrtployees, payment of dividends and the repurcbiaser common stock. We have not
utilized debt financing as a source of cash floBassh flows used in financing activities for the yeaded December 31, 2011 primarily
reflected payment of a cash dividend and dividemadwalents totaling $194 million to holders of aiammon stock and restricted stock units.
In addition, cash flows used in financing acti\stfer the year ended December 31, 2011 refleateperchase of 59 million shares of our
common stock for an aggregate of $670 million urtler2011 Stock Repurchase Program and the purcfids@ million shares of our
common stock for $22 million under the stock repiase program authorized by our Board of Director&ebruary 10, 2010, which expired
December 31, 2010.

The repurchases and dividend payments patélly offset by $54 million of proceeds frometissuance of shares of our common stock
to employees in connection with stock option exasi Cash flows used in financing activities wevedr for 2011 as compared to 2010,
primarily due to decreased share repurchase aesivit

Other Liquidity and Capital Resources

In addition to cash flows provided by ofigrg activities, our primary source of liquidity &3.5 billion of cash and cash equivalents and
short-term investments at December 31, 2011. Withcash and cash equivalents and expected cash flmwided by operating activities, we
believe that we have sufficient liquidity to meeily operations for the foreseeable future. We alsigeve that we have sufficient working
capital ($2.8 billion at December 31, 2011) to fina our operational requirements for at least e twelve months, including purchases of
inventory and equipment, the development, prodactiearketing and sale of new products, the promisiocustomer service for our
subscribers, the acquisition of intellectual prayeights for future products from third partiesdato fund our stock repurchase program and
dividends.

As of December 31, 2011, the amount of eaghcash equivalents held outside of the U.S.ubyareign subsidiaries was $1.6 billion,
compared with $1.2 billion as of December 31, 20f.these funds are needed in the future for owrajons in the U.S., we would accrue and
pay the required U.S. taxes to repatriate thesasfudowever, our intent is to permanently reinvleese funds outside of the U.S. and our
current plans do not demonstrate a need to refgttiam to fund our U.S. operations.

Capital Expenditures

We made capital expenditure of $72 millior2011. In 2012, we anticipate total capital exgiemres of approximately $100 million.
Capital expenditures are expected to be primaoiycbmputer hardware and software purchases.

Commitments

In the normal course of business, we dntercontractual arrangements with third-partiesrfon-cancelable operating lease agreements
for our offices, for the development of productsd &or the rights to intellectual property. Undeese agreements, we commit to provide
specified payments to a

60




Table of Contents

lessor, developer or intellectual property holderthe case may be, based upon contractual arrenggerithe payments to third-party
developers are generally conditioned upon the aehient by the developers of contractually specifiedelopment milestones. Further, these
payments to third-party developers and intellecpuaperty holders typically are deemed to be adesmad are recoupable against future
royalties earned by the developer or intellectuapprty holder based on the sale of the relatedeg&mditionally, in connection with certain
intellectual property rights acquisitions and depehent agreements, we commit to spend specifiediatador marketing support for the
related game(s) which is to be developed or in Wwkie intellectual property will be utilized. Assing all contractual provisions are met, the
total future minimum commitments for these and ottentractual arrangements in place at Decembe2(@1l] are scheduled to be paid as
follows (amounts in millions):

Contractual Obligations(1)

Facility and Developer
equipment leases and IP Marketing Total
For the year ending December

2012 33 10€ 32 173
2013 3C 49 — 79
2014 27 16 — 43
2015 18 — — 18
2016 15 — — 15
Thereaftel 60 — — 60

Total 183 173 32 38¢

1) We have omitted uncertain income tax liabilitieanfrthis table due to the inherent uncertainty réiggrthe timing of
potential issue resolution. Specifically, eithez timderlying positions have not been fully devetbprough under audit
guantify at this time or the years relating to ig&ues for certain jurisdictions are not currenihger audit. At
December 31, 2011, we had $154 million of unrecogphitax benefits

Off-balance Sheet Arrangements

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, ActivisidizBard had no significant relationships with unsolidated entities or financial parties, such
as entities often referred to as structured finamcgpecial purpose entities, which would have established for the purpose of facilitating
off-balance sheet arrangements or other contrdgtnairow or limited purposes, that have or aresoeably likely to have a material future
effect on our financial condition, changes in fio@h condition, revenues or expenses, results efaion, liquidity, capital expenditures, or
capital resources.

Financial Disclosure

We maintain internal control over finandi@porting, which generally includes those contrelating to the preparation of our financial
statements in conformity with accounting principdeserally accepted in the United States of AmgtidaS. GAAP"). We also are focused on
our "disclosure controls and procedures,” whichefned by the Securities and Exchange Commissien"SEC") are generally those contr
and procedures designed to ensure that finanaitthan-financial information required to be discld$e our reports filed with the SEC is
reported within the time periods specified in tHeCS rules and forms, and that such informatiaoramunicated to management, including
our principal executive and financial officers,aggpropriate, to allow timely decisions regardinguieed disclosure.

61




Table of Contents

Our Disclosure Committee, which operategenrthe Boardxpproved Disclosure Committee Charter and Disci€lontrols & Procedur
Policy, includes senior management representatindsassists executive management in its oversfgheaccuracy and timeliness of our
disclosures, as well as in implementing and evalgaiur overall disclosure process. As part ofdisclosure process, senior finance and
operational representatives from all of our corpodivisions and business units prepare quartegpnts regarding their current quarter
operational performance, future trends, subseggenits, internal controls, changes in internal mistand other accounting and disclosure
relevant information. These quarterly reports ameawed by certain key corporate finance executiVbegse corporate finance representatives
also conduct quarterly interviews on a rotatingbasth the preparers of selected quarterly repditie results of the quarterly reports and
related interviews are reviewed by the Disclosuoen@®ittee. Finance representatives also conduatwesvivith our senior management team,
our legal counsel and other appropriate persomvelved in the disclosure process, as appropriadditionally, senior finance and operational
representatives provide internal certificationsareling the accuracy of information they providet iautilized in the preparation of our peric
public reports filed with the SEC. Financial reswdnhd other financial information also are reviewstth the Audit Committee of the Board of
Directors on a quarterly basis. As required by @pple regulatory requirements, the principal exieetand financial officers review and make
various certifications regarding the accuracy af periodic public reports filed with the SEC, ousaosure controls and procedures, and our
internal control over financial reporting. With thssistance of the Disclosure Committee, we wititicme to assess and monitor, and make
refinements to, our disclosure controls and procesjtand our internal control over financial rejmayt

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of financial statementsdnformity with U.S. GAAP requires management tkenastimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilitieeatate of the financial statements and the repaneounts of revenues and expenses durin
reporting period. Actual results could differ frahrose estimates. The impact and any associatesiratdted to these policies on our business
operations are discussed throughout ManagemersttaiBsion and Analysis of Financial Condition anduRs of Operations where such
policies affect our reported and expected finangaults. The estimates discussed below are caopsidy management to be critical because
they are both important to the portrayal of ouafinial condition and results of operations and bgseaheir application places the most
significant demands on management's judgment, fimémcial reporting results relying on estimatesuttthe effect of matters that are
inherently uncertain. Specific risks for theseicait accounting estimates are described in theviollg paragraphs.

Revenue Recognition including Revenue ArrangemétitdMultiple Deliverable:

On January 1, 2011, we adopted amendmetats &ccounting standard related to revenue regogtior arrangements with multiple
deliverables (which standard, as amended, is efda herein as the "new accounting principleshe fiew accounting principles establish a
selling price hierarchy for determining the sellipice of a deliverable and require the applicatibthe relative selling price method to alloc
the arrangement consideration to each deliveradenultiple deliverables revenue arrangement.aBedf our revenue arrangements have
multiple deliverables and, as such, are accoumtedrfder the new accounting principles. These regemrangements include product sales
consisting of both software and hardware deliverslguch as peripherals or other ancillary colkstitems sold together with physical
"boxed" software) and our sales of World of Wartchafxed products, expansion packs and value-adgleitss, each of which is considered
with the related subscription services for thesmpses. Our assessment of deliverables and urgtscolunting does not change under the new
accounting principles.
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Pursuant to the guidance of ASU 2009-13nwh revenue arrangement contains multiple elemsunth as hardware and software
products, licenses and/or services, we allocaterma to each element based on a selling pricerbigraThe selling price for a deliverable is
based on its vendor-specific-objective-evidenceSOE") if it is available, third-party evidence ("EB if VSOE is not available, or best
estimated selling price ("BESP") if neither VSOR A®E is available. In multiple element arrangersevitere more-than-incidental software
deliverables are included, revenue is allocatezhtth separate unit of accounting for each of timeguftware deliverables and to the software
deliverables as a group using the relative sefirnges of each of the deliverables in the arrangérbased on the aforementioned selling price
hierarchy. If the arrangement contains more thansmitware deliverable, the arrangement consideratiiocated to the software deliverables
as a group is then allocated to each software elelble using the guidance for recognizing softwavenue.

As noted above, when neither VSOE nor T$&vailable for a deliverable, we use BESP. Weatdave significant revenue arrangem
that require BESP for the year ended December(!1.2The inputs we use to determine the sellingepof our significant deliverables include
the actual price charged by the Company for a dedivle that the Company sells separately, whictesgmts the VSOE, and the wholesale
prices of the same or similar products, which repnés TPE. The pattern and timing of revenue retiogrfor deliverables and allocation of
the arrangement consideration did not change upmadoption of the new accounting principles. Atbe,adoption of the new accounting
standard has not had a material impact on our ¢inhstatements in the current period.

Overall, we recognize revenue from the séleur products upon the transfer of title ané 0§ loss to our customers and once any
performance obligations have been completed. Geptaiducts are sold to customers with a street (@ate the earliest date these products may
be sold by retailers). For these products we reizegievenue on the later of the street date osdhe date. Revenue from product sales is
recognized after deducting the estimated allowdoicesturns and price protection.

For our software products with online fuontlity, we evaluate whether those features octionality are more than an inconsequential
separate deliverable in addition to the softwadelpct. This evaluation is performed for each sofenygroduct and any online transaction, such
as an electronic download of a title with produdhtl-@ns, when it is released. Determining whetherathline service for a particular game
constitutes more than an inconsequential deliverad well as the estimated service periods ardlptdife over which to recognize the
revenue and related costs of sales, are subjeativgequire management's judgment.

When we determine that a software titletams online functionality that constitutes a mtiran-inconsequential separate service
deliverable in addition to the product, principabigcause of its importance to gameplay, we considgrour performance obligations for this
title extend beyond the sale of the game. Vergperific objective evidence of fair value does exist for the online functionality, as we do |
separately charge for this component of the t#kea result, we recognize all of the software-edatevenue from the sale of the title ratably
over the estimated service period, which is esgh&d begin the month after either the sale dathestreet date of the title, whichever is later.
In addition, we initially defer the costs of safesthe title (excluding intangible asset amortiaa}, and recognize the costs of sales as the
related revenues are recognized. Cost of salesdesImanufacturing costs, software royalties anortization, and intellectual property
licenses.

We recognize revenues from World of Wardbafked product, expansion packs and value-add®ites, in each case with the related
subscription service revenue, ratably over theredgd service period beginning upon activatiorhefgoftware and delivery of the related
services. Revenues attributed to the sale of Wafriyarcraft boxed software and related expansiakpare classified as
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"Product sales", whereas revenues attributablaliecsiptions and other valwlded services are classified as "Subscriptioansing and othe
revenues".

Revenue for software products with morentimonsequential separate service deliverabledNorttl of Warcraft products are recogni:
over the estimated service periods, which ranga fiaminimum of five months to a maximum of lesstbayear.

For our software products with featuresceasider to be incidental to the overall produéefg and an inconsequential deliverable, <
as products which provide limited online features@additional cost to the consumer, we recogthieeelated revenue from them upon the
transfer of title and risk of loss of the produziour customer.

Allowances for Returns, Price Protection, Doub#igcounts and Inventory Obsolesce

We closely monitor and analyze the hisadrgerformance of our various titles, the perforogof products released by other publishers,
market conditions, and the anticipated timing ¢feotreleases to assess future demand of currentpamining titles. Initial volumes shipped
upon title launch and subsequent reorders are &ealwith the goal of ensuring that quantitiessarfficient to meet the demand from the retalil
markets, but at the same time are controlled tegureexcess inventory in the channel. We benchmaitk to be shipped to our customers
using historical and industry data.

We may permit product returns from, or granice protection to, our customers under certainditions. In general, price protection refers
to the circumstances in which we elect to decreas@, short or longer term basis, the wholesakef a product by a certain amount and,
when granted and applicable, allow customers atcagdinst amounts owed by such customers to usnegipect to open and/or future
invoices. The conditions our customers must mebetgranted the right to return products or priegqrtion include, among other things,
compliance with applicable trading and payment ggramd consistent return of inventory and delivargell-through reports to us. We may
also consider other factors, including the fadilita of slow-moving inventory and other market fast

Significant management judgments and eséisiaust be made and used in connection with éstiéig the allowance for returns and
price protection in any accounting period base@stimates of potential future product returns amckpprotection related to current period
product revenue. We estimate the amount of futetterms and price protection for current period pidevenue utilizing historical experience
and information regarding inventory levels anddkenand and acceptance of our products by the emslinter. The following factors are used
to estimate the amount of future returns and griogection for a particular title: historical penfilance of titles in similar genres; historical
performance of the hardware platform; historicaf@enance of the franchise; console hardware Wiee; sales force and retail customer
feedback; industry pricing; weeks of on-hand rathéinnel inventory; absolute quantity of on-hartdirehannel inventory; our warehouse on-
hand inventory levels; the title's recent sell-tigb history (if available); marketing trade progsrand performance of competing titles. The
relative importance of these factors varies amdheg tdepending upon, among other items, genréfopta, seasonality, and sales strategy.

Based upon historical experience, we beli&at our estimates are reasonable. However,laetuans and price protection could vary
materially from our allowance estimates due to miner of reasons including, among others, a ladoasumer acceptance of a title, the rel
in the same period of a similarly themed title byoanpetitor, or technological obsolescence dubeéemergence of new hardware platforms.
Material differences may result in the amount amdrig of our revenue for any period if factors oanket conditions change or if management
makes different judgments or utilizes differenirastes in determining the allowances for returns jaice protection. For example, a 1%
change in our December 31, 2011 allowance for setesns, price protection and other allowancesldvbave impacted net revenues by
approximately $3 million.
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Similarly, management must make estimasas ¢he collectability of our accounts receivalieestimating the allowance for doubtful
accounts, we analyze the age of current outstaratingunt balances, historical bad debts, custoorerantrations, customer creditworthiness,
current economic trends, and changes in our custp@&yment terms and their economic conditionwelsas whether we can obtain suffici
credit insurance. Any significant changes in anyheke criteria would affect management's estimatestablishing our allowance for doubtful
accounts.

We regularly review inventory quantitiesloand and in the retail channel. We write down imteey based on excess or obsolete
inventories determined primarily by future antidgghdemand for our products. Inventory write-dowres measured as the difference between
the cost of the inventory and net realizable vabased upon assumptions about future demand, vahécimherently difficult to assess and
dependent on market conditions. At the point of lecognition, a new, lower cost basis for thaemery is established, and subsequent
changes in facts and circumstances do not restiieinestoration or increase in that newly esthbtisbasis.

Software Development Costs and Intellectual Propkitenses

Software development costs include paymeatse to independent software developers undelatawent agreements, as well as direct
costs incurred for internally developed products.

We account for software development castecicordance with the FASB guidance for the colstemputer software to be sold, leased, or
otherwise marketed ("ASC Subtopic 985-20"). Sofevdevelopment costs are capitalized once techraabfgasibility of a product is
established and such costs are determined to beaeble. Technological feasibility of a productempasses both technical design
documentation and game design documentation, ardimpleted and tested product design and workindgem&ignificant management
judgments and estimates are utilized in the assgsof when technological feasibility is establidhBor products where proven technol
exists, this may occur early in the developmentecytechnological feasibility is evaluated on adarct-by-product basis. Prior to a product's
release, we expense, as part of "Cost of saleswaatroyalties and amortization", capitalized cafsésid when we believe such amounts are
not recoverable. Capitalized costs for those prtsdiinat are cancelled or expected to be abandaeetharged to "Product development
expense” in the period of cancellation. Amountatesd to software development which are not capgdliare charged immediately to "Product
development expense."

Commencing upon product release, capitdl&dtware development costs are amortized to "Glostles—software royalties and
amortization” based on the ratio of current reventoeotal projected revenues for the specific pobdgenerally resulting in an amortization
period of six months or less.

Intellectual property license costs repnésieense fees paid to intellectual property rightlders for use of their trademarks, copyrights,
software, technology, music or other intellectualperty or proprietary rights in the developmenbof products. Depending upon the
agreement with the rights holder, we may obtairritpet to use the intellectual property in multigleoducts over a number of years, or
alternatively, for a single product. Prior to tledated product's release, we expense, as parosf 8¢ sales—intellectual property licenses,"
capitalized intellectual property costs when wedwe such amounts are not recoverable. Capitaiitetlectual property costs for those
products that are cancelled or expected to be almeudare charged to product development expertbe iperiod of cancellation.

Commencing upon the related product's seleeapitalized intellectual property license casésamortized to "Cost of sales—intellectual
property licenses" based on the ratio of currevemees for the specific product to total projeataeenues for all products in which the licen
property will be utilized. As intellectual propettigense contracts may extend for multiple yedrs,amortization of capitalized intellectual
property license costs relating to such contraayg extend beyond one year.
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We evaluate the future recoverability gbicalized software development costs and intell@gtwoperty licenses on a quarterly basis. For
products that have been released in prior pertbésprimary evaluation criterion is actual titlefeemance. For products that are scheduled to
be released in future periods, recoverability isleated based on the expected performance of #wfisgoroducts to which the costs relate or
in which the licensed trademark or copyright i®&oused. Criteria used to evaluate expected prguufdrmance include: historical
performance of comparable products developed vaithparable technology; orders for the product piadgts release; and, for any sequel
product, estimated performance based on the peafocenof the product on which the sequel is basadh&r, as many of our capitalized
intellectual property licenses extend for multipteducts over multiple years, we also assess ttwvegability of capitalized intellectual
property license costs based on certain qualittigtrs, such as the success of other productsaeatertainment vehicles utilizing the
intellectual property, whether there are any fuplesned theatrical releases or television serdsgd on the intellectual property, and the rights
holder's continued promotion and exploitation & ihtellectual property.

Significant management judgments and eséisnare utilized in assessing the recoverabilityagitalized costs. In evaluating the
recoverability of capitalized costs, the assessmtakpected product performance utilizes forechstdes amounts and estimates of additional
costs to be incurred. If revised forecasted oragitoduct sales are less than the originally fasezd amounts utilized in the initial
recoverability analysis, the net realizable valugyrhe lower than originally estimated in any giegrarter, which could result in an impairment
charge. Material differences may result in the amb@nd timing of expense for any period if manageineakes different judgments or utilizes
different estimates in evaluating these qualitatactors.

Income Taxe

We record a tax provision for the anticgzhtax consequences of the reported results oatpes. In accordance with FASB income tax
guidance ("ASC Topic 740"), the provision for incetaxes is computed using the asset and liabil@thod, under which deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognized for the expectedreitax consequences attributable to differencegdsn the financial statement carrying
amounts of existing assets and liabilities andrtrespective tax bases and operating losses arwladit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are measured using enacted tax ratpe@rd to apply to taxable income in the yearstiiclvthose temporary differences are
expected to be recovered or settled. We recorduatian allowance to reduce deferred tax assetiseé@mount that is believed more likely tt
not to be realized.

Management believes it is more likely timan that forecasted income, including income thayiine generated as a result of certain tax
planning strategies, together with the tax effecthe deferred tax liabilities, will be sufficietd fully recover the remaining deferred tax as:
In the event that all or part of the net defereddssets are determined not to be realizablesifutiare, an adjustment to the valuation
allowance would be charged to earnings in the gesiech determination is made. The calculationofigbilities involves significant judgme!
in estimating the impact of uncertainties in thelegation of ASC Topic 740 and other complex tawdaResolution of these uncertainties in a
manner inconsistent with management's expectationlsl have a material impact on our business asulteeof operations in an interim period
in which the uncertainties are ultimately resolved.

Fair Value Estimate

The preparation of financial statementsdnformity with U.S. GAAP often requires us to detée the fair value of a particular item to
fairly present our Consolidated Financial StatemeWtithout an independent market or another reptaige transaction, determining the fair
value of a particular item requires us to make sE\assumptions that are inherently difficult tegict and can have a material impact on the
conclusion of the appropriate accounting.
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There are various valuation techniques tisedtimate fair value. These include (1) the raadpproach where market transactions for
identical or comparable assets or liabilities avedito determine the fair value, (2) the incomeaggh, which uses valuation techniques to
convert future amounts (for example, future castvél or future earnings) to a single present amant,(3) the cost approach, which is based
on the amount that would be required to replacasset. For many of our fair value estimates, inolydur estimates of the fair value of
acquired intangible assets, we use the income apprdJsing the income approach requires the uinasfcial models, which require us to
make various estimates including, but not limited1) the potential future cash flows for the askability or equity instrument being
measured, (2) the timing of receipt or paymenhofke future cash flows, (3) the time value of moaggociated with the delayed receipt or
payment of such cash flows, and (4) the inhersktassociated with the cash flows (that is, the piemium). Making these cash flow
estimates is inherently difficult and subjectivedaif any of the estimates used to determine direvhlue using the income approach turns out
to be inaccurate, our financial results may be tieglg impacted. Furthermore, relatively small chas in many of these estimates can have a
significant impact on the estimated fair value t#sg from the financial models or the related aatiing conclusion reached. For example, a
relatively small change in the estimated fair vadfian asset may change a conclusion as to whathasset is impaired. While we are required
to make certain fair value assessments associatedhe accounting for several types of transadjahe following areas are the most sensitive
to the assessments:

Business Combinations.We must estimate the fair value of assets aeduind liabilities assumed in a business comizina®ur
assessment of the estimated fair value of eadhesktcan have a material effect on our reportedtsess intangible assets are amortized over
various lives. Furthermore, a change in the estéthfdir value of an asset or liability often hadir@ct impact on the amount to recognize as
goodwill, which is an asset that is not amortizeften determining the fair value of these assetkliabilities assumed requires an assessment
of expected use of the asset, the expected cestitgyuish the liability or our expectations retiite the timing and the successful completion
of development of an acquired in-process technol8ggh estimates are inherently difficult and satdye and can have a material impact on
our financial statements.

Assessment of Impairment of Assetdlanagement evaluates the recoverability ofidentifiable intangible assets and other long-lived
assets in accordance with FASB literature relavegttounting for the impairment or disposal of ldingd assets within ASC Subtopic 360-10,
which generally requires the assessment of thesstsafor recoverability when events or circumstannodicate a potential impairment exists.
We considered certain events and circumstancestarmining whether the carrying value of identifeaimtangible assets and other long-lived
assets may not be recoverable including, but natdd to: significant changes in performance re&atb expected operating results; significant
changes in the use of the assets; significant ivegiaidustry or economic trends; a significant dezin our stock price for a sustained perio
time; and changes in our business strategy. Inmé@ieng whether an impairment exists, we estimagundiscounted cash flows to be
generated from the use and ultimate dispositiah@de assets. If an impairment is indicated basedlamparison of the assets' carrying ve
and the undiscounted cash flows, the impairmestimseasured as the amount by which the carryimguat of the assets exceeds the fair
value of the assets.

During 2010, we recorded an impairment gaaf $326 million to our finite-lived intangiblessets. See Note 11 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements included in I8ofi this Annual Report on Form 10-K for additiofrafiormation regarding the
determination of the impairment charges recordedhe year ended December 31, 2010. We did notdemoimpairment charge to our finite-
lived intangible assets as of December 31, 2011.

FASB literature related to the accountioggoodwill and other intangibles within ASC To3B0 requires a two-step approach to testing
goodwill for impairment for each reporting unit. Qeporting
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units are determined by the components of our tipgraegments that constitute a business for whath (1) discrete financial information is
available and (2) segment management regularlgwessthe operating results of that component. ASAICT850 requires that the impairment
test be performed at least annually by applyingiavalue-based test. The first step measuresrfpairment by applying fair-value-based tests
at the reporting unit level. The second step (dfassary) measures the amount of impairment by eqgpfsir-value-based tests to the individual
assets and liabilities within each reporting unit.

To determine the fair values of the repartinits used in the first step, we use a discalcaésh flow approach. Each step requires us to
make judgments and involves the use of signifiestimates and assumptions. These estimates andgms include long-term growth rates
and operating margins used to calculate projeatedd cash flows, risk-adjusted discount ratesdaseour weighted average cost of capital,
and future economic and market conditions. TheSmates and assumptions have to be made for epoltirgy unit evaluated for impairment.
Our estimates for market growth, our market sharkaosts are based on historical data, variousnatestimates and certain external sources,
and are based on assumptions that are consistidmtheiplans and estimates we are using to mamageniderlying business. If future forecasts
are revised, they may indicate or require futurpainment charges. We base our fair value estin@atessumptions we believe to be
reasonable but that are unpredictable and inhgrantertain. Actual future results may differ fréhose estimates.

Stock-Based Compensation

We estimate the value of stock-based pay@eards on the measurement date using a binoattadd model. Our determination of fair
value of stock-based payment awards on the dajeaot using an option-pricing model is affectedobly stock price as well as assumptions
regarding a number of highly complex and subjectigables. These variables include, but are nuitdid to, our expected stock price
volatility over the term of the awards, and actaradl projected employee stock option exercise behavi

For a detailed discussion of the applicattbthese and other accounting policies see Natetl2e Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements included in Item 8 of this Annual Reporform 10-K.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2011, the FASB issued an updatééoaccounting rules for fair value measurementéwige a consistent definition of fair value
and ensure that the fair value measurement antbslise requirements are similar between U.S. GAAdP laternational Financial Reporting
Standards ("IFRS"). This update changes certairvédue measurement principles and enhances thslise requirements for fair value
measurements. This update does not extend thef teie value accounting, but provides guidance owlit should be applied where its use is
already required or permitted by other standardsimlJ.S. GAAP or IFRS. This update is effective fiterim and annual periods beginning
after December 15, 2011 and is applied prospegtivdle adoption of this update on January 1, 202t have a material impact on our
consolidated financial statements.

In June 2011, the FASB issued an updatiee@ccounting on comprehensive income to incri@sprominence of items reported in other
comprehensive income and to facilitate convergefidé S. GAAP and IFRS. This update requires thiat@h-owner changes in stockholders'
equity be presented either in a single continutatement of comprehensive income or in two sepdratteonsecutive statements. This update
does not change the items that must be reporteth@r comprehensive income or when an item of atberprehensive income must be
reclassified to net income. Further, this updatesdwot affect how earnings per share is calculatguesented. This
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update is effective for interim and annual peribdginning after December 15, 2011 and is appligdspectively. The adoption of this update
on January 1, 2012 will not have a material immacour consolidated financial statements.

In September 2011, the FASB issued an epathe authoritative guidance related to goodwipairment testing. This update gives
companies the option to first perform a qualitatigsessment to determine whether it is more littedp not that the fair value of a reporting
unit is less than its carrying amount before penfag the two-step test mandated prior to the updftafter assessing the totality of events and
circumstances, a company determines it is moréyltken not that the fair value of a reporting usitess than its carrying amount, then it must
perform the two-step test. Otherwise, a company shiythe two-step test. Companies are not requorgrform the qualitative assessment
and may, instead proceed directly to the first stefme two-part test. This update is effectivedanual and interim goodwill impairment tests
performed for fiscal years beginning after Decemtier2011. The adoption of this update on Janua®p12 will not have a material impact
our consolidated financial statements.

Item 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE S ABOUT MARKET RISK

Market risk is the potential loss arisimgrh fluctuations in market rates and prices. Ourketarisk exposures primarily include
fluctuations in interest rates, foreign currencgleange rates and market prices.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk

We transact business in many differentipreurrencies and may be exposed to financial etaikk resulting from fluctuations in forei
currency exchange rates. Revenues and related seggenerated from our international operationg@anerally denominated in their
respective local currencies. Primary currenciekiohe euros, British pounds, Australian dollars, tfBd@orean won and Swedish krona.
Currency volatility is monitored throughout the yeBo mitigate our foreign currency exchange rageosure resulting from our foreign
currency denominated monetary assets, liabilittesesarnings, we periodically enter into currencsivdgive contracts, principally swaps and
forward contracts with maturities of twelve montiidess. Vivendi is our principal counterparty dhd risks of counterparty non-performance
associated with these contracts are not considered material. We expect to continue to use ecimbedge programs in the future to reduce
foreign exchange-related volatility if it is determad that such hedging activities are appropriateetiuce risk. We do not hold or purchase any
foreign currency contracts for trading or speculapurposes. All foreign currency economic heddragsactions are backed, in amount an
maturity, by an identified economic underlying ite@ur foreign exchange forward contracts are neigiated as hedging instruments and are
accounted for as derivatives whereby the fair valuthe contracts are reported as other curreetsss other current liabilities in our
consolidated balance sheets, and the associatesl @jadl losses from changes in fair value are regantinvestment and other income, net and
general and administrative expense in the congelidstatements of operations.

The gross notional amount of outstandirrgitm exchange swaps was $85 million and $138anilkit December 31, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. A pre-tax net unrealized loss of $illion and an unrealized gain of less than a millfor the years ended 2011 and 2010,
respectively, resulted from the foreign exchangaremts and swaps with Vivendi and were recogniaetie consolidated statements of
operations.

The consolidated statements of operatiomsranslated into U.S. dollars at exchange ratéisative of market rates during each applic
period. To the extent the U.S. dollar strengtheyarest foreign currencies, the translation of tHeseign currency-denominated transactions
results in reduced revenues, operating expensesetridcome from our international operations. &nly, our
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revenues, operating expenses and net income wikbase for our international operations if the Wi@lar weakens against foreign currencies.
We recognized a realized loss of $7 million for yle@ar ended December 31, 2011 from the settlenfehededging foreign exchange contr:
and there was no outstanding foreign exchange actritedging translation risk as of December 31,1201the absence of the hedging
activities described above, as of December 31, 28hy/pothetical adverse foreign currency exchaateemovement of 10% would have
resulted in potential declines in our net incomejbroximately $90 million. This sensitivity analysssumes a parallel adverse shift of all
foreign currency exchange rates against the U.l&argdbowever, all foreign currency exchange ratesiot always move in such manner and
actual results may differ materially.

Interest Rate Risk

Our exposure to market rate risk for chariganterest rates relates primarily to our inwestt portfolio. We do not use derivative
financial instruments to manage interest rateirisbur investment portfolio. Our investment porifotonsists primarily of debt instruments
with high credit quality and relatively short avgeamaturities and money market funds that invehkighly rated governmeriiacked securitie
Because short-term securities mature relativelgldyiand must be reinvested at the then currenketaates, interest income on a portfolio
consisting of cash, cash equivalents or short-saurities is more subject to market fluctuatidremta portfolio of longer term securities.
Conversely, the fair value of such a portfoliodsd sensitive to market fluctuations than a paafol longer term securities. At December 31,
2011, our $3.5 billion of cash and cash equivalergse comprised primarily of money market funds D&cember 31, 2011, our $360 million
of short-term investments included $344 millionbs. treasury and government sponsored agencysdebtities and $16 million of restricted
cash. We had $16 million in auction rate securiiefir value classified as long-term investmet®ecember 31, 2011. The Company has
determined that, based on the composition of orgstment portfolio as of December 31, 2011, theas mo material interest rate risk exposure
to the Company's consolidated financial positi@suits of operations or cash flows as of that date.

Item 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY D ATA

Report of Independent Registered Public Accourftimm F-1
Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 20l 2Gi0 F-2
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the YEaded December 31, 2011, 2010, and z  F-3
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholggu#y for the Years Ended December

2011, 2010, and 20C F-4
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the YEaded December 31, 2011, 2010, and

2009 F-5
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme F-6
Schedule —Valuation and Qualifying Accounts at December 3112, 2010, and 20C F-5C

Other financial statement schedules ardtechbecause the information called for is not @gple or is shown either in the Consolidated
Financial Statements or the Notes thereto.

Item 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUN TANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.
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Item 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Definition and Limitations of Disclosure Controls and Procedures.

Our disclosure controls and proceduresab term is defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)lhtder the Exchange Act) are designed to
reasonably ensure that information required toibelased in our reports filed under the Exchangeié\§) recorded, processed, summarized,
and reported within the time periods specifiedhia B8EC's rules and forms and (ii) accumulated anthtunicated to management, including
our principal executive officer and principal fir@al officer, as appropriate, to allow timely deoiss regarding required disclosures. A control
system, no matter how well designed and operatedpoovide only reasonable assurance that it wikct or uncover failures within the
Company to disclose material information otherwisguired to be set forth in our periodic repontdhdrent limitations to any system of
disclosure controls and procedures include, bubhatéimited to, the possibility of human error ahe circumvention or overriding of such
controls by one or more persons. In addition, weetdesigned our system of controls based on ceatsumptions, which we believe are
reasonable, about the likelihood of future evearts] our system of controls may therefore not aehitsvdesired objectives under all possible
future events.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures.

Our management, with the participation wf principal executive officer and principal finaaloofficer, has evaluated the effectiveness of
our disclosure controls and procedures at DeceBihe2011, the end of the period covered by thismeBased on this evaluation, the princ
executive officer and principal financial officeprecluded that, at December 31, 2011, our disclosonérols and procedures were effective to
provide reasonable assurance that information redud be disclosed by the Company in the rephésit files or submits under the Exchange
Act is (i) recorded, processed, summarized, andrteg on a timely basis, and (ii) accumulated asdraunicated to management, including
our principal executive officer and principal fir@al officer, as appropriate to allow timely deoiss regarding required disclosures.

Management's Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

Our management is responsible for estahlisand maintaining adequate internal control dwemcial reporting as such term is define
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange @ar management, with the participation of oungipal executive officer and principal
financial officer, conducted an evaluation of tfileetiveness, as of December 31, 2011, of our iaiecontrol over financial reporting using
criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring&hizations of the Treadway Commission ("COSO'nternal Control—Integrated
Framework. Based on this evaluation, our managenwrtiuded that our internal control over financgdorting was effective as of
December 31, 2011.

Because of its inherent limitations, inedroontrol over financial reporting may not preventetect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risks that controls may becormadéquate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the polieied procedures may deteriorate.

The effectiveness of our internal contre¢iofinancial reporting as of December 31, 2011 b&en audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent regisfrblic accounting firm, as stated in their répoeluded in this annual report on
Form 10-K.

71




Table of Contents
Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting.

There have not been any changes in ouniateontrol over financial reporting during the sheecent fiscal quarter that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materiallieaf, our internal control over financial reporting

Item 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
10b5-1 Stock Trading Plans

The Company's directors and employees atag/ time they are not in possession of materiatpablic information, enter into plans
("Rule 10b5-1 Plans") to purchase or sell sharemioicommon stock that satisfy the requirement&xahange Act Rule 10b5-1. Rule 10b5-1
permits trading on a pre-arranged, "automatic-phaisis, subject to certain conditions, includihgttthe person for whom the plan is created
(or anyone else aware of material non-public infation acting on such person's behalf) not exemigesubsequent influence regarding the
amount, price and dates of transactions underltire m addition, any such plan of the Companysalors and employees is required to be
established and maintained in accordance with tiragainy's "Policy on Establishing and Maintainingp34 Trading Plans".

Rule 10b-5-1 Plans permit persons whosktyato purchase or sell our common stock may otlige be substantially restricted (by
guarterly and special stock-trading blackouts anthkeir possession from time to time of materiahmablic information) to engage in pre-
arranged trading. Trades under a Rule 10b5-1 Blayubdirectors and employees are not necessadigative of their respective opinions of
our current or potential future performance attthie of the trade. Trades by our directors and etee officers pursuant to a Rule 10b3Rlan
will be disclosed publicly through Form 144 andraot filings with the SEC, in accordance with apatite laws, rules and regulations.
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PART Il
Item 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The information required by this Item isamporated by reference to the sections of oundafé Proxy Statement for our 2012 Annual
Meeting of Shareholders, entitled "Proposal 1—Hkdecof Directors,” "Executive Officers,” "Sectio(h) Beneficial Ownership Reporting
Compliance," "Corporate Governance Matters—Codeafduct" and "Corporate Governance Matters—Boafdigdctors and Committees—
Board Committees—Audit Committee" to be filed witie Securities and Exchange Commission.

Item 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this Item isamporated by reference to the sections of oundafé Proxy Statement for our 2012 Annual
Meeting of Shareholders, entitled "Executive Congagion” and "Director Compensation" to be filedhilhe Securities and Exchange
Commission.

Item 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIA L OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
SHAREHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this Item isamporated by reference to the sections of oundafé Proxy Statement for our 2012 Annual
Meeting of Shareholders, entitled "Equity CompeiasalPlan Information” and "Security Ownership ofr@é Beneficial Owners and
Management" to be filed with the Securities andHaxge Commission.

Item 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANS ACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this Item isamporated by reference to the sections of oundafé Proxy Statement for our 2012 Annual
Meeting of Shareholders, entitled "Certain Relattdps and Related Transactions" and "Corporate Banee Matters—Board of Directors
and Committees—Director Independence" to be filgt the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Item 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this Item isdamporated by reference to the sections of oundgfé Proxy Statement for our 2012 Annual
Meeting of Shareholders, entitled "Audit-Relatedttdes—Independent Registered Public Accounting Fiorbe filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission.
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PART IV
Item 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE

€) 1. Financial StatemeniSee Item 8.—Consolidated Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data for index to Financial Statesiant Financial Statement Schec
on page 70 hereil

2. Financial Statement Sched(The following financial statement schedule of Aidign
Blizzard for the calendar years ended Decembe2@11], 2010, and 2009 is filed as
of this report and should be read in conjunctioth\lie consolidated financial
statements of Activision Blizzari

Schedule —Valuation and Qualifying Accoun

Other financial statement schedules are omittedumsxthe information called for is not
applicable or is shown either in the Consolidatetkcial Statements or the Notes

thereto.

3. The exhibits listed on the accompanying index toilets immediately following the
financial statements are filed as part of, or hgiaborporated by reference into, this
Form 1(-K.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of SectioorlB5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, ribgistrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, therednlp authorized.

Date: February 28, 2012
ACTIVISION BLIZZARD, INC.

By: /sl ROBERT A. KOTICK

Robert A. Kotick
Director, President and Chief Executive
Officer of Activision Blizzard, Inc.
(Principal Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Seéeariixchange Act of 1934, this report has beeresidielow by the following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities and ord#ites indicated.

By: /s/ PHILIPPE G. H. CAPRON

Director February 28, 201
(Philippe G. H. Capror
By:
/s/ ROBERT J. CORTI
Director February 28, 201
(Robert J. Corti
By: _y .
/s/ FREDERIC R. CREPIN
Director February 28, 201
(Frédéric R. Crépin
By:
/s LUCIAN GRAINGE
Director February 28, 201
(Lucian Grainge
By:
/sl BRIAN G. KELLY
Co-Chairman and Director February 28, 201
(Brian G. Kelly)
By:
/s ROBERT A. KOTICK Director, President, Chief Executive
Officer and Principal Executive February 28, 201
(Robert A. Kotick) Officer
By: 3
/sl JEAN-BERNARD LEVY
Chairman and Director February 28, 201

(Jear-Bernard Lévy;
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By:

By:

By:

By:

By:

By:

/sl ROBERT J. MORGADO

(Robert J. Morgadc

/s/ STEPHANE ROUSSEL

(Stéphane Rousse

/sl RICHARD SARNOFF

(Richard Sarnoff

/sl THOMAS TIPPL

(Thomas Tippl

/s/ REGIS TURRINI

(Régis Turrini)

/sl STEPHEN WEREB

(Stephen Werelk

Director

Director

Director

Chief Operating Officer, Chief
Financial Officer and Principal
Financial Officer

Director

Chief Accounting Officer and
Principal Accounting Officer
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Asidn Blizzard, Inc.:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated badasheets and the related consolidated statemfeope@tions, of changes in shareholders'
equity and of cash flows, present fairly, in allterél respects, the financial position of ActiaisiBlizzard, Inc. and its subsidiaries at
December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the results afdperations and their cash flows for each of thred years in the period ended

December 31, 2011 in conformity with accountingipiples generally accepted in the United StateSnadrica. In addition, in our opinion, the
financial statement Schedule Il Valuation and (yilg Accounts presents fairly, in all material pests, the information set forth therein wi
read in conjunction with the related consolidatedricial statements. Also in our opinion, the Compmaintained, in all material respects,
effective internal control over financial reporting of December 31, 2011, based on criteria estaddliininternal Control—Integrated
Frameworkissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrise Treadway Commission (COSO). The Compangsagement is
responsible for these financial statements andhéiizd statement schedule, for maintaining effectiternal control over financial reporting a
for its assessment of the effectiveness of intezaatrol over financial reporting, included in Ma@enent's Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting appearing under Item 9A. Ogpomsibility is to express opinions on these finangtatements, on the financial statement
schedule, and on the Company's internal contral firancial reporting based on our integrated audife conducted our audits in accordance
with the standards of the Public Company Accoun@wgrsight Board (United States). Those standamgisire that we plan and perform the
audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whné&inancial statements are free of material tatesnent and whether effective internal
control over financial reporting was maintaineaglhmaterial respects. Our audits of the finanstatements included examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and dis@ssu the financial statements, assessing theuatiog principles used and significant
estimates made by management, and evaluating #ralbfinancial statement presentation. Our auflibternal control over financial reportil
included obtaining an understanding of internalta@rover financial reporting, assessing the risktta material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectis®ioé internal control based on the assessedQiskaudits also included performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary @irtuenstances. We believe that our audits provitkaaonable basis for our opinions.

A company's internal control over financial repiogtis a process designed to provide reasonableassssuregarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statetséor external purposes in accordance with gelyeaatepted accounting principles. A
company's internal control over financial reportingludes those policies and procedures that ¢(fapeto the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettitansactions and dispositions of the assetseofdmpany; (ii) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatggaparation of financial statements in accor@éawith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expendituree®tbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (iii) provide readdleassurance regarding prevention or timely detecf unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could hawaterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or detmisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods afgect to the risk that controls may become inadézjbecause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Los Angeles, California
February 28, 2012
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ACTIVISION BLIZZARD, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(Amounts in millions, except share data)

At December 31,

At December 31,

2011 2010
Assets
Current assett
Cash and cash equivale $ 3,168 $ 2,812
Shor-term investment 36C 69¢€
Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $300iariland
$377 million at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respsgt 64¢ 673
Inventories, ne 144 112
Software developmel 137 147
Intellectual property license 22 45
Deferred income taxes, n 507 64¢
Other current asse 39€ 29¢
Total current asse 5,38( 5,43:
Long-term investment 16 23
Software developmel 62 55
Intellectual property license 12 28
Property and equipment, r 162 16¢
Other asset 12 15
Intangible assets, n 88 16C
Trademark and trade narr 43¢ 43¢
Goodwill 7,111 7,132
Total asset $ 13,277 $ 13,447
Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl $ 39C $ 362
Deferred revenue 1,47 1,72¢
Accrued expenses and other liabilit 694 871
Total current liabilities 2,55¢ 2,96(
Deferred income taxes, n 55 12C
Other liabilities 174 164
Total liabilities 2,78t 3,241
Commitments and contingencies (Note
Shareholders' equit'
Common stock, $0.000001 par value, 2,400,000,08€es
authorized, 1,133,391,371 and 1,382,479,839 sligsasd
at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respecti — —
Additional paicin capital 9,61¢ 12,35
Less: Treasury stock, at cost, 0 and 199,159,98i&stat
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respecti' — (2,199
Retained earning 94¢ 57
Accumulated other comprehensive i (72) (13)
Total shareholders' equi 10,49: 10,20:
Total liabilities and shareholders' equ $ 13,277 $ 13,44"

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktlEssolidated Financial Statements.
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ACTIVISION BLIZZARD, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(Amounts in millions, except per share data)

For the Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
Net revenues
Product sale $ 3257 $ 3087 $ 3,08
Subscription, licensing, and other reven 1,49¢ 1,36( 1,19¢
Total net revenue 4,75 4,44 4,27¢
Costs and expenses
Cost of sale—product cost: 1,13¢ 1,35( 1,43
Cost of sale—online subscription 23¢ 241 212
Cost of sale—software royalties and amortizati 21¢ 33¢ 34¢
Cost of sale—intellectual property license 165 197 31t
Product developmel 64€ 63t 627
Sales and marketir 54E 51€ 544
General and administratiy 45¢€ 37t 39t
Impairment of intangible asse — 32€ 40¢
Restructuring 25 — 23
Total costs and expens 3,42 3,97¢ 4,30t
Operating income (los: 1,32¢ 46¢ (26)
Investment and other income, | 3 23 18
Income (loss) before income tax expense (ber 1,331 492 (8
Income tax expense (benel 24¢€ 74 (227)
Net income $ 108 § 418 $ 11
Earnings per common share
Basic $ 09 $ 034 $ 0.0¢
Diluted $ 092 $ 03: $ 0.0¢
Weighted-average number of shares outstanding
Basic 1,14¢ 1,222 1,28:
Diluted 1,15¢ 1,23¢ 1,311
Dividends per common sha $ 0168 $ 01 $ —

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktiEssolidated Financial Statements.
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ACTIVISION BLIZZARD, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Balance at
December 31,
2008

Components of
comprehensive
income:

Net income
Foreign currenc!
translation
adjustmen

Total
comprehen
income

Issuance of
common stock
pursuant to
employee stock
options and
restricted stock
rights

Stock-based
compensation
expense related
to employee
stock options ar
restricted stock
rights

Tax shortfall from
employee stock
option exercises
and restricted
stock rights

Issuance of
contingent
consideratior

Shares repurchase
(see Note 19

Return of capital tc
Vivendi related
to taxes (see
Note 15)

Balance at
December 31,
2009

Components of
comprehensive
income:

Net income
Foreign currenc!
translation
adjustmen

Total
comprehen
income

Issuance of
common stock
pursuant to
employee stock
options and
restricted stock
rights

Stock-based
compensation
expense related
to employee
stock options ar
restricted stock
rights

Return of capital t

(Amounts and shares in millions)

For the Years Ended December 31, 2011, 2010, andd®20

Retained Accumulated
Earnings Other
. y .
—Common Stock Additional Treasury Stock (Accumulated Comprehensive Total
Paid-In Shareholders'
Shares Capital Shares Amount Deficit) Income (Loss) Equity
1,32¢ $ 12,17 13 $ (126 $ 479 $ 43) $ 11,52
— — — — 113 — 112
— — — — — 18 18
132
3€ 81 — — — — 81
— 154 — — — — 154
— o - — — — ©)
3 2 — — — — 2
— — (103) (1,109 — — (1,109
— (30) — — — — (30)
1,364 $  12,37¢ (1149 $ (1,235 $ (361) $ (29) $ 10,75¢
— — — — 41€ — 41¢
— — — — — 11 11
42¢
18 73 — — — — 73
— 10C — — — — 10C



Vivendi related to

taxes (see

Note 15) — — (7) — — — — (7)
Dividends ($0.15

per common

share) — — (189) — — — — (189)
Shares repurchase

(see Note 19 — — — (85) (959) — — (95¢9)

Balance at
December 31,
2010 1,38: $ — $ 12,35¢ (199 $ (2,199 $ 57 $ (13) $ 10,20:
Components of
comprehensive
income:
Net income — — — — — 1,08t — 1,08t
Unrealized
appreciation
on
investments,
net of taxes — — — — — — 2 2
Foreign currenc!
translation
adjustmen — — — — — — (61) (61)

Total
comprehen
income 1,02¢

Issuance of

common stock

pursuant to

employee stock

options and

restricted stock

rights 11 — 54 — — — — 54
Stock-based

compensation

expense related

to employee

stock options ar

restricted stock

rights — — 95 — — — — 95
Dividends ($0.165

per common

share] — — — — — (199 — (194)
Shares repurchase

(see Note 19 — — — (61) (692) — — (692)
Retirement of

treasury share (260) — (2,88¢) 26C 2,88¢ — — —
Balance at

December 31,
2011 1,13 $ — 3 9,61¢ — % — $ 948 % 72) $ 10,49:

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktlEssolidated Financial Statements.
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ACTIVISION BLIZZARD, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Amounts in millions)

For the Years Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009

Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income $1,08 $ 418 $ 11c
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to rehcprovided by
operating activities

Deferred income taxe 75 (27€) (25€)
Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets (seted 10 and
11) 12 32€ 40¢
Depreciation and amortizatic 14¢ 19¢ 347
Loss on disposal of property and equipn 4 1 2
Amortization and writ-off of capitalized software developme
costs and intellectual property licenses 287 31¢ 281
Stock-based compensation expense 10z 131 15€
Excess tax benefits from stock option exerc (24) (22 (79
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Accounts receivabl 13 43 23t
Inventories, ne (34 124 21
Software development and intellectual propertyriges (254) (313 (30¢)
Other asset (67) 17 (210
Deferred revenue (24¢) 292 503
Accounts payabl 31 70 (18)
Accrued expenses and other liabilit (179 49 (113)
Net cash provided by operating activit 952 1,37¢ 1,18¢
Cash flows from investing activitie
Proceeds from maturities of availa-for-sale investment 74C 51¢ 44
Proceeds from maturities of auction rate securdiassified a:
trading securitie — 61 —
Proceeds from sale of availa-for-sale investment — — 2
Proceeds from auction rate securities called a 1C — —
Payment of contingent considerati 3 4 —
Purchases of availat-for-sale investment (417) (800) (425)
Capital expenditure (72 97) (69)
Decrease in restricted ca 8 9 5
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi 26€ (312 (443)
Cash flows from financing activitie
Proceeds from issuance of common stock to emplc 54 73 81
Repurchase of common sta (692) (959 (1,109
Dividends paic (194 (18¢9) —
Excess tax benefits from stock option exerc 24 22 79
Net cash used in financing activiti (80¢) (1,059 (949)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on castcasid equivalent (57 33 18
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis 353 44 (190
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of pe 2,81 2,76¢ 2,95¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe $3,168 $ 2,812 $ 2,76¢

(1) Excludes deferral and amortization of stock-basedpensation expense.

(2) Includes the net effects of capitalization, deferad amortization of stock-based compensatioreese.

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktlEmsolidated Financial Statements.
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ACTIVISION BLIZZARD, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
1. Description of Business and Business Combination
Description of Busines

Activision Blizzard, Inc. is a worldwide lime, personal computer ("PC"), console, handhetd, mobile game publisher of interactive
entertainment. The terms "Activision Blizzard,” tl@ompany,” "we," "us," and "our" are used to refeliectively to Activision Blizzard, Inc.
and its subsidiaries. We maintain significant ofiere in the United States, Canada, the United #amg, France, Germany, Ireland, Italy,
Sweden, Spain, the Netherlands, Australia, Soutle&and China.

The common stock of Activision Blizzardtiaded on The NASDAQ Stock Market under the tickenbol "ATVI." Vivendi S.A.
("Vivendi") owned approximately 60% of ActivisionliBzard's outstanding common stock at Decembe311.

Based upon our current organizational stinec we operate three operating segments as fallow
(i) Activision Publishing, Inc.

Activision Publishing, Inc. ("Activision'ls a leading international developer and publisiienteractive software products and content.
Activision develops games utilizing internally-dévmeed, acquired and licensed intellectual propekttivision markets and sells games it
develops and, through our affiliate label progrgames developed by certain third-party publishéfs.sell games both through retail channels
and by digital download. Activision currently offegames that operate on the Sony Computer Entergairy Inc. ("Sony") PlayStation 3
("PS3"), Nintendo Co. Ltd. ("Nintendo") Wii ("Wii})and Microsoft Corporation ("Microsoft") Xbox 3§0Xbox 360") console systems; the
Nintendo Dual Screen ("DS") handheld game systénesPC; Apple iOS devices and other handheld arfailendevices

(ii) Blizzard Entertainment, Inc.

Blizzard Entertainment, Inc. ("Blizzard¥) & leader in the subscription-based massivelyifplayer online role-playing game
("MMORPG") category in terms of both subscriberdagad revenues generated through its World of Vieirranchise, which it develops,
markets and sells role-playing action and strafe@ybased computer games, including games in thigpheddward winning Diabl® and
StarCraft® franchises. Blizzard also maintains a proprietarjne-game related service, Battle.@et Blizzard distributes its products and
generates revenues worldwide through various méaeigading: subscriptions (which consist of feesnfrindividuals playingVorld of
Warcraft, prepaid cards and other value-added service u@gesuch as realm transfers, faction changes,thed character customizations
within theWorld of Warcraftgameplay); retail sales of physical "boxed" produonline download sales of PC products; and licensf
software to third-party or related party comparties distributé/NVorld of WarcraflandStarCraft 1I®.

(iii) Activision Blizzard Distribution

Activision Blizzard Distribution ("Distriltion™) consists of operations in Europe that prewedarehousing, logistical and sales distribution
services to third-party publishers of interactivegtainment software, our own publishing operatj@nd manufacturers of interactive
entertainment hardware.

F-6




Table of Contents

ACTIVISION BLIZZARD, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contired)
1. Description of Business and Business Combinatig@ontinued)
Business Combinatic

On July 9, 2008, a business combinatioa {Business Combination") by and among Activisime,, Sego Merger Corporation, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Activision, Inc., Vivendi, VGAKLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Vivendi , andwéndi Games, Inc. ("Vivendi
Games"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of VGAC LLC, wasnsummated. As a result of the consummationeBilisiness Combination,
Activision, Inc. was renamed Activision Blizzarahcl For accounting purposes, the Business Combiméitreated as a "reverse acquisition,"
with Vivendi Games deemed to be the acquirer.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
Basis of Consolidation and Presentat

The accompanying consolidated financiaiestents include the accounts and operations dEtmepany. All intercompany accounts and
transactions have been eliminated. The consolidatadcial statements have been prepared in corifpmith accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America ("U.S. ®AAThe preparation of the consolidated finansiatements in conformity with
U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimatesissuinptions that affect the amounts reporteddrctimsolidated financial statements
and accompanying notes. Actual results could diffam these estimates and assumptions.

Certain reclassifications have been magwity year amounts to conform to the current pepoesentation.

The Company considers events or transactivat occur after the balance sheet date, butd#fe financial statements are issued, to
provide additional evidence relative to certainreates or to identify matters that require addislogisclosures.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

We consider all money market funds and lgigiguid investments with maturities of three miastor less at the time of purchase to be
"Cash and cash equivalents".

Investment Securitie

Investments designated as availableséde-securities are carried at fair value, whidbaised on quoted market prices for such securit
available, or is estimated on the basis of quotadket prices of financial instruments with simi@raracteristics. Unrealized gains and loss:
the Company's available-for-sale securities aréuebed from earnings and reported as a componél@tber comprehensive income (loss)".

Investments with original maturities gredten 90 days and remaining maturities of lese three year are normally classified as "Short-
term investments”. In addition, investments withtumiéies beyond one year may be classified as "tSieom investments" if they are highly
liguid in nature and represent the investment shahat is available for current operations.

The specific identification method is usedietermine the cost of securities disposed df vaalized gains and losses reflected in
investment and other income, net in the consolilatatements of operations.
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ACTIVISION BLIZZARD, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contired)
2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Coriiued)

The Company's investments include auciide securities ("ARS"). These ARS are variable bateds tied to shoterm interest rates wi
long-term maturities. ARS have interest rates whégdet through a modified Dutch auction at predeiteed short-term intervals, typically
every 7, 28, or 35 days. Interest on ARS is gehepalid at the end of each auction process andsedupon the interest rate determined fc
prior auction. The majority of our ARS are highted, and are typically collateralized by studeank guaranteed by the U.S. government
under the Federal Family Education Loan Progratmacked by monoline bond insurance companies.

Restricted Cash—Compensating Balances

Restricted cash is included within "Shierm investments” on the consolidated balance sh&ke majority of our restricted cash relate
a standby letter of credit required by one of owentory manufacturers to qualify for certain payptterms on our inventory purchases. Under
the terms of this arrangement, we are requiredaimtain with the issuing bank a compensating baarestricted as to use, of not less than the
sum of the available amount of the letter of cretlis the aggregate amount of any drawings undgeletter of credit that have been honored
thereunder, but have not yet been reimbursed.

Financial Instruments

The carrying amount of "Cash and cash edents", "Accounts receivable”, "Accounts payabteid "Accrued expenses" substantively
approximate fair value due to the short-term natdithese accounts. Our U.S. treasuries, governagsTcy securities, and mortgage-backed
securities are carried at fair value, which is base quoted market prices for such securitiesydilable, or is estimated on the basis of quoted
market prices of financial instruments with simitdmaracteristics. ARS are carried at fair valueictvlis estimated using an income-approach
model (specifically, a discounted cash-flow anaysi

Derivative instruments, primarily foreigrolange contracts, are reported at fair value ithéDassets" or "Other liabilities" in the
consolidated balance sheet. The fair value of foreurrency contracts are estimated based on éwaiting exchange rates of the various
hedged currencies as of the end of the period.

Activision Blizzard transacts business @migus foreign currencies and has significant maéonal sales and expenses denominated in
foreign currencies, subjecting us to foreign cuckerisk. We utilize foreign exchange forward cootsaand swaps, with maturities of generally
less than one year, to mitigate foreign currenaharge rate risk associated with foreign curreseyominated assets and liabilities. Activis
Blizzard does not use derivatives for speculativeading purposes, and the Company does not datsighese derivatives as hedging
instruments under ASC Topic 815. Accordingly, gand losses resulting from changes in the fairamthrough the period are reported as
General and administrative expenses or Investrmahbther income, net in the consolidated statemeniperations, depending on the nature
of the derivative.

Other-Than-Temporary Impairments

The Company regularly reviews its investtaea determine whether a decline in fair valuetethe cost basis is other than a temporary
impairment. If the decline is determined to be offan-temporary, the cost basis of the investngewtitten down to fair value. For
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ACTIVISION BLIZZARD, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contired)
2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Coriiued)

available-for-sale fixed maturity instruments wheredit-related impairments exist, other-than-terappimpairments are reported in the
consolidated statement of operations and non-cirgiirments are reported in accumulated other cehgnsive income (loss).

Concentration of Credit Risk

Our concentration of credit risk relateslépositors holding the Company's cash and caskiadgnts and customers with significant
accounts receivable balances. Substantially allofcash and cash equivalents are held in finaimg&luments issued or fully guaranteed by
local and foreign governments and governmentalrozgéions, with the significant majority of thesesiruments being money market funds.

Our customer base includes retailers asliliitors, including mass-market retailers, consuetectronics stores, discount warehouses,
and game specialty stores in the U.S. and othertdes worldwide. We perform ongoing credit evaloas of our customers and maintain
allowances for potential credit losses. We gengddl not require collateral or other security froor customers.

We did not have any single customer thabaoted for 10% or more of net revenues for the gaded December 31, 2011. We had one
customer, Wal-Mart, which accounted for 21% of adigsited gross receivables at December 31, 2011.

For the year ended December 31, 2010, weoha customer in our Activision and Blizzard opi@gsegments, GameStop, which
accounted for approximately 12% of consolidatedree¢nues for the year ended December 31, 2010eGtm and Wal-Mart accounted for
approximately 12% and 18% of consolidated grossivaebles at December 31, 2010, respectively.

Software Development Costs and Intellectual Propkitenses

Software development costs include paymeratde to independent software developers undelatawent agreements, as well as direct
costs incurred for internally developed products.

We account for software development castecicordance with the Financial Accounting Stansi&odard ("FASB") guidance for the costs
of computer software to be sold, leased, or ottesumarketed within ASC Subtopic 985-20. Softwaneetipment costs are capitalized once
technological feasibility of a product is estabéidrand such costs are determined to be recovefiaabnological feasibility of a product
encompasses both technical design documentatiogand design documentation, or the completed atedgroduct design and working
model. Significant management judgments and estisrate utilized in the assessment of when techiwalbigasibility is established. For
products where proven technology exists, this nayuoearly in the development cycle. Technologdieakibility is evaluated on a product-by-
product basis. Prior to a product's release, wemsg, as part of "Cost of sales—software royadtiesamortization", capitalized costs if and
when we believe such amounts are not recoverablgitalized costs for those products that are céetter expected to be abandoned are
charged to "Product development expense" in thegef cancellation. Amounts related to softwargelepment which are not capitalized are
charged immediately to "Product development expénse

Commencing upon product release, capitdl&dtware development costs are amortized to "Glostles—software royalties and
amortization” based on the ratio of current reventoeotal projected revenues for the specific pobdgenerally resulting in an amortization
period of six months or less.

F-9




Table of Contents

ACTIVISION BLIZZARD, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contired)
2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Coriiued)

Intellectual property license costs repnésieense fees paid to intellectual property rightlders for use of their trademarks, copyrights,
software, technology, music or other intellectualgerty or proprietary rights in the developmenbof products. Depending upon the
agreement with the rights holder, we may obtairridpet to use the intellectual property in multipileducts over a number of years, or
alternatively, for a single product. Prior to tledated product's release, we expense, as parosf 8¢ sales—intellectual property licenses,"
capitalized intellectual property costs when wedwal such amounts are not recoverable. Capitalizetlectual property costs for those
products that are cancelled or expected to be alpeudare charged to product development expertbe iperiod of cancellation.

Commencing upon the related product's selegapitalized intellectual property license casesamortized to "Cost of sales—intellectual
property licenses" based on the ratio of currevémees for the specific product to total projeataeenues for all products in which the licen
property will be utilized. As intellectual propettigense contracts may extend for multiple yedrs,amortization of capitalized intellectual
property license costs relating to such contractyg extend beyond one year.

We evaluate the future recoverability gbitalized software development costs and intelk@goperty licenses on a quarterly basis. For
products that have been released in prior peribésprimary evaluation criterion is actual titlefieemance. For products that are scheduled to
be released in future periods, recoverability ialeated based on the expected performance of #wfiggproducts to which the costs relate or
in which the licensed trademark or copyright id#oused. Criteria used to evaluate expected prguufdrmance include: historical
performance of comparable products developed vaithparable technology; orders for the product piodts release; and, for any sequel
product, estimated performance based on the peafuzenof the product on which the sequel is basedh&r, as many of our capitalized
intellectual property licenses extend for multipfeducts over multiple years, we also assess ttevegability of capitalized intellectual
property license costs based on certain qualitdsigmrs, such as the success of other productsraentertainment vehicles utilizing the
intellectual property, whether there are any fuplemned theatrical releases or television se@sgdh on the intellectual property, and the rights
holder's continued promotion and exploitation @ ihtellectual property.

Significant management judgments and est¢isnare utilized in assessing the recoverabilityagfitalized costs. In evaluating the
recoverability of capitalized costs, the assessmokekpected product performance utilizes foreahstdes amounts and estimates of additional
costs to be incurred. If revised forecasted oragttoduct sales are less than the originally fasesd amounts utilized in the initial
recoverability analysis, the net realizable valusyrne lower than originally estimated in any giwgrarter, which could result in an impairment
charge. Material differences may result in the anh@nd timing of expense for any period if managetneakes different judgments or utilizes
different estimates in evaluating these qualitatactors.

Inventories

Inventories consist of materials (includmgnufacturing royalties paid to console manufass)t labor and freight-in and are stated at the
lower of cost (weighted average method) or netzable value.
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ACTIVISION BLIZZARD, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contired)
2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Coriiued)
Long-Lived Assets

Property and Equipment. Property and equipment are recorded at costlapckciated on a straight-line basis over thenedéd useful
life (i.e., 25 to 33 years, for buildings, and 2 to 5 yemscomputer equipment, office furniture and oteguipment) of the asset. When as
are retired or disposed of, the cost and accuntulZgereciation thereon are removed and any regudims or losses are included in the
consolidated statements of operations. Leasehgdowements are amortized using the straight-linthoteover the estimated life of the asset,
not to exceed the length of the lease. Repair agidtenance costs are expensed as incurred.

Goodwill and Other Indefinite-Lived AssetsWe account for goodwill using the provisionghin ASC Topic 350. Under ASC Topic
350, goodwill is considered to have an indefinifie, land is carried at cost. Acquired trade namesaasessed as indefinite lived assets as there
are no foreseeable limits on the periods of timeraevhich they are expected to contribute cash flésagodwill and acquired trade names are
not amortized, but are subject to an impairmeritaraually, as well as in between annual tests vevemts or circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may not be recoverable. We perfonmamnual impairment testing at Decembef'31

Our annual goodwill impairment test is penfied at the reporting unit level. We have deteediour reporting units based on the guid:
within ASC Subtopic 350-20, which provides thatogmg units are generally operating segments erreporting level below the operating
segments. As of December 31, 2011, the Comparpstieg units are the same as our operating seg@maativision, Blizzard, and
Distribution. We test goodwill for possible impaiemt by first determining the fair value of the telhreporting unit and comparing this value
to the recorded net assets of the reporting urdtuding goodwill. In the event the recorded nesess of the reporting unit exceed the estimated
fair value of such assets, we perform a secondtstapeasure the amount of the impairment, whicakgisal to the amount by which the
recorded goodwill exceeds the implied fair valugh&f goodwill after assessing the fair value ofheaicthe assets and liabilities within the
reporting unit.

Fair value of our reporting units is detared using an income approach based on discouasddftow models. In determining the fair
value of our reporting units, we assumed a discoatetbetween 10.0% and 13.0%. During our 2011 @rimpairment testing, the Company
identified and recorded a $12 million impairmengobdwill to "General and administrative" in thatsiment of operations related to the
Distribution reporting unit. The impairment was doeleclines in our expected future performancthefdistribution companies based on
growing industry trends towards digital distributiand online gaming. The estimated fair valuediefremaining reporting units exceeded their
carrying values by at least $4 billion or 40% a®etember 31, 2011. However, changes in our assonspinderlying our estimates of fair
value, which will be a function of our future fingial performance and changes in economic conditiomsld result in future impairment
charges.

We test acquired trade names for possibpmirment by using a discounted cash flow modektimate fair value. We have determined
that no impairment has occurred at December 311 P@%sed upon a set of assumptions regarding dissdfuture cash flows, which represent
our best estimate of future performance at thigtim determining the fair value of our trade namwes assumed a discount rate of 10%, and
royalty saving rates of approximately 1.5%. A oeecentage point increase in the discount rate wootd/ield an impairment charge to our
trade names. Changes in our
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contired)
2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Coriiued)

assumptions underlying our estimates of fair valdgch will be a function of our future financiakgormance and changes in economic
conditions, could result in future impairment clesg

Amortizable Intangible Assets.Intangible assets subject to amortization areied at cost less accumulated amortization, amorgzed
over the estimated useful life in proportion to do®nomic benefits received.

Management evaluates the recoverabilityufidentifiable intangible assets and other Itimgd assets in accordance with FASB guid:
within ASC Subtopic 360-10, which generally regaitbe assessment of these assets for recoverattiigg events or circumstances indicate a
potential impairment exists. We considered certaients and circumstances in determining whethecdhying value of identifiable intangible
assets and other long-lived assets may not be eeaiole including, but not limited to: significaritanges in performance relative to expected
operating results; significant changes in the ddbeassets; significant negative industry or eoic trends; a significant decline in our stock
price for a sustained period of time; and changesir business strategy. In determining whethémgorairment exists, we estimate the
undiscounted cash flows to be generated from theand ultimate disposition of these assets. Ihgrairment is indicated based on a
comparison of the assets' carrying values andridescounted cash flows, the impairment loss is mrealksas the amount by which the carrying
amount of the assets exceeds the fair value adgbets.

In the fourth quarter of 2010, we recordegairment charges of $67 million, $9 million an25® million to license agreements, game
engines and internally developed franchises intdagissets, respectively. In the fourth quarte2Qgf9, we recorded impairment charges of
$24 million, $12 million and $373 million to liceasagreements, game engines and internally devefopechises intangible assets,
respectively. (See Note 11 of the Notes to Conat#id Financial Statements)

Revenue Recognitic
Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables

Effective January 1, 2011, we adopted ammermds to an accounting standard related to reveaggnition for arrangements with multi|
deliverables (which standard, as amended, is egfd herein as the "new accounting principleshle iew accounting principles establish a
selling price hierarchy for determining the selljpiice of a deliverable and requires the applicatibthe relative selling price method to
allocate the consideration received for an arraregero each deliverable in a multiple deliverabagenue arrangement. Certain of our reve
arrangements have multiple deliverables and, ds, suie accounted for under the new accounting iples: These revenue arrangements
include product sales consisting of both softwane laardware deliverables (such as peripheralshar @ncillary collectors' items sold together
with physical "boxed" software) and our sales\adrld of Warcrafthoxed products, expansion packs and value-addeitegreach of which is
considered with the related subscription servioesifese purposes. Our assessment of deliverafdiesrats of accounting does not change
under the new accounting principles.

Pursuant to the guidance of ASU 2009-13nwh revenue arrangement contains multiple elemsunth as hardware and software
products, licenses and/or services, we allocatemas to each element based on a selling pricerbigraThe selling price for a deliverable is
based on its vendor-specific-objective-evidenceSOE") if it is available, third-party evidence ("EB if VSOE is not available, or best
estimated selling price ("BESP") if neither VSOR A®E is available. In multiple
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element arrangements where more-tiraridental software deliverables are included, nexeis allocated to each separate unit of accogfidir
each of the non-software deliverables and to tiftevace deliverables as a group using the relatling prices of each of the deliverables in
the arrangement based on the aforementioned selliog hierarchy. If the arrangement contains ntlba® one software deliverable, the
arrangement consideration allocated to the softaaligerables as a group is then allocated to eaftivare deliverable using the guidance for
recognizing software revenue.

As noted above, when neither VSOE nor T$&vailable for a deliverable, we use BESP. Weatdave significant revenue arrangem
that require BESP for the year ended December(!1.2The inputs we use to determine the sellingepof our significant deliverables include
the actual price charged by the Company for a dedivle that the Company sells separately, whictesgmts the VSOE, and the wholesale
prices of the same or similar products, which repnés TPE. The pattern and timing of revenue retiogrfor deliverables and allocation of
the arrangement consideration did not change upmadoption of the new accounting principles. Atbe,adoption of the new accounting
standard has not had a material impact on our ¢inhstatements in the current period.

Product Sales

We recognize revenue from the sale of @eadpcts once title and risk of loss have been fesresd to our customers and any performance
obligation(s) have been completed. Certain prodaissold to customers with a "street date” (wigdhe earliest date these products may be
sold by retailers). For these products, we recagréxenue on the later of the street date andateetde product is sold to the customer.
Revenue from product sales is recognized after ctadpthe estimated allowance for returns and pprocgection.

For our software products with online fuanglity, we evaluate whether those features octionality are more than an inconsequential
separate deliverable in addition to the softwanspct. This evaluation is performed for each sofean@roduct and any online transaction, such
as a digital download of a title or product add;omen it is released.

When we determine that a software titletams online functionality that constitutes a mtraen-inconsequential separate deliverable in
addition to the product, principally because ofiitportance to gameplay, we consider our perforraanidigations for this title to extend
beyond the sale of the game. VSOE of fair valuesdu® exist for the online functionality of som@gucts, as we do not separately charge for
this component of every title. As a result, we gruae all of the software-related revenue fromgake of any such title ratably over the
estimated service period of such title. In additie initially defer the costs of sales for théetifexcluding intangible asset amortization), and
recognize the costs of sales as the related resaareaecognized. Cost of sales includes manufagtaosts, software royalties and
amortization, and intellectual property licensestso

We recognize revenues fraltorld of Warcraftboxed product, expansion packs and value-addeétssnin each case with the related
subscription service revenue, ratably over theregtd service period beginning upon activatiorhefgoftware and delivery of the related
services. Revenues attributed to the saM/ofld of Warcraftboxed software and related expansion packs arsifidasas "Product sales",
whereas revenues attributable to subscriptionsémet value-added services are classified as "Siptisn, licensing and other revenues".
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Revenues for software products with momtinconsequential separate service deliverablgés\amld of Warcrafproducts are
recognized over the estimated service periods,iwfgEinge from a minimum of five months to a maximeinhess than a year.

For our software products with featuresceasider to be incidental to the overall produéefg and an inconsequential deliverable, <
as products which provide limited online features@additional cost to the consumer, we recogthieeelated revenue from them upon the
transfer of title and risk of loss of the produziour customer.

With respect to online transactions, suzl@ine downloads of titles or product add-ong tltanot include a more-than-inconsequential
separate service deliverable, revenue is recogniheth the fee is paid by the online customer teipase online content, the product is
available for download and is activated for gamgplia addition, persuasive evidence of an arrangemmeist exist and collection of the related
receivable must be probable.

Sales incentives and other consideratiwargby us to our customers, such as rebates addgreplacement fees, are considered
adjustments of the selling price of our productd are reflected as reductions to revenue. Salesnfives and other consideration that represent
costs incurred by us for assets or services redesteeh as the appearance of our products in aroes's national circular ad, are reflected as
sales and marketing expenses when the benefitthieraales incentive is separable from sales tsdahe customer and we can reasonably
estimate the fair value of the benefit.

Subscription Revenues

Subscription revenues are derived fidtorld of Warcraftand from ourCall of Duty ElitemembershipWorld of Warcraftis a game that |
playable through Blizzard's servers and is genesalld through a subscription-only basis, whei@ab of Duty Eliteprovides an enhanced
multiplayer gameplay experience through subscripbiased services, such as monthly downloadablerband year round competitions.

ForWorld of Warcraft, after the first month of free usage that is ideld with theworld of Warcrafthoxed software, th&/orld of
Warcraftend user may enter into a subscription agreemerdditional future access. Revenues associatddthétsale of subscriptions via
boxed software and prepaid subscription cards,adlsas prepaid subscriptions sales, are deferrétitha subscription service is activated by
the consumer and are then recognized ratably beesubscription period. Value-added service revemasgsociated with subscriptions are
recognized ratably over the estimated service gerio

Licensing Revenues

Third-party licensees in Russia, China @atlvan distribute and host Blizzar&orld of Warcraftgame in their respective countries un
license agreements, for which they pay the Comparyalty. We recognize these royalties as revehassd on the end users' activation o
underlying prepaid time, if all other performand#igations have been completed, or based on usagekend user, when we have continuing
service obligations. We recognize any upfront Igirg fee received over the term of the contracts.

With respect to license agreements thatigeocustomers the right to make multiple copiesohange for guaranteed amounts, reven
generally recognized upon delivery of a master c&@y
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copy royalties on sales that exceed the guaraméeeeognized as earned. In addition, persuasikeee of an arrangement must exist and
collection of the related receivable must be prddab

Breakage Revenues

World of Warcraftboxed product sales and subscription revenuessaognized upon activation of the game. We analjsterical
activation patterns over time to determine whenlikedihood of activation ever occurring becomesoge. We recognize revenues from
subscriptions that have not yet been activategygidesubscription cards, as well as prepaid syttseni sales, when the likelihood of future
activation occurring is remote (defined as "bre&kezyenues"). For the years ended December 31, 2010, and 2009, we recorded
$0 million, $14 million, and $5 million, respectiyeof breakage revenues from the sale of packagédare in product sales, and $0 million,
$6 million, and $8 million, respectively of prepaidd subscription breakage revenues in subscrigic@msing and other revenues in the
consolidated statements of operations.

Other Revenues

Other revenues primarily include licensaugivity of intellectual property other than softwao third-parties. Revenue is recorded upon
receipt of licensee statements, or upon the recéiphsh, provided the license period has begun.

Allowances for Returns, Price Protection, Doubfigicounts, and Inventory Obsolesce

We closely monitor and analyze the histrjerformance of our various titles, the perforg®nf products released by other publishers,
market conditions, and the anticipated timing ¢fentreleases to assess future demand of currentpamining titles. Initial volumes shipped
upon title launch and subsequent reorders are &ealwith the goal of ensuring that quantitiessarfficient to meet the demand from the retalil
markets, but at the same time are controlled tegimeexcess inventory in the channel. We benchmaits to be shipped to our customers
using historical and industry data.

We may permit product returns from, or granice protection to, our customers under certainditions. In general, price protection refers
to the circumstances in which we elect to decreas@, short or longer term basis, the wholesakef a product by a certain amount and,
when granted and applicable, allow customers dtcagdinst amounts owed by such customers to Usredtpect to open and/or future
invoices. The conditions our customers must mebetgranted the right to return products or priegqrtion include, among other things,
compliance with applicable trading and payment ggramd consistent return of inventory and delivargales reporting to us. We may also
consider other factors, including the facilitatiofitslow-moving inventory and other market factors.

Significant management judgments and estisnaust be made and used in connection with éstalg the allowance for returns and
price protection in any accounting period base@stimates of potential future product returns amckepprotection related to current period
product revenue. We estimate the amount of futetierms and price protection for current period piidevenue utilizing historical experience
and information regarding inventory levels anddieenand and acceptance of our products by the emsliower. The following factors are used
to estimate the amount of future returns and grrogection for a particular title: historical penfilance of titles in similar genres; historical
performance of the hardware platform; historicaf@enance of the franchise; console hardware life
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cycle; sales force and retail customer feedbaaystry pricing; weeks of on-hand retail channekimeory; absolute quantity of on-hand retail
channel inventory; our warehouse on-hand inveriergls; the title's recent sales history (if aval#d; marketing trade programs; and
performance of competing titles. The relative impoce of these factors varies among titles depgngimon, among other items, genre,
platform, seasonality, and sales strategy.

Based upon historical experience, we beli&at our estimates are reasonable. However,laetuans and price protection could vary
materially from our allowance estimates due to miner of reasons including, among others, a ladoasumer acceptance of a title, the rel
in the same period of a similarly themed title byoapetitor, or technological obsolescence dubeemergence of new hardware platforms.
Material differences may result in the amount amdrig of our revenue for any period if factors oanket conditions change or if management
makes different judgments or utilizes differenirastes in determining the allowances for returns jaice protection. For example, a 1%
change in our December 31, 2011 allowance for setesns, price protection and other allowancesldzbave impacted net revenues by
approximately $3 million.

Similarly, management must make estimases #he collectability of our accounts receivalieestimating the allowance for doubtful
accounts, we analyze the age of current outstaratingunt balances, historical bad debts, custoorerantrations, customer creditworthiness,
current economic trends, and changes in our custp@&yment terms and their economic conditionwelsas whether we can obtain suffici
credit insurance. Any significant changes in anyheke criteria would affect management's estimatestablishing our allowance for doubtful
accounts.

We regularly review inventory quantitiesloand and in the retail channel. We write down imteey based on excess or obsolete
inventories determined primarily by future antidgghdemand for our products. Inventory write-dowres measured as the difference between
the cost of the inventory and net realizable vabased upon assumptions about future demand, vahécimherently difficult to assess and
dependent on market conditions. At the point aiss Irecognition, a new, lower cost basis for the¢mtory is established, and subsequent
changes in facts and circumstances do not resthinestoration or increase in that newly esthblishasis.

Shipping and Handling

Shipping and handling costs, which congigharily of packaging and transportation chargesiired to move finished goods to
customers, are included in "Cost of sales—prodastsc"

Advertising Expense

We expense advertising as incurred, exicedroduction costs associated with media advegjsvhich are deferred and charged to
expense when the related advertisement is raméofirst time. Advertising expenses for the yeardesl December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009
were $343 million, $332 million, and $366 millioespectively, and are included in "Sales and margetxpense” in the consolidated
statements of operations.

Income Taxe

We record a tax provision for the anticgzhtax consequences of the reported results oabpes. In accordance with FASB income tax
guidance within ASC Topic 740, the provision for
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income taxes is computed using the asset anditiabiethod, under which deferred tax assets atulitias are recognized for the expected
future tax consequences attributable to differeheteeen the financial statement carrying amouhéxisting assets and liabilities and their
respective tax bases and operating losses andddit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liddxsl are measured using enacted tax rates
expected to apply to taxable income in the yeawshith the deferred tax assets or liabilities aqgeeted to be recovered or settled. The effect
on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a changax rates is recognized in income in the petiat includes the enactment date. We evaluate
deferred tax assets each period for recoverabiity those assets that do not meet the threshaddofitmore likely than not" that they will be
realized in the future, a valuation allowance ioreed.

We report a liability for unrecognized taenefits resulting from uncertain tax positionsetalor expected to be taken in a tax return. We
recognize interest and penalties, if any, relateghrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense.

Foreign Currency Translatio

All assets and liabilities of our foreigmbosidiaries are translated into U.S. dollars atetkehange rate in effect at the balance sheet date,
and revenue and expenses are translated at avetelgenge rates during the period. The resultingstation adjustments are reflected as a
component of "Accumulated other comprehensive ire@oss)" in shareholders' equity.

Earnings (Loss) Per Common Shi

"Basic earnings (loss) per common sharebimputed by dividing income (loss) available tonooon shareholders by the weighted
average number of common shares outstanding fgueahieds presented. "Diluted earnings per sharesputed by dividing income (loss)
available to common shareholders by the weightedsape number of common shares outstanding, inatdnsthe weighted average numbe
common stock equivalents. Common stock equivalam@alculated using the treasury stock methodegmeésent incremental shares issuable
upon exercise of our outstanding options. Howepetential common shares are not included in thechemator of the diluted earnings (loss)
per share calculation when inclusion of such shaadd be anti-dilutive, such as in a period in géha net loss is recorded.

When we determine whether instruments gt stock-based payment transactions are patingpsecurities, unvested stock-based
awards which include the right to receive non-fitefele dividends or dividend equivalents are coaad to participate with common stock in
undistributed earnings. With participating secastiwe are required to calculate basic and dileggdings per common share amounts under
the two-class method. The two-class method exclfrdes earnings per common share calculations avigelids paid or owed to participating
securities and any undistributed earnings consitierde attributable to participating securities.

Stock-Based Compensation

We account for stock-based compensati@caordance with ASC Topic 718-10pmpensation-Stock Compensatj@and ASC Subtopic
505-50,Equity-Based Payments to Non-Employ@ASC stock-based compensation guidance"). Stmded compensation expense recogt
during the requisite services period (that is,gbgod for which the employee is being compensaged)is based on the value of stock-based
payment awards after reduction for estimated farfes. Forfeitures are estimated
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at the time of grant and are revised, if necessargtibsequent periods if actual forfeitures differmn those estimates. Stock-based
compensation expense recognized in the consolidéteinent of operations for the years ended DeeeB1h 2011, 2010, and 2009 included
both compensation expense for stock-based paymemta granted by Activision, Inc. prior to, but iyet vested as of July 9, 2008, based on
the revalued fair value estimated at July 9, 2@®8l, compensation expense for the stock-based paywands granted by us subsequent to
July 9, 2008.

We estimate the value of stock-based paym&ards on the measurement date using a binoattald model. Our determination of fair
value of stock-based payment awards on the dajeaot using an option-pricing model is affectedobly stock price as well as assumptions
regarding a number of highly complex and subjecti@gables. These variables include, but are naitéid to, our expected stock price
volatility over the term of the awards, and actad projected employee stock option exercise bemavi

We generally determine the fair value aftrieted stock rights (including restricted stoclits, restricted stock awards, and performance
shares) based on the closing market price of theg2oy's common stock on the date of grant.

See Note 18 of the Notes to Consolidatedfdial Statements.
3. Investment and other income, net

Investment and other income, net is coneprizf the following (amounts in millions):

For the Years Ended
December 31,
2011 2010 2009

Interest incom $ 14 $ 8 $ 15
Interest expens 4 (5) 4)
Change in fair value of other financial liabill — 22 8

Net realized and unrealized loss on foreign exchi
contracts with Vivend @) 2 (€8]

Investment and other income, 1 $ 3 $ 23 $ 18

4. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The following table summarizes the compaser our cash and cash equivalents with originatumities of three months or less at the
of purchase (amounts in millions):

At December 31,

2011 2010
Cash $ 27C $ 24t
Time deposit: 24 19
Money market fund 2,86¢ 2,21¢
U.S. treasuries and/or foreign government bc 2 332
Cash and cash equivalel $ 3,168 $ 2,817
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5. Investments

The following table summarizes our shortrt@nd long-term investments at December 31, 20112810 (amounts in millions):

Gross Gross
Amortized unrealized unrealized Fair

At December 31, 2011 cost gains losses Value
Shor-term investments
Available-for-sale investment:
U.S. treasuries and government

agency securitie $ 344 % — 3 — $ 344
Restricted cas 16
Total shor-term investment $ 36C
Long-term investments
Available-for-sale investment:
Auction rate securities held throu

Morgan Stanley Smith

Barney LLC $ 17 $ — 3 1) $ 16

Gross Gross
Amortized unrealized unrealized Fair

At December 31, 201( cost gains losses Value
Shor-term investments
Available-for-sale investment:
U.S. treasuries and government

agency securitie $ 672 $ — $ — $ 67z
Restricted cas 24
Total shor-term investment $ 69€
Long-term investments
Available-for-sale investment:
Auction rate securities held throu

Morgan Stanley Smith

Barney LLC $ 27 % — $ (4 $ 23

The following table illustrates the grossealized losses on available-for-sale securitfesfair value of those securities, aggregated by
investment categories, and the length of time ey have been in a continuous unrealized losgiposit December 31, 2011 and 2010
(amounts in millions):

Less than 12 months 12 months or more Total
Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair
At December 31, 201: losses Value losses Value losses Value
Taxable auction
rate securitie  $ —$ — 8 1% 16 % @BHs$ 16
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5. Investments (Continued)

Less than 12 months 12 months or more

Total

Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair
At December 31, 201( losses Value losses Value losses Value
Taxable auctiol
rate securite  $ —3%$ — 3 4% 23% @s 23

The total unrealized loss of $1 millionDecember 31, 2011 is due to failed auctions ofliexARS held through Morgan Stanley Smith
Barney LLC, which is 51% owned by Morgan Stanleg 48% owned by Citigroup, Inc. The ARS were heleclily through a wholly owned
subsidiary of Citigroup, Inc. until the Morgan SteynSmith Barney LLC joint-venture closed in thesed quarter 2009. The majority of our

investments in ARS are all backed by higher edonagtudent loans.

Based upon our analysis of the availabtestde investments with unrealized losses, we kaneluded that the gross unrealized losses of
$1 million at December 31, 2011 were temporarydture. We do not intend to sell the investment sées that are in an unrealized loss
position and do not consider that it is more-likédgn-not that we will be required to sell the istreent securities before recovery of their
amortized cost basis, which may be maturity. Weehast identified any issues related to the ultinmepgyment of principal as a result of cr
concerns on these securities. However, facts androstances may change which could result in drdeti fair value considered to be other-

than-temporary in the future.

The following table summarizes the contrally stated maturities of our short- and long-témrestments classified as available-fale a

December 31, 2011 (amounts in millions):

Amortized Fair
At December 31, 2011 cost Value
U.S. government agency securities due in 1 yebrss $ 344 $ 344
Due after ten yeal 17 16

$ 361 $ 36C

6. Software development and intellectual propertyitenses

The following table summarizes the compaser our software development and intellectuapprty licenses (amounts in millions):

At At
December 31, December 31,

2011 2010
Internally developed software co $ 11t % 142
Payments made to th-party software develope 84 60
Total software development co: $ 19¢ $ 20z
Intellectual property license $ 34 % 73
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6. Software development and intellectual propertyitenses (Continued)

Amortization, write-offs and impairmentsazpitalized software development costs and irttlbd property licenses are comprised of the
following (amounts in millions):

For the Years Ended December 3]
2011 2010 2009

Amortization $ 25¢ % 31¢ % 314
Write-offs and impairment 60 66 21

7. Restructuring

On February 3, 2011, the Board of Directrthe Company authorized a restructuring plae (8011 Restructuring”) involving a focus
on the development and publication of a reducetg sifititles on a going-forward basis, including tiscontinuation of the development of
music-based games, the closure of the related éssimit and the cancellation of other titles timgoroduction, along with a related reduction
in studio headcount and corporate overhead.

The following table details the amountloé 2011 Restructuring reserves included in "Acciiegenses and Other Liabilities" in the
consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 201du@min millions):

Facilities Contract termination
Severance COsts Costs Total
Balance at December 31,

2010 $ — 3 — % — $ —
Costs charged to exper 20 4 1 25
Costs paid or otherwise

settled (16) @ Q) (18
Balance at December &

2011 $ 4 3% 3 3 — % 7

The 2011 Restructuring charges for the paaed December 31, 2011 was $25 million. Thesgelaas well as the 2011 Restructuring
reserve balances at December 31, 2011, were retuwiitien our Activision segment. We completed ti#d 2 Restructuring as of December
2011 and we do not expect to incur significant addal restructuring expenses relating thereto.

We have completed our implementation ofanganizational restructuring plan as a resulhefBusiness Combination. There were
minimal cash payments and additional charges irconsolidated statement of operations for the gaded December 31, 2011 relating to that
restructuring and we do not expect to incur add#laestructuring expenses relating thereto.
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8. Inventories, net
Our inventories consist of the followingr@unts in millions):

At December 31,

2011 2010
Finished good $ 11€ $ 98
Purchased parts and compone 28 14
Inventories, ne $ 144 $ 11z

9. Property and Equipment, Net
Property and equipment, net was compri$edeofollowing (amounts in millions):

At December 31,

2011 2010

Land $ 1% 1
Buildings 5 5
Leasehold improvemen 72 57
Computer equipmet 40€ 38¢€
Office furniture and other equipme 49 63
Total cost of property and equipme 53: 51z
Less accumulated depreciati (370 (343
Property and equipment, r $ 16 $ 16¢

Depreciation expense for the years endaxéibber 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009 was $75 millioB,#8lion, and $76 million, respectively.
Rental expenses were $38 million, $37 orilland $38 million for the years ended DecembefB11, 2010, and 2009, respectively.
10. Goodwill

The changes in the carrying amount of gabbdhy reporting unit for the years ended Decem®gr2011 and 2010 are as follows (amounts
in millions):

Activision Blizzard Distribution Total
Balance at December 31, 2C $ 6,962 $ 17¢€ $ 12 $ 7,154
Tax benefit credited to goodw (22 — — (22
Balance at December 31, 2C $ 694 $ 17¢€ $ 12 $ 7,132
Tax benefit credited to goodw (12 — — (12
Issuance of contingent considerat 3 — — 3
Impairment of goodwil — — (12 (12
Balance at December 31, 2C $ 6,93 $ 17¢ $ — $ 7,111
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10. Goodwill (Continued)

Issuance of contingent consideration césisitadditional purchase consideration paid orwext in relation to previous acquisitions. The
tax benefit credited to goodwill represents thedasluction resulting from the exercise of stockans that were outstanding and vested at the
consummation of the Business Combination and iredud the purchase price of Activision, Inc. to gxent that the tax deduction did not
exceed the fair value of those options. Converdelthe extent that the tax deduction did exceeddir value of those options, the tax bene
credited to accumulated paid in capital.

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the grosslgdl and accumulated impairment losses by repgrtinit are as follows:

Activision Blizzard Distribution Total

Balance at December 31, 20:

Goodwill $ 6,94 $ 17t $ 12 $ 7,13:

Total $ 694 $ 17 $ 12 $ 7,13¢
Balance at December 31, 20:

Goodwill $ 693 $ 17¢ $ 12 $ 7,12¢

Accumulated impairment loss — — (12 (12

Total $ 6,93: $ 17 $ — $ 7,111

11. Intangible Assets, Net
Intangible assets, net consist of the fithg (amounts in millions):

At December 31, 201:

Estimated Gross
useful carrying Accumulated Impairment Net carrying
lives amount amortization charge amount
Acquired definite-lived
intangible asset:
License agreemen 3-10years $ 88 $ 82 ¢ — $ 6
Game engine 2-5years 32 32 — —
Internally develope:
franchises 11-12 year: 30¢ (227) — 82
Distribution agreement 4 years 18 (18) — —
Acquired indefinit-lived
intangible asset:
Activision trademart Indefinite 38¢€ — — 38€
Acquired trade name Indefinite 47 — — 47
Total $ 88C $ (359 $ — $ 521
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11. Intangible Assets, Net (Continued)

At December 31, 2010

Estimated Gross
useful carrying Accumulated Impairment Net carrying
lives amount amortization charge amount
Acquired definit-lived
intangible asset:
License agreemen 3-10years $ 17z $ 91 $ (67) $ 14
Game engine 2-5years 61 (50) (9) 2
Internally developed
franchises 11- 12 year: 574 (182) (250) 142
Favorable lease 1-4years 5 (5) — —
Distribution agreement 4 years 18 (16) — 2
Acquired indefinit-lived
intangible asset:
Activision trademart Indefinite 38¢€ — — 38€
Acquired trade name Indefinite 47 — — 47
Total $ 1,26 $ (344 $ (326) $ 592

Amortization expense of intangible assets %72 million, $130 million, and $271 million fire years ended December 31, 2011, 2010,
and 2009, respectively.

The gross carrying amount as of DecembgR@11 in the tables above reflect a new cost Hasiicense agreements, game engines and
internally developed franchises due to impairmératrges for the year ended December 31, 2010. Theost basis includes the original gross
carrying amount, less accumulated amortizationianpéirment charges on the intangible assets asoémber 31, 2010.

At December 31, 2011, future amortizatibdefinite-lived intangible assets is estimatedadi®ws (amounts in millions):

2012 $ 34
2013 28
2014 13
2015 7
2016 3
Thereaftel 3
Total $ 88

We did not record any impairment chargesirasi our intangible assets for the year ended mbee 31, 2011.

In 2010, we considered the continued ecoaadmwnturn within our industry and the changeha buying habits of casual consumers
while planning for 2011 during the fourth quart€2610. This resulted in a significant revisionoofr outlook for retail sales of software and a
strategy change to, among other things, focus werféitle releases in the casual genre and distoatihe development of music-based titles.
As we considered this change in strategy to bedicator of a potential impairment of our intangilalssets, we updated our future projected
revenue streams for certain franchises in the ¢gsumaes and music genres. We performed recovdsatalts and, where applicable, measured
the impairment of the related intangible assetcitordance with ASC
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Subtopic 360-10. This resulted in impairment chargle$67 million, $9 million and $250 million tacknse agreements, game engines and
internally developed franchises intangible asgetpectively, for the year ended December 31, 28d6rded within our Activision segment.

12. Current Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilitiesand Other Current Assets

Included in current accrued expenses anerdiabilities of our consolidated balance shee¢saccrued payroll related costs of
$363 million and $386 million at December 31, 2@hH 2010, respectively.

Included in other current assets of oursotidated balance sheets are deferred cost ofsalexluct costs of $246 million and
$250 million at December 31, 2011 and 2010, re$ypsdgt

13. Operating Segments and Geographic Region

Our operating segments are consistentouthinternal organizational structure, the mannexfich our operations are reviewed and
managed by our Chief Executive Officer, who is Ghief Operating Decision Maker ("CODM"), the manirewhich operating performance
assessed and resources are allocated, and thabditsibf separate financial information. Currgntive operate under three operating segm
Activision, Blizzard and Distribution (see Note fltbe notes to the consolidated financial statesjeflYe do not aggregate operating segmu

The CODM reviews segment performance exadusf the impact of the change in deferred neeéneres and related cost of sales with
respect to certain of our online-enabled gameskdbtased compensation expense, restructuring egpansrtization of intangible assets and
purchase price accounting related adjustments,irmpat of intangible assets and goodwill, integmatand transaction costs, and other. The
CODM does not review any information regarding ltassets on an operating segment basis and, asgbrdno disclosure is made.
Information on the operating segments and recaiilis of total net revenues and total segmentnigc@ioss) from operations to
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consolidated net revenues from external custonmesrecome (loss) before income tax expense foyéaes ended December 31, 2011, 2010,
and 2009 are presented below (amounts in millions):

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009
Income (loss) from
Net Revenues operations

Activision $ 2,826 $ 2,76¢ $ 3,15¢ $ 851 $ 511 $ 667

Blizzard 1,24 1,65¢ 1,19¢ 49¢ 85C 55k

Distribution 41¢ 37¢ 42z 11 10 16

Operating segments tof 4,48¢ 4,802 4,77¢ 1,35¢ 1,371 1,23¢

Reconciliation to consolidated net revenues / clicesied

income (loss) before tax expen

Net effect from deferral of net revenues and relaiest o

sales 26€ (356) (497) 182 (319 (389)

Stocl-based compensation expel — — — (109) (13)) (154)

Restructuring — — — (26) ?3) (23)

Amortization of intangible asse — — — (72) (123 (259)

Impairment of goodwill/intangible ass¢ — — — (12) (326) (409)

Integration and transaction co — — — — — (24)

Other — — 1 — — 8)
Consolidated net revenues / operating income ( $ 4,758 $ 4,447 $ 427¢ $ 1326 $ 46 $  (26)

Investment and other income, | 3 23 18
Consolidated income (loss) before income tax ex@ $ 1331 $ 492 $ (8)

For the years ended December 31, 2011 @h@, 2estructuring expense of $1 million and $3ianilis reflected in the "General and
administrative expense" in the consolidated statgroEoperations, respectively. These restructuexigenses were related to the Business
Combination consummated in July 2008. See NotetfieoNotes to Consolidated Financial Statementefane detail.

Geographic information for the years enBedember 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009 is based omthé&dn of the selling entity. Net revenues
from external customers by geographic region werdows (amounts in millions):

Years Ended
December 31,

2011 2010 2009
Net revenues by geographic regi
North America $ 2,408 $ 2,40¢ $ 2,217
Europe 1,99( 1,74z 1,79¢
Asia Pacific 36C 29t 263
Total geographic region net revent 4,75 4,443 4,27¢
Other — — 1
Total consolidated net revent $ 4,758 $ 4,447 $ 4,27¢
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Net revenues by platform were as followsadants in millions):

Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
Net revenues by platforn
Online subscriptions $ 1,357 $ 1,230 $ 1,24¢
Console 2,43¢ 2,33( 2,19¢
Handheld 167 184 244
PC and Othe 374 32t 164
Total platform net revenue 4,33i 4,06¢ 3,85¢
Distribution 41€ 37¢ 423
Other — — 1
Total consolidated net revent $ 4,755 $ 4,447 $ 4,27¢
* Revenue from online subscriptions consists of reednom allWorld of Warcrafiproducts, including

subscriptions, boxed products, expansion paclkending royalties, and val-added service!
Long-lived assets by geographic region@tdédnber 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009 were as follomsats in millions):

Years Ended December 31
2011 2010 2009

Long-lived assets* by geographic regic

North America $ 10t $ 11: $ 10C
Europe 46 46 32
Asia Pacific 12 10 6
Total lon¢-lived assets by geographic reg $ 165 $ 16 $ 13¢
* We classify long-lived assets as long term tandilskd assets by the location of the controllingtstory entity,

which only includes property, plant and equipmessteds, as all other long term assets are corpasatds that are
not allocated to location

For information regarding significant cusiers, see "Concentration of Credit Risk" in Notef fhe Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements.
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The following table sets forth the compiatatof basic and diluted earnings (loss) per comstware (amounts in millions, except per share
data):

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009
Numerator:
Consolidated net incon $ 1,08 $ 41 $ 11z
Less: Distributed earnings to unvested s-based awards th
participate in earning 3 2 —
Less: Undistributed earnings allocated to unvestedi-basec
awards that participate in earnir (13 2 1)
Numerator for basic and diluted earnings per comsi@re—
income available to common shareholc 1,06¢ 414 112
Denominator
Denominator for basic earnings per common share-ghted-
average common shares outstanc 1,14¢ 1,222 1,28:
Effect of potential dilutive common shares under titeasury
stock method: Employee stock optic 8 14 28
Denominator for diluted earnings per common s—
weighted-average common shares outstanding plutweil
effect of employee stock optio 1,15¢ 1,23¢ 1,311
Basic earnings per common sh $ 09I $ 034 $ 0.0¢
Diluted earnings per common shi $ 092 $ 03¢ $ 0.0¢

Our unvested restricted stock rights (idalg restricted stock units, restricted stock awaeshd performance shares) are considered
participating securities since these securitieghn-forfeitable rights to dividends or dividergu@zalents during the contractual period of the
award. Since the unvested restricted stock riglets@nsidered participating securities, we areireduo use the two-class method in our
computation of basic and diluted earnings per comsi@re. For the years ended December 31, 201204rfY] we had outstanding unvested
restricted stock rights with respect to 17 millimd 12 million shares of common stock on a weiglaeslrage basis, respectively.

Potential common shares are not includegtlérdenominator of the diluted earnings per comsiare calculation when inclusion of such
shares would be anti-dilutive. Therefore, optiamat¢quire 25 million, 25 million, and 20 millionafes of common stock were not included in
the calculation of diluted earnings (loss) per canmhare for the years ended December 31, 2010, 208 2009, respectively, as the effet
their inclusion would be anti-dilutive.
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15. Income Taxes

Domestic and foreign income (loss) befoi@mme taxes and details of the income tax expdresee(it) are as follows (amounts in
millions):

For the Years Ended
December 31,

2011 2010 2009
Income (loss) before income tax expense (ben:
Domestic $ 628 $ 228 $ (237)
Foreign 70€ 264 22¢

$ 1331 $ 492 $ (9

Income tax expense (benefi

Current:
Federa $ 144 $ 314 $ 237
State 2 31 46
Foreign 28 29 14
Total curreni 17C 374 297
Deferred:
Federal 61 (264) (309)
State 4 8 (75)
Foreign 19 (45 (12
Release of valuation allowan — — (22
Total deferrec 76 (301) (41¢)
Add back benefit credited to additional f-in
capital:
Excess tax benefit associated with stock opt — 1 —
Income tax expense (bene $ 246 $ 74 $ (12)
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15. Income Taxes (Continued)

The items accounting for the differencentssn income taxes computed at the U.S. federaitstgtincome tax rate and the income tax
expense (benefit) (the effective tax rate) for eafctihe years are as follows (amounts in millions):

For the Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009
Federal income tax provision at statutory 1 $ 46€  35%$ 17z 35%$  (3) (35)%
State taxes, net of federal ben 18 1 30 6 (17 (219
Research and development cre: 21y @ 1y @ (24) (302)
Domestic production activity deductit (15) (€8] (13 3 @) (89
Foreign rate differentic (202) (15 (109) (22 (82) (1,040
Change in valuation allowan — — — — (22) (28€)
Change in tax reservi 10 1 o — 34 44C
Foreign withholding ta: — — — — 2 24
Foreign tax credit — — — — (©)] (42)
Shortfall from employee stock option
exercise 9 1 8 1 2 27
Return to provision adjustme (32) 2 — — — —
Other 12 1 2 — Q) (13)
Income tax expense (benei $ 24€ 19%$ 74 15%%$ (121) (1,539)%
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15. Income Taxes (Continued)

Deferred income taxes reflect the net féects of temporary differences between the amoohgssets and liabilities for accounting
purposes and the amounts used for income tax pegpd®be components of the net deferred tax adsdigifes) are as follows (amounts in
millions):

As of December 31,

2011 2010
Deferred tax asset
Reserves and allowanc $ 20 $ 29
Allowance for sales returns and price protec 59 72
Inventory reservi 2 23
Accrued expense 101 117
Deferred revenu 33C 377
Tax credit carryforward 43 25
Net operating loss carryforwar 15 16
Stocl-based compensatic 91 99
Foreign deferred asse 16 15
Other 5 17
Deferred tax asse 682 79C
Valuation allowanct — —
Deferred tax assets, net of valuation allowe 682 79C
Deferred tax liabilities
Intangibles () (209)
Prepaid royaltie 2 2
Capitalized software development exper (33 (42
State taxe: (18) 9
Deferred tax liabilitie: (230) (262)
Net deferred tax asse $ 45z $ b52¢

As of December 31, 2011, our available fableet operating loss carryforward of less thamiliion is subject to certain limitations as
defined under Section 382 of the Internal Reveno@eCThe net operating loss carryforward will betgirxpire in 2023. We have various s/
net operating loss carryforwards totaling $17 miiliwhich are not subject to limitations under Sec882 of the Internal Revenue Code and
will begin to expire in 2013. We have tax creditrgforwards of $6 million and $37 million for fed®rand state purposes, respectively, which
begin to expire in fiscal 2016.

Through our foreign operations, we haveragpimately $47 million in net operating loss cangfards at December 31, 2011, attributed
mainly to losses in France and Ireland. We evalaatedeferred tax assets, including net operatisgds, to determine if a valuation allowance
is required. We assess whether a valuation allogvahould be established or released based on tiseleoation of all available evidence us
a "more likely than not" standard. In making suatigments, significant weight is given to eviderttat tan be objectively verified. At
December 31, 2011, there are no valuation allonenoedeferred tax assets.
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Realization of the U.S. deferred tax assetiependent upon the continued generation ofcgerft taxable income prior to expiration of 1
credits and loss carryforwards. Although realizai®not assured, management believes it is mkeg/Ithan not that the net carrying value of
the U.S. deferred tax assets will be realized.

Cumulative undistributed earnings of foregybsidiaries for which no deferred taxes have Ipeevided approximated $1,123 million at
December 31, 2011. Deferred income taxes on therséngs have not been provided as these amountoas@ered to be permanent in
duration. It is not practical to estimate the antafrtax that would be payable upon distributiorttedse earnings.

As of December 31, 2011, we had approxim&i#54 million in total unrecognized tax benefifswhich $152 million would affect our
effective tax rate if recognized. A reconciliatiohunrecognized tax benefits for the years endeckBer 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 is as
follows (amounts in millions):

For the Years Ended
December 31,
2011 2010 2009

Unrecognized tax benefits balance at Janu $ 132 $ 13¢ $ 102
Gross increase for tax positions of prior ye 4 — 3
Gross decrease for tax positions of prior yt — — (D)
Gross increase for tax positions of current y 65 21 35
Settlement with taxing authoritit — (16) —
Lapse of statute of limitatior 47 12 (€8]
Unrecognized tax benefits balance at Decembe $ 154 $ 132 $ 13¢

In addition, as of December 31, 2011 anti2@ve reflected $146 million and $111 million, pestively, of income tax liabilities as non-
current liabilities because payment of cash otesatint is not anticipated within one year of thlabee sheet date. These non-current income
tax liabilities are recorded in other liabilitiesthe consolidated balance sheets as of Decemb2031 and 2010.

We recognize interest and penalties reladedhcertain tax positions in income tax expeAseof December 31, 2011 and 2010, we had
approximately $12 million and $11 million, respeety, of accrued interest and penalties relatashizertain tax positions. For the years ended
December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009, we recordediliarm$3 million and $6 million, respectively, afiterest expense related to uncertain tax
positions.

On July 9, 2008, Activision Blizzard entgii@to a Tax Sharing Agreement (the "Tax Sharingeggent") with Vivendi. The Tax Sharing
Agreement generally governs Activision Blizzardsl &ivendi's respective rights, responsibilitiesl abligations with respect to the ordinary
course of business taxes. Currently, under theSketing Agreement, with certain exceptions, ActonisBlizzard generally is responsible for
the payment of U.S. and certain non-U.S. incomeddRat are required to be paid to tax authoriiea stand-alone Activision Blizzard basis.
In the event that Activision Blizzard joins Vivenidithe filing of a group tax return, ActivisioniBtard will pay its share of the tax liability for
such group tax return to Vivendi, and Vivendi vally the tax liability for the entire group to thgpaopriate tax authority. Vivendi will
indemnify Activision Blizzard for any tax liabilitimposed upon it due to Vivendi's failure to pay gnoup tax liability. Activision Blizzard
will indemnify Vivendi
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for any tax liability imposed on Vivendi (or any ib$ subsidiaries) due to Activision Blizzard'slfiaé to pay any taxes it owes under the Tax
Sharing Agreement.

For periods prior to the Business ComborgtVivendi Games' income taxes were presentedeifimancial statements as if Vivendi
Games were a staralene taxpayer even though Vivendi Games' operaéisglts were included in the consolidated fedeetain foreign, an
state and local income tax returns of Vivendi ovafidi's subsidiaries. Based on the subsequeng filithese tax returns by Vivendi or
Vivendi's subsidiaries, we determined that the amhpaid by Vivendi Games was greater than the damaunt due (and settled) based upon
filing of these returns for the year ended Decen®ier2008. This difference between the amount paitithe actual amount due (and settled)
represents a return of capital to Vivendi, whichaccordance with the terms of the Business Cortibinagreement, occurred immediately
prior to the close of the Business CombinationsTdiference has resulted in no additional payneMivendi and no impact to our
consolidated statement of cash flows for the yeatked December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009.

Vivendi Games results for the period Japdar2008 through July 9, 2008 are included indbesolidated federal and certain foreign, <
and local income tax returns filed by Vivendi ar #ffiliates while Vivendi Games results for theipe July 10, 2008 through December 31,
2008 are included in the consolidated federal anthin foreign, state and local income tax retditesl by Activision Blizzard. Vivendi Games
is no longer subject to U.S. federal income tax@rations for tax years before 2002 or state exatiuns for tax years before 2000.

Activision Blizzard's tax years 2008 throug010 remain open to examination by the majomajurisdictions to which we are subject.
The Internal Revenue Service is currently examitivigCompany's federal tax returns for the 2009&at. The Company also has several
state and non-U.S. audits pending. Although thal fiesolution of the Company's global tax dispigamcertain, based on current information,
in the opinion of the Company's management, thimate resolution of these matters will not haveatarial adverse effect on the Company's
consolidated financial position, liquidity or resubf operations.

Within the next twelve months, it is reaably possible we will reduce approximately $16 orlof previously unrecognized tax benefits
due to the expiration of statutes of limitation amdicipated closure of income tax examinations.

16. Fair Value Measurements
Fair Value Measurements on a Recurring Basis

FASB literature regarding fair value measnents for financial and non-financial assets @tillities establishes a three-level fair value
hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs used to measair value. This hierarchy requires entitiesrtaximize the use of "observable inputs" and
minimize the use of "unobservable inputs." TheeHewels of inputs used to measure fair value arfelbows:

Level —Quoted prices in active markets for identical assetiabilities.

. Level z—Observable inputs other than quoted prices includéevel 1, such as quoted prices for similar eseeliabilities in
active markets or other inputs that are observabtan be corroborated by observable market data.
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. Level =—Unobservable inputs that are supported by littlammarket activity and that are significant to thie value of the
assets or liabilities. This includes certain pricinodels, discounted cash flow methodologies amilasi techniques that use
significant unobservable inputs.

The table below segregates all assetsiabifities that are measured at fair value on aiméeg basis (which means they are so measured
at least annually) into the most appropriate |evighin the fair value hierarchy based on the inpugsd to determine the fair value at the
measurement date (amounts in millions):

Fair Value Measurements at
December 31, 2011 Using

Quoted
Prices in
Active
Markets for Significant
Identical Other Significant
As of Financial Observable Unobservable
December 31, Instruments Inputs Inputs Balance Sheet
2011 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Classification
Financial asset
Money marke
funds $ 2,86¢ $ 2,86¢ $ — 8 — Cash and cash equivale
U.S. treasuries
with original
maturities of
three months
or less 2 2 — — Cash and cash equivalel
U.S. treasuries
and
government
agency
securities 344 344 — — Shor-term investment
ARS held
through
Morgan
Stanley Smitl
Barney LLC 16 — — 16 Long-term investment
Total financial
assets at fair
value $ 3231 $ 3,215 $ — 8 16
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16. Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

Fair Value Measurements at
December 31, 2010 Using

Quoted

Prices in

Active

Markets for Significant

Identical Other Significant

As of Financial Observable Unobservable
December 31, Instruments Inputs Inputs Balance Sheet

2010 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Classification

Financial asset
Money marke

funds $ 2,21¢ $ 2,21¢ $ — 3 — Cash and cash equivale
U.S. treasurie

and foreign

government

bonds with

original

maturities of

the three

months or

less 332 332 — — Cash and cash equivalel
U.S. treasurie

and

government

agency

securities 672 672 — — Shor-term investment
ARS held

through

Morgan

Stanley Smitl

Barney LLC 23 — — 23 Long-term investment
Foreign

exchange

contract

derivatives 1 — 1 — Other asse—current
Total financial

assets at fair

value $ 3,24¢ % 3,22 $ 19 23

The following table provides a reconcilitiof the beginning and ending balances of oumnfiied assets and financial liabilities classified
as Level 3 by major categories (amounts in milljaatsDecember 31, 2011:

Level 3
Total
financial
assets at
ARS fair
@ value
Balance at January 1, 20 $ 23 % 23
Total unrealized gains included in other compretens
income 3 3
Purchases or acquired sales, issuances and setti (20 (20
Balance at December 31, 2C $ 16 16
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The following table provides a reconcilitiof the beginning and ending balances of oumnfiied assets and financial liabilities classified
as Level 3 by major categories (amounts in milljaatsDecember 31, 2010:

Level 3
Total
financial
ARS rights assets at
ARS from UBS fair Other financial
(a) (b) value liabilities
Balance at January 1, 20 $ 77 % 7% 84 $ (23)
Total gains or (losses) (realized/unrealized)
included in investment and other income, 7 @ — 23
Purchases or acquired sales, issuances and
settlement: (62) — (62) —
Balance at December 31, 2C $ 23 % — $ 23 $ —

@)

(b)

Fair value measurements have been estimated usimg@ne-approach model (specifically, discountasheflow
analysis). When estimating the fair value, we adeisboth observable market data and non-obserfattiers, including
credit quality, duration, insurance wraps, collateomposition, maximum rate formulas, comparatadihg instruments,
and the likelihood of redemption. Significant asgtions used in the analysis include estimatesrfi@rést rates, spreads,
cash flow timing and amounts, and holding perioithe securities. Assets measured at fair valuegusignificant
unobservable inputs (Level 3) represent less tBamflour financial assets measured at fair valua cecurring basis at
December 31, 2011.

In June 2010, we sold the remainder of our ARS tatld UBS at par and recognized a gain of $7 milliocluded within
investment and other income, net in the consolitlatatement of operations.

ARS rights from UBS represented an offer from UB8vjrling us with the right to require UBS to pursbaur ARS hel
through UBS at par value. To value the ARS righis considered the intrinsic value, time value oheg and our
assessment of the credit worthiness of UBS. Wecisedt our ARS rights with UBS on June 30, 2010 reedrded a loss
of $7 million included within investment and otliecome, net in the consolidated statement of ojmeTsu

Foreign Currency Forward Contracts Not DesignatedHedge:

We transact business in various curreraiesr than the U.S. dollar and have significargrimational sales and expenses denominated in
currencies other than the U.S. dollar, subjectimgoucurrency exchange rate risks. To mitigaterislrfrom foreign currency fluctuations we
periodically enter into currency derivative contg@rincipally swaps and forward contracts withtumiéies of twelve months or less, with
Vivendi as our principal counterparty. We do nolchar purchase any foreign currency contractsradibg or speculative purposes and we do
not designate these forward contracts or swapgdgitg instruments. Accordingly, we report the failue of these contracts in the
consolidated balance sheet with changes in fairevedcorded in the consolidated statement of opesatThe fair value of foreign currency
contracts is estimated based on the prevailingan@h rates of the various hedged currencies d&eafrtd of the period.
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Fair Value Measurements on a Non-Recurring Basis

We measure the fair value of certain assets non-recurring basis, generally annually oemvavents or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of the assets modye recoverable.

During our annual impairment review of gadtiperformed as of December 31, 2011, we idestifand recorded an impairment of
$12 million in our Distribution segment. The de@ean fair value of the reporting unit was primadue to the decrease of forecasted revenue
from our Distribution segment in view of the indystrend towards digital distribution. No impairmsrmof goodwill were recorded for the years
ended December 31, 2010 and 2009.

In accordance with the provisions of th@aimment of long-lived assets subsections of ASBt&ic 360-10, intangible assets were
written down to their fair value during in the gtearended December 31, 2010 within our Activisipemating segment. The write down
resulted in impairment charges of $67 million, $lion and $250 million to license agreements, gamngines and internally developed
franchises intangible assets, respectively (see Mbtof the notes to the consolidated financiakstants for details).

The tables below present intangible agbatswere measured at fair value on a non-recubyasis at December 31, 2011 and 2010
(amounts in millions):

Fair Value Measurements at
December 31, 2011 Using

Quoted
Prices in
Active
Markets for Significant
Identical Other Significant
As of Financial Observable Unobservable
December 31, Instruments Inputs Inputs
2011 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total Losses
Non-financial assets
Goodwill $ — $ — $ — $ — $ 12
Total nor-financial assets :
fair value $ — 3 — $ — 3 — $ 12

Fair Value Measurements at
December 31, 2010 Using

Quoted
Prices in
Active
Markets for Significant
Identical Other Significant
As of Financial Observable Unobservable
December 31, Instruments Inputs Inputs
2010 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total Losses
Non-financial assets
Intangible assets, n $ — 3 — 3 — $ — 32¢
Total non-financial assets i
fair value $ — $ — $ — $ — $ 32€
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Credit Facilities

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, we maintha&15 million and $22 million irrevocable standétter of credit, respectively. The
standby letter of credit is required by one of mwentory manufacturers to qualify for payment terom our inventory purchases. Under the
terms of this arrangement, we are required to ragirdn deposit with the bank a compensating balaestricted as to use, of not less than the
sum of the available amount of the letter of cretlis the aggregate amount of any drawings undgeletter of credit that have been honored
thereunder, but not reimbursed. The letter of ¢nees undrawn at December 31, 2011 and 2010.

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, our subsidécated in Europe maintained an irrevocablediigrietter of credit of EUR 5 million
($7 million) and EUR 30 million ($40 million), resptively. The standby letter of credit is requitgdone of our inventory manufacturers to
qualify for payment terms on our inventory purclsaséhere were no amounts outstanding at Decemh&@031 and 2010.

On April 29, 2008, Activision, Inc. entergdo a senior unsecured credit agreement with MiVveas lender. Borrowings under the
agreement became available upon consummation &ubmess Combination. The credit agreement pravidea revolving credit facility of
up to $475 million, bearing interest at LIBOR plu20% per annum. Any unused amount under the rangbredit facility was subject to a
commitment fee of 0.42% per annum. No borrowingdenmevolving credit facility with Vivendi were aatinding at December 31, 2009.
Effective July 23, 2010, we terminated our unseduwredit agreement.

Commitments

In the normal course of business, we entercontractual arrangements with third partiesrfon-cancelable operating lease agreements
for our offices, for the development of productsd &or the rights to intellectual property. Undeese agreements, we commit to provide
specified payments to a lessor, developer or gttalal property holder, as the case may be, bgssu eontractual arrangements. The payn
to third-party developers are generally conditionpdn the achievement by the developers of conta#lgtspecified development milestones.
Further, these payments to third-party developedsiatellectual property holders typically are deghto be advances and are recoupable
against future royalties earned by the developémtetlectual property holder based on the salthefrelated game. Additionally, in connection
with certain intellectual property rights acquisits and development agreements, we will commipémd specified amounts for marketing
support for the related game(s) which is to be kigesl or in which the intellectual property will bélized. Assuming all contractual
provisions are met, the total future minimum conmeihts for these
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and other contractual arrangements in place atibeee31, 2011 are scheduled to be paid as follawm(nts in millions):

Contractual Obligations(1)

Facility and Developer and

Equipment Intellectual
Leases Properties Marketing Total

For the years endir
December 31

2012 $ 33 % 10€ $ 32 $ 17:
2013 30 49 — 79
2014 27 16 — 43
2015 18 — — 18
2016 15 — — 15
Thereaftel 60 — — 60
Total $ 18z $ 17: $ 32 $ 38¢

(1)  We have omitted uncertain tax liabilities from ttable due to the inherent uncertainty regardirgtitming of
potential issue resolution. Specifically, eithertfee underlying positions have not been fully deped under auc
to quantify at this time or, (b) the years relatinghe issues for certain jurisdictions are natextly under audit.
At December 31, 2011, we had $154 million of unggdped tax benefits

Legal Proceeding

We are currently involved in certain legabceedings and where liabilities are probableestinable, we have accrued appropriate
amounts.

After concluding an internal human resoarcguiry into breaches of contract and insubortitimaby two senior employees at Infinity
Ward, the Company terminated its employment of J&¥est and Vince Zampella on March 1, 2010. On M&,c2010, West and Zampella
filed a complaint against the Company in Los Ange&eperior Court for breach of contract and wrohggtmination, among other claims. In
their complaint, West and Zampella alleged damagehiding punitive damages, in excess of $36 onllan amount they have since
significantly increased during discovery, as wslidgclaratory relief. On April 9, 2010, the Compdifed a cross complaint against West and
Zampella, asserting claims for breach of contradtfeduciary duty, among other claims. The Comp&rngeeking damages and declaratory
relief.

In addition, 38 current and former emplaye€Infinity Ward filed a complaint against the@pany in Los Angeles Superior Court on
April 27, 2010 (Alderman et al. v. Activision Publishing, Inc. &t aAn amended complaint was filed on July 8, 201Biclv added seven
additional plaintiffs. On October 5, 2010, five ipliéffs, all current employees of Infinity Ward)dd dismissals without prejudice. There are
currently 40 plaintiffs in the case. The plaintiffave asserted claims for breach of contract, tiaeof the Labor Code of the State of
California, conversion and other claims. In theimplaint, the plaintiffs claimed that the Compaailed to pay bonuses and other
compensation allegedly owed to them in an amoulezst between $75 million to $125 million, plusjiive damages, an amount they have
since increased in discovery responses to approgiynd300 million,
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plus punitive damages. On October 12, 2010, thet comsolidated this matter with the West and Zdfapeatter.

On January 18, 2011, the court grantedCitn®pany's motion to amend its cross complaint ag&ifest and Zampella to add allegations
with respect to them and to add Electronic Arts, bBs a party. On January 31, 2011, the case amsférred to the complex division.

Some of the parties have filed, and am@yiko file, additional pre-trial motions, includjrdispositive motions, and discovery continues in
the ordinary course of the litigation. The cours Isat a trial date of May 7, 2012.

The Company has accrued, and will contilougccrue, appropriate amounts related to bonusgstaer monies allegedly owed in
connection with this matter. Due to the inherentartainties of litigation, other potential outconae reasonably possible, including outcomes
which are above the amount of the accrual. The Gmyploes not expect this lawsuit to have a matenipact on the Company's business,
financial condition, results of operation or ligityd However, an unfavorable resolution of this $ait above the amount of the accrual could
have a material adverse effect on the Companyisdéasand results of operations in an interim pkinowhich the lawsuit is ultimately
resolved.

In addition, we are party to other routit@ms and suits brought by us and against usarottinary course of business, including disp
arising over intellectual property rights, contradtclaims, employment laws, regulations and retetiips, and collection matters. In the
opinion of management, after consultation with legainsel, the outcome of such routine claims amgstits will not have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition, resoftoperations, or liquidity.

18. Stock-Based Compensation
Activision Blizzard Equity Incentive Plan

The Activision Blizzard Inc. 2008 Incentifan was adopted by our Board on July 28, 200&;cumed by our stockholders and amended
and restated by our Board on September 24, 2068efuamended and restated by our Board with stddkh approval on June 3, 2009, furt
amended and restated by the Compensation Comrofttae Board with stockholder approval on Decemb&r2009, and further amended :
restated by our Board and the Compensation Conerofteur Board with shareholder approval on Jurg020 (as so amended and restated,
the "2008 Plan"). The 2008 Plan authorizes the Gomsation Committee of our Board of Directors tovie stock-based compensation in the
form of stock options, share appreciation righgstricted stock, restricted stock units, perfornessitares, performance units and other
performance- or value-based awards structureddZtmpensation Committee within parameters sdt forthe 2008 Plan, including custom
awards that are denominated or payable in, valuedhble or in part by reference to, or otherwissdabon or related to, shares of our common
stock, or factors that may influence the valuewf@mmon stock or that are valued based on odioipeance or the performance of any of
subsidiaries or business units or other factorggdased by the Compensation Committee, as wekleantive bonuses, for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards for performancthodirectors, officers, and employees of, andsatiants to, Activision Blizzard and its
subsidiaries.
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While the Compensation Committee has biscretion to create equity incentives, our stoakdal compensation program for the most
part currently utilizes a combination of optionglaestricted stock units. Options have time-basesling schedules, generally vesting annually
over a period of three to five years, and all apgiexpire ten years from the grant date. Restristeck units either have time-based vesting
schedules, generally vesting in their entiretytmathird anniversary of the date of grant, or vestinnually over a period of three to five years,
or vest only if certain performance measures are imeddition, under the terms of the 2008 Plar,dxercise price for the options must be
equal to or greater than the closing price peresbbour common stock on the date the award istgdamas reported on NASDAQ.

At December 31, 2011, 102 million shareswfcommon stock were available for issuance utideP008 Plan. The number of shares of
our common stock reserved for issuance under tB8 Ptan may be further increased from time to tioye(i) the number of shares relating to
awards outstanding under any prior stock compemsalians that: (a) expire, or are forfeited, teméad or cancelled, without the issuance of
shares; (b) are settled in cash in lieu of shareg;) are exchanged, prior to the issuance ofeshaf our common stock, for awards not
involving our common stock; and (ii) if the exekeigrice of any option outstanding under any priangs, or the tax withholding requirements
with respect to any award outstanding under anyr pilian are, satisfied by withholding shares otlieewhen deliverable in respect of the av
or the actual or constructive transfer to the Caomypaf shares already owned, the number of shanesl égjthe withheld or transferred shares.
At December 31, 2011, we had approximately 55 ariléhares of our common stock reserved for fuseance under the 2008 Plan. Shares
issued in connection with awards made under th& Z0@n are generally issued as new stock issuances.

Method and Assumptions on Valuation of Stock Op

Our employee stock options have featurasdtiferentiate them from exchange-traded optidiese features include lack of
transferability, early exercise, vesting restrioippre- and post-vesting termination provisioachkout dates, and time-varying inputs. In
addition, some of the options have non-traditideatures, such as accelerated vesting upon trefesdibn of certain performance conditions
that must be reflected in the valuation. A binortétice model was selected because it is bettertatexplicitly address these features than
closed-form models such as the Black-Scholes madel s able to reflect expected future changesddel inputs, including changes in
volatility, during the option's contractual term.

We have estimated expected future chamgewdel inputs during the option's contractual tefire inputs required by our binomial-
lattice model include expected volatility, risk-dérenterest rate, risk-adjusted stock return, dindtlgield, contractual term, and vesting schedule,
as well as measures of employees' exercise and/pstihg termination behavior. Statistical methedse used to estimate employee rank-
specific termination rates. These termination rateturn, were used to model the number of optibias are expected to vest and post-vesting
termination behavior. An exercise multiple basedatock to strike price ratio was used to refthetemployee exercise behavior pattern.
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The following tables present the weightedrage assumptions and the weighted-average faie @& grant date using the binomial-lattice
model:

Employee and director options
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010 December 31, 2009

Expected life (in years 6.5¢ 5.7¢ 5.9t
Risk free interest rai 1.91% 2.97% 3.65%
Volatility 43.5(% 46.2(% 53.0(%
Dividend yield 1.34% 1.3%% —%
Weightec-average fair value at gra

date $ 417 $ 3.9¢ $ 5.4C

To estimate volatility for the binomialdie model, we use methods that consider the implatility method based upon the volatilities
for exchange-traded options on our stock to estérahort-term volatility, the historical method (amfized standard deviation of the
instantaneous returns on Activision Blizzard's kjaturing the option's contractual term to estimatg-term volatility, and a statistical model
to estimate the transition or "mean reversion" fighort-term volatility to long-term volatility. Bag on these methods, for options granted
during the year ended December 31, 2011, the esgatdck price volatility ranged from 30.03% toG83%.

As is the case for volatility, the risk-dreate is assumed to change during the optionsaminal term. Consistent with the calculation
required by a binomial-lattice model, the risk-frage reflects the interest from one time periothenext (“forward rate") as opposed to the
interest rate from the grant date to the given trmedod ("spot rate"). The expected dividend yizdumption for options granted during the
year ended December 31, 2011 is based on the Cotapastorical and expected future amount of diaaipayouts

The expected life of employee stock optimmesents the weighted-average period the stotitns are expected to remain outstanding
and is an output from the binomial-lattice moddieTexpected life of employee stock options depemndall of the underlying assumptions and
calibration of our model. A binomial-lattice moden be viewed as assuming that employees will eseetheir options when the stock price
equals or exceeds an exercise multiples, of wiiemtultiple is based on historical employee exerbshaviors.

As stock-based compensation expense repedinm the consolidated statement of operationthiyear ended December 31, 2011 is
based on awards ultimately expected to vest, ibkeas reduced for estimated forfeitures. Forfegtae estimated at the time of grant and
revised, if necessary, in subsequent periods ifedcorfeitures differ from those estimates. Fdtfegs were estimated based on historical
experience.

Accuracy of Fair Value Estimat:

We developed the assumptions used in thential-lattice model, including model inputs andasares of employees' exercise and post-
vesting termination behavior. Our ability to acdaha estimate the fair value of stock-based payragrdrds at the grant date depends upon the
accuracy of the model and our ability to accuratetecast model inputs as long as ten years irgduture. These inputs include, but are not
limited to, expected stock price volatility, riske€ rate, dividend yield, and employee terminatains. Although the fair value of employee
stock options is determined
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using an option-pricing model, the estimates thatmmoduced by this model may not be indicativéheffair value observed between a willing
buyer and a willing seller. Unfortunately, it idfdiult to determine if this is the case, as maskad not currently exist that permit the active
trading of employee stock option and other stocseblanstruments.

Stock Option Activities

Stock option activities for the year endtember 31, 2011 are as follows (amounts in milj@xcept number of shares, which are in
thousands, and per share amounts):

Weighted-average
Weighted-average remaining Aggregate

Shares exercise price contractual term intrinsic value

Outstanding at December 31, 2( 61,178 $ 10.4¢
Granted 4,052 12.5¢
Exercisec (9,605) 7.21
Forfeited (1,719 11.11
Expired (747) 15.13
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 53,16: 11.12 6.4¢ $ 101
Vested and expected to ves

December 31, 201 51,39. $ 11.0¢ 591 $ 10C
Exercisable at December 31, 2( 36,27 $ 10.5% 5.6€ $ 92

The aggregate intrinsic value in the talleve represents the total pretax intrinsic valiue. ( the difference between our closing stock
price on the last trading day of the period andetkercise price, times the number of options wileeeexercise price is below the closing stock
price) that would have been received by the optiolders had all option holders exercised theirangtion that date. This amount changes as it
is based on the fair market value of our stockalmitrinsic value of options actually exercisedsvi&7 million, $104 million, and $312 millic
for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010, ad8@, 28spectively. Total grant date fair value ofiaps vested was $57 million,
$114 million, and $143 million for the years end&ecember 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively.

At December 31, 2011, $33 million of tat@recognized compensation cost related to stodkmpts expected to be recognized over a
weighted-average period of 1.4 years.

Income tax benefit from stock option exsesiwas $28 million, $36 million, and $85 millicr the years ended December 31, 2011, :
and 2009, respectively.

Nor-Plan Employee Stock Options Granted to Executives

In connection with prior employment agreamsébetween Activision, Inc. and Robert A. Kotickir Chief Executive Officer, and Brian
Kelly, our Co-Chairman, Mr. Kotick and Mr. Kelly we previously granted options to purchase commacksf Activision, Inc. which were
not awarded under a stockholder- or board-apprplead These awards were assumed as a result Bigiress Combination and accounted
for as an exchange for options to purchase our aamstock. All non-plan options were exercised dy2009.
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Restricted Stock Units and Restricted Stock AwAdiivities

We grant restricted stock units and resdcstock awards (collectively referred to as 'tietgd stock rights™) under the 2008 Plan to
employees around the world, and we have assumedessullt of the Business Combination the restristedk rights granted by Activision, Inc.
Restricted stock rights entitle the holders theteotceive shares of our common stock at the éadspecified period of time or otherwise
upon a specified occurrence (which may includestitesfaction of a performance measure). Restristieck awards are issued and outstanding
upon grant. Holders of restricted stock rightsrasgricted from selling the shares until they vekton vesting of restricted stock rights, we r
withhold shares otherwise deliverable to satiskyvtéhholding requirements. Restricted stock rights subject to forfeiture and transfer
restrictions. Vesting for restricted stock righgontingent upon the holders' continued employméthtus and may be subject to other
conditions (which may include the satisfaction gfeformance measure). If the vesting conditioesnat met, unvested restricted stock rights
will be forfeited.

In connection with the consummation of Bhesiness Combination, on July 9, 2008, Robert Ati¢ko our Chief Executive Officer,
received a grant of 2,500,000 market performansedbaestricted shares, which vest in 20% incremamtsach of the first, second, third, and
fourth anniversaries of the date of grant, withtaro20% vesting on December 31, 2012, the expinatate of Mr. Kotick's employment
agreement with the Company, in each case subjélbetGompany attaining the specified compound arotel shareholder return target for
that vesting period. If the Company does not aghibe market performance measure for a vestinggyeno performance shares will vest for
that vesting period. If, however, the Company aodsethe market performance measure for a subsegestitig period, then all of the
performance shares that would have vested on théqus vesting date will vest on the vesting datemvthe market performance measure is
achieved.

The following table summarizes our reséicstock rights activity for the year ended Decen®ie 2011 (amounts in thousands except per
share amounts):

Weighted-Average

Restricted Grant Date Fair
Stock Rights Value
Balance at December 31, 2C 16,57 $ 11.62
Granted 4,91¢ 12.3(
Vested (3,125 12.2¢
Forfeited (1,22€) 12.3¢
Balance at December 31, 2C 17,13¢ 12.2¢

At December 31, 2011, approximately $88iamilof total unrecognized compensation cost wésted to restricted stock rights, of which
$11 million was related to performance shares, Whist is expected to be recognized over a weigitedage period of 1.82 years and
1.46 years, respectively. Total grant date faiugalf restricted stock rights vested was $37 mml®40 million, and $28 million for the years
ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009, resplgctive
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Stock-Based Compensation Expense

The following table sets forth the totalat-based compensation expense included in ountidated statements of operations for the
years ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009 ¢a@sioumillions):

For the Years Ended
December 31,

2011 2010 2009
Cost of sale—software royalties and amortizati $ 1C $ 65 $ 34
Product developmel 40 12 40
Sales and marketir 6 8 9
General and administrati\ 47 46 71
Restructuring — — 2
Stock-based compensation expense before income 10z 131 15¢€
Income tax benefi (38) (52) (62)
Total stockbased compensation expense, net of inc

tax benefit $ 65 $ 81 $ 95

The following table summarizes stock-baseahpensation included in our consolidated balaheets as a component of "Software
development” (amounts in millions):

Software
Development

Balance at December 31, 2C $ 42
Stoclk-based compensation expense capitalized and defiured)

period 10z
Amortization of capitalized and deferred st-based compensatic

expense (90
Balance at December 31, 2C $ 54
Stock-based compensation expense capitalized and defiurady

period 63
Amortization of capitalized and deferred stock-lsasempensation

expense (97)
Balance at December 31, 2C $ 20
Stock-based compensation expense capitalized dadetduring

period 27
Amortization of capitalized and deferred stock-lsthsempensation

expense (37)

Balance at December 31, 2C $ 10

19. Capital transactions
Repurchase Progral

On February 2, 2012, our Board of Direcuthorized a new stock repurchase program undiehwie may repurchase up to $1 billion
of our common stock, on terms and conditions tddtermined by the Company, during the period betwigaril 1, 2012 and the earlier of
March 31, 2013 and a determination by the Boaricgctors to discontinue the repurchase program.
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On February 3, 2011, our Board of Directaughorized a new stock repurchase program (th&l'3dock Repurchase Program™) under
which we may repurchase up to $1.5 billion of caimenon stock, on terms and conditions to be detexchby the Company, until the earlier of
March 31, 2012 and a determination by the Boar@icctors to discontinue the repurchase programirigithe year ended December 31,
2011, we repurchased 59 million shares of our comstock for $670 million pursuant to the 2011 StB®gpurchase Program. Additionally, in
January 2012, we settled the purchase of 1 miifttares of our common stock that we had committedparchase in December 2011 pursi
to this program for $12 million.

On February 10, 2010, we announced thaBoard of Directors authorized a new stock repuseharogram (the "2010 Stock Repurchase
Program") under which we were authorized to repasehup to $1 billion of our common stock. During ylear ended December 31, 2010, we
repurchased 84 million shares of our common stoc$®44 million pursuant to the 2010 Stock Repuseh@rogram. In January 2011, we
settled a $22 million purchase of 1.8 million stsané&our common stock that we had agreed to repsein December 2010 pursuant to the
2010 Stock Repurchase Program. The 2010 Stock Blegee Program expired on December 31, 2010.

On November 5, 2008, we announced thaBoarrd of Directors authorized a stock repurchasgnam (the "2008-2009 Stock
Repurchase Program™) under which we were authotizeepurchase up to $1 billion of our common stdgk July 31, 2009, our Board of
Directors authorized an increase of $250 milliothi® 2008-2009 Stock Repurchase Program bringiegatal authorization to $1.25 billion.
During 2009, we repurchased 101 million sharesunfa@mmon stock for an aggregate purchase pri@d 409 million pursuant to the 2008-
2009 Stock Repurchase Program. In January 2016ettled a $15 million purchase of 1.3 million slsané our common stock that we had
agreed to repurchase in December 2009 pursuam t2008-2009 Stock Repurchase Program, complédtatgptogram.

Dividend

On February 9, 2012, our Board of Directtgslared a cash dividend of $0.18 per common gbédse paid on May 16, 2012 to
shareholders of record at the close of busineddanch 21, 2012.

On February 9, 2011, our Board of Directieslared a cash dividend of $0.165 per commoregbayable on May 11, 2011 to
shareholders of record at the close of busineddash 16, 2011, and on May 11, 2011, we made a dasthend payment of $192 million to
such shareholders. On August 12, 2011, the Compeate dividend equivalent payments of $2 milliomtedl to this cash dividend to the
holders of restricted stock units.

On February 10, 2010, Activision BlizzarBsard of Directors declared a cash dividend ol $(@er common share payable on April 2,
2010 to shareholders of record at the close ofilessi on February 22, 2010, and on April 2, 2010made a cash dividend payment of
$187 million to such shareholders. On October 2202the Company made dividend equivalent paymerg& million related to this cash
dividend to the holders of restricted stock units.
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The components of accumulated other congmsilie income (loss) at December 31, 2011 and 2@t6 as follows (amounts in million:

At At
December 31, December 31,
2011 2010
Foreign currency translation adjustm $ (72) $ (11
Unrealized depreciation on investments, ne
deferred income taxes of $0 and $(1) for
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respecti' — 2
Accumulated other comprehensive i $ (72) $ (13

Income taxes were not provided for foreigmrency translation items as these are considedsfinite investments in non-U.S.
subsidiaries.

21. Supplemental Cash Flow Information

Supplemental cash flow information is dtofgs (amounts in millions):

For the Years Ended
December 31,
2011 2010 2009

Supplemental cash flow informatic
Cash paid for income tax $ 317 $ 25 $ 257
Cash paid for intere: 4 2 5

22. Related Party Transactions
Treasury

Our foreign currency risk management progsgeks to reduce risks arising from foreign cuyetuctuations. We use derivative finan
instruments, primarily currency forward contraatsl dwaps, with Vivendi as our principal counterpafthe gross notional amount of
outstanding foreign exchange swaps was $85 mi#lizoh $138 million at December 31, 2011 and 201(eetsvely. A pretax net unrealized
loss of $1 million and unrealized gain of less thamillion for the years ended December 31, 2012010, respectively, resulted from the
foreign exchange contracts and swaps with Vivendiaere recognized in the consolidated statemédrgpearations.

Others

Activision Blizzard has entered into vasdwansactions and agreements, including cash reareag services, investor agreement, tax
sharing agreement, and music royalty agreemenksWittendi and its subsidiaries and affiliates. Effee July 23, 2010, we terminated our
unsecured credit agreement with Vivendi, the lendéich provided for a revolving credit facility of to $475 million. None of these servic
transactions and agreements with Vivendi and ibsisiiaries and affiliates is material either indivally or in the aggregate to the consolidated
financial statements as a whole.
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In addition, we are party to a number akagents with Universal Music Group, a wholly owsedsidiary of Vivendi, and its affiliates.
These agreements pertain to the licensing of masterdings and compositions for our games andnimketing and promotional purposes.
expensed and paid an aggregate of $5 million, $llbmand $14 million in royalties and other fef@scluding fees relating to the marketing of
artists whose music was licensed for our gamenigersal Music Group and its affiliates for thasges during the years ended December 31,
2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Royalty amoduésto Universal Music Group and its affiliates ao¢ material at December 31, 2011,
2010 and 2009.

23. Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2011, the FASB issued an updatééoaccounting rules for fair value measurementowige a consistent definition of fair value
and ensure that the fair value measurement antbslise requirements are similar between U.S. GAAd laternational Financial Reporting
Standards ("IFRS"). This update changes certairnvédue measurement principles and enhances thslise requirements for fair value
measurements. This update does not extend the teie value accounting, but provides guidance owlit should be applied where its use is
already required or permitted by other standardsiwil).S. GAAP or IFRS. This update is effective iimerim and annual periods beginning
after December 15, 2011 and is applied prospegtivéie adoption of this update on January 1, 20illzhat have a material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

In June 2011, the FASB issued an updatiee@ccounting on comprehensive income to incri@sprominence of items reported in other
comprehensive income and to facilitate convergafid¢dS. GAAP and IFRS. This update requires thien@h-owner changes in stockholders'
equity be presented either in a single continutateent of comprehensive income or in two sepdmateonsecutive statements. This update
does not change the items that must be reportether comprehensive income or when an item of atberprehensive income must be
reclassified to net income. Further, this updatesdwot affect how earnings per share is calculatguiesented. This update is effective for
interim and annual periods beginning after DecemBe2011 and is applied retrospectively. The adapif this update on January 1, 2012
will not have a material impact on the consoliddiaencial statements.

In September 2011, the FASB issued an epdathe authoritative guidance related to goodwippairment testing. This update gives
companies the option to first perform a qualitatiesessment to determine whether it is more litkely not that the fair value of a reporting
unit is less than its carrying amount before peniag the two-step test mandated prior to the updftefter assessing the totality of events and
circumstances, a company determines it is mordylikan not that the fair value of a reporting usitess than its carrying amount, then it must
perform the two-step test. Otherwise, a company skgythe two-step test. Companies are not requorgerform the qualitative assessment
and may, instead proceed directly to the first stiefme two-part test. This update is effectivedonual and interim goodwill impairment tests
performed for fiscal years beginning after Decemtigr2011. The adoption of this update on Janua?P12 will not have a material impact
the consolidated financial statements.
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Repurchase Program. On February 2, 2012, our Board of Directordatized a new stock repurchase program under wigcmay
repurchase up to $1 billion of our common stockieyms and conditions to be determined by the Compduring the period between April 1,
2012 and the earlier of March 31, 2013 and a detetion by the Board of Directors to discontinue tepurchase program.

Cash Dividend. On February 9, 2012, our Board of Directorsa®e a cash dividend of $0.18 per common sharalgayn May 16,
2012 to shareholders of record as of March 21, 2012

25. Quarterly Financial and Market Information (Unaudited)

For the Quarters Ended
December 31 September 30 June 30, March 31,

2011 2011 2011 2011
(Amounts in millions, except per share data
Net revenue $ 1,407 $ 754 $ 1,14¢ $ 1,44¢
Cost of sale: 722 237 3458 452
Operating incom 25 162 467 674
Net income 99 14¢ 33t 50z
Basic earnings per she 0.0¢ 0.1z 0.2¢ 0.4z
Diluted earnings per sha 0.0¢ 0.1z 0.2¢ 0.4z

For the Quarters Ended
December 31, September 30, June 30, March 31,

2010 2010 2010 2010
(Amounts in millions, except per share data)
Net revenue $ 1,427 $ 745 $ 967 $ 1,30¢
Cost of sale: 87¢ 34¢ 36€ 53¢
Operating (loss) incom (397) 55 30C 511
Net (loss) incom: (239) 51 21¢ 381
Basic (loss) earnings per shi (0.20 0.0 0.1¢ 0.3C
Diluted (loss) earnings per she (0.20 0.0 0.17 0.3C
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VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

(Amounts in millions)

Col. B
Balance at Col. E
Beginning of Col.C Col. D Balance at End
Col. A Description Period Additions(A) Deductions(B) of Period

At December 31, 201
Allowances for sales returns a
price protection and other
allowances $ 37 3 16€ $ 247) $ 29z
Allowance for doubtful accoun 4 4 —
At December 31, 201
Allowances for sales returns a
price protection and other
allowances $ 314 $ 317 $ (259 $ 373
Allowance for doubtful accoun 3 1 —
At December 31, 200
Allowances for sales returns and
price protection and other
allowances $ 26€ $ 33z % (284) $ 314
Allowance for doubtful accoun 2 —
Deferred tax valuation allowan: 22 — (22 —

[EEN

(A) Includes increases in allowance for sales retymmse protection, doubtful accounts, and defereetMaluation due to
normal reserving terms and allowance accounts esdjin conjunction with acquisitions.

(B) Includes actual write-off of sales returns, pricetection, uncollectible accounts receivable, rigeooveries, and foreign
currency translation and other adjustments, anerosf taxes
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Pursuant to the rules and regulations ®3kC, the Company has filed certain agreemergslabits to this Annual Report on Form KO-

These agreements may contain representations amaniies by the parties. These representationsvandnties have been made solely for the

benefit of the other party or parties to such agie@s and (i) may have been qualified by disclasurade to such other party or parties,

(i) were made only as of the date of such agre¢snamsuch other date(s) as may be specified ih agoeements and are subject to more r
developments, which may not be fully reflectedhia Company's public disclosure, (iii) may refldet tllocation of risk among the parties to
such agreements and (iv) may apply materialitydsests different from what may be viewed as mateéoiahvestors. Accordingly, these
representations and warranties may not describ€dn@pany's actual state of affairs at the datediened should not be relied upon.

Exhibit Number

Exhibit

3.1

3.2

10.3*

10.4*

10.5*

10.6*

10.7*

10.8*

10.9*

10.10*

10.11*

10.12*

Amended and Restated Certificate of IncorporatiobAdativision Blizzard, Inc., dated July 9, 2008 ¢orporated by referenc
to Exhibit 3.1 of the Company's Forr-K, filed July 15, 2008)

Certificate of Amendment to the Amended and Redt&ertificate of Incorporation of Activision Blized, Inc., dated
August 15, 2008 (incorporated by reference to BxBild of the Company's Forn-K, filed August 15, 2008

Amended and Restated By-Laws of Activision Blizzdrt., as amended and restated as of Februag§1®, @corporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the Company's Fo-K, filed February 5, 2010

Activision, Inc. 1998 Incentive Plan, as amendeaddrporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of the Gany's Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended September 30, 20

Amendment, dated as of September 14, 2006, to388 [hcentive Plan (incorporated by reference thilkik10.2 of the
Company's Form-K filed September 20, 200¢

Activision, Inc. 1999 Incentive Plan, as amendeddrporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the @any's Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended June 30, 20(

Amendment, dated as of September 14, 2006, to38@ hcentive Plan (incorporated by reference thilik10.3 of the
Company's Form-K filed September 20, 200¢

Activision, Inc. 2001 Incentive Plan, as amendeaddrporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Gany's Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended June 30, 20(

Amendment, dated as of September 14, 2006, toGb& mhcentive Plan (incorporated by reference thikik10.4 of the
Company's Form-K filed September 20, 200¢

Activision, Inc. 2002 Incentive Plan, as amendeddrporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the @any's Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended June 30, 20(

Amendment, dated as of September 14, 2006, toGb2 centive Plan (incorporated by reference thilkix10.5 of the
Company's Form-K filed September 20, 200¢

Activision, Inc. 2002 Executive Incentive Plan @nporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the ConyfmRorm S-8,
Registration No. 3:-100114 filed September 26, 200

Amendment, dated as of September 14, 2006, todb2 Executive Incentive Plan (incorporated by mefee to Exhibit 10.6
of the Company's Forn-K filed September 20, 200€
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Exhibit

10.13*

10.14*

10.15*

10.16*

10.17%

10.18*

10.19*

10.20*

10.21*

10.22*

10.23*

10.24*

10.25*

10.26*

Activision, Inc. 2002 Studio Employee Retentiocéntive Plan (incorporated by reference to ExHitiitof the Company's
Form £-8, Registration No. 3:-103323 filed February 19, 200:

Amendment, dated as of September 14, 2006, toGb2 3tudio Employee Retention Incentive Plan (ipocated by
reference to Exhibit 10.7 of the Company's Fo-K filed September 20, 200¢

Activision, Inc. Amended and Restated 2003 IncenBNan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.the Company's
Form 1(-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 20i

Amendment, dated as of September 14, 2006, toGb8 Executive Incentive Plan (incorporated by refiee to Exhibit 10.9
of the Company's Formr-K filed September 20, 200¢

Activision, Inc. 2007 Incentive Plan (incorporateglreference to Exhibit 99.1 of the Company's Regfion Statement on
Form £-8, Registration No. 3:-146431, filed October 1, 2007

Australian Addendum to the Activision, Inc. 200¢émtive Plan (incorporated by reference to ExHibiR2 of the Company's
Form 1(-K for the year ended March 31, 200

Activision Blizzard, Inc. Amended and Restated 20@&ntive Plan, as amended and restated (incagibly reference to
Exhibit 10.4 the Company's Form-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 20.

Australian Addendum to the Activision Blizzard, IrB008 Incentive Plan (incorporated by referenciéxbibit 10.24 of the
Company's Form K for the year ended December 31, 20!

Form of Stock Option Certificate for grants to mers other than noamployee directors issued pursuant to the Actinisinc.
1998 Incentive Plan (incorporated by referencextilit 10.1 of the Company's Forn-K, filed May 31, 2005)

Form of Stock Option Certificate for grants to mers other than noamployee directors issued pursuant to the Actinisioc.
1999 Incentive Plan (incorporated by referencexiiliit 10.2 of the Company's Forn-K, filed May 31, 2005)

Form of Stock Option Agreement for grants to pessotier than non-employee directors issued purdaghe
Activision, Inc. 2001 Incentive Plan (incorporateglreference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Company's F8¢i, filed May 31,
2005).

Form of Stock Option Agreement for grants to pessotier than non-employee directors issued purdaghe
Activision, Inc. 2002 Executive Incentive Plan @mporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of the ConymForm 8-K, filed
May 31, 2005)

Form of Executive Stock Option Agreement for grant®obert Kotick or Brian Kelly issued pursuanttie Activision, Inc.
2003 Incentive Plan (incorporated by referencexibiliit 10.40 of the Company's Form 10-K for theyeaded March 31,
2005).

Form of Non-Executive Stock Option Agreement faairgs to persons other than Robert Kotick or Briatiykand non-
employee directors issued pursuant to the Actimisioc. 2003 Incentive Plan (incorporated by rafeseto Exhibit 10.41 of
the Company's Form -K for the year ended March 31, 200
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Exhibit

10.27*

10.28*

10.29*

10.30*

10.31*

10.32*

10.33*

10.34*

10.35*

10.36*

10.37*

10.38*

Form of Non-Employee Director Stock Option Agresrfor grants to non-employee directors issuedyant to the
Activision, Inc. 2003 Incentive Plan (incorporategreference to Exhibit 10.17 of the Company's F&0¥K for the year
ended March 31, 2007

Notice of Share Option Award for grants to persotier than nc-employee directors issued pursuant to the Actiwisinc.
2003 Incentive Plan (incorporated by referencexbiliit 10.18 of the Company's Form 10-K for the yeaded March 31,
2007).

Notice of Share Option Award for grants to -employee directors issued pursuant to the Actvisinc. 2003 Incentive Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19 of @@mpany's Form -K for the year ended March 31, 200

Notice of Restricted Share Award for grants to passother than n-employee directors issued pursuant to the
Activision, Inc. 2003 Incentive Plan (incorporategreference to Exhibit 10.20 of the Company's F&¥K for the year
ended March 31, 2007

Notice of Restricted Share Unit Award for grantpé&sons other than n-employee directors issued pursuant to the
Activision, Inc. 2003 Incentive Plan (incorporategreference to Exhibit 10.21 of the Company's F&+K for the year
ended March 31, 2007

Notice of Stock Option Award for grants to r-employee directors issued pursuant to the Acbivisinc. 2007 Incentive Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of tr@r@any's Form 1-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2C

Notice of Stock Option Award for grants to persotizer noremployee directors issued pursuant to the Activisinc. 2007
Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to ExHiBi2 of the Company's Form 10-Q for the quanteteel September 30,
2008).

Notice of Restricted Share Award for grants to pessother than n-employee directors issued pursuant to the
Activision, Inc. 2007 Incentive Plan (incorporateglreference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Company's F&¥Q for the quarter
ended September 30, 200

Notice of Restricted Share Unit Award for grantefficers issued pursuant to the Activision, In@0Z Incentive Pla
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of tr@r@any's Form 1-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2C

Notice of Restricted Share Unit Award for grantsndependent directors upon their initial electiorthe board or upon the
tenth continuous year of service on the board gwesuant to the Activision, Inc. 2007 Incent®Rian (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.5 of the Company's Forr-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2C

Notice of Restricted Share Unit Award for grantsnidependent directors upon their reelection toothard (other than i
connection with 10 years of continuous servica)éslspursuant to the Activision, Inc. 2007 InceatRlan (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.6 of the Company's Forr-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2C

Notice of Restricted Share Unit Award for grantsitw-employee directors resident in France issued jpntsio the
Activision, Inc. 2007 Incentive Plan (incorporateglreference to Exhibit 10.7 of the Company's Faf¥Q for the quarter
ended September 30, 200
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Exhibit

10.39*

10.40*

10.41%

10.42*

10.43*

10.44*

10.45*

10.46*

10.47%

10.48*

10.49*

10.50*

Notice of Restricted Share Unit Award for grantpé&vsons other than officers or directors issuedyant to the
Activision, Inc. 2007 Incentive Plan (incorporateglreference to Exhibit 10.8 of the Company's F&f¥Q for the quarter
ended September 30, 200

Notice of Stock Option Award for grants to unaftid directors issued pursuant to the ActivisiomZ2ird, Inc. 200¢
Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Extibi44 of the Company's Form 10-K for the yeareghDecember 31,
2008).

Notice of Stock Option Award for grants to persotiser than directors issued pursuant to the Adtimi8lizzard, Inc. 200!
Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to ExHiBi45 of the Company's Form 10-K for the yeareghDecember 31,
2008).

Notice of Restricted Share Unit Award for grantsit@ffiliated directors upon their initial electiém the board or upon the
tenth continuous year of service on the board gwesuant to the Activision Blizzard, Inc. 2008éntive Plan (incorporate
by reference to Exhibit 10.46 of the Company's Faf-K for the year ended December 31, 20t

Notice of Restricted Share Unit Award for grantatfiliated nor-employee directors and to unaffiliated directgpsmitheir
reelection to the board (other than in connecti@th %0 years of continuous service) pursuant todbevision Blizzard, Inc.
2008 Incentive Plan (incorporated by referencexbiltit 10.47 of the Company's Form KkOfor the year ended December :
2008).

Notice of Restricted Share Unit Award for grantstffiliated nor-employee directors resident in France pursuatiteo
Activision Blizzard, Inc. 2008 Incentive Plan (imporated by reference to Exhibit 10.48 of the ConymForm 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 20(C

Notice of Restricted Share Unit Award for grantpé&ssons other than directors pursuant to the Aiir Blizzard, Inc. 200
Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to ExHiBi49 of the Company's Form 10-K for the yeareghDecember 31,
2008).

Notice of Restricted Share Award for grants to passother than directors pursuant to the Actividtinzard, Inc. 200¢
Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to ExHiBi50 of the Company's Form 10-K for the yeareghDecember 31,
2008).

Employment Agreement, dated September 9, 2005 dsetWwhomas Tippl and Activision Publishing, Inacbrporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's Fort-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2C

Amendment, dated as of December 15, 2008, to Empay Agreement between Thomas Tippl and Activision
Publishing, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Bihi0.59 of the Company's Form 10-K for the yazdleed December 31,
2008).

Amendment, dated as of April 15, 2009, to Employt#sgreement between Thomas Tippl and ActivisionIBaing, Inc.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of tr@rany's Form 1-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 20!

Amendment, dated as of March 23, 2010, to EmployrAgreement between Thomas Tippl and ActivisiorzBdird, Inc.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of tr@rany's Form 1-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 201
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Exhibit

10.51*

10.52*

10.53*

10.54*

10.55*

10.56*

10.57*

10.58*

10.59*

10.60*

10.61*

10.62*

10.63*

10.64*

Stock Option Agreement, dated October 3, 200&yden Thomas Tippl and the Company (incorporatecefsrence to
Exhibit 10.2 of the Company's Form-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2C

Addendum to Stock Option Agreement, dated as o Jyr2006, between Thomas Tippl and the Compawpi(gorated by
reference to Exhibit 10.9 of the Company's Forr-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2C

Restricted Stock Agreement, dated October 3, 208yeen Thomas Tippl and the Company (incorporayeference to
Exhibit 10.3 of the Company's Form-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2C

Notice of Stock Option Award, dated as of May 1002, to Thomas Tippl (incorporated by referencExbibit 10.2 of the
Company's Form 1-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 20!

Notice of Restricted Share Award, dated as of Mhy2D09, to Thomas Tippl (incorporated by referetacExhibit 10.3 of th
Company's Form 1-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 20

Notice of Performanc-Vesting Restricted Share Award, dated as of May2009, to Thomas Tippl (incorporated by refere
to Exhibit 10.4 of the Company's Form-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 20

Notice of Stock Option Award, dated as of May 101@, to Thomas Tippl (incorporated by referencExhibit 10.1 of the
Company's Form 1-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 20.

Notice of Restricted Share Unit Award, dated asaf 10, 2010, to Thomas Tippl (incorporated by refee to Exhibit 10.;
of the Company's Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 20

Notice of Performanc-Vesting Restricted Share Award, dated as of May20Q0, to Thomas Tippl (incorporated by refere
to Exhibit 10.3 of the Company's Form-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 20

Notice of Restricted Share Unit Award, dated aBla¥ember 8, 2010, to Thomas Tippl (incorporateddigrence tc
Exhibit 10.60 of the Company's Form-K for the year ended December 31, 20:

Employment Agreement, dated September 11, 200@cleet George Rose and the Company (incorporatedfesence to
Exhibit 10.5 of the Company's Form-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2C

Notice of Share Option Award to George Rose, d8&gtember 28, 2007 (incorporated by reference tobix10.12 of the
Company's Form 1-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2C

Notice of Restricted Share Unit Award to GeorgedRaated September 28, 2007 (incorporated by mdert Exhibit 10.1:
of the Company's Form -Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2C

Notice of Stock Option Award, dated as of Marcl2@]10, to George Rose (incorporated by referen&xlibit 10.2 of the
Company's Form 1-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 20!
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10.65*

10.66*

10.67*

10.68*

10.69*

10.70*

10.71*

10.72*

10.73*

10.74*

10.75*

10.76*

10.77*

10.78*

10.79*

Notice of Restricted Share Unit Award, dated adlafch 4, 2010, to George Rose (incorporated byeefse to Exhibit 10..
of the Company's Form -Q for the quarter ended March 31, 20!

Notice of Restricted Share Unit Award, dated aslea¥ember 8, 2010, to George Rao

Release Agreement, dated as of August 1, 2011 gest@eorge Rose and the Company (incorporateddnenee to
Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's Form-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2C

Consulting Agreement, dated as of August 1, 20figray George Rose, Suffolk Ventures LLC and the Gogip
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of tr@rany's Form 1-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2C

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, datefiscember 1, 2007, between Robert A. Kotick tiedCompany
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of thmm@any's Form-K, filed December 6, 2007

Amendment No. 1, dated as of July 8, 2008, to timplByment Agreement between Robert A. Kotick arel@ompany
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 of @@mpany's Form 1-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2C

Replacement Bonus Agreement, dated as of DecemR€&0Z, between Robert A. Kotick and the Compangdiporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.5 of the Company's Fo-K, filed December 6, 2007

Stock Option Agreement, dated May 22, 2000, betvramert A. Kotick and the Company (incorporateddference to
Exhibit 10.2 of the Company's Form-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2C

Notice of Stock Option Award to Robert A. Koticlateéd December 5, 2007 (incorporated by referen&xinibit 10.71 of the
Company's Form XK for the year ended March 31, 200

Notice of Performanc-Vesting Restricted Share Award to Robert A. Kotidted as of July 9, 2008 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.82 of the Company's Fori-K for the year ended December 31, 20!

Notice of Restricted Share Unit Award to Roberttick, dated as of July 9, 2008 (incorporated d&igrence tc
Exhibit 10.17 of the Company's Form-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2C

Notice of Restricted Share Unit Award, dated aBlofember 8, 2010, to Robert A. Kotick (incorporalgdreference t
Exhibit 10.75 of the Company's Form-K for the year ended December 31, 20:

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, datefiscember 1, 2007, between Brian G. Kelly arel@ompany
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of trmm@any's Form-K, filed December 6, 2007

Replacement Bonus Agreement, dated as of DecemB@&0Z, between Brian G. Kelly and the Companydiporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.6 of the Company's Fo-K, filed December 6, 2007

Stock Option Agreement, dated May 22, 2000, betwgréan G. Kelly and the Company (incorporated bigrence to
Exhibit 10.4 of the Company's Form-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2C
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10.80*

10.81*

10.82*

10.83*

10.84*

10.85*

10.86*

10.87*

10.88*

10.89*

10.90*

10.91*

10.92*

10.93*

10.94*

Notice of Restricted Share Unit Award to Brian Glly, dated as of July 9, 2008 (incorporated berefice to Exhibit 10.1
of the Company's Form -Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2C

Notice of Restricted Share Unit Award, dated asleavember 8, 2010, to Brian G. Kelly (incorporatsdrbference tc
Exhibit 10.80 of the Company's Form-K for the year ended December 31, 20:

Employment Agreement, dated as of December 1, 288Ween Michael Morhaime and Vivendi Games, Imzdrporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.19 of the Company's F&€-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2C

Assignment and Assumption of Morhaime Employmentekgnent, dated as of July 9, 2008, between VivEadnes. Inc.
and the Company (incorporated by reference to Eixhib20 of the Company's Form 10-Q for the quasteded
September 30, 200¢

Amendment, dated as of December 15, 2008, to Empoy Agreement between Michael Morhaime and the fizom
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.94 of @@mpany's Form XK for the year ended December 31, 20(

Amendment, dated as of March 31, 2009, to EmployrAgreement between Michael Morhaime and the Compan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of tr@r@any's Form 1-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 20(

Amendment, dated as of November 4, 2009, to EmpémgrAgreement between Michael Morhaime and the Gawyp
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.92 of @@mpany's Form -K for the year ended December 31, 20(

Amendment, dated as of October 26, 2010, to EmpémyrAgreement between Michael Morhaime and the Gaomp
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.86 of @@mpany's Form -K for the year ended December 31, 20:

Notice of Stock Option Award to Michael Morhaimated as of July 9, 2008 (incorporated by referéadexhibit 10.23 o
the Company's Form -Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2C

Notice of Stock Option Award, dated as of Novem®e2009, to Michael Morhaime (incorporated by refere tc
Exhibit 10.94 of the Company's Form-K for the year ended December 31, 20!

Notice of Stock Option Award, dated as of Novem®e2010, to Michael Morhaime and the Company (ipooated by
reference to Exhibit 10.89 of the Company's Fori-K for the year ended December 31, 20:

Notice of Stock Option Award, dated as of Novem®e2010, to Michael Morhaime Company (incorpordigdeference ti
Exhibit 10.90 of the Company's Form-K for the year ended December 31, 20:

Notice of Restricted Share Unit Award, dated aSlofember 8, 2010, to Michael Morhaime (incorporatgdeference t
Exhibit 10.91 of the Company's Form-K for the year ended December 31, 20:

Notice of Restricted Share Unit Award, dated aSlofember 8, 2010, to Michael Morhaime (incorporatgdeference ti
Exhibit 10.92 of the Company's Form-K for the year ended December 31, 20:

Notice of Stock Option Award, dated as of Novemb@&r2011, to Michael Morhaim
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Exhibit Number Exhibit
10.95* Notice of Restricted Share Unit Award, dated aslafember 10, 2011, to Michael Morhain

10.96* Employment Agreement, dated as of July 6, 201Qyd&en Eric Hirshberg and Activision Publishing, Iocorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's Forr-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 201

10.97* Notice of Assignment of Hirshberg Employment Agresmto Activision Blizzard, Inc. dated December 2@11.

10.98" Notice of Share Option Award, dated as of Noven#h&010, to Eric Hirshberg (incorporated by refeeeto Exhibit 10.2 o
the Company's Form -Q for the quarter ended March 31, 201

10.99* Notice of Restricted Share Unit Award, dated aslefember 8, 2010, to Eric Hirshberg (incorporatgdedference tc
Exhibit 10.3 of the Company's Form-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 201

10.100° Notice of Performanc-Vesting Restricted Share Unit Award, dated as @fénber 8, 2010, to Eric Hirshberg (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of the Company's Fa&fi-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 20!

10.101" Investor Agreement, dated as of July 9, 2008, antbea@ompany, Vivendi S.A., VGAC LLC, and Vivendafes, Inc.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of trenany's Form-K, filed July 15, 2008)

10.102° Letter Agreement, dated July 16, 2008, betweeniv8.A. and the Company (incorporated by referéadexhibit 10.104
of the Company's Form -K for the year ended December 31, 20!

10.103" Tax Sharing Agreement, dated as of July 9, 200&nanthe Company, Vivendi Holding | Corp., Vivenda@es, Inc.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of trenany's Form-K, filed July 15, 2008)

10.104" Non-Affiliated Director Compensation Program and St@knership Guidelines, as amended and restated @stber 21,
2011.

10.105* Voting and Lock-Up Agreement, dated as of Decenih@007, among the Company, Vivendi S.A. and RohAeKotick
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of then®any's Form-K, filed December 6, 2007

10.106° Voting and Lock-Up Agreement, dated as of Decenmih@007, among the Company, Vivendi S.A. and B@aiKelly
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of tten@any's Form-K, filed December 6, 2007

21.1 Subsidiaries of Activision Blizzard, In
23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing (PricewaterhouseCoopers LL

31.1 Certification of Robert A. Kotick pursuant to Rul8a-14(a) under the Securities and Exchange At984, as adopted
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbi-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2z Certification of Thomas Tippl pursuant to Rule 113§a) under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1884dopted pursuant
to Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002
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Exhibit Number Exhibit
32.1 Certification of Robert A. Kotick pursuant to Secti906 of the Sarbar-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 Certification of Thomas Tippl pursuant to Sectid@6®f the Sarban-Oxley Act of 2002

99.1 Corporate Governance Term Sheet adopted in commestth the settlement of In re Activision, Inc.&8Bholder Derivative
Litigation, C.D. Cal. Case No. CV06-4771 MRP (JTLKk) re Activision Shareholder Derivative LitigatioL.A.S.C. Case
No. SC090343, as approved by the Company's Bodddrettors on July 28, 2008 and amended by the @oarOctober 3C
2008 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.thef Company's Form -K for the year ended December 31, 20!

101.INS XBRL Instance Documen

101.SCt XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docume

101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docuntn
101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Labels Linkbase Docum:
101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doentx

101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docunhe

* Indicates a management contract or compensatony pdatract or arrangement in which a directonaoaitive officer of the Company
participates
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Exhibit 10.66
AMENDED AND RESTATED ACTIVISION BLIZZARD, INC.
2008 INCENTIVE PLAN

NOTICE OF RESTRICTED SHARE UNIT AWARD

You have been awarded Restricted Share Units afi8icin Blizzard, Inc. (the “Company”), as follows:
*  Your name:George Rose
*  Total number of Restricted Share Units award&8,000
»  Date of Grant:November 8, 2010
*  Grant ID: 08005627
*  Your Award of Restricted Share Units is governedhs/terms and conditions set forth in:
» this Notice of Restricted Share Unit Award;
« the Restricted Share Unit Award Terms attachedtbe® Exhibit A(the “Award Terms”); and

» the Company’'s Amended and Restated 2008 Incentare the receipt of a copy of which you hereby anidedge.

Schedule for Vesting

Except as otherwise provided under the Award TethesRestricted Share Units awarded to you wilt ire$ull on November 8, 2011
provided you remain continuously employed by thenPany or one of its subsidiaries or affiliates tigh such date.

1




»  Please sign and return to the Company this NotideRestricted Share Unit Award, which bears an omgil signature on behalf of the
Company. You are urged to do so promptly.

»  Please return the signed Notice of Restricted Shamit Award to the Company at:
Activision Blizzard, Inc.
3100 Ocean Park Boulevard
Santa Monica, CA 90405
Attn: Stock Plan Administration

You should retain the enclosed duplicate copy isf Notice of Restricted Share Unit Award for yoacords.

Any capitalized term used but not otherwise defiherkin shall have the meaning ascribed to suah itethe Award Terms.
ACTIVISION BLIZZARD, INC.

/s/ Ann E. Weise
Ann E. Weisel
Chief Human Resources Offic

Date: 12/16/201C

ACCEPTED AND AGREED:

/s! George Ros
George Rose

Date: 03/22/201C




EXHIBIT A
AMENDED AND RESTATED ACTIVISION BLIZZARD, INC.
2008 INCENTIVE PLAN

RESTRICTED SHARE UNIT AWARD TERMS

1. Definitions
(@) For purposes of these Award Termesfolowing terms shall have the meanings set fbglow:
“Award” means the award described on the Grant Notice.

“Cause” (i) shall have the meaning given to such term iy employment agreement or offer letter between @eand the
Company or any of its subsidiaries or affiliategffect from time to time or (i) if Grantee is ngarty to any agreement or offer letter with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries or affiliatesaoy such agreement or offer letter does not corgalefinition of “cause,” shall mean that
Grantee (A) engaged in misconduct or gross negtigémthe performance of his or her duties or wilyf and continuously failed or refused to
perform any duties reasonably requested in theseooir his or her employment; (B) engaged in fralishonesty, or any other improper
conduct that causes, or in the sole and absolsteation of the Company has the potential to causen to the Company Group, including the
business reputation or financial condition of argnmber of the Company Group; (C) violated any lawfitgéctives or policies of the Company
Group or any applicable laws, rules or regulati¢Bg;materially breached his or her employment egrent, proprietary information agreem
or any other agreement with the Company Groupg@)mitted, was indicted on charges related to, ioted of, or pled guilty or no contest
a felony or crime involving dishonesty, moral tugge or which could reflect negatively upon the @amy Group of otherwise impede its
operations; or (F) breached his or her fiduciarjieduto the Company Group.

“Common Shares” means the shares of common stock, par value $00000€r share, of the Company or any security into
which such Common Shares may be changed by redsmy éransaction or event of the type referrechtS8ection 9 hereof.

“Company” means Activision Blizzard, Inc. and any succeskerdto.
“Company Group” means the Company or any of its subsidiaries aradffiliates.

“Company-Sponsored Equity Account’means an account that is created with the EquitgoArt Administrator in
connection with the administration of the Compargdsiity plans and programs, including the Plan.
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“Date of Grant” means the Date of Grant of the Award set forthhenGrant Notice.

“Employment Violation” means any material breach by Grantee of his oefmgloyment agreement with the Company or
one of its subsidiaries or affiliates for so lorggthe terms of such employment agreement shalyapgbrantee (with any breach of the post-
termination obligations contained therein deemelketonaterial for purposes of these Award Terms).

“Equity Account Administrator” means the brokerage firm utilized by the Companynftime to time to create and
administer accounts for participants in the Comfmayuity plans and programs, including the Plan.

“Grantee” means the recipient of the Award named on the G¥alite.
“Grant Notice” means the Notice of Restricted Share Unit Awardhiach these Award Terms are attached as Exhibit A

“Look-back Period” means, with respect to any Employment ViolatiorGrantee, the period beginning on the date which is
12 months prior to the date of such Employmentafioh by Grantee and ending on the date of comiputaf the Recapture Amount with
respect to such Employment Violation.

“Plan” means the Amended and Restated Activision Bliz4ad,2008 Incentive Plan, as amended from timée.

“Recapture Amount” means, with respect to any Employment Violatiordrgntee, the gross gain realized or unrealized by
Grantee upon all vesting of Restricted Share Umnitdelivery or transfer of Vested Shares duringlibek-back Period with respect to such
Employment Violation, which gain shall be calcuthtes the sum of:

() if Grantee has received any Vestkdr8s during such Look-back Period and sold sudtedeShares, an amount
equal to the product of (A) the sales price pernt¥gShare times (B) the number of such Vested Stsale at such sales price; plus

(i) if Grantee has received any Vestédrgs during such Look-back Period and not solt Masted Shares, an
amount equal to the product of (A) the greatesheffollowing: (1) the Market Value per Share ofn@oon Shares on the date such
Vested Shares were issued or transferred to Grai2ethe arithmetic average of the per share spsales prices of Common Shares
as reported on NASDAQ for the 30 trading day pegading on the trading day immediately precedirgdhte of the Company’s
written notice of its exercise of its rights undsction 12 hereof, or (3) the arithmetic averagihefper share closing sales prices of
Common Shares as reported on NASDAQ for the 30rtgadlay period ending on the trading day immedyapeeceding the date of
computation, times (B) the number of such Vestear&hwhich were not sold.

“Restricted Share Units” means units subject to the Award, which repredentonditional right to receive Common Shares
in accordance with the Grant Notice and these AWamins, unless and until such units become vestadedorfeited to the Company in
accordance with the Grant Notice and these Awarch$e
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“Section 409A” means Section 409A of the Code and the guidanceegpudations promulgated thereunder.

“Term Sheet” means the Corporate Governance Term Sheet appbgutb@ Delaware Court of Chancery in connectiormwit
the settlement dh re Activision, Inc. Shareholder Derivative L#igon, C.D. Cal. Case No. CV06-4771 MRP (JTLkj;re Activision
Shareholder Derivative LitigationL.A.S.C. Case No. SC090343.

“Vested Shares”"means Common Shares to which the holder of theriBtest Share Units becomes entitled upon vesting
thereof in accordance with Section 2 or 3 hereof.

“Withholding Taxes” means any taxes, including, but not limited to acsecurity and Medicare taxes and federal, state
local income taxes, required to be withheld undawgrapplicable law.

(b) Any capitalized term used but notesthise defined herein shall have the meaning astrib such term in the Plan.
2. Vesting Except as otherwise set forth in these AwardriBethe Restricted Share Units shall vest in acourd with the
“Schedule for Vestingset forth on the Grant Notice. Each Restricted&hhmit, upon vesting thereof, shall entitle thédeo thereof to receiv
one Common Share (subject to adjustment pursueBedton 9 hereof).

3. Termination of Employment

(@) Cause In the event that Grantee’s employment is teateid by the Company or any of its subsidiarieSfdiates
for Cause, as of the date of such termination gfleyment all Restricted Share Units shall ceaseett and any outstanding Restricted Share
Units and Vested Shares that have yet to settlsupnt to Section 7 hereof shall immediately beeitefl to the Company without payment of
consideration by the Company.

(b) Other Unless the Committee determines otherwise,aretfent that Grantee’s employment is terminatecigr
reason other than for Cause, as of the date ofteugtination of employment all Restricted Sharett/shall cease to vest and, with the
exception of any Vested Shares that have yet tle grirsuant to Section 7 hereof, shall immediabe\forfeited to the Company without
payment of consideration by the Company.

4, Tax Withholding The Company shall have the right to require @mo satisfy any Withholding Taxes resulting froma
vesting of any Restricted Share Units, the issuand¢eansfer of any Vested Shares or otherwis@imection with the Award at the time such
Withholding Taxes become due. The Company shédirdeéne the method or methods Grantee may usditfysany Withholding Taxes
contemplated by this Section 4, which may includyg af the following: (a) by delivery to the Compeof a bank check or certified check or
wire transfer of immediately available funds; (bjaugh the delivery of irrevocable written instioats, in a form acceptable to the Company,
that the Company withhold Vested Shares othenkise teliverable having a value equal to the aggeegraount of the Withholding Taxes
(valued in the same manner used in computing theuatrof such Withholding Taxes); or (c) by any camaltion of (a) and (b) above.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contaihedein, (i) the Company or any of its subsidiagesffiliates shall have the right to withhc
from Grantee’s compensation any Withholding Taxasemplated by this Section 4 and (ii) the Compsimgll have no obligation to deliver
any Vested Shares unless and until all Withholdiages contemplated by this Section 4 have beesfigati
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5. Reservation of ShareFhe Company shall at all times reserve for insaaor delivery upon vesting of the Restricted 8har
Units such number of Common Shares as shall bereghjior issuance or delivery upon vesting thereof.

6. Dividend Equivalentsin the event that any cash dividends are detlanel paid on Common Shares to which the holder of
the Restricted Share Units would be entitled upesting thereof, such holder shall be paid, on thenent date for such dividend, the amount
that such holder would have received if the RestiShare Units had vested, and the Common Shavasich such holder was thereupon
entitled had been issued and outstanding and Hie&tord by such holder, as of the record datestwh dividend; providegdhowever, that no
such dividend equivalents shall be paid if the Retstd Share Units have been forfeited to the Camjla accordance with Section 3 hereof
prior to payment thereof. Notwithstanding the fmimg, in no event shall any such dividend equivisée paid later than the #5  day
following the year in which the related dividendas paid. For purposes of the time and form of payimequirements of Section 409A, such
dividend equivalents shall be treated separateiy fthe Restricted Share Units.

7. Receipt and DeliveryAs soon as administratively practicable (andang event, within 30 days) after any Restrictedr8h
Units vest, the Company shall (i) effect the issgaaor transfer of the resulting Vested Sharescéijse the issuance or transfer of such Vested
Shares to be evidenced on the books and recottie @ompany, and (iii) cause such Vested Sharks tielivered to a Company-Sponsored
Equity Account in the name of the person entiteduch Vested Shares (or, with the Company’s cansaoh other brokerage account as may
be requested by such person); providadwever, that, in the event such Vested Shares are subjeclegend as set forth in Section 15 hereof,
the Company shall instead cause a certificate agidg such Vested Shares and bearing such legdreldelivered to the person entitled
thereto.

8. Committee DiscretionExcept as may otherwise be provided in the RlenCommittee shall have sole discretion to
(a) interpret any provision of the Plan, the Giidotice and these Award Terms, (b) make any detextioins necessary or advisable for the
administration of the Plan and the Award, and (ajwe any conditions or rights of the Company unitierAward, the Grant Notice or these
Award Terms. Without intending to limit the genl@yaor effect of the foregoing, any decision ottelenination to be made by the Committee
pursuant to these Award Terms, including whethgrémt or withhold any consent, shall be made kyGbmmittee in its sole and absolute
discretion, subject only to the terms of the Pl&ubject to the terms of the Plan, the Committeg amaend the terms of the Award
prospectively or retroactively; however, no suckeadment may materially and adversely affect thietsigf Grantee taken as a whole without
Grantee’s consent. Without intending to limit tenerality or effect of the foregoing, the Commdtteay amend the terms of the Award (i) in
recognition of unusual or nonrecurring events (idahg, without limitation, events described in $&tt9 hereof) affecting the Company or any
of its subsidiaries or affiliates or the financithtements of the Company or any of its subsidiarieaffiliates, (ii) in response to changes in
applicable laws, regulations or accounting priresphnd interpretations thereof, or (iii) to previbre Award from becoming subject to any
adverse consequences under Section 409A.
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9. Adjustments Notwithstanding anything to the contrary congairherein, pursuant to Section 12 of the PlanCibramittee
will make or provide for such adjustments to theak@vas are equitably required to prevent dilutioerdargement of the rights of Grantee that
would otherwise result from (a) any stock divideextraordinary dividend, stock split, combinatidrsbares, recapitalization or other chanc
the capital structure of the Company, (b) any cleasfgcontrol, merger, consolidation, spin-off, splif, spin-out, split-up, reorganization,
partial or complete liquidation or other distrilartiof assets, or issuance of rights or warranpaitohase securities, or (c) any other corporate
transaction or event having an effect similar tg ahthe foregoing. Moreover, in the event of @ugh transaction or event, the Committee, in
its discretion, may provide in substitution for therard such alternative consideration (includingheut limitation, cash or other equity
awards), if any, as it may determine to be equitéibthe circumstances and may require in connecttierewith the surrender of the Award.

10. Registration and ListingNotwithstanding anything to the contrary congairherein, the Company shall not be obligated to
issue or transfer any Restricted Share Units otédeShares, and no Restricted Share Units or V&ades may be sold, assigned, transferred
pledged, hypothecated or otherwise disposed oficurabered in any way, unless such transactiondsiimpliance with (a) the Securities Act
of 1933, as amended, or any comparable federatitiesdaw, and all applicable state securitiesda(l) the requirements of any securities
exchange, securities association, market systequatation system on which securities of the Compzfrthe same class as the securities
subject to the Award are then traded or quotedarfg)restrictions on transfer imposed by the Comizarertificate of incorporation or bylaws,
and (d) any policy or procedure the Company hagtadiowith respect to the trading of its securitiesgach case as in effect on the date of the
intended transaction. The Company is under n@atitin to register, qualify or list, or maintairetregistration, qualification or listing of,
Restricted Share Units or Vested Shares with the, 8By state securities commission or any secsi@tiehange, securities association, market
system or quotation system to effect such compéiar@rantee shall make such representations angstfiusuch information as may be
appropriate to permit the Company, in light of then existence or non-existence of an effectivestegion statement under the Securities Act
of 1933, as amended, relating to Restricted Shaits dr Vested Shares, to issue or transfer Résthi8hare Units or Vested Shares in
compliance with the provisions of that or any conajpée federal securities law and all applicabléessecurities laws. The Company shall i
the right, but not the obligation, to register tb&uance or transfer of Restricted Share Unitsast&l Shares or resale of Restricted Share Unit:
or Vested Shares under the Securities Act of 188Zmended, or any comparable federal securitiesiapplicable state securities law.
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11. Transferability Except as otherwise permitted under the PlahisrSection 11, the Restricted Share Units slalbe
transferable by Grantee other than by will or #hed of descent and distribution. With the Compamygnsent, Grantee may transfer Restricted
Share Units for estate planning purposes or putsnamdomestic relations order; providdibwever, that any transferee shall be bound by all
of the terms and conditions of the Plan, the GNwtice and these Award Terms and shall executgeseaent in form and substance
satisfactory to the Company in connection with stiahsfer; and providedfurtherthat Grantee will remain bound by the terms andl@ams
of the Plan, the Grant Notice and these Award Terms

12. Employment Violation The terms of this Section 12 shall apply toR@stricted Share Units if Grantee is or becomes
subject to an employment agreement with the Compamyy of its subsidiaries or affiliates. In #heent of an Employment Violation, the
Company shall have the right to require (i) thdditare by Grantee to the Company of any outstapn&astricted Share Units or Vested Shares
which have yet to settle pursuant to Section 7dfeard (ii) payment by Grantee to the Company efRecapture Amount with respect to such
Employment Violation; providedhowever, that, in lieu of payment by Grantee to the Conypafithe Recapture Amount, Grantee, in his ol
discretion, may tender to the Company the Vestededhacquired during the Look-back Period with eespo such Employment Violation and
Grantee shall not be entitled to receive any caraiibn from the Company in exchange therefor. sigh forfeiture of Restricted Share Ur
and payment of the Recapture Amount, as the cagémashall be in addition to, and not in lieuafy other right or remedy available to the
Company arising out of or in connection with suchfoyment Violation, including, without limitatiorthe right to terminate Grantee’s
employment if not already terminated and to segknictive relief and additional monetary damages.

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws anegRllations and Company Policies and Procedures

(@) Grantee is responsible for complywith (a) any federal, state and local taxation |lapplicable to Grantee in
connection with the Award, (b) any federal andestacurities laws applicable to Grantee in conaedtiith the Award, (c) the requirements of
any securities exchange, securities associatiorkegnaystem or quotation system on which securdfabe Company of the same class as the
Shares are then traded or quoted, (d) any restn transfer imposed by the Company’s certéicdtincorporation or bylaws, and (e) any
policy or procedure the Company maintains or maypavith respect to the trading of its securities.

(b) The Award is subject to the terms aadditions of the Term Sheet, and any Companycigslior procedures
adopted in connection with the Company’s implemémteof the Term Sheet, including, without limitati, any policy requiring or permitting
the Company to recover any gains realized by Geainteonnection with the Award.
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14. Section 409A

(@) Payments contemplated with respetitécAward are intended to comply with Section 408Ad all provisions of
the Plan, the Grant Notice and these Award Terrali b construed and interpreted in a manner ctamgisvith the requirements for avoiding
taxes or penalties under Section 409A. Notwittditamthe foregoing, (i) nothing in the Plan, thea@rNotice and these Award Terms shall
guarantee that the Award is not subject to taxgeenalties under Section 409A and (i) if any psian of the Plan, the Grant Notice or these
Award Terms would, in the reasonable, good faittgjuent of the Company, result or likely resulthie fmposition on Grantee or any other
person of taxes, interest or penalties under Sed®A, the Committee may, in its sole discretimodify the terms of the Plan, the Grant
Notice or these Award Terms, without the conser®intee, in the manner that the Committee mayredsdy and in good faith determine
be necessary or advisable to avoid the impositiauch taxes, interest or penalties; provigbdwever, that this Section 14 does not create an
obligation on the part of the Committee or the Campto make any such modification.

(b) Neither Grantee nor any of Grantee&litors or beneficiaries shall have the rightdbject any deferred
compensation (within the meaning of Section 409&y)able with respect to the Award to any anticipataienation, sale, transfer, assignment,
pledge, encumbrance, attachment or garnishmerdefEas permitted under Section 409A, any deferoapensation (within the meaning of
Section 409A) payable to Grantee or for Grargdsnefit with respect to the Award may not be cedlby, or offset against, any amount ov
by Grantee to the Company.

(c) Notwithstanding anything to the camyrcontained herein, if (i) the Committee detemsiin good faith that the
Restricted Share Units do not qualify for the “skterm deferral exception” under Section 409A, @antee is a “specified employee” (as
defined in Section 409A) and (iii) a delay in tlssuance or transfer of Vested Shares to Grantkis or her estate or beneficiaries hereunder
by reason of Grantee’s “separation from servicg’deafined in Section 409A) with the Company or ahits subsidiaries or affiliates is
required to avoid tax penalties under Section 4B8Ais not already provided for by this Award, tbempany shall cause the issuance or
transfer of such Vested Shares to Grantee or Granstate or beneficiary upon the earlier of (#8 date that is the first business day
following the date that is six months after theedaft Grantee’s separation from service or (B) Graistdeath.

15. Legend The Company may, if determined by it based erdttivice of counsel to be appropriate, cause anijicate
evidencing Vested Shares to bear a legend substars follows:

“THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED HEREBY MAY NOT BE OFFER FOR SALE, SOLD OR OTHERWISE
TRANSFERRED EXCEPT PURSUANT TO AN EFFECTIVE REGISARON STATEMENT UNDER THE
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE “ACT"), ORURSUANT TO AN EXEMPTION FROM
REGISTRATION UNDER THE ACT.”

16. No Right to Continued Employmentothing contained in the Grant Notice or theseafd Terms shall be construed to
confer upon Grantee any right to be continued éneimploy of the Company or any of its subsidiaoieaffiliates or derogate from any right of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries or affilate retire, request the resignation of, or disgadsrantee at any time, with or without cause.
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17. No Rights as StockholdeNo holder of Restricted Share Units shall, byué of the Grant Notice or these Award Terms
entitled to any right of a stockholder of the Compaeither at law or in equity, and the rights oy @uch holder are limited to those expressed,
and are not enforceable against the Company ekzéipé extent set forth in the Plan, the Grant téotind these Award Terms.

18. Severability In the event that one or more of the provisiohthese Award Terms shall be invalidated for aagson by a
court of competent jurisdiction, any provision sgdlidated shall be deemed to be separable frorottiex provisions hereof, and the remair
provisions hereof shall continue to be valid antyfenforceable.

19. Governing Law To the extent that federal law does not othexwizntrol, the validity, interpretation, performarand
enforcement of the Grant Notice and these AwardriEeshall be governed by the laws of the State ¢tdere, without giving effect to
principles of conflicts of laws thereof.

20. Successors and AssigriEhe provisions of the Grant Notice and these wigerms shall be binding upon and inure to the
benefit of the Company, its successors and assaguasiGrantee and, to the extent applicable, Granpsemitted assigns under Section 11
hereof and Grantee’s estate or beneficiary(ieslegermined by will or the laws of descent and distion.

21. Notices Any notice or other document which Grantee er@ompany may be required or permitted to deligghé other
pursuant to or in connection with the Grant Noticehese Award Terms shall be in writing, and maydblivered personally or by mail,
postage prepaid, or overnight courier, addressédllasvs: (a) if to the Company, at its office2t00 Ocean Park Boulevard, Santa Monica,
California 90405, Attn: Stock Plan Administratiar,such other address as the Company by noticeant& may designate in writing from
time to time; and (b) if to Grantee, at the addssswvn in any employment agreement or offer |ditdween Grantee and the Company or any
of its subsidiaries or affiliates in effect frormt to time, or such other address as Grantee ligertotthe Company may designate in writing
from time to time. Notices shall be effective upeneipt.

22. Conflict with Employment AgreementRian. In the event of any conflict between the termarny employment agreement
or offer letter between Grantee and the Comparangrof its subsidiaries or affiliates in effectrfrdime to time and the terms of the Grant
Notice or these Award Terms, the terms of the Giwtice or these Award Terms, as the case mayhiadl,ontrol. In the event of any confl
between the terms of any employment agreementfer letter between Grantee and the Company or &itg subsidiaries or affiliates in effe
from time to time, the Grant Notice or these Aw&mtms and the terms of the Plan, the terms of ke hall control.

23. Deemed AgreemenBy accepting the Award, Grantee is deemed todead by the terms and conditions set forth in the
Plan, the Grant Notice and these Award Terms.
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Exhibit 10.94
AMENDED AND RESTATED ACTIVISION BLIZZARD, INC.
2008 INCENTIVE PLAN

NOTICE OF STOCK OPTION AWARD

You have been awarded an option to purchase Conghares of Activision Blizzard, Inc. (the “Companyas follows:

Your name: Mike Morhaime

Total number of Shares purchasable upon exercigeedbtock Option awarded00,000

Exercise Price: US$2.98per Share

Date of Grant:November 10, 2011

Expiration Date: November 10, 2021

Grant ID: 08006646

Your Award of the Stock Option is governed by tberis and conditions set forth in:

«  this Notice of Stock Option Award;

«  the Stock Option Award Terms attached hereto asbiixh (the “Award Terms”); and

+ the Company's Amended and Restated 2008 Incentare the receipt of a copy of which you hereby anidedge.

Schedule for Vesting Except as otherwise provided under the AwardriBetthe Stock Option awarded to you will vest aaddme
exercisable as follows, provided you remain condirsly employed by the Company or one of its subsiel or affiliates through each
such date:

Schedule for Vesting

No. of Shares Cumulative No. of
Vesting at Vesting Shares Vested at
Date of Vesting Date Vesting Date
November 9, 201- 66,667 66,667
November 9, 201 66,667 133,334
November 9, 201« 66,666 200,000




»  The Stock Option is not intended to be an “incemsitock option,” as such term is defined in Sectida of the Code.

» Please sign and return to the Company this NotideStock Option Award, which bears an original sighae on behalf of the
Company. You are urged to do so promptly.

»  Please return the signed Notice of Stock Option Ad/#o the Company at:
Activision Blizzard, Inc.
3100 Ocean Park Boulevard
Santa Monica, CA 90405
Attn: Stock Plan Administration
You should retain the enclosed duplicate copy i3f lotice of Stock Option Award for your records.

Any capitalized term used but not otherwise defiherkin shall have the meaning ascribed to suah itethe Award Terms.

ACTIVISION BLIZZARD, INC.

/s/ Ann E. Weise

Ann E. Weisel
Chief Human Resources Offic

Date:12/18/2011

ACCEPTED AND AGREED:

/s/ Mike Morhaime
Mike Morhaime

Date: 01/17/201z




EXHIBIT A
AMENDED AND RESTATED ACTIVISION BLIZZARD, INC.
2008 INCENTIVE PLAN
STOCK OPTION AWARD TERMS
1. Definitions

(@) For purposes of these Award Ternmes felowing terms shall have the meanings set fbetow:

“Award” means the award described on the Grant Notice.

“Cause” (i) shall have the meaning given to such term inemployment agreement or offer letter betweerHblkger and
the Company or any of its subsidiaries or affil&ite effect from time to time or (ii) if the Holdés not party to any agreement or offer letter
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries orli@fés or any such agreement or offer letter datésontain a definition of “causeshall mear
that the Holder (A) engaged in misconduct or greesgligence in the performance of his or her duiewillfully and continuously failed or
refused to perform any duties reasonably requesttite course of his or her employment; (B) engagddaud, dishonesty, or any other
improper conduct that causes, or in the sole asdlate discretion of the Company has the potetdiahuse, harm to the Company Group,
including the business reputation or financial ddad of any member of the Company Group; (C) iethany lawful directives or policies of
the Company Group or any applicable laws, rulesgulations; (D) materially breached his or her lEeyjment agreement, proprietary
information agreement or any other agreement vméhGompany Group; (E) committed, was indicted cargeés related to, convicted of, or
pled guilty or no contest to, a felony or crimedhxing dishonesty, moral turpitude or which couddlect negatively upon the Company Group
of otherwise impede its operations; or (F) breadhisdr her fiduciary duties to the Company Group.

“Common Shares” means the shares of common stock, par value $00000€r share, of the Company or any security into
which such Common Shares may be changed by redsmy transaction or event of the type referrethtS8ection 8 hereof.

“Company” means Activision Blizzard, Inc. and any succeskerdto.
“Company Group” means the Company or any of its subsidiaries araffiliates.

“Company-Sponsored Equity Account” means an account that is created with the EquityoAint Administrator in
connection with the administration of the Compargdsiity plans and programs, including the Plan.

“Date of Grant” means the Date of Grant of the Award set forthhenGrant Notice.
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“Disability” (A) shall have the meaning given to such term irgtberwise be determined in accordance with, any
employment agreement or offer letter between thielétaand the Company or any of its subsidiariesffiliates in effect from time to time or
(B) if the Holder is not party to any agreemenbfier letter with the Company or any of its subaii#s or affiliates or any such agreement or
offer letter does not contain a definition of “dily” or otherwise provide a method for deternrmigiwhether the Holder is disabled, shall have
the meaning ascribed thereto under the Compangtsterm disability plan in effect from time to times interpreted under such plan (with
such interpretation to be final, conclusive anddbig for purposes of these Award Terms).

“Employment Violation means any material breach by the Holder of hissoremployment agreement with the Company or
one of its subsidiaries or affiliates for so lorgythe terms of such employment agreement shalydapghe Holder (with any breach of the post-
termination obligations contained therein deemelketonaterial for purposes of these Award Terms).

“Equity Account Administrator” means the brokerage firm utilized by the Companynftime to time to create and
administer accounts for participants in the Comfmayuity plans and programs, including the Plan.

“Exercise Price” means the Exercise Price set forth on the Graritdlot

“Expiration Date” means the Expiration Date set forth on the Grarniddo

“Grant Notice” means the Notice of Stock Option Award to whiclsth&ward Terms are attached as Exhibit A

“Holder” means the recipient of the Award named on the GYatite.

“Look-back Period” means, with respect to any Employment Violatiorthm®yHolder the period beginning on the date wr
is 12 months prior to the date of such Employmeiotation by the Holder and ending on the date afpatation of the Recapture Amount w

respect to such Employment Violation.

“Option” means the Stock Option to purchase Common Sharaslad/to the Holder on the terms and conditionsritesd
in the Grant Notice and these Award Terms.

“Plan” means the Amended and Restated Activision Blizaad,2008 Incentive Plan, as amended from timtinte.
“Recapture Amount” means, with respect to any Employment Violatiorth®y Holder, the gross gain realized or unrealized
by the Holder upon all exercises of the Stock Qptlaring the Look-back Period with respect to skafiployment Violation, which gain shall
be calculated as the sum of:
0] if the Holder has exercised any jwortof the Stock Option during such Loblack Period and sold any of the Shz
acquired on exercise thereafter, an amount equbktproduct of (A) the sales price per Share sutdis the Exercise Price times
(B) the number of Shares as to which the Stockddptias exercised and which were sold at such pailes; plus
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(i) if the Holder has exercised any pmrtof the Stock Option during such Look-back Pérmd not sold any of the
Shares acquired on exercise thereafter, an amquat & the product of (A) the greatest of thedwiing: (1) the Market Value per
Share of Common Shares on the date of exerciséh€Brithmetic average of the per share clositesgaices of Common Shares as
reported on NASDAQ for the 30 trading day periodiag on the trading day immediately preceding tateaf the Compang’writter
notice of its exercise of its rights under Sectldnhereof, or (3) the arithmetic average of thegbare closing sales prices of Common
Shares as reported on NASDAQ for the 30 tradingmiaiod ending on the trading day immediately pdéug the date of
computation, minus the Exercise Price, times (B)rthmber of Shares as to which the Stock Optionexascised and which were not
sold.

“Section 409A” means Section 409A of the Code and the guidanceegpudations promulgated thereunder.

“Shares " means the Common Shares purchasable upon exeftise $tock Option.

“Term Sheet” means the Corporate Governance Term Sheet appbyvtb@ Delaware Court of Chancery in connectiomwit
the settlement dh re Activision, Inc. Shareholder Derivative Liitipn, C.D. Cal. Case No. CV06-4771 MRP (JTLk);re Activision
Shareholder Derivative LitigationL.A.S.C. Case No. SC090343.

“Withholding Taxes” means any taxes, including, but not limited tojacgecurity and Medicare taxes and federal, state
local income taxes, required to be withheld undawgrapplicable law.

(b) Any capitalized term used but notesthise defined herein shall have the meaning asdtib such term in the Plan.
2. Expiration The Stock Option shall expire on the Expiratizmte and, after such expiration, shall no longeeXercisable.
3. Vesting and Exercise

(@) Vesting ScheduleExcept as otherwise set forth in these AwardBethe Stock Option shall vest, and thereupon

become exercisable, in accordance with the “ScleefdulVesting” set forth on the Grant Notice.

(b) Exercisable Only by the HoldeExcept as otherwise permitted under the PlgBeation 10 hereof, the Stock
Option may be exercised during the Holder’s lifetionly by the Holder or, in the event of the Holdéggal incapacity to do so, by the
Holder’s guardian or legal representative actingehalf of the Holder in a fiduciary capacity undete law and/or court supervision.

(c) Procedure for Exerciselhe Stock Option may be exercised by the Hoddeto all or any of the Shares as to which
the Stock Option has vested (i) by following theqadures for exercise established by the EquityoAst Administrator and posted on the
Equity Account Administrator’s website from timetime or (ii) with the Companyg consent,by giving the Company written notice>areise.
in such form as may be prescribed by the Compaoy fime to time, specifying the number of Sharesagurchased.
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(d) Payment of Exercise Pricd 0 be valid, any exercise of the Stock Optiorstihe accompanied by full payment of
the aggregate Exercise Price of the Shares beirdpgsed. The Company shall determine the methatktinods the Holder may use to make
such payment, which may include any of the follayvir(i) by bank check or certified check or wirartsfer of immediately available funds,

(ii) if securities of the Company of the same classhe Shares are then traded or quoted on anabsiecurities exchange, the Nasdaqg Stock
Market, Inc. or a national quotation system spoaddry the National Association of Securities Deglérc., through the delivery of irrevocal
written instructions, in a form acceptable to th@pany, to the Equity Account Administrator (orttwihe Company’s consent, such other
brokerage firm as may be requested by the persertising the Stock Option) to sell some or alltef Shares being purchased upon such
exercise and to thereafter deliver promptly toGmenpany from the proceeds of such sale an amowash equal to the aggregate Exercise
Price of the Shares being purchased, (iii) by tendepreviously owned shares (valued at their Makkaue per Share as of the date of tender),
(iv) through the withholding of Shares otherwisdivdable upon exercise, or (v) any combinatiorfipf(ii), (i) or (iv) above or any other
manner permitted pursuant to the Plan.

(e) No Fractional Sharedn no event may the Stock Option be exercisea fivaction of a Share.

® No Adjustment for Dividends or Otheights. No adjustment shall be made for cash dividemdgteer rights for
which the record date is prior to the date as dttkhe issuance or transfer of Shares to the peratitled thereto has been evidenced on the
books and records of the Company pursuant to cl@ijisé Section 3(g) hereof following exercisetbe Stock Option.

(9) Issuance and Delivery of Sharess soon as practicable (and, in any event, wili days) after the valid exercise
of the Stock Option, the Company shall (i) efféxt tssuance or transfer of the Shares purchasedayuh exercise, (ii) cause the issuance or
transfer of such Shares to be evidenced on thesbaod records of the Company, and (iii) cause Sires to be delivered to a Company-
Sponsored Equity Account in the name of the peestitled to such Shares (or, with the Company’sseaty such other brokerage account as
may be requested by such person); providealvever, that, in the event such Shares are subjectégent as set forth in Section 14 hereof
Company shall instead cause a certificate evidgmmirch Shares and bearing such legend to be daliverthe person entitled thereto.

(h) Partial Exerciself the Stock Option shall have been exercisetth wéspect to less than all of the Shares purche
upon exercise of the Stock Option, the Company shake a notation in its books and records to cetlee partial exercise of the Stock Option
and the number of Shares that thereafter remaiitehlefor purchase upon exercise of the Stock @pti

4, Termination of Employment

(@) Cause In the event that the Holder’'s employment isni@ated by the Company or any of its subsidiaries o
affiliates for Cause, as of the date of such teatiom of employment the Stock Option shall (i) eetsvest, if not then fully vested, (i) no
longer be exercisable, whether or not vested, éijth¢ immediately cancelled.
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(b) Death or DisabilityUnless the Committee determines otherwise, irettemt that the Holder dies while employed
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries or &ffds or the Holder's employment with the Compangror of its subsidiaries or affiliates is
terminated due to the Holder's Disability, the &t@ption shall (i) cease to vest as of the datinefHolder's death or the first date of the
Holder’s Disability (as determined by the Commijtess the case may be, and (ii) to the extent desteof the date of the Holder’s death or the
first date of the Holder's Disability, as the casay be, remain exercisable in accordance with tAeserd Terms until the earlier of (A) the
first anniversary of the date of the Holdedeath or termination of employment, as the casgelm, and (B) the Expiration Date, after which
Stock Option shall no longer be exercisable andl Beammediately cancelled. To the extent notedss of the date of the Holder’s death or
the first date of the Holder’s Disability, as theese may be, the Stock Option shall be immediat@helled and shall no longer be exercisable.

(c) Other Unless the Committee determines otherwise,aretfent that the Holder's employment is termindtedgny
reason not addressed by Section 4(a) or 4(b) hetteotock Option shall (i) cease to vest as efdhte of such termination of employment
(i) to the extent vested as of the date of suamiteation of employment, be exercisable in accocdanith these Award Terms until the earlier
of (A) the 30th day after the date of such termorabf employment and (B) the Expiration Date, aftdich the Stock Option shall no longer
be exercisable and shall be immediately cancelledthe extent not vested as of the date of suchitation of service, the Stock Option shall
be immediately cancelled and shall no longer beatsable.

5. Tax Withholding The Company shall have the right to requireHbé&ler to satisfy any Withholding Taxes resultimgn
the exercise (in whole or in part) of the Stocki@ptthe issuance or transfer of any Shares upercise of the Stock Option or otherwise in
connection with the Award at the time such WithlwddTaxes become due. The Company shall deterthenenethod or methods the Holder
may use to satisfy any Withholding Taxes contengplddy this Section 5, which may include any offtiiowing: (a) by delivery to the
Company of a bank check or certified check or wiaasfer of immediately available funds; (b) i€agties of the Company of the same class
as the Shares are then traded or quoted on a absecurities exchange, the Nasdaq Stock Marketoina national quotation system
sponsored by the National Association of Securliealers, Inc., through the delivery of irrevocabtéten instructions, in a form acceptabls
the Company, to the Equity Account Administratar, (@ith the Company’s consent, such other brokefaigeas may be requested by the
person exercising the Stock Option) to sell somallasf the Shares being purchased upon such esesaeid to thereafter deliver promptly to
Company from the proceeds of such sale an amouwash equal to the aggregate amount of such WiligTaxes; (c) by tendering
previously owned shares (valued at their Markeu€gler Share as of the date of tender); (d) throliglwithholding of Shares otherwise
deliverable upon exercise; or (e) by any combimatib(a), (b), (c) or (d) above. Notwithstandimgything to the contrary contained herein,
(i) the Company or any of its subsidiaries or &ffés shall have the right to withhold from the ¢hts compensation any Withholding Taxes
contemplated by this Section 5 and (ii) the Compstmgll have no obligation to deliver any Sharesnugxercise of the Stock Option unless and
until all Withholding Taxes contemplated by thiscBen 5 have been satisfied.
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6. Reservation of Share3he Company shall at all times reserve for iasaaor delivery upon exercise of the Stock Option
such number of Common Shares as shall be requirédsuance or delivery upon exercise thereof.

7. Committee DiscretionExcept as may otherwise be provided in the RlenCommittee shall have sole discretion to
(a) interpret any provision of the Plan, the Grdotice and these Award Terms, (b) make any detextioins necessary or advisable for the
administration of the Plan and the Award, and (a)we any conditions or rights of the Company urterAward, the Grant Notice or these
Award Terms. Without intending to limit the gendyaor effect of the foregoing, any decision oitelenination to be made by the Committee
pursuant to these Award Terms, including whethgrémt or withhold any consent, shall be made kyGbmmittee in its sole and absolute
discretion, subject only to the terms of the Pl&ubject to the terms of the Plan, the Committeg amend the terms of the Award
prospectively or retroactively; however, no sucteadment may materially and adversely affect thietsigf the Holder taken as a whole
without the Holder’s consent. Without intendindituit the generality or effect of the foregoingetCommittee may amend the terms of the
Award (i) in recognition of unusual or nonrecurriegents (including, without limitation, events deélsed in Section 8 hereof) affecting the
Company or any of its subsidiaries or affiliategtw financial statements of the Company or anysafubsidiaries or affiliates, (ii) in response
to changes in applicable laws, regulations or agting principles and interpretations thereof, oy {0 prevent the Award from becoming
subject to Section 409A.

8. Adjustments Notwithstanding anything to the contrary congairherein, pursuant to Section 12 of the PlanCibramittee
will make or provide for such adjustments to theak@vas are equitably required to prevent dilutioerdargement of the rights of the Holder
that would otherwise result from (a) any stock dénd, extraordinary dividend, stock split, combiomaf shares, recapitalization or other
change in the capital structure of the Companyafly) change of control, merger, consolidation, sffnsplit-off, spin-out, split-up,
reorganization, partial or complete liquidationother distribution of assets, or issuance of rigite/arrants to purchase securities, or (c) any
other corporate transaction or event having arceffienilar to any of the foregoing. Moreover, Iretevent of any such transaction or event, the
Committee, in its discretion, may provide in sutoston for the Award such alternative considerafimeluding, without limitation, cash or
other equity awards), if any, as it may determmbe equitable in the circumstances and may reduitennection therewith the surrender of
the Award.

9. Registration and ListingNotwithstanding anything to the contrary conégirherein, the Stock Option may not be exercised,
and the Stock Option and Shares purchasable upanisa of the Stock Option may not be purchasdd, assigned, transferred, pledged,
hypothecated or otherwise disposed of or encumbarady way, unless such transaction is in compganith (a) the Securities Act of 1933
amended, or any comparable federal securitiesdad all applicable state securities laws, (b) dwpiirements of any securities exchange,
securities association, market system or quotatystem on which securities of the Company of tmeeselass as the Shares are then traded or
guoted, (c) any restrictions on transfer imposethieyCompany'’s certificate of incorporation or lw$a and (d) any policy or procedure the
Company has adopted with respect to the tradintg gecurities, in each case as in effect on the adfsthe intended transaction. The Company
is under no obligation to register, qualify or list maintain the registration, qualification ating of, the Stock Option or Shares with the SEC,
any state securities commission or any securitieRange, securities association, market systenuatatjon system to effect such compliance.
The Holder shall make such representations andstusuch information as may be appropriate to pettmi Company, in light of the then
existence or non-existence of an effective redistnastatement under the Securities Act of 193%mended, relating to the Stock Option or
Shares, to issue or transfer the Stock Option arethin compliance with the provisions of thatimy aomparable federal securities law and all
applicable state securities laws. The Company bhagk the right, but not the obligation, to regighe issuance or resale of the Stock Option
or Shares under the Securities Act of 1933, as dettror any comparable federal securities law pliegble state securities law.
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10. Transferability Except as otherwise permitted under the PlahisrSection 10, the Stock Option shall not begfarable
by the Holder other than by will or the laws of desst and distribution. Subject to the terms ofRitemn, with the Company’s consent, the
Holder may transfer all or part of the Stock Optionestate planning purposes or pursuant to a doonelations order; providechowever,
that any transferee shall be bound by all of theseand conditions of the Plan, the Grant Notia# thiese Award Terms and shall execute an
agreement in form and substance satisfactory t€trmepany in connection with such transfer; and igedfurtherthat the Holder will remain
bound by the terms and conditions of the Plan@tant Notice and these Award Terms.

11. Employment Violation The terms of this Section 11 shall apply to$iteck Option if the Holder is or becomes subjear
employment agreement with the Company or any cfutssidiaries or affiliates. In the event of anffmgyment Violation, the Company shall
have the right to require (i) the termination aadaellation of the Stock Option, whether vestedrorested, and (ii) payment by the Holder to
the Company of the Recapture Amount with respestithh Employment Violation; providedowever, that, in lieu of payment by the Holder
to the Company of the Recapture Amount, the Holidejs or her discretion, may tender to the Comypthie Shares acquired upon exercise of
the Stock Option during the Look-back Period wigspect to such Employment Violation and the Hotdedl not be entitled to receive any
consideration from the Company in exchange therefary such termination of the Stock Option andmant of the Recapture Amount, as the
case may be, shall be in addition to, and notein tif, any other right or remedy available to tlempany arising out of or in connection with
such Employment Violation, including, without liratton, the right to terminate the Holder’'s employrni€ not already terminated and to seek
injunctive relief and additional monetary damages.

12. Compliance with Applicable Laws aneigRllations and Company Policies and Procedures

(@) The Holder is responsible for complyivith (a) any federal, state and local taxatamd applicable to the Holder
connection with the Award, (b) any federal andestacurities laws applicable to the Holder in catioe with the Award, (c) the requirements
of any securities exchange, securities associatianket system or quotation system on which seearif the Company of the same class as
the Shares are then traded or quoted, (d) anyatéstis on transfer imposed by the Company’s dedié of incorporation or bylaws, and
(e) any policy or procedure the Company maintamsay adopt with respect to the trading of its siies.

(b) The Award is subject to the terms aadditions of the Term Sheet, and any Companycigslior procedures
adopted in connection with the Company’s implemiémteof the Term Sheet, including, without limitati, any policy requiring or permitting
the Company to recover any gains realized by thiedétan connection with the Award.
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13. Section 409A As the Exercise Price is equal to the fair maviedue of a Share on the Date of Grant, payments
contemplated with respect to the Award are interiddzk exempt from Section 409A, and all provisiohthe Plan, the Grant Notice and these
Award Terms shall be construed and interpretednraaner consistent with the requirements for angidaxes or penalties under
Section 409A. Notwithstanding the foregoing, @thing in the Plan, the Grant Notice and these Avilaarms shall guarantee that the Awal
not subject to taxes or penalties under Sectio®408l (ii) if any provision of the Plan, the Graytice or these Award Terms would, in the
reasonable, good faith judgment of the Companyiltres likely result in the imposition on the Holder any other person of taxes, interest or
penalties under Section 409A, the Committee majtsisole discretion, modify the terms of the Pldue, Grant Notice or these Award Terms,
without the consent of the Holder, in the mannat the Committee may reasonably and in good fathrthine to be necessary or advisable to
avoid the imposition of such taxes, interest orghtées; provided however, that this Section 13 does not create an obligatiothe part of the
Committee or the Company to make any such modificat

14. Legend The Company may, if determined by it based erdttivice of counsel to be appropriate, cause anijicate
evidencing Shares to bear a legend substantiafiyllasvs:

“THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED HEREBY MAY NOT BE OFFER FOR SALE, SOLD OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED
EXCEPT PURSUANT TO AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEHANT UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS
AMENDED (THE “ACT”), OR PURSUANT TO AN EXEMPTION FRM REGISTRATION UNDER THE ACT.”

15. No Right to Continued Employmentothing contained in the Grant Notice or theseafd Terms shall be construed to
confer upon the Holder any right to be continuethmemploy of the Company or any of its subsidmor affiliates or derogate from any right
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or &ff#is to retire, request the resignation of, ortdisge the Holder at any time, with or without
Cause.

16. No Rights as StockholdeNo holder of the Stock Option shall, by virtuettee Grant Notice or these Award Terms, be
entitled to any right of a stockholder of the Compaeither at law or in equity, and the rights oy @uch holder are limited to those expressed,
and are not enforceable against the Company exuépe extent set forth, in the Plan, the Granti¢éoaind these Award Terms.

17. Severability In the event that one or more of the provisiohthese Award Terms shall be invalidated for aagson by a
court of competent jurisdiction, any provision sgdlidated shall be deemed to be separable fromttie provisions hereof, and the remair
provisions hereof shall continue to be valid antyfenforceable.

18. Governing Law To the extent that federal law does not othexwintrol, the validity, interpretation, performarend
enforcement of the Grant Notice and these AwarariBeshall be governed by the laws of the State ¢dvidere, without giving effect to
principles of conflicts of laws thereof.
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19. Successors and AssigriEhe provisions of the Grant Notice and these wigerms shall be binding upon and inure to the
benefit of the Company, its successors and assaguasthe Holder and, to the extent applicableHblkler's permitted assigns under Section 3
(b) hereof and the Holder’s estate or beneficias)(as determined by will or the laws of descedtdistribution.

20. Notices Any notice or other document which the Holdetter Company may be required or permitted to deliw¢he
other pursuant to or in connection with the Graatite or these Award Terms shall be in writing, amaly be delivered personally or by mail,
postage prepaid, or overnight courier, addressédllasvs: (a) if to the Company, at its office d@t@® Ocean Park Boulevard, Santa Monica,
California 90405, Attn: Stock Plan Administratiar,such other address as the Company by notideetblolder may designate in writing from
time to time; and (b) if to the Holder, at the agkir shown in any employment agreement or offearlbgtween the Holder and the Company or
any of its subsidiaries or affiliates in effectrfrdime to time or such other address as the Hdigertice to the Company may designate in
writing from time to time. Notices shall be effeet upon receipt.

21. Conflict with Employment AgreementRian. In the event of any conflict between the termhany employment agreement
or offer letter between the Holder and the Compamgny of its subsidiaries or affiliates in effé@m time to time and the terms of the Grant
Notice or these Award Terms, the terms of the Giwtice or these Award Terms, as the case mayhiadl,ontrol. In the event of any confl
between the terms of any employment agreementfer letter between the Holder and the Company grddiits subsidiaries or affiliates in
effect from time to time, the Grant Notice or thédseard Terms and the terms of the Plan, the teritiseoPlan shall control.

22. Deemed AgreemenBy accepting the Award, the Holder is deemebletdoound by the terms and conditions set forthén t
Plan, the Grant Notice and these Award Terms.
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Exhibit 10.95
AMENDED AND RESTATED ACTIVISION BLIZZARD, INC.
2008 INCENTIVE PLAN

NOTICE OF RESTRICTED SHARE UNIT AWARD

You have been awarded Restricted Share Units afi8icin Blizzard, Inc. (the “Company”), as follows:
*  Your name:Mike Morhaime
*  Total number of Restricted Share Units awardéd,000
»  Date of Grant:November 10, 2011
*  Grant ID: 08007505
*  Your Award of Restricted Share Units is governedhs/terms and conditions set forth in:
» this Notice of Restricted Share Unit Award;
« the Restricted Share Unit Award Terms attachedtbe® Exhibit A(the “Award Terms”); and

» the Company’'s Amended and Restated 2008 Incentare the receipt of a copy of which you hereby anidedge.

Schedule for Vesting

Except as otherwise provided under the Award TethesRestricted Share Units awarded to you wilt eassfollows, provided you remain
continuously employed by the Company or one outissidiaries or affiliates through each such date:

Schedule for Vesting

No. of Restricted Cumulative No. of
Share Units Vesting at Restricted Share Units
Date of Vesting Vesting Date Vested at Vesting Date
November 9, 201- 23,334 23,334
November 9, 201: 23,333 46,667
November 9, 201« 23,333 70,000




»  Please sign and return to the Company this NotideRestricted Share Unit Award, which bears an omgil signature on behalf of the
Company. You are urged to do so promptly.

»  Please return the signed Notice of Restricted Shamit Award to the Company at:
Activision Blizzard, Inc.
3100 Ocean Park Boulevard
Santa Monica, CA 90405
Attn: Stock Plan Administration

You should retain the enclosed duplicate copy isf Notice of Restricted Share Unit Award for yoacords.

Any capitalized term used but not otherwise defiherkin shall have the meaning ascribed to suah itethe Award Terms.
ACTIVISION BLIZZARD, INC.

/s/ Ann E. Weise
Ann E. Weisel
Chief Human Resources Offic

Date: 12/18/2011

ACCEPTED AND AGREED:

/s/ Mike Morhaime
Mike Morhaime

Date: 01/17/201zZ




EXHIBIT A
AMENDED AND RESTATED ACTIVISION BLIZZARD, INC.
2008 INCENTIVE PLAN

RESTRICTED SHARE UNIT AWARD TERMS

1. Definitions.
(@) For purposes of these Award Terms, the followinghgeshall have the meanings set forth below:
“Award” means the award described on the Grant Notice.

“Cause” (i) shall have the meaning given to such term iy employment agreement or offer letter between @eand the
Company or any of its subsidiaries or affiliategffect from time to time or (i) if Grantee is ngarty to any agreement or offer letter with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries or affiliatesaoy such agreement or offer letter does not corgalefinition of “cause,” shall mean that
Grantee (A) engaged in misconduct or gross negtigémthe performance of his or her duties or wilyf and continuously failed or refused to
perform any duties reasonably requested in theseooifr his or her employment; (B) engaged in fralishonesty, or any other improper
conduct that causes, or in the sole and absolsteation of the Company has the potential to causen to the Company Group, including the
business reputation or financial condition of argnmber of the Company Group; (C) violated any lawfitgctives or policies of the Company
Group or any applicable laws, rules or regulati¢Bg;materially breached his or her employment egrent, proprietary information agreem
or any other agreement with the Company Groupg@)mitted, was indicted on charges related to, ioted of, or pled guilty or no contest
a felony or crime involving dishonesty, moral tugge or which could reflect negatively upon the @amy Group of otherwise impede its
operations; or (F) breached his or her fiduciarjieduto the Company Group.

“Common Shares” means the shares of common stock, par value $00000€r share, of the Company or any security into
which such Common Shares may be changed by redsmy éransaction or event of the type referrechtS8ection 9 hereof.

“Company” means Activision Blizzard, Inc. and any succeskerdto.
“Company Group” means the Company or any of its subsidiaries aradffiliates.

“Company-Sponsored Equity Account’means an account that is created with the EquitgoArt Administrator in
connection with the administration of the Compargdsiity plans and programs, including the Plan.
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“Date of Grant” means the Date of Grant of the Award set forthhenGrant Notice.

“Employment Violation” means any material breach by Grantee of his oefmgloyment agreement with the Company or
one of its subsidiaries or affiliates for so lorggthe terms of such employment agreement shalyapgbrantee (with any breach of the post-
termination obligations contained therein deemelketonaterial for purposes of these Award Terms).

“Equity Account Administrator” means the brokerage firm utilized by the Companynftime to time to create and
administer accounts for participants in the Comfmayuity plans and programs, including the Plan.

“Grantee” means the recipient of the Award named on the G¥alite.

“Grant Notice” means the Notice of Restricted Share Unit Awardhiach these Award Terms are attached as Exhibit A

“Look-back Period” means, with respect to any Employment ViolatiorGrantee, the period beginning on the date which is
12 months prior to the date of such Employmentafioh by Grantee and ending on the date of comiputaf the Recapture Amount with

respect to such Employment Violation.

“Plan” means the Amended and Restated Activision Bliz4ad,2008 Incentive Plan, as amended from timée.

“Recapture Amount” means, with respect to any Employment Violatiordrgntee, the gross gain realized or unrealized by
Grantee upon all vesting of Restricted Share Umnitdelivery or transfer of Vested Shares duringlibek-back Period with respect to such
Employment Violation, which gain shall be calcuthtes the sum of:

() if Grantee has received any Vested Shares duricig Isook-back Period and sold such Vested Shareairenunt
equal to the product of (A) the sales price pert¥@Share times (B) the number of such Vested Stsale at such sales price; plus

(i) if Grantee has received any Vested Shares duricly Isook-back Period and not sold such Vested Shares, aord
equal to the product of (A) the greatest of théofeing: (1) the Market Value per Share of Commoma®k on the date such Vested
Shares were issued or transferred to Granteeh€2yrithmetic average of the per share closing gaiees of Common Shares as
reported on NASDAQ for the 30 trading day periodiag on the trading day immediately preceding tagaf the Compang’writter
notice of its exercise of its rights under Sectl@hereof, or (3) the arithmetic average of thegbare closing sales prices of Common
Shares as reported on NASDAQ for the 30 tradingmiaiod ending on the trading day immediately pdéug the date of
computation, times (B) the number of such Vestear&hwhich were not sold.

“Restricted Share Units” means units subject to the Award, which repredentonditional right to receive Common Shares
in accordance with the Grant Notice and these AWamins, unless and until such units become vestadedorfeited to the Company in
accordance with the Grant Notice and these Awarch$e
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“Section 409A” means Section 409A of the Code and the guidanceegpudations promulgated thereunder.

“Term Sheet” means the Corporate Governance Term Sheet appbgutb@ Delaware Court of Chancery in connectiormwit
the settlement dh re Activision, Inc. Shareholder Derivative L#igon, C.D. Cal. Case No. CV06-4771 MRP (JTLkj;re Activision
Shareholder Derivative LitigationL.A.S.C. Case No. SC090343.

“Vested Shares”"means Common Shares to which the holder of theriBtest Share Units becomes entitled upon vesting
thereof in accordance with Section 2 or 3 hereof.

“Withholding Taxes” means any taxes, including, but not limited to acsecurity and Medicare taxes and federal, state
local income taxes, required to be withheld undawgrapplicable law.

(b) Any capitalized term used but not otherwise defiherkin shall have the meaning ascribed to suah itethe Plan.
2. Vesting. Except as otherwise set forth in these AwardnBetthe Restricted Share Units shall vest in acoord with the

“Schedule for Vestingset forth on the Grant Notice. Each Restricted&hhmit, upon vesting thereof, shall entitle thédeo thereof to receiv
one Common Share (subject to adjustment pursueBedton 9 hereof).

3. Termination of Employment

(@) Cause In the event that Grantee’s employment is teateid by the Company or any of its subsidiarieSfdiates
for Cause, as of the date of such termination gfleyment all Restricted Share Units shall ceaseett and any outstanding Restricted Share
Units and Vested Shares that have yet to settlsupnt to Section 7 hereof shall immediately beeitefl to the Company without payment of
consideration by the Company.

(b) Other. Unless the Committee determines otherwise,éretrent that Grantee’s employment is terminateauhgr
reason other than for Cause, as of the date ofteugtination of employment all Restricted Sharett/shall cease to vest and, with the
exception of any Vested Shares that have yet tle grirsuant to Section 7 hereof, shall immediabe\forfeited to the Company without
payment of consideration by the Company.

4, Tax Withholding. The Company shall have the right to require @Gmarmo satisfy any Withholding Taxes resulting frira
vesting of any Restricted Share Units, the issuand¢eansfer of any Vested Shares or otherwiseimection with the Award at the time such
Withholding Taxes become due. The Company shédirdeéne the method or methods Grantee may usditfysany Withholding Taxes
contemplated by this Section 4, which may includy af the following: (a) by delivery to the Compeof a bank check or certified check or
wire transfer of immediately available funds; (bjaugh the delivery of irrevocable written instioats, in a form acceptable to the Company,
that the Company withhold Vested Shares othenkise teliverable having a value equal to the aggeegraount of the Withholding Taxes
(valued in the same manner used in computing theuatrof such Withholding Taxes); or (c) by any camaltion of (a) and (b) above.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contaihedein, (i) the Company or any of its subsidiagesffiliates shall have the right to withhc
from Grantee’s compensation any Withholding Taxasemplated by this Section 4 and (ii) the Compsimgll have no obligation to deliver
any Vested Shares unless and until all Withholdiages contemplated by this Section 4 have beesfigati
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5. Reservation of SharesThe Company shall at all times reserve for insaeaor delivery upon vesting of the Restricted 8har
Units such number of Common Shares as shall bareghjior issuance or delivery upon vesting thereof.

6. Dividend Equivalents In the event that any cash dividends are detlangl paid on Common Shares to which the holder of
the Restricted Share Units would be entitled upesting thereof, such holder shall be paid, on thenent date for such dividend, the amount
that such holder would have received if the RestiiShare Units had vested, and the Common Shavasich such holder was thereupon
entitled had been issued and outstanding and Hie&tord by such holder, as of the record datestwh dividend; providegdhowever, that no
such dividend equivalents shall be paid if the Retstd Share Units have been forfeited to the Camjla accordance with Section 3 hereof
prior to payment thereof. Notwithstanding the fmimg, in no event shall any such dividend equivisée paid later than the #5  day
following the year in which the related dividendas paid. For purposes of the time and form of payimequirements of Section 409A, such
dividend equivalents shall be treated separateiy fthe Restricted Share Units.

7. Receipt and Delivery As soon as administratively practicable (andyrig event, within 30 days) after any Restrictedr8h
Units vest, the Company shall (i) effect the issgaar transfer of the resulting Vested Sharescéijse the issuance or transfer of such Vested
Shares to be evidenced on the books and recottie @ompany, and (iii) cause such Vested Sharks tielivered to a Company-Sponsored
Equity Account in the name of the person entiteduch Vested Shares (or, with the Company’s cansaoh other brokerage account as may
be requested by such person); providadwever, that, in the event such Vested Shares are subjeclegend as set forth in Section 15 hereof,
the Company shall instead cause a certificate agidg such Vested Shares and bearing such legdreldelivered to the person entitled
thereto.

8. Committee Discretion Except as may otherwise be provided in the RlenCommittee shall have sole discretion to
(a) interpret any provision of the Plan, the Giidotice and these Award Terms, (b) make any detextioins necessary or advisable for the
administration of the Plan and the Award, and (ajwe any conditions or rights of the Company uniierAward, the Grant Notice or these
Award Terms. Without intending to limit the genl@yaor effect of the foregoing, any decision ottelenination to be made by the Committee
pursuant to these Award Terms, including whethgrémt or withhold any consent, shall be made kyGbmmittee in its sole and absolute
discretion, subject only to the terms of the Pl&ubject to the terms of the Plan, the Committeg amaend the terms of the Award
prospectively or retroactively; however, no suckeadment may materially and adversely affect thietsigf Grantee taken as a whole without
Grantee’s consent. Without intending to limit tenerality or effect of the foregoing, the Commdtteay amend the terms of the Award (i) in
recognition of unusual or nonrecurring events (idahg, without limitation, events described in $&tt9 hereof) affecting the Company or any
of its subsidiaries or affiliates or the financithtements of the Company or any of its subsidiarieaffiliates, (ii) in response to changes in
applicable laws, regulations or accounting priresphnd interpretations thereof, or (iii) to previbre Award from becoming subject to any
adverse consequences under Section 409A.
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9. Adjustments Notwithstanding anything to the contrary congairherein, pursuant to Section 12 of the PlanCiiamittee
will make or provide for such adjustments to theak@vas are equitably required to prevent dilutioerdargement of the rights of Grantee that
would otherwise result from (a) any stock divideextraordinary dividend, stock split, combinatidrsbares, recapitalization or other chanc
the capital structure of the Company, (b) any cleasfgcontrol, merger, consolidation, spin-off, splif, spin-out, split-up, reorganization,
partial or complete liquidation or other distrilartiof assets, or issuance of rights or warranpaitohase securities, or (c) any other corporate
transaction or event having an effect similar tg ahthe foregoing. Moreover, in the event of @ugh transaction or event, the Committee, in
its discretion, may provide in substitution for therard such alternative consideration (includingheut limitation, cash or other equity
awards), if any, as it may determine to be equitéibthe circumstances and may require in connecttierewith the surrender of the Award.

10. Registration and Listing Notwithstanding anything to the contrary conégirnerein, the Company shall not be obligated to
issue or transfer any Restricted Share Units otédeShares, and no Restricted Share Units or V&ades may be sold, assigned, transferred
pledged, hypothecated or otherwise disposed oficurabered in any way, unless such transactiondsiimpliance with (a) the Securities Act
of 1933, as amended, or any comparable federatitiesdaw, and all applicable state securitiesda(l) the requirements of any securities
exchange, securities association, market systegquatation system on which securities of the Compafrthe same class as the securities
subject to the Award are then traded or quotedarfg)restrictions on transfer imposed by the Comisarertificate of incorporation or bylaws,
and (d) any policy or procedure the Company hagtadiowith respect to the trading of its securitirsgach case as in effect on the date of the
intended transaction. The Company is under n@atitin to register, qualify or list, or maintairetregistration, qualification or listing of,
Restricted Share Units or Vested Shares with the, 8By state securities commission or any secsi@tiehange, securities association, market
system or quotation system to effect such compéiar@rantee shall make such representations angstfiusuch information as may be
appropriate to permit the Company, in light of then existence or non-existence of an effectivestegion statement under the Securities Act
of 1933, as amended, relating to Restricted Shaits dr Vested Shares, to issue or transfer Résthi8hare Units or Vested Shares in
compliance with the provisions of that or any conajpée federal securities law and all applicabléessecurities laws. The Company shall i
the right, but not the obligation, to register tb&uance or transfer of Restricted Share Unitsast&l Shares or resale of Restricted Share Unit:
or Vested Shares under the Securities Act of 188Zmended, or any comparable federal securitiesiapplicable state securities law.

11. Transferability. Except as otherwise permitted under the PlahisrSection 11, the Restricted Share Units statlbe
transferable by Grantee other than by will or #hed of descent and distribution. With the Compamygnsent, Grantee may transfer Restricted
Share Units for estate planning purposes or putsoamdomestic relations order; providdibwever, that any transferee shall be bound by all
of the terms and conditions of the Plan, the GNwtice and these Award Terms and shall executgeseaent in form and substance
satisfactory to the Company in connection with stiahsfer; and providedfurtherthat Grantee will remain bound by the terms andl@ams
of the Plan, the Grant Notice and these Award Terms
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12. Employment Violation The terms of this Section 12 shall apply toRestricted Share Units if Grantee is or becomepest
to an employment agreement with the Company ordiitg subsidiaries or affiliates. In the eventaof Employment Violation, the Company
shall have the right to require (i) the forfeitlmg Grantee to the Company of any outstanding ResttiShare Units or Vested Shares which
have yet to settle pursuant to Section 7 hereof(inpyment by Grantee to the Company of the Rega Amount with respect to such
Employment Violation; providedhowever, that, in lieu of payment by Grantee to the Conypafithe Recapture Amount, Grantee, in his ol
discretion, may tender to the Company the Vestede®hacquired during the Look-back Period with eespo such Employment Violation and
Grantee shall not be entitled to receive any caraitbn from the Company in exchange therefor. sugh forfeiture of Restricted Share Ur
and payment of the Recapture Amount, as the cagémashall be in addition to, and not in lieuafy other right or remedy available to the
Company arising out of or in connection with suchffoyment Violation, including, without limitatiorthe right to terminate Grantee’s
employment if not already terminated and to segknictive relief and additional monetary damages.

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws and Regulations @uwanpany Policies and Procedures

(@) Grantee is responsible for complying with (a) aegdral, state and local taxation laws applicabl@rantee in
connection with the Award, (b) any federal andestscurities laws applicable to Grantee in conoratiith the Award, (c) the requirements of
any securities exchange, securities associatiorkegnaystem or quotation system on which securdfabe Company of the same class as the
Shares are then traded or quoted, (d) any resmetn transfer imposed by the Company’s certéicdtincorporation or bylaws, and (e) any
policy or procedure the Company maintains or maypavith respect to the trading of its securities.

(b) The Award is subject to the terms and conditionthefTerm Sheet, and any Company policies or pruoesd
adopted in connection with the Company’s implemémteof the Term Sheet, including, without limitati, any policy requiring or permitting
the Company to recover any gains realized by Geainteonnection with the Award.

14. Section 409A

(@) Payments contemplated with respect to the Awardnéeaded to comply with Section 409A, and all psins of
the Plan, the Grant Notice and these Award Terrall Bk construed and interpreted in a manner cmisvith the requirements for avoiding
taxes or penalties under Section 409A. Notwittditamthe foregoing, (i) nothing in the Plan, thea@rNotice and these Award Terms shall
guarantee that the Award is not subject to taxgeeaalties under Section 409A and (i) if any psiom of the Plan, the Grant Notice or these
Award Terms would, in the reasonable, good faittgjuent of the Company, result or likely resulthie imposition on Grantee or any other
person of taxes, interest or penalties under Sed®A, the Committee may, in its sole discretimodify the terms of the Plan, the Grant
Notice or these Award Terms, without the consertntee, in the manner that the Committee mayredsdy and in good faith determine
be necessary or advisable to avoid the impositicuch taxes, interest or penalties; providédwever, that this Section 14 does not create an
obligation on the part of the Committee or the Campto make any such modification.
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(b) Neither Grantee nor any of Grantee’s creditorsemdficiaries shall have the right to subject anfeted
compensation (within the meaning of Section 409&ygble with respect to the Award to any anticipat@ienation, sale, transfer, assignment,
pledge, encumbrance, attachment or garnishmerdefEas permitted under Section 409A, any deferoagpensation (within the meaning of
Section 409A) payable to Grantee or for Grargdxnefit with respect to the Award may not be cedlby, or offset against, any amount ov
by Grantee to the Company.

(c) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contaihedein, if (i) the Committee determines in goodhahat the
Restricted Share Units do not qualify for the “skiterm deferral exception” under Section 409A, @hantee is a “specified employee” (as
defined in Section 409A) and (iii) a delay in tlssuance or transfer of Vested Shares to Grantkis or her estate or beneficiaries hereunder
by reason of Grantee’s “separation from servicg’dafined in Section 409A) with the Company or ahits subsidiaries or affiliates is
required to avoid tax penalties under Section 4B8Ais not already provided for by this Award, tbempany shall cause the issuance or
transfer of such Vested Shares to Grantee or Granstate or beneficiary upon the earlier of (#8 date that is the first business day
following the date that is six months after theedat Grantee’s separation from service or (B) Graistdeath.

15. Legend. The Company may, if determined by it based enattivice of counsel to be appropriate, cause atijicate
evidencing Vested Shares to bear a legend sulatarats follows:

“THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED HEREBY MAY NOT BE OFFER FOR SALE, SOLD OR OTHERWISE
TRANSFERRED EXCEPT PURSUANT TO AN EFFECTIVE REGISARON STATEMENT UNDER THE
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE “ACT"), ORURSUANT TO AN EXEMPTION FROM
REGISTRATION UNDER THE ACT.”

16. No Right to Continued EmploymentNothing contained in the Grant Notice or theseafd Terms shall be construed to
confer upon Grantee any right to be continued éneimploy of the Company or any of its subsidiaoieaffiliates or derogate from any right of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries or affilate retire, request the resignation of, or disgadsrantee at any time, with or without cause.
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17. No Rights as StockholderNo holder of Restricted Share Units shall, byué of the Grant Notice or these Award Terms, be
entitled to any right of a stockholder of the Compaeither at law or in equity, and the rights n@uch holder are limited to those expressed,
and are not enforceable against the Company ekzéipé extent set forth in the Plan, the Grant téotind these Award Terms.

18. Severability. In the event that one or more of the provisiohthese Award Terms shall be invalidated for aagson by a
court of competent jurisdiction, any provision sgdlidated shall be deemed to be separable frorottiex provisions hereof, and the remair
provisions hereof shall continue to be valid antyfenforceable.

19. Governing Law. To the extent that federal law does not othexwisntrol, the validity, interpretation, performarand
enforcement of the Grant Notice and these AwardriEeshall be governed by the laws of the State ¢tdere, without giving effect to
principles of conflicts of laws thereof.

20. Successors and Assigndrhe provisions of the Grant Notice and these rwigerms shall be binding upon and inure to the
benefit of the Company, its successors and assaguasiGrantee and, to the extent applicable, Granpsemitted assigns under Section 11
hereof and Grantee’s estate or beneficiary(iesletarmined by will or the laws of descent and dhistion.

21. Notices. Any notice or other document which Grantee er@ompany may be required or permitted to deligghé other
pursuant to or in connection with the Grant Noticehese Award Terms shall be in writing, and maydblivered personally or by mail,
postage prepaid, or overnight courier, addressédllasvs: (a) if to the Company, at its office2t00 Ocean Park Boulevard, Santa Monica,
California 90405, Attn: Stock Plan Administratiar,such other address as the Company by noticeant& may designate in writing from
time to time; and (b) if to Grantee, at the addssswvn in any employment agreement or offer |ditdween Grantee and the Company or any
of its subsidiaries or affiliates in effect frormt to time, or such other address as Grantee ligertotthe Company may designate in writing
from time to time. Notices shall be effective upeneipt.

22. Conflict with Employment Agreement or Plarin the event of any conflict between the terfarny employment agreement
or offer letter between Grantee and the Comparangrof its subsidiaries or affiliates in effectrfrdime to time and the terms of the Grant
Notice or these Award Terms, the terms of the Giwtice or these Award Terms, as the case mayhiadl,ontrol. In the event of any confl
between the terms of any employment agreementfer letter between Grantee and the Company or &itg subsidiaries or affiliates in effe
from time to time, the Grant Notice or these Aw&mtms and the terms of the Plan, the terms of ke hall control.

23. Deemed Agreement By accepting the Award, Grantee is deemed thdumd by the terms and conditions set forth in the
Plan, the Grant Notice and these Award Terms.

A-8




Exhibit 10.97

AcTiVision | BJIZZARD

To: Eric Hirshberg, Chief Executive Officer of Activasi Publishing, Inc

From: Chris Walther, Chief Legal Office

Date: December 22, 201

Re: Notice of Assignment of Employment Agreement toiiston Blizzard, Inc.

This letter is to inform you that effective January2012, Activision Publishing, Inc. (“ActivisioRAublishing”) hereby assigns all of its rights,
titte and interest in your employment agreememtc¢tvision Blizzard, Inc. (“Activision Blizzard” ofCompany”), and Activision Blizzard
hereby accepts such assignment in its entiretydiety without limitation all of Activision Publishg obligations thereunder.

As a result of this change, you will see a chamggour payroll documentation (e.g. paystubs, W-ts,), which will now be administered by
Activision Blizzard beginning January 1, 2012. &fieally, the governmental reporting entity listed this documentation will change from
Activision Publishing to Activision Blizzard.

Although consent of such assignment is not requiteduant to the terms of your employment agreenteatCompany is requesting your
signature below as acknowledgment of receipt af ltiter. Please return a signed original to RaRoman in HR Operations, and a copy will
be returned to you for your records and the sigieginal placed in your personnel file.

If you have any guestions or concerns regardingbizyve, please feel free to contact me at Chrigh&a®@activision.com or xt. 2059.

Acknowledged by

/s/ Eric Hirshber 01/06/201z
Employee Nam:i Date

cc: Personnel Fil




Non-Affiliated Director

Cash Compensatior

Exhibit 10.104

As adopted by the Board of Directors
October 21, 201

Activision Blizzard, Inc.

Non-Affiliated Director Compensation Program and

Stock Ownership Guidelines

For purposes of this program” Non-Affiliated Director” is any director of the Company that is not als@fi
employee of the Company or any of its subsidiasie@i) an employee of a majority shareholder oy ahits
controlled affiliates

Annual Retainers:

Board Membe- $55,000

Chairman of the Audit Committe- $27,500

Chairman of the Compensation Commi- $22,000

Chairman of the Nominating and Corporate Gogece Committe- $16,500
Audit Committee Membe- $11,000

Compensation Committee Meml- $5,500

Nominating and Corporate Governance Commhitember- $5,500

Meeting Fees:

For each board or committee meeting attet@érson or by telephor- $3,300

Special Assignment Fee

Per day for special assignments requireeimection with board duties (including, without
limitation, litigation-related matters, but excladidays on which a director is required to trawvel t
attend meetings- $5,500

Payment Terms

All cash retainers will generally be paidaimears in equal quarterly installments no latantthe 60
th day following the last date of the applicable demprovided, however, that in no event shall fees
be paid later than the date that is 2%2 monthsvatig the last date of the Company’s fiscal year for
which the retainer relate

Meeting Fees and Special Assignment Feegeilkrally be paid in arrears in equal quarterly
installments no later than the 80 day following tast date of the applicable quartggvided,
however, that in no event shall fees be paid later thandidite that is 2%2 months following the last
date of the Compar's fiscal year for which the retainer relat

Fees will be prorated for partial years o/, with partial months of service credited foll
months.




Stock Options New Appointment/Election Option Grant

. Each newly elected or appointed Non-Affiltirector will receive a grant of 44,000 stockiops
upon initial election or appointment to the Boe

Annual Option Grant

. Each Non-Affiliated Director will receive amnual grant of 22,000 stock options annually ugen
election to the Boart

Tenth Year Option Grant

. In the year that a NoAffiliated Director completes ten continuous yeafservice on the Board, tl
director will receive a grant of 44,000 stock optc

. The tenth year grant is in lieu of the anrgraint for the applicable ye:
Grant Date

. Option grants will be made three business daljowing the date of the first board meeting
immediately following the annual meeting of stockiess.

. The exercise price of the options will eqtine closing price of the Company’s common stock as
quoted on the NASDAQ National Market on the datgrafnt.

Vesting
. All option grants will vest ratably every & months over the c-year period from the date of gra

. Initial and “Tenth-Year” option grants wilksgt ratably every three months over the two-yedoge
from the date of gran

. A director must be in continuous active seevdn each applicable vesting date and vestingeedbe
upon a termination of servicprovided, however, that vesting will accelerate upon a director’attie
or termination due to Disability (as defined in 8a&t 22(e)(3) of the Internal Revenue Co

Term

. Options will expire on the I anniversary of the date of gra

. For so long as director remains in continuservice, all options may be exercised by the thirec
through the 1" anniversary of gran

. Upon a cessation of service for any reasbardhan for cause, vested options will remain
exercisable until the earlier of (i) the 1st anmsagy of the date of death or cessation of setazk
(i) the 10™ anniversary of gran

Change of Control

. In the event that the director ceases toesasva member of the Board of Directors pursuatiteo
terms of any business combination or similar tratisa involving the Company, the options will
immediately vest and will remain exercisable uthtéd earlier of (i) the # anniversary of the ddte o
the directa’s cessation of service and (ii) the original exjiradate.
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Award Agreement

. Options will be granted pursuant to the Conyx®2008 Incentive Plan and will be subject to the
terms of the applica ble Non-Affiliated Directobsk option agreement as in effect at the time of
grant.

Restricted Stock Units New Appointment/Election RSU Grant

. Each newly elected or appointed Non-Affilt@irector will receive a grant of 22,000 RSUs upon
initial election or appointment to the Boa

Annual RSU Grant

. Each Non-Affiliated Director will receive amnual grant of 11,000 RSUs annually upon re-elacti
to the Board

Tenth Year RSU Grant

. In the year that a Non-Affiliated Directorrapletes 10 continuous years of service on the Bdhed
director will receive a grant of 22,000 RSI

. The tenth year grant is in lieu of the anrgraint for the applicable ye:
Grant Date

. RSU grants will be made three business dalj@aing the date of the first Board meeting
immediately following the annual meeting of stockiess.

Vesting
. All annual RSUs will vest ratably every thmenths over the or-year period from the date of gra

. Initial and “Tenth-Year” RSU grants will vesttably every three months over the two-year gerio
from the date of gran

. A director must be in continuous active segvdn each applicable vesting d:

. Vesting will accelerate on the date of adlin¢' s cessation of service due to death or Disab

Settlement

. Vested RSUs will settle for shares of the @any’s common stock no later than 30 days following
the 18t anniversary of the grant da

. 50% percent of the Initial and “Tenth-YearSR grants will settle no later than 30 days follogyi
each of the 3t and 2" anniversaries of the date of grant, to the extested

Change of Control

. In the event that the director ceases toesasva member of the Board of Directors pursuatiteo
terms of any business combination or similar tratisa involving the Company, the RSUs will
immediately vest and settle as of the date on wtiietbusiness combination or similar transaction is
consummatec




Expenses

Other Benefits

Affiliated Directors

Plan Administration

Non-Affiliated Director
Stock Ownership Guidelines

Dividend Equivalents

. To the extent dividends are paid on the Camjzacommon stock, dividend equivalents will bedcpai
on RSUs prior to settlement, no later than thé& 4fate following the last date of the Company’s

fiscal year in which the dividends are pe

Award Agreement

. RSUs will be granted pursuant to the Compai@@08 Incentive Plan and will be subject to theng
of the applicable Nc-Affiliated Director stock RSU agreement as in effatcthe time of gran

Directors receive reimbursement of business anetexpenses from time to time in accordance !
Company policy

As determinecby the Board from tirr-to-time.

. Directors who are employees of thenBany or any of its subsidiaries will not be ertitto
compensation as a direct

. Unless otherwise determined by tharBlf Directors or set forth in the Company’s yda
directors who are employees of a majority sharedrabd any of its controlled affiliates will not be

entitled to compensation as a direc

The human resources and the legal departmentsdvilinister the Nc-Affiliated Directors compensatiol
program.

. Each Non-Affiliated Director is reged, within four years following his or her firdeetion to the
Board, to beneficially own (within the meaning aflR 13d-3 promulgated under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) shares of thep@awy's common stock (including any restricted
shares of common stock or restricted share unitalpa in shares of the Company’s common stock)
having an aggregate value at least equal to fimedithe amount of the annual cash Board retaia¢
we then pay such director for regular service @enBbard.

. For purposes of determining complendth the share ownership guidelines, the aggeegatie of
the shares owned by the director is calculated daraiary 2nd of each applicable year (or if such
date is not a trading date, the next trading daasgd on the higher ¢

» the closing price of the Company’s common stocluasted on the NASDAQ National
Market on that day; an

»  the closing price of the Company’s common stocluasted on the NASDAQ National
Market on the date of grant (or if such date isanttading date, the next trading date), for
any shares awarded to the director by the Compard/the actual cost to the director, for
any other sharese(.g., with respect to shares acquired through thecésesof stock options,

the exercise price

. Non-Affiliated Directors are subjeotthese guidelines for as long as they continwgetee on the
Board.
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Exhibit 21.1

MAJOR SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT AT DECEMBER 31 , 2011

State or Other Jurisdiction

Name of of Incorporation or
Subsidiary Organization
AB Partners C.V. Netherlands
Activision Blizzard Benelux B.\ Netherlands
Activision Blizzard Deutschland Gmb Germany
Activision Blizzard France SA France
Activision Blizzard Nordic AB Sweder
Activision Blizzard Pty Limitec Australia
Activision Blizzard UK Limited U.K.

Activision Publishing, Inc U.S—Delaware
ATVIC.V Netherlands
Blizzard Entertainment SA France

Blizzard Entertainment, In U.S—Delaware
Codperatie Activision Blizzard International U Netherland:

Infinity Ward, Inc
Sledgehammer Games, |
Vicarious Visions, Inc.

U.S—Delaware
U.S—Delaware
U.S—New York
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Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémdlee Registration Statements on Form S-4 (N8:-B31304) and Form S-8 (Nos. 033-
48411, 033-63638, 033-91074, 333-06054, 333-06338,40727, 333-58922, 333-61573, 333-72014, 33381233-85383, 333-87810, 333-
100114, 333-100115, 333-103323, 333-106487, 333-31,1333-146431, 333-153661, 333-165123 and 3332&7of Activision

Blizzard, Inc. of our report dated February 28, 2@dlating to the consolidated financial statemgfirisncial statement schedule and the
effectiveness of internal control over financigboeting, which appears in this Form 10-K.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Los Angeles, California
February 28, 2012
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Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION
I, Robert A. Kotick, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-Kdfivision Blizzard, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omététe a material fact necessar

make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts.under which such statements were made, nkadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsatimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant's other certifying officer and | a@gponsible for establishing and maintaining disete controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@&))%(d internal control over financial reportirg @efined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrami &ave:

€) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pneggh

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atamoce with generally accepted accounting princjples

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantsl@lsire controls and procedures and presentedsimeiport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, at the end of the period coverdtisyeport based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regmtsadnternal control over financial reporting tloatturred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fofisital quarter in the case of an annual repod) ltas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reportinggdan

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and | balisclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorteyhal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thetaummmittee of the registrant's board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(@  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesiethe design or operation of internal contradiofmancial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig's ability to record, process, summarize ambrt financial information; ar

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéain the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 28, 2012

/s/ ROBERT A. KOTICK

Robert A. Kotick
Chief Executive Officer of Activision
Blizzard, Inc.
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Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION
I, Thomas Tippl, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-Kdfivision Blizzard, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omététe a material fact necessar

make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts.under which such statements were made, nkadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsatimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant's other certifying officer and | a@gponsible for establishing and maintaining disete controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@&))%(d internal control over financial reportirg @efined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrami &ave:

€) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pneggh

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atamoce with generally accepted accounting princjples

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantsl@lsire controls and procedures and presentedsimeiport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, at the end of the period coverdtisyeport based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regmtsadnternal control over financial reporting tloatturred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fofisital quarter in the case of an annual repod) ltas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reportinggdan

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and | balisclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorteyhal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thetaummmittee of the registrant's board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(@  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesiethe design or operation of internal contradiofmancial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig's ability to record, process, summarize ambrt financial information; ar

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéain the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 28, 2012

/sl THOMAS TIPPL

Thomas Tippl
Chief Operating Officer and Chief Financial Offi¢

Principal Financial Officer of Activisiol
Blizzard, Inc.
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Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the annual report ofikistion Blizzard, Inc. (the "Company") on Form 10f#t the year ended December 31, 2011 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissinnhe date hereof (the "Report"), I, Robert A. iKktiPresident and Chief Executive Offi
of the Company, certify, to my knowledge, pursuant8 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 8fedsSarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

Q) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSetction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly pmets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operatio
of the Company.

Date: February 28, 2012

/s/ ROBERT A. KOTICK

Robert A. Kotick
Chief Executive Officer of Activision
Blizzard, Inc.

A signed original of this written statement reqdil®y Section 906 has been provided to the Compadyéll be retained by the Company and
furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commissiots staff upon request.
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Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the annual report ofikistion Blizzard, Inc. (the "Company") on Form 10f#t the year ended December 31, 2011 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiornhe date hereof (the "Report"), I, Thomas Tigiijef Operating Officer and Chief

Financial Officer, Principal Financial Officer di¢ Company, certify, to my knowledge, pursuant8dJ1S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to
8 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1)  The Report fully complies with the requirementsSeftction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof1934; anc

(2)  The information contained in the Report fairly pmets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations
of the Company.

Date: February 28, 2012

/sl THOMAS TIPPL

Thomas Tippl
Chief Operating Officer and Chief Financial Offi¢

Principal Financial Officer of Activisiol
Blizzard, Inc.

A signed original of this written statement reqdil®y Section 906 has been provided to the Compadyaéll be retained by the Company and
furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commissiots staff upon request.




QuickLinks
Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 13505ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-
OXLEY ACT OF 2002



